TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
May 28, 2020 — 3:30 o'clock p.m.

in accordance with the current State of Emergency and the Governor’'s Executive
Order N- 25-20, of March 4, 2020, and N-33-20 of March 19, 2020 a virtual platform and/or
teleconferencing will be used by the Board members and appropriate staff members
during this meeting. Members of the public will be able to participate by telephone,
using the following dial in information:

Dial in #: (669-900-6833) To Listen and Address the Board when called upon:
Meeting ID: 995 389 5217 Passcode: 169540

The Board may take action on any of the items listed
below, unless the item is specifically labeled
“Informational Only”

Trime

Agenda ltem Allotted Requestor
Call to Order 3 min. Standard
Approval of agenda
Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance 3 min. Standard
Public Comments — Announcement 2 min. Standard
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Board Agenda at the time the item is being considered by the Board of
Directors. Per Board Policy 19-018, members of the public may have three
minutes, individually, to address the Board of Directors.
NOTE: Members of the public may speak on any item not listed on the
Board Agenda, which falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors,
immediately prior to Board Communications.
April, 2020 Financial Statement Results 10 min. CFO

New Business —

a} Discussion and possible action relating to submitting a General 15 min. Chair
Obligation Bond Measure for improvements to Tri-City Medical Center for
the November 3, 2020 General Election

b) Consideration for the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District to 10 min. Vice Chair
suspend their stipend payments for all meetings during this healthcare
crisis.

Old Business - None = =

Note: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the members of Tri-City Healthcare District regarding any item on this
Agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Administration Departrment located at 4002 Vista Way,
Oceanside, CA 92056 during normal business hours.

Note: If you have a disability, please notify us at 760-940-3347 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting
so that we may provide reasonable accommodations.



Time
Agenda Item Allotted | Requestor

Chief of Staff 5 min. CcOSs

a) Consideration of May 2020 Credentialing Actions and Reappointments
Involving the Medical Staff as recommended by the Medical Executive
Committee on May 26, 2020.

b) Consideration of Critical Care Privilege Card

Consideration of Consent Calendar 10 min. Standard

Requested items to be pulled require a second.

a) Approval of an agreement with the various carriers as reflected on the
accompanying Executive Summary through McGriff Insurance Services, Inc.
for a term of 12 months beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 for a
total annualfterm cost of $1,822,985.

b} Approval of an agreement with Dr. Henry Showah, Coverage Physician
for Inpatient Wound Care for a term of 12 months from May 1, 2020 through
Aprit 30, 2021, not to exceed an average of 20 hours a month, at an hourly
! rate of $180 for a total annual and term cost of $43,200.

c) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Henry Showah, Coverage Physician
for Qutpatient Wound Care for a term of 12 months from May 1, 2020
through April 30, 2021, not to exceed an average of 20 hours a month, at an
hourly rate of $180, for a total annual and term cost of $43,200.

d} Approval of an agreement with Dr. Sharon Slowik, Coverage Physician
for Inpatient Wound Care for a term of 12 months from May 1, 2020 through
April 30, 2021, not to exceed an average of 20 hours a month, at an hourly
rate of $180, for a total cost for the term of $43,200.

e) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Sharon Slowik, Coverage Physician
for Outpatient Wound Care for a term of 12 months from May 1, 2020
through April 30, 2021, not to exceed an average of 20 hours a month, at an
hourly rate of $180, for a total cost for the term of $43,200.

f) Approval of an agreement with Yuan Hwang Lin, Cardiothoracic Medical
Director of the Cardiovascular Health Institute for a term of 12 months,
beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed 12 hours per
month for a total of 144 hours annually, at an hourly rate of $210, for an
annual and term cost of $30,240.

g) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Yuan Hwang Lin, Cardiovascular
Health institute Operations Committee Member for a term of 12 months
beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed 2 hours per
month at an hourly rate of $210 for an annual and term cost of $5,040,

h) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Anitha Rajamanickam, Cardiovascular
Health Institute Operations Committee member for a term of 12 months,
beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed 2 hours per
month at an hourly rate of $210 for an annual and term cost of $5,040.

i) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Frank Corona, Pulmonary Rehab
Medical Director, for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through
June 30, 2022, not to exceed 20 hours per month at an hourly rate of $175,

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -2- May 28, 2020




Time
Agenda {tem Allotted | Requestor

for an annual cost of $42,000 and a total coniract term of $84,000.

i) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Mohammad Jamshidi-Nezhad,
Vascular Surgery Medical Director for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1,
2020 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed 12 hours per month at an hourly
rate of $210 for an annual and term cost of $30,240.

k) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Mohammad Jamshidi-Nezhad,
Cardiovascular Health Institute Operations Committee member for a term of
12 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed 2
hour per month at an hourly rate of $210, for an annual and term cost of
$5,040.

[) Approval of an agreement with Dr. David Spiegel, Medical Director for
Invasive Cardiology, for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through
June 30, 2021, not to exceed 12 hours per month for a total of 144 hours
annually, at an hourly rate of $210 for an annual and term cost of $30,240.

m) Approval of an agreement with Dr. David Spiegel, Cardiovascular Health
Institute Operations Committee member for a term of 12 months, beginning
July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, not 1o exceed 2 hours per month at an
hourly rate of $210 for an annual and term cost of $5,040.

n) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Donald Ponec, Medical Director of the
Cardiovascular Health Institute, for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1,
2020 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed an average of 8 hours per month
at an hourly rate of $210, for an annual and term cost of $20,160.

o) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Donald Ponec, Cardiovascular Health
Institute Quality Committee member, for a term of 12 months, beginning July
1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed 2 hours per month at an
hourly rate of $210, for an annual and term cost of $5,040,

p) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Ashish Kabra, Non-Invasive
Cardiology Medical Director, for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2020,
through June 30, 2021, not to exceed 12 hours per month per physician for a
total of 144 hours annually, at an hourly rate of $210, for an annual and term
cost of $30,240.

q) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Ashish Kabra, Cardiovascular Health
Institute Quality Committee member, for a term of 12 months, beginning July
1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed 2 hours per month at an
hourly rate of $210 for an annual and term cost of $5,040.

r) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Ashish Wadhwa to join the existing
ENT-Otolaryngology ED On-Call Coverage Physician panel for a term of 13
months, beginning June 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, at a daily rate of
$650 for a term cost of $256,750.

s) Approval of an agreement with the Neurology Center of Southern
California for increased physician coverage for ARU for a flexible term, not to
exceed sixteen (16) months, beginning June 1, 2020 through September 30,
2021 {Dependent on Program Flex) for a monthly cost, not to exceed $6,250
and a total cost for the term not to exceed $100,000.

t) Approval of an agreement with Drs. Christopher Devereaux, Thomas Krol,
Javaid Shad, Michael Shim and Matthew Viernes as the Gastroenterolagy

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -3- May 28, 2020




Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

General & ERCP ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 24 months,
beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022, at a daily rate of $775 for Gl
for an annual cost of $282, 875 and ERCP at a daily rate of $500 for an
annual cost of $182,500 and a total cost for the term of $930,750.

u) Approval of an agreement to add Dr. Hussna Wakily to the currently
existing Panel Agreement for ED On Call Coverage — General Surgery for a
term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021.

v) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Brian Mudd for Oral/Max Surgery ED
Call Coverage for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through June
30, 2022, at a daily rate of $350 for a term cost of $255,500.

f w) Approval of an agreement with Drs. Anish Kabra, Mohammad

Pashmforoush, Pargol Samani, Kenneth Carr, Karim El-Sherief, David

Spiegel and Anitha Rajamanickam for Cardiology-General ED Call Coverage
for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022, ata
daily rate of $300, for an annual cost of $109,500 and term cost of $219,000.

x} Approval of an agreement with Drs. David Spiegel, Kenneth Carr, Karim
El Sherief, Anita Rajamanickam for Cardiology-STEMI for a term of 24
months, beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022, at a daily rate of

$1.,000 for a total cost of the term of $730.000

Y Approvat of an agreement with Urs. Maulk Zaveri, Feter Krall, Srinivas

lyengar, Logan Haak, James Davies, Atul Jain, Neeta Varshney, Jean Paul
Abboud, as the Ophthalmology ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of
24 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022, at a daily rate of
$300, for an annual cost for FY2021 of $109,500, FY2022 of $109,500 and a
total term cost $219,000.

2z) Approval of an agreement with Drs. Neville Alleyne, David Amory, Payam
Moazzaz, Tyrone Hardy, Mark Stern, Kevin Yoo, Sunil Jeswani and Howard
Tung as the Spine ED Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 24 months,
beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022, at a daily rate of $450, for a
total term cost of $328,500.

aa) Approval of an agreement with Drs. Michael Burke, Brian Goelitz, Justin
Gooding, Charles McGraw, Michael Noud, Donald Ponec, Cyrus Shabrang
and Richard Saxson as the interventional Radiology (IR) ED-Call Coverage
Physicians for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30,
2022, at a daily rate of $750, for an annual cost of $273,750 and total term
cost of $547,500.

bb) Approval of an agreement with Dr. James Johnson, Physician
Chairperson of MDQA/Peer Review/QAPI for a term of 12 months, beginning
July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed an average of 33 hours in
total per month or 400 hours annually, at an hourly rate of $155 and an
Educationail Allowance not to exceed $10,000, for an annual cost not to
exceed $72,000.

(5) Administrative & Board Committees

A. Administrative Policies

1) Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures
a) Admission Criteria Policy (NEW)

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -4-

May 28, 2020




Agenda [tem

Time
Allotted

Reqguestor

b) Antimicrobial Stewardship Policy (DELETE)

c) Cardiac Rehab Center (On Campus) Emergency Treatment
Standardized Procedure

d) Catheter Clearance with Alteplase {Cathflo Activase) Procedure
(DELETE)

e) Chemotherapy Exposure, Spills, and Handling of Linens
Contaminated with Chemotherapeutic Agents Procedure

f} Chemotherapy Extravasation Procedure

g) Code Blue Response Plan Policy

h) Enteral Feeding Preparation, Storage, Distribution and
Administration Policy

i) Food Brought in from Outside the Hospital Policy (DELETE)

j) Food Storage on Nursing Units

k) Lumbar Drains, Care of Procedure

I) Neutropenic Precautions Policy

m) Patient Classification {Acuity) Procedure

n) Safe Surrender

o} Transporting Ventilator Patients Procedure

p} Ultrasound Guided Peripheral Intravenous Access
q) Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns Policy

r) Visiting Guidelines

2)

Administrative Policies & Procedures

District Operations 200

a) Control for Locks and Keys 243

b} Equipment Medical Device Reporting — Sequester 201
c¢) Helicopters on District Policy 207

d) Signage - 215

= mtormation Technology 600
a) Access to Restricted Financial, Employee
b) Remote or Portable Computing 623

c) Telephone Authorization Code 600 (DELETE)

4)

Unit Specific — Cardiac Rehab

a) Glucose Monitoring and Exercise Therapy for Diabetic (DELETE)

5)

Unit Specific Emergency Department
a) Wandering Band System Procedure

6)

Unit Specific - Home Care
a) Unna Boot Appiication

7) Unit Specific — Infection Control

a) Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan

8)

Unit Specific - Medical Staff

a} Influenza Vaccination of Physicians and Allied Health
Professionals (AHP) 8710-547

b) Standards for Endovascular Repair of Aortic Aneurysms 8710-
503

9)

Unit Specific — Neonatal intensive Care {NICU)
a) Formula, Preparation and Storage of

b) intubation Procedure, NICU

c) NICU Disaster Procedure

d) Primary Nurse Assignment (DELETE)

TCHD Regu

lar Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -5-

May 28, 2020




Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

10) Unit Specific — Outpatient Behavioral Health
a) Admissian to Inpatient Behavioral Health Unit
b) involuntary Patient Detention (DELETE)
¢) Physician Progress Note
d) Psychiatric Emergencies
e) Solicitation of Patients & Referral to Self

11) Unit Specific ~ Surgical Services
a) Block Time Policy

b) Cell Saver Set-up, Use and Monitoring Procedure

¢) CPRin Surgery Policy

d) Hysteroscopy Policy

e} Intraoperative Deaths Policy

f) Organ Tissue Procurement Policy

g) Perioperative Documentation

h) Positioning the Surgical Patient Policy

i) Scheduling Surgical Procedures Policy

j) Surgical Patients with Acid Implant Policy

k) Surgical Supply Stocking, Rotation and Quidate

I) TCMC Employees and Independent Contractor Work Palicy

(DELETE)
m) Visitors in the OR Policy

12} Unit Specific — Women & Newborn Services

a) Instrument Cleaning Process and Transport to Sterile Processing

Department (SPD)

13) Unit Specific - Wound Care
a) Medical Equipment Maintenance
b) Patient Advocacy
¢) Patient Charges
d) Patient Chart
e) Patient Photography
f) Patient Reception
g) Patient Survey Process
i} Program Description
i) Registration
k) Scheduling
l) Staff Development
m) Staffing Plan
n) Telephone Management
o} Wound Measurement
p) Wound Staging

14) Unit Specific - Wound Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy

a) Patient Changing Area

[15) Formulary Requesls
a} Eravcycline (Xerava)

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda

(6) Board Committees

A. Community Healthcare Alliance Committee
Director Chavez, Committee Chair
{No meeting held in May, 2020)

-6-

CHAC Comm.

May 28, 2020




Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

B. Finance, Operations & Planning Committee
Director Nygaard, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats ~ 0
(No meeting held in May, 2020}

C. Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee
Director Younger, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats - 0

(No meeting held in May, 2020)

{7) Minutes — Approval of:

a} April 28, 2020, Regular Meeting

(8) Meetings and Conferences — None

(9) Dues and Memberships - None

10) Reports
{a) Dashboard - Included
(b} Construction Report — None
{(c) Lease Report — (April, 2020)
(d) Reimbursement Disclosure Report - (April, 2020)
(e) Seminar/Conference Reports — None

FO&P Comm.

Audit, Comp. &
Ethics Comm.

Standard

Discussion of Items Pulled from Consent Agenda

10 min.

Standard

10

Comments by Members of the Public

NOTE: Per Board Policy 19-018, members of the public may have three (3)
minutes, individually and 15 minutes per subject, to address the Board on
any item not on the agenda.

5-10
minutes

Standard

11

Comments by Chief Executive Officer

5 min.

Standard

12

Board Communications (three minutes per Board member)

18 min.

Standard

13

Report from Chairperson

3 min.

Standard

14

Total Time Budgeted for Open Session

1 hour

15

Adjournment

TCHD Regutar Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -7-

May 28, 2020




& TI"i-City
(9 Medical Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF INITIAL CREDENTIALS REPORT
May 13, 2020

INITIAL APPOINTMENTS (Effective Dates: 5/29/2020 - 4/30/2022)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. Verification of licensure, specific training, patient
care experience, interpersonal and communication skills, professionalism, current competence relating to
medical knowledge, has been verified and evaluated on alt applicants recommended for initial appointment to
the medical staff. Based upon this information, the following physicians have met the basic requirements of
staff and are therefore recommended for appointment effective 5/29/2020 through 4/30/2022:

Attachment A

. 1 ck MD/An iol

¢ FELD D/Anesthesi



Tri-City

I')
l Q) Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - Part 2 of 3
May 13, 2020

ADDITIONAL PRIVILEGE REQUEST (Effective 5/29/2020)
The following practitioners requested the following privilege(s) and met the initial criteria for the
privilege(s):

J IE h MD n iolo



TrI-Clt

®
Medlcal Center
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE REPORT - Part

May 13, 2020
I-————_—- —_—

3of3 I

PROCTORING RECOMMENDATIONS

e DALLA BETTA, Michael D Emergency Medicine

e FARHOOMAND. Kaveh DO Internal Medicine

» FRANZ Cortney FNP Allied Health Professional
e LAWLER, Abigail MD Internal Medicine

* YAKHNENKQOQ, Ilva MD Internal Medicine

10



Tri-City

q
@) Med:cal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 3
May 13, 2020

Attachment 8

BIENNIAL REAPPOINTMENTS: (Effective Dates 6/01/2020 - 5/31/2022)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. The following application was recommended for
reappointment to the medical staff office effective 6/01/2020 through 5/31/2022, based upon
practitioner specific and comparative data profiles and reports demonstrating ongoing monitoring and
evaluation, activities reflecting level of professionalism, delivery of compassionate patient care, medical
knowledge based upon outcomes, interpersonal and communications skills, use of system resources,
participation in activities to improve care, blood utilization, medical records review, department specific
monitoring activities, health status and relevant results of clinical performance:

. - h ur i rge iv

. ilal tiv

NTAR Marcus, MD /Pathol Activ

e D i i tiv

o ndrew icine /Activ

. AS, Reshma, MD /Neurol Active

" i Fami edicin r and Foll
o JAFFER, lih Physi icine & R Provisi

. Y, D/In 1 Medicin fer and Follow
« KROL, Thomas, MD/Gastroenterology/Active

o LE Yun | Medici ctiv

» LEE, Anna, MD /Pediatrics/Active

¢ LEE, Dandv, MD /Anesthesiol Activ

. | rash iol rovision
. N, Patri diati 1 iv
° HI D i jiv
. LAY, Edward, MD/Oncol Activ

Page 1 of 2

1



Medical Center
i TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT -1 of 3

il May 13, 2020
e  MITCHELL Charles. MD/Radiology/Activ
e NELSON.I DO/Anesthesiology /Provisional

e PHILLIPS, Jason, MD /Urol Active

. D 1 v
. D lar Sur jve Affiliat
e T ical Su iv

« WA hunyvang, MD/Neurgl Active

UPDATE TO PREVIOUS REAPPOINTMENT:

o KELLY,Jon, MD/Orthopedic Surgerv/Active

. nith nterventi iol tiv
RESIGNATIONS: (Effective date 5/31/2020 unless otherwise noted)
Automatic Resignation:

Voluntary:

» CURLEY, Edward, MD/Pediatrics

. David, MD/Psychi

. RICAR uelin llied Health P ignal

v Vishal r

Page 2 of 2

———e
T e ——

Attachment B

12



‘ﬂ)Trl- Clinical Privilege Request Form

Medical Center

Privileges in Critical Care Medicine
Provider Name:
Reguest Privilege
Criteria:
tnitial:

NI O B

1

Page 1

1.5ubspecialty Board Certification or actively in the process of obtaining certification by the American Board of Medical
Specialties, or the American Osteopathic Association, or have completed a critical care fellowship in the past four (4) years or
foreign eguivalent training/board..

2. If training was completed more than 24 months prior to application, documentation of provisions of care to at least 50
patients in a critical care unit during the past 12 months as an attending physician reflective of the scope of privileges
requested is required.

Proctoring:
Admit patients and Consultation - Six {6) ICU inpatient cases . Perform history & physical examination - Eligible for release from
practoring once six (6) admits or consult cases have been released from proctoring.

Reappointment:
Minimum of 100 cases representative blend of cases within the previous twenty-four (24) months and Maintenance of
Certification.

SITES:
All privileges may be performed at 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056.
Privileges annotated with (F) may be performed at 3925 Waring Road, Suite C, Oceanside CA 52056.

Admit patients
Consultation, including via telemedicine {F} and sleep tests/polysomnography
Perform history & physical examination, including via telemedicine (F)

GENERAL CRITICAL CARE PRIVILEGES: By selecting this privilege, you are requesting the General Critical Care privileges listed
immediately below. Strikethrough and initial any privilege(s) you do not want.

Airway maintenance, including intubation

Ventilator management

Insertion and management of arterial and pulmonary artery catheters
Calibration and operation of hemodynamic recording systems
Diagnostic paracentesis

Tube thoracostomy

__ Percutaneous

___Open

Gastroesophageal balloon tamponade

Emergency pericardiocentesis

Emergency tracheostomy/cricothroidotomy

Central Venous Insertion

Fiberoptic Bronchoscopy

____Diagnostic

— Therapeutic

Printed on Tuesday, May 19, 2020

13



(q)mecdlcal Center Clinical Privilege Request Form

Privileges in Critical Care Medicine
Provider Name:
Request Privilege
SPECIAL PRIVILEGES:

Description: Must also meet Required Qualifications for Core Privileges
Percutaneous tracheostomy/cricothyrotomy tube placement*

Percutaneous Tracheostomy /cricothyrotomy tube placement Criteria;

Initial:

1. Concomitant bronchoscopy privileges

2. Documentation of hands-on training course required if residency or fellowship training did not include training for
percutaneous tracheostomy. If training was completed more than 24 months prior to application, documentation of five (5)
cases is required.

Proctoring: Three (3) cases

Reappointment: Five (5} cases within the previous twenty-four (24} months

Administration of Moderate sedation (Refer to Medical Staff policy #8710-517 for Initial, Proctoring, and Reappointment
Criteria)

Use of fluoroscopy equipment {Valid Radiology Supervisor and Operator Certificate or Fluoroscopy Supervisor and Operator
Permit reguired.

Print Applicant Name

Applicant Signature

Date

Division/Department Signature (By Signing this form | agree with the granting of these privileges indicated above.)

Date

Page 2 Printed on Tuesday, May 19, 2020



@) Tr_i-Cit___y Mg_dical Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
NSURANCE RENEWAL PROPOSAL — MC GRIFF INSURANCE SERVICES, INC.

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X QLG T T L
Insurance Renewal
e New Agreement X Renewal - Renewal — Same Rates
Agreement New Rates
Vendor’'s Name: Various Insurance Carriers — See Attached Executive Premium Summary
Area of Service: Finance Department
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 — Ending, June 30, 2021
Maximum Totals:
Annual Cost Total Term Cost
51,822,985 $1,822,985
Description of Services/Supplies:
. Umbrella Professional and General Liability Insurance (Zurich)
. Property Insurance & Cyber Insurance (AlG)
) Management Liability Insurance (AIG & RSUI)
. Automobile Insurance (Philadelphia}
. Pollution insurance (Tokio Marine)

° Others: Volunteers, Employed Lawyers, Heli-Pad Liability, GL/PL TPA Contract

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: Yes | N/A No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

**To be included in proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Susan Bond, General Counsel / Ray Rivas, Chief Financial
Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with the various carriers as reflected on
the accompanying Executive Summary through McGriff Insurance Services, Inc. for a term of 12 months,
beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021 for a total annuai/term cost of $1,822,985.

13



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY —2020-2021

Thank you for the opportunity to present our renewal proposal for Tri-City District Healthcare. A quick
snapshot of your renewal pricing to your expiring premium is as follows:

Coverage

2019
Company

AM Best Rating

2019
Premiums

2020
Premiums

S
Changc

' Umbrelia o -
(GL/PL $20M w/ $2M  Zurich A (Excellent) XV $318,000  $360,000 $42,000
SIR)
Claims TPA Western $65000  $65000 0
Litigation
| $383,000  $425,000 $42,000
Automobile Philadelphia =~ A++ (Superior) $66,454 $62,219 ($4,235)
XV
Property AlG A (Excellent) XV $335,285  $362,389 $27.104
Cyber AlG A (Excellent) XV $64,754 $65,313 $559
Directors & Officers /
Employment
Practices/
| Fiduciary Liability | o i
| Primary $5M AIG A (Excellent) XV $393,750  $450,000 $56,250
$5M XS $5M RSUI A (Excellent) XV 3185625  $212,140 $26,515
Excess Side A - $5mm  AIG A (Excellent) XV $164,700  $164,300 (5400)
. x $10mm S :
Cardiovascular AIG A (Excellent) XV $12,000 $25,000 $13,000
Institute
 Orthopedic Institute AIG A (Excellent) XV $18,064 80 ($18,064)
Neuro Institute AlG A (Excellent) XV $18,064 $0 ($18,064
Crime -3 Year Term  Fidelity & A+ (Superior) XV 50 50 3-Yr.
2018/2021; Deposit Term
Billed in Full 2018 Companies
{Zurich)
Pollution Tokio Marine A+ + (Superior) $46,911 $37,145 ($9,766)
XV
Student Accident Axis A+ (Superior) XV $1,761 $1,593 ($168)
Employed Lawyers Philadelphia =~ A-++ (Superior) $10,781 $10,781 $0
XV
Heli-Pad Liability American A+ (Superior) XV $5,465 $7,105 $1,640
Alternative
| 81,706,614 $1,822.985 $116,371

16



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

¢ Tri:City Medical Center _. ok YOU

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT FOR COVERING PHYSICIAN — INPATIENT WOUND CARE

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal ~ Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Henry Showah, M.D.
Area of Service: Inpatient Wound Care
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, May 1, 2020 - Ending, April 30, 2021
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
Hours per | Hours per Cost per 12 month (Term)
:atelHour | Month Year Month Cost
, $180 20 240 $3,600 543,200
Position Responsibilities:
. Provide supervision for the clinical operation of the Inpatient Wound Care Team
. Provide staff education to improve outcome of care

» Resolve conflicts that are intra-departmental or inter-departmental in nature to ensure or
improve timeliness of patient treatment and intervention

. Ensure that services provided are in compliance with regulatory standards

. Participate in Quality Assurance and Performance Improvement activities

. Timely communication with primary care physicians and/or other community health resources
. Documentation: Full and timely documentation for all patients. Comply with all legal regulatory,

accreditation, Medical Staff and billing criteria, including applying Medicare guidelines, including,
Title 1X for admission and discharge decisions

. Utilization Review, Quality Improvement: Actively participate in hospital and Medical Staff
utilization review, quality, performance improvement and risk programs

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | **Yes No

**To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Kim Poston, Manager-Clinical, Wound Care Carlsbad /
Barbara Vogelsang, Chief Nurse Executive

Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize Dr. Henry Showah, Coverage Physician for
Inpatient Wound Care for a term of 12 months beginning May 1, 2020, and ending April 30, 2021, not to
exceed an average of 20 hours a month, at an hourly rate of $180 for a total annual and term cost of
$43,200.

17



(C“) _fll'rlj

Clty Medlcal LCenter

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT FOR COVERING PHYSICIAN — OQUTPATIENT WOUND CARE

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors | X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal - Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Henry Showah, M.D.
Area of Service: Outpatient Wound Care
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, May 1, 2020 - Ending, April 30, 2021
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
- Hours per | Hours per Cost per 12 month (Term)
Rate/Hour Month Year Month Cost
$180 20 240 $3,600 $43,200
Position Responsibilities:
° Provide supervision for the clinical operation of the Outpatient Wound Care Team
Provide staff education to improve outcome of care
] Resolve conflicts that are intra-departmental or inter-departmental in nature to ensure or
improve timeliness of patient treatment and intervention
. Ensure that services provided are in compliance with regulatory standards
° Participate in Quality Assurance and Performance Improvement activities
° Timely communication with primary care physicians and/or other community health resources
. Documentation: Full and timely documentation for all patients. Comply with all legal regulatory,

accreditation, Medical Staff and billing criteria, including applying Medicare guidelines,
including, Title 1X for admission and discharge decisions

® Utilization Review, Quality Improvement: Actively participate in hospital and Medical Staff
utilization review, quality, performance improvement and risk programs

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | **Yes No

**To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Kim Poston, Manager-Clinical, Wound Care Carlsbad /
Barbara Vogelsang, Chief Nurse Executive

Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize Dr. Henry Showah as the Coverage Physician
for Qutpatient Wound Care for a term of 12 months from May 1, 2020, and ending April 30, 2021, not to
exceed an average of 20 hours a month, at an hourly rate of $180 for a total annual and term cost of
$43,200.

18



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

§2 micity Medical Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT FOR COVERING PHYSICIAN — INPATIENT WOUND CARE

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors | X | Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal - Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates

Sharon Slowik, M.D.

Inpatient Wound Care

12 months, Beginning, May 1, 2020 - Ending, April 30, 2021
Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES

Physician’s Name:
Area of Service:
Term of Agreement:
Maximum Totals:

: Hours per | Hours per Cost per 12 month (Term)
Rat oy Month Year Month Cost
$180 20 240 $3,600 $43,200
Position Responsibilities:
. Provide supervision for the clinical operation of the Inpatient Wound Care Team
. Provide staff education to improve outcome of care
. Resolve conflicts that are intra-departmental or inter-departmental in nature to ensure or
improve timeliness of patient treatment and intervention

. Ensure that services provided are in compliance with regulatory standards
. Participate in Quality Assurance and Performance Improvement activities
. Timely communication with primary care physicians and/or other community health resources
. Documentation: Full and timely documentation for all patients. Comply with all legal regulatory,

accreditation, Medical Staff and billing criteria, including applying Medicare guidelines,
including, Title 1X for admission and discharge decisions

. Utilization Review, Quality Improvement: Actively participate in hospital and Medical Staff
utilization review, quality, performance improvement and risk programs

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | **Yes No

**To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Kim Poston, Manager-Clinical, Wound Care Carlsbad /
Barbara Vogelsang, Chief Nurse Executive

Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize Dr. Sharon Slowik as the Coverage Physician
for Inpatient Wound Care for a term of 12 months from May 1, 2020, and ending April 30, 2021, not to
exceed an average of 20 hours a month, at an hourly rate of $180 for a total cost for the term of $43,200.

19



cal Center

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Fe
fram-ns

e

U

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT FOR COVERING PHYSICIAN — OUTPATIENT WOUND CARE

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal - Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates

Sharon Slowik, M.D.

QOutpatient Wound Care

12 months, Beginning, May 1, 2020 - Ending, April 30, 2021
Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES

Physician’s Name:
Area of Service:
Term of Agreement:
Maximum Totals:

Hours per | Hours per Cost per 12 month (Term)
Rate/Hour Month Year Month Cost
$180 20 240 $3,600 543,200
Position Responsibilities:

. Provide supervision for the clinical operation of the Outpatient Wound Care Team
. Provide staff education to improve outcome of care
. Resolve conflicts that are intra-departmental or inter-departmental in nature to ensure or

improve timeliness of patient treatment and intervention
° Ensure that services provided are in compliance with regulatory standards
. Participate in Quality Assurance and Performance Improvement activities

Timely communication with primary care physicians and/or other community health resources
. Documentation: Full and timely documentation for all patients. Comply with all lega! regulatory,

accreditation, Medical Staff and billing criteria, including applying Medicare guidelines,
including, Title 1X for admission and discharge decisions

. Utilization Review, Quality Improvement: Actively participate in hospital and Medical Staff
utilization review, quality, performance improvement and risk programs

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | **Yes No

**To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Kim Poston, Manager-Clinical, Wound Care Carlsbad /
Barbara Vogelsang, Chief Nurse Executive

Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize Dr. Sharon Slowik as the Coverage Physician
for Outpatient Wound Care for a term of 12 months beginning May 1, 2020 and ending April 30, 2021, not
to exceed an average of 20 hours a month for a total cost for the term of $43,200.

20



. ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
CARDIOVASCULAR HEALTH INSTITUTE — SPECIALTY MEDICAL DIRECTORSHIP

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal - Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates

Vendor's Name:
Yuan Hwang Lin, M.D. - Cardiothoracic Medical Director

Area of Service: Cardiovascular Health Institute
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2021
Maximum Totals:
Hours per Hours per | Monthly Annual 12 month
!7Rate/ Hou Month Year Cost Cost {Term) Cost
( $210 12 . 144 $2,520 $30,240 530,240

Description of Services/Supplies:

Physicians shall service as Medical Director and shall be responsible for the medical direction of the listed
specialty area and the performance of the other medical administrative service as outlined in the
previously approved Co-Management Agreement for the Institute.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Eva England, Cardiovascular Service Line Director / Scott
Livingstone Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. Yuan Hwang Lin as the
Cardiovascular Medical Director for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30 2021, not
to exceed 12 hours per month for a total of 144 hours annually, at an hourly rate of $210 for an annual and
term cost of $30,240.

21



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

' @) Tri-c_i_ty_.Medigal Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT FOR CARDIOVASCULAR HEALTH INSTITUTE - QPERATIONS COMMITTEE

Other: CVHI
Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X | Operations
Committee
Status of Agreement New Agreement AT X G L
g B New Rates Rates
Vendor’s Name: Dr. Yuan Hwang Lin
Area of Service: Cardiovascular Health Institute — Operations Committee
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 — Ending, June 30, 2021
Maximum Totals:
Rate/Hour Hours Per | Hours per Monthly Annual Total Term
Month Year Cost Cost Cost
$210 2 24 5420 $5040 | $5040
Description of Services/Supplies:
. Physician shall serve as an Operations Committee Member and shall be responsible for the
services as outlined in the previously approved Co-Management Agreement for the Institute
Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Eva England, Cardiovascular Service Line Director / Scott
Livingstone Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. Yuan Hwang Lin as
Cardiovascular Health Institute ~ Operations Committee member for a term of 12 months, beginning July
1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed 2 hours per month at an hourly rate of $210 for an annual
and term cost of $5,040.

22



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

A2 Tiicity Medical Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN FOR CARDIOVASCULAR HEALTH INSTITUTE — OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X Other:‘ Al OEElLy
Committee
Renewal — Renewal — Same

Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates
Vendor’'s Name: Dr. Anitha Rajamanickam
Area of Service: Cardiovascular Health Institute — Operations Committee
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2021
Maximum Totals:

Rate/Hour Hours Per | Hoursper | Monthly ‘Annual Total Term
Month Year Cost Cost Cost
i $210 2 24 1 $420 $5040 l $5040 i

Description of Services/Supplies:

® Physician shall serve as an Operations Committee Member and shall be responsible for the
services as outlined in the previously approved Co-Management Agreement for the Institute

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Eva England, Cardiovascular Service Line Director / Scott
Livingstone Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. Anitha Rajamanickam,
Cardiovascular Health Institute — Operations Committee member for a term of 12 months, beginning July
1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed 2 hours per month at an hourly rate of $210 for an annual
and term cost of $5,040.

23



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

9 ity Medical Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT FOR PULMONARY REHABILITATION SERVICE LINE

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates

Dr. Frank Corona
Dba Tri-City Pulmonary Medical Group, A professional Corporation

Vendor's Name:

Area of Service: Pulmonary Services Department

Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2022

Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value : YES

Rate/Hour Hours Per | Hours per Monthly Annual | Total Term
: Month Year Cost Cost Cost
5175 20 240 $3,500 542,000 584,000
Description of Services/Supplies:
. Medical Director Leadership support of the Pulmonary Rehabilitation service line.
. Medical Leadership oversight of the respiratory care department (Pulmonary Services) and the
respiratory care practitioners.

. Review and make recommendation regarding clinical applications of respiratory care. Assistance

in developing policies, procedures, clinical protocols, forms, reports and records by TCMC in
connection with the department.

° Assist with the provision and design of educational services to the respiratory care staff
members.
Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Eva England, Cardiovascular Service Line Director / Scott
Livingstone Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. Frank Corona as the Pulmonary
Rehab Medical Director for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022, not to
exceed 20 hours per month at an hourly rate of $175 for an annual cost of $42,000 and a total contract
term of $84,000.

24



g

(C" Tri- Cl_try,wMedlcaI Center

i

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT FOR CARDIOVASCULAR HEALTH INSTITUTE- OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

Other: CVHI
Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X | Operations
Committee
Status of Agreement New Agreement AL X AL IS
New Rates Rates

Vendor’s Name: Dr. Jamshidi-Nezhad, Mohammad

Area of Service: Cardiovascular Health Institute — Operations Committee

Term of Agreement:

Maximum Totals:

12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 — £nding, June 30, 2021

Rate/Hour Hours Per | Hours per Monthly Annual Total Term 1'
et Month Year Cost Cost Cost
5210 2 24 $420 $5040 $5040

Description of Services/Supplies:

s Physician shall serve as an Operations Committee Member and shall be responsible for the services
as outlined in the previously approved Co-Management Agreement for the Institute

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Eva England, Cardiovascular Service Line Director / Scott
Livingstone Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Drs. Dr. Jamshidi-Nezhad,
Mohammad as Cardiovascular Health Institute — Operations Committee member for a term of 12 months,
beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, not to exceed 2 hours per manth at an hourly rate of $210
for an annual and term cost of $5,040.

25



(‘) T nCrtvMed'caICe"ter

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
CARDIOVASCULAR HEALTH INSTITUTE-SPECIALTY MEDICAL DIRECTOR

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal —Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates

Vendor’'s Name:
David Spiegel, M.D. - Invasive Cardiology, Medical Director

Area of Service: Cardiovascular Health Institute
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2021
Maximum Totals:
Hours per | Hours per | Monthly Annual 12 month
Rate/Hour Month Year Cost Cost (Term) Cost
5210 12 144 $2,520 $30,240 $30,240

Description of Services/Supplies:

Physicians shall service as Medical Director and shall be responsible for the medical direction of the listed
specialty area and the performance of the other medical administrative service as outlined in the
previously approved Co-Management Agreement for the Institute.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Eva England, Cardiovascular Service Line Director / Scott
Livingstone Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. David Spiegel as the Invasive
Cardiology Medical Director for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2020 — Ending June 30 2021, not to
exceed 12 hours per month for a total of 144 hours annually, at an hourly rate of $210 for an annual and
term cost of $30,240.

26



" ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

HOI Y@U

Clty Medlcal Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT FOR CARDIOVASCULAR HEALTH INSTITUTE — OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

Other: CVHI
Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X | Operations
Committee
Status of Agreement New Agreement GISTEL x | Renewal -Same
New Rates Rates

Vendor’'s Name: Dr. David Spiegel

Area of Service: Cardiovascular Health Institute — Operations Committee

Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, luly 1, 2020 — Ending, June 30, 2021

Maximum Totals:

Rate/Hour Hours Per | Hours per Monthly Annual Total Term
: Month Year Cost Cost Cost
$210 2 24 5420 $5040 $5040

Description of Services/Supplies:

. Physician shall serve as an Operations Committee Member and shall be responsible for the
services as outlined in the previously approved Co-Management Agreement for the Institute

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Eva England, Cardiovascular Service Line Director / Scott
Livingstone Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. Spiegel David as Cardiovascular
Health Institute — Operations Committee member for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2019 through
June 30, 2021, not to exceed 2 hours per month at an hourly rate of $210 for an annual and term cost of
$5040.

27



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

2 ricity Medical Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
CARDIOVASCULAR HEALTH INSTITUTE MEDICAL DIRECTOR

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates

Vendor's Name: Dr. Donald Ponec, Cardiovascular Health Institute Medical Director

Area of Service: Cardiovascular Health Institute
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2021

Maximum Totals:

Rate/Hour Hours Per | Hours per Monthly Annual 12 month
E: Month Year Cost Cost (Term) Cost
$210 8 96 51,680 $20,160 $20,160

Description of Services/Supplies:

Physicians shall service as the institute Medical Director and shall be responsible for the medical direction
of the Institute and the performance of the other medical administrative service as outlined in the
previously approved Co-Management Agreement for the Institute.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Eva England, Cardiovascular Service Line Director / Scott
Livingstone Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. Donald Ponec as the
Cardiovascular Health Institute Medical Director for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through
June 30 2021, not to exceed an average 8 hours per month or 96 hours annually, at an hourly rate of 5210
for an annual and term cost of $20,160.

28



TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT FOR CARDIOVASCULAR HEALTH INSTITUTE- QUALITY COMMITTEE

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X Other:. Sl CEH
Committee
Renewal — Renewal — Same

Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Vendor’'s Name: Dr. Donald Ponec
Area of Service: Cardiovascular Health Institute — Quality Committee
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2021
Maximum Totals:

Rate/Hour Hours Per | Hours per Monthly | Annual Total Term
Month Year Cost Cost Cost
$210 2 24 5420 $5040 55040

Description of Services/Supplies:

® Physician shall serve as an Operations Committee Member and shall be responsible for the services
as outlined in the previously approved Co-Management Agreement for the Institute

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer; X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Eva England, Cardiovascular Service Line Director / Scott
Livingstone Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. Donald Ponec as Cardiovascular
Health Institute — Quality Committee member for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through
June 30, 2021, not to exceed 2 hours per month at an hourly rate of $210 for an annual and term cost of
$5040.

29



o —— .

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

@ ' - _
Tr| Clty MeducaI .Center

f-'.' -:'n ol ' i el 20 ..l' LH- _._.-

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
CARDIOVASCULAR HEALTH INSTITUTE- SPECIALITY MEDICAL DIRECTORSHIP

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Vendor's Name:
Ashish Kabra, M.D. — Non-Invasive Cardiology, Medical Director
Area of Service: Cardiovascular Health Institute
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2021
Maximum Totals:
: Hours per Hours per | Monthly Annual 12 month
Rate/ Houn Month Year Cost Cost (Term) Cost
$210 12 144 $2,520 $30,240 | $30,240

Description of Services/Supplies:

Physicians shall service as Medical Director and shall be responsible for the medical direction of the listed
specialty area and the performance of the other medical administrative service as outlined in the
previously approved Co-Management Agreement for the Institute.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Eva England, Cardiovascular Service Line Director / Scott
Livingstone Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. Ashish Kabra as the Non-
Invasive Cardiology Medical Director for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30
2021, not to exceed 12 hours per month per physician for a total of 144 hours annually, at an hourly rate
of 5210 for an annual and term cost of $30,240.

30



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT FOR CARDIOVASCULAR HEALTH INSTITUTE - QUALITY COMMITTEE

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X Other:' Y
Committee
Renewal — Renewal ~ Same

Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates
Vendor's Name: Dr. Ashish Kabra
Area of Service: Cardiovascular Health Institute — Quality Committee
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 — Ending, June 30, 2021
Maximum Totals:

Rate/Hour ' Hours Per | Hours per Monthly Annual Total Term
; Month Year Cost Cost Cost
$210 2 24 ; 5420 $5040 $5040

Description of Services/Supplies:

® Physician shall serve as a Quality Committee Member and shall be responsible for the services as
outlined in the previously approved Co-Management Agreement for the Institute

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted ltem: X *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Eva England, Cardiovascular Service Line Director / Scott
Livingstone Chief Operating Officer

Motion:
{ move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. Ashish Kabra as Cardiovascular

Health Institute — Quality Committee member for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2019 through
June 30, 2021, not to exceed 2 hours per month at an hourly rate of $210 for an annual and term cost of

$5,040.

31



TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: May 27, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE — ENT - Otolaryngology

Type of Agreement Medical Directors | X | Panel Other:
. Renewal - Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates

Physician’s Name(s}): Ashish Wadhwa, M.D.
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: ENT - Otolaryngology

Term of Agreement: 13 months, Beginning, June 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2021

Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage: ENT — Otolaryngology

| Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost
FY20(6/1-6/30/20):

FY20: $19,500

$650 30 days i
FY21: 365 days FY22: 5237,250
Total Term Cost: $256,750

Position Responsibilities:

» Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all ENT - Otolaryngology specialty services in accordance
with Medical Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

» Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements,

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff Services / Gene
Ma, MD, Chief Medical Officer

Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize physician Ashish Wadhwa, M.D. to join
the existing ENT - Otolaryngology ED On-Call Coverage Physician contract for a term of 13 months,
beginning June 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021 at a daily rate of $650 for a total term cost of
$256,750.

32



‘C\) S \ ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

g T T

i J—i‘:' + ki |'.h"--u_l.ﬁ.n-1.; e -:.I_"" ki

Fie City Medlcal Cer_)ter

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
INCREASED ACUTE REHABILITATION UNIT {ARU) COVERAGE PROPOSAL

Other: Increased

Type of Agreement Medical Directors | X | Panel X | ARU Physician
Coverage
Status of Agreement | X | AMENDMENT e AU IS
Rates Rates
Vendor’s Name: The Neurology Center of Southern California
Area of Service: Increased Physician Coverage for Acute Rehabilitation Unit (ARU)
Term of Agreement: Flexible - not to exceed Sixteen (16) months, Beginning, June 01, 2020 —

Ending, September 31, 2021 (Dependent on Program Flex)

Bid Process Requirement:

| Yes | | No | x |
Maximum Totals:
Monthly Cost Annual Cost Total Term Cost
56,250 NTE $75,000 NTE $100,000
Description of Services:
. The Neurology Center of Southern California will provide additional physician coverage for up to

twenty (20} ARU patients at Tri-City Medical Center as part of development and implementation
of the State of Emergency Temporary Program Flex.

® The term of the amendment could be effective June 01, 2020 and duration of service will be
dependent on the length of time the SD CDPH Program Flex remains in force.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X*| Yes No

*To be included in Proposed Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: (Scott Livingstone)

Motion:

I move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with The Neurology Center of Southern
California for increased physician coverage for ARU for a flexible term not to exceed sixteen (16) months,
beginning June 01, 2020 and ending September 31, 2021 (Dependent on Program Flex) for a monthly cost
not to exceed 56,250, and a total cost for the term not to exceed $100,000.

33



 Medical Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - Gastroenterology — General & ERCP

Type of Agreement Medical Directors | X | Panei Other:
Renewal — Renewal - Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Christopher Devereaux, M.D., Thomas Krol, M.D., Javaid Shad, M.D.,
Michael Shim, M.D., Matthew Viernes, M.D.
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Gastroenterology — General & ERCP
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 — Ending, June 30, 2022
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage: Gastroenterology
Panel Days per Annual Panel
Rate/ Day Year Cost
FY21:365 $282,875
Gl -5775 FY21:365 $182,500
ERCP-5500 FY22:365 5282,875
| FY22:365 $182,500
Total Term Cost: $930,750

Position Responsibilities:

* Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Gastroenterology specialty services in accordance with
Medical Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff Services /
Gene, Ma, M.D., Chief Medicai Officer

Motion:

I move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize physicians Christopher Devereaux, M.D.; Thomas Krol,
M.D.; Javaid Shad, M.D.; Michael Shim, M.D.; Matthew Viernes, M.D. as the Gastroenterology General &
ERCP ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30,
2022 at a daily rate of 5775 for GI, for an annual cost of $282,875 and ERCP at a daily rate of 5500 for an
annual cost of $182,500, and a total cost for the term of $930,750.

34



e

ty Medical Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE ~ General Surgery

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal — Same
t
Status of Agreemen New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Hussna Wakily, M.D.
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: General Surgery
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending June 30, 2021
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
Adding physician to existing panel; no increase in expense
Rate/Day Panel Days per Year Panel Annual Cost
|
$1,400 FY21: 365 days $511,000
Total Term Cost: $511,000
T
Unfunded Cholecystectomy Cost Estimated Cases per Year Estimated Annual Cost
$725, per case FY21:36 $26,100
Unfunded Laparoscopic Cholecystectomy with _
Common Bile Duct Exploration Estimated Cases per Year Estimated Q_nnual Cost i
Procedure Code 47564 51,144,51, per case ; Fy21:5 $5,722.55
Procedure Code 47550: $168.05, per case FY21:5 $840.25
Total Term Cost: $32,662.80

Position Responsibilities:
* Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all General Surgery specialty services in accordance with Medical Staff Policy #8710-
520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

* Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and regulatory requirements.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget
P~ -on responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff Services / Gene Ma, MD, Chief Medical

er
Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors approve the agreement to add Dr. Hussna Wakily to the currently
existing Panel Agreement for ED On-Call Coverage-General Surgery for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2020
through June 30, 2021.

35



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

N ¢ TriCity Medical Center y o VOU

s

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - Oral/Max Surgery

Type of Agreement Medical Directors | X [ Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Brian Mudd, D.D.S.
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Cali: Oral/Max Surgery
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2022
Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
Maximum Totals: For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage: Oral/Max Surgery
Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost
4350 FY21: 365 days $127,750
FY22: 365 days $127,750
Total Term Cost: $255,500

Jsition Responsibilities:

* Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Oral/Max Surgery services in accordance with Madical Staff Policy
#8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

¢ Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and regulatory
requirements.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff Services / Gene Ma, M.D.,
Chief Medical Officer

Motion: | move that theTCHD Board of Directors authorize physician Brian Mudd, D.D.S. as the Oral /Max Surgery
ED -Call coverage physician for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2022 at a daily
rate of $350, for a term cost of $255,500.

36



. ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE — CARDIOLOGY, GENERAL

Type of Agreement Medical Directors | X | Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal ~ Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Anish Kabra, M.D.; Mohammad Pashmforoush, M.D.; Pargol Samani, M.D.;

David Spiegel, M.D.; Kenneth Carr, M.D.; Karim El-Sherief, M.D.; Anitha
Rajamanickam, M.D.

Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Cardiology, General

Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 — Ending, June 30, 2022

Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage: General Cardiology

Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost

FY21:365 $109,500
FY22: 365 $109,500

$300

Total Term Cost: $219,000

Position Responsibilities:

* Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Cardiology-general specialty services in accordance with
Medical Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medica! Staff Services / Gene
Ma, MD, Chief Medical Officer

Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize Drs. Anish Kabra, Mohammad Pashmforoush,
Pargol Samani, Kenneth Carr; Karim El-Sherief, David Spiegel; and Anitha Rajamanickam, M.D. as
the Cardiology-General ED -Call coverage physicians for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1,
2020 ending June 30, 2022, at a daily rate of $300, for an annual cost of $109,500 and total term
cost of $219,000.

37



‘C \)f T S it . ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

| :_C_q,’_cynMedlcaI:___Center & R YOU

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: May 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE — Cardiology-STEMI

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other
Status of Agreement New Agreement :Z:::’:tle; X 2:::5‘”3! - Same
Physician’s Name: David Spiegel, M.D.; Kenneth Carr, M.D.; Karim El Sherief, M.D.; Anitha
Rajamanickam, M.D.
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Cardiology-STEMI
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2022
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES

For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage: Cardiology-STEMI

Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost

FY21: 365 $365,000
31,000 - STEMI FY22: 365 $365,000
Total Term Cost: $730,000

Position Responsibilities:

* Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Cardiology-STEMI specialty services in accordance with
Medical Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

* Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff / Gene Ma, MD,
Chief Medical Officer

Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize David Spiegel, M.D.; Kenneth Carr, M.D.;
Karim El Sherief, M.D.; Anitha Rajamanickam, M.D. as the coverage physicians for Cardiology-STEMI for a
term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2022, at a daily rate of 51,000, for an
annual cost of $365,000 and a total term cost of $730,000.

38



eI

89 wicity Medical Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE — Ophthalmology

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates

Physician’s Name:  Maulik Zaveri, MD; Peter Krall, MD; Srinivas lyengar, MD; Logan Haak, MD; James
Davies, MD; Atul Jain, MD; Neeta Varshney, MD; Jean Paul Abboud, MD

Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Ophthalmology
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 — Ending, June 30, 2022
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
Maximum Totals: For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage: Ophthalmology
No increase in Expense
Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost
FY21: 365 $109,500
ELL FY22:365 $109,500

Total Term Cost: | $219,000

Position Responsibilities:

» Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Ophthalmology specialty services in accordance with Medical
Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

o Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in proposed FY Budget.
Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff / Gene Ma, M.D.,

Chief Medical Officer

Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize Maulik Zaveri, MD; Peter Krall, MD; Srinivas
lyengar, MD; Logan Haak, MD; James Davies, MD; Atul Jain, MD; Neeta Varshney, MD: Jean Paul Abboud,
MD as the Ophthalmology ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020
and ending June 30, 2022 at a daily rate of $300, for an annual cost of $109,500 and a total term cost of
5219,000.

39



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - Ophthalmology

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal - Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates

Physician’s Name:  Maulik Zaveri, MD; Peter Krall, MD:; Srinivas lyengar, MD; Logan Haak, MD; James
Davies, MD; Atul Jain, MD; Neeta Varshney, MD; Jean Paul Abboud, MD

Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Ophthalmology
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2022
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
Maximum Totals: For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage: Ophthalmology
No increase in Expense
Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost
FY21: 365 $109,500
sy FY22:365 $109,500

Total Term Cost: | $219,000

Position Responsibilities:

» Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Ophthalmology specialty services in accordance with Medical
Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X [ *Yes No

*To be included in proposed FY Budget.
Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff / Gene Ma, M.D.,
Chief Medical Officer

Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize Maulik Zaveri, MD: Peter Krall, MD:; Srinivas
lyengar, MD; Logan Haak, MD; James Davies, MD; Atul Jain, MD; Neeta Varshney, MD: Jean Paul Abboud,
MD as the Ophthalmology ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020
and ending June 30, 2022 at a daily rate of $300, for an annual cost of $109,500 and a total term cost of
$219,000.

40



A T L i {_ ADVANCED HEALTH CARE
kCity Medical Center R VOU

e e

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE — SPINE

Type of Agreement Medical Directors | X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates

Physician’s Name:  Neville Alleyne, MD; David Amory MD; Payam Moazzaz MD; Tyrone Hardy MD;
Mark Stern MD; Kevin Yoo MD; Sunil Jeswani MD; and Howard Tung MD;

Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Spine
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 —- Ending, June 30, 2022

Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage: SPINE

Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost

FY21:365 $164,250
— FY22:365 $164,250
Total Term Cost: $328,500

Position Responsibilities:

¢ Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Spine specialty services in accordance with Medical Staff
Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Document Submitted to Legal: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted item: X | *Yes No

*To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff/ Gene, Ma, MD,
Chief Medical Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize Alleyne Neville MD, David Amory MD, Payam Moazzaz
MD, Tyrone Hardy MD, Mark Stern MD, Kevin Yoo MD, Sunil Jeswani MD and Howard Tung MD as the
Spine ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020 and ending june 30,
2022, at a daily rate of $450, for a total term cost of $328,500.

41



TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MAY 28, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE-Interventional Radiology (IR)

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates

Physician’s Name:

Area of Service:
Term of Agreement:

Maximum Totals:

Position Responsibilities:

Michael Burke, M.D.; Brian Goelitz, M.D.; Justin Gooding, M.D.; Charles McGraw,
M.D.; Michael Noud, M.D.; Donald Panec, M.D.; Richard Saxon, M.D.

Emergency Department On-Call: Interventional Radiology (IR)
24 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2022

Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage: IR

Rate/Day | Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost

FY21:365 $273,750
3750 FY22:365 $273,750
Total Term Cost: $547,500

* Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Interventional Radiology specialty services in accordance with
Medical Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)
* Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and regulatory

requirements.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Régulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | *Yes No

*“To be included in the proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff Services / Gene, Ma,

M.D., Chief Medical Officer

Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize Drs. Michael Burke, Brian Goelitz, Justin Gooding,
Charles McGraw, Michael Noud, Donald Ponec, and Richard Saxon as the Interventionai Radiology (IR} ED-Call
Coverage Physicians for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2022 at a daily rate of
“750 for an annual cost of $273,750 and a total term cost of $547,500.

42



Y. ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@ U

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: May 28, 2020
Medical Staff Leadership Agreement-MDQA Peer Review and QAPI Committees

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: James Johnson, MD (Manta Med)
Area of Service: Medical Staff: MDQA Peer Review and QAPI Committees
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2021
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
Rate/Hour Maximum Hours | Hours per Year | Monthly Annual/ Term Cost
T per Month Not to Exceed | Cost NTE Not to Exceed
$155 33 400 $5166.67 $62,000
Education Allowance — Annual Maximum NTE $10,000
Total Cost: | $72,000

ssition Responsibilities:
Chairperson MDQA Peer Review and QAPI Committees:
Promote initiatives for improving quality of patient care and services within TCHD

* Lead MDQA Peer Review and QAPI as Physician Chairperson;
* Provides Medical oversight for Quality/Performance Improvement regarding patient care;
* Evaluates with the MDQA-Peer Review and QAP] members effectiveness of Teams leading QA/P! initiatives;
o Makes recommendations, with the QAPI members, for initiative interventions and outcomes
« |dentify opportunities for improvement;
e Makes recommendations to develop processes to fill in gaps in systems;
» Attends National Association Healthcare Quality annually, when able, to bring best practice recommendations to
the QAPI membership;

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X | Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X | Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff / Gene Ma, MD, Chief
Medical Officer

ation: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize James Johnson, MD as the Physician Chairperson of
MDQA/Peer Review/QAPI for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021, not to
exceed an average of 33 hours in total per month or 400 hours annually, at an hourly rate of $155 for an annual
cost of $62,000, an Educational Allowance not to exceed $10,000 and a total for the term not to exceed

$72,000.
43



k \ AleANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR \f(:)&j

ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA

May 21%, 2020
CONTACT: Barbara Vogelsang, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures

1. Admission Criteria Policy

Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

2. Antimicrobial Stewardship Policy

3 Year Reviev'vr.
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

3. Cardiac Rehab Center (On Campus)
Emergency Treatment Standardized
Procedure

2 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

4. Catheter Clearance with Alteplase (Cathflo
Activase) Procedure

DELETE

Forward To BOD For Approval

5. Chemotherapy Exposure, Spills, and
Handling of Linens Contaminated with
Chemotherapeutic Agents Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

6. Chemotherapy Extravasation Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

7. Code Blue Response Plan Policy

3 Year Review,
Praclice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

8. Enteral Feeding Preparation, Storage,
Distribution, and Administration Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

9. Food Brought in from Outside the Hospital
Policy

DELETE

Forward To BOD For Approval

' 10. Food Storage on Nursing Units

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

11. Lumbar Drains, Care of Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

12. Neutropenic Precautions Policy

3 Year Review,

Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

13. Patient Classification (Acuity) Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

14. Safe Surrender

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

15. Transporting Ventilator Patients Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

16. Uitrasound Guided Peripheral Intravenous
Access

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

17. Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns Policy

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

18, Visiting Guidelines

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

Administrative Policies & Procedures

| District Operations 200

1. Control for Locks and Keys 243

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

2. Equipment Medical Device Reporting-
Sequester 201

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

3. Helicopters on District Policy 207

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

4, Signage 215

Forward To BOD For Approval

Information Technoloay 600

1. Access to Restricted Financial, Employee
608

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

Page 1

48



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR MO llﬂ

ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA
May 21%, 2020

CONTACT: Barbara Vogelsang, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

2. Remote or Portable Computing 623

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

3. Telephone Authorization Code 600

DELETE

Forward To BOD For Approval

| Unit Specific

Cardiac Rehab

1. Glucose Monitoring and Exercise Therapy
for Diabetic

DELETE

Forward To BOD For Approval

Emergency Department

1. Wandering Band System Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

Home Care

1. Unna Boot Application

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

| Infection Control

1. Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan

Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

Medical Staff

1. Influenza Vaccination of Physicians and
Allied Health Professionals (AHP) 8710-547

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

2. Standards For Endovascular Repair of Aortic
Aneurysms 8710-503

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

Neonatal intensive Care {(NICU)

1. Formula, Preparation and Storage of

2 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

Intubation Procedure, NICU

DELETE

Forward To BOD For Approval

2 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

2
3. NICU Disaster Procedure
4

Primary Nurse Assignment

DELETE

Forward To BOD For Approval

Qutpatient Behavioral Health

1. Admission to Inpatient Behavioral Health
Unit

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

2. Involuntary Patient Detention

DELETE

Forward To BOD For Approval

3. Physician Progress Note

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

4. Psychiatric Emergencies

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

5. Solicitation of Patients & Referral to Self

NEW

Forward To BOD For Approval

Surgical Services

Page 2

49



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FFOR Y@U

ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA

May 21, 2020

CONTACT: Barbara Vggelsang, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

1. Block Time Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

2. Cell Saver Set-Up, Use and Monitoring
Procedure

3 Year Review,

Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

3. CPR in Surgery Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approvai

4. Hysteroscopy Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

5. Intraoperative Deaths Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

6. Organ Tissue Procurement Policy

DELETE

Forward To BOD For Approval

7. Perioperative Documentation

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

8. Positioning the Surgical Patient Palicy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

9. Scheduling Surgical Procedures Policy

Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

10. Surgical Patients with Acid Implant Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

11. Surgical Supply Stocking, Rotation and
Outdate

Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

I 12. TCMC Employees and Independent
Contractor Work Policy

DELETE

Forward To BOD For Approval

13. Visitors in the OR Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

Women & Newborn Services

to Sterile Processing Department (SPD)

1. Instrument Cleaning Process and Transport

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward To BOD For Approval

| Wound Care

Medical Equipment Maintenance

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

Patient Advocacy

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

Patient Charges

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

Patient Chart

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

Patient Photography

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

Patient Reception

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

Patient Survey Process

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

el b R A Rl E N e

Patient Visual-Auditory Privacy

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

w

Program Description

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

—
[ ]

. Registration

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

pu
—

. SchedulingL

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

e
L)

Staff Development

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

—_
‘C.\)

Staffing Plan

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

—_
I

. Telephone Management

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

| 15. Transportation

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

Page 3

50



_ 9 Tricity Medical Center

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@ L]

ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA

May 21%, 2020

CONTACT: Barbara Vogelsgg. CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

16. Wound Measurement

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

17. Wound Staging

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

Wound Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy

1. Patient Changing Area

3 Year Review

Forward To BOD For Approval

_ﬂ:rmulag Requests

Eravacycline ( Xerava)

NEW

Forward To BOD For Approval

Page 4

51



(@) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 03/02 SUBJECT: Admission Criteria

REVISION DATE(S): 10/02; 06/03, 05/05, 12/05, 05/09,
02/12, 08/12, 01/15, 04/17, 08/18

Department-Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 671812119
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 87/4801/20

Nurse Executive Council Approval: 07/1804/20

Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: nfa

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 0F4/804/20

Administration Approval: 08/1805/20

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nf/a

Board of Directors Approval: 08/18

A. PURPOSE:

1. To provide guidelines for the medical staff, nursing personnel, ancillary disciplines, and
admitting personnel to ensure:
a. A consistent process for admission of patients
b. An appropriate level of care is based on patient’'s needs/situation

B. POLICY:

1. Admission Requirements:
a. Hospital admission requires a physician’s order.
b. Patients may be admitted to inpatient or observation status per current InterQual

guidelines.

i. Patients must be 1844 years of age or older to be admitted to all units except
Labor and Delivery or Neonatal Intensive Care Units.

2}1)  Refer to Women and Newborn Services Neonatal Intensive Care Unit
(NICU) Policy: Admission and Discharge Criteria for the NICU regarding
infants up to adjusted 44 week post conceptual age

c. The attending physician shall be designated by the admitting physician at the time of
patient admission.

d. The Administrative Supervisor (AS) /Assistant-Nurse-Nursing LeadershipManager
cANM,) or designee assigns a bed based upon patient diagnosis, acuity, age, bed
availability and physician/ request.

e. Additional considerations:

i. The decision to admit a patient continues to be the responsibility of the treating
physician.

1) If cases arise where the circumstances would pose a hazard to the
patient's health and/or safety and the appropriate setting is in question,
then the case shall be referred for secondary review per chain of
command.

52



Patient Care Services
Admission Criteria
Page 2 of 5

e

Each unit may have limitations of ability to care for certain types of patients in
terms of physical layout, environment, equipment, staff expertise, availability, or
patient acuity.

Temporary staffing adjustments shall be made for those patients whose acuity

level exceeds established guidelines.

1) If patient admission requirements exceed hospital bed and/or staffing
capacity, AS collaborates with the Nursing Leadership or
designeeANM-Gharge-Nurses-andlorManagers, then forwards the
request to hold admissions to the Clinical Operations On Call if deemed
necessary.

Bed placement for those with specific gender identity or sexual orientation needs

will be assigned on a case by case basis—Fhis-is to ensure that-the patient's

comfort and quality-ef-care needs are met during their admission.

Admission of patients to the nursing units may occur by any of the following methods:

Direct Admissions:

1) Patients may come directly from a physician's office, their home, a long-
term care facility or outpatient department as ordered by a physician.

2) The physician or designee calls the AS for a bed assignment per Patient
Care Services (PCS) Policy Transferring and Receiving Patients from
Outside Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC).

3) The AS shall conduct a telephone triage on the patient to assess status.
Admission orders are required for each patient. The Registered Nurse will
call the admitting physician for orders once the patient arrives to the
nursing unit. Orders may also be faxed to Registration Department at
760-940-4016, entered electronically or sent with the patient.

4) The AS assigns the patient to the appropriate unit and informs the
ANMNursing Leader or designee/elief-charge.

5) Ambulatory patients report to the Registration Department between the
hours of 0500-1800 and to the Emergency Department between the
hours of 1800-0500.

6) The Registrar notifies the unit that the patient has arrived. Patients
admitted via Registration may be escorted to the nursing unit by the office
staff or volunteer personnel.

7) Patients unable to complete the registration process in one of the
registration areas due to severity of iliness or discomfort shall be escorted
directly to the nursing unit. These patients shall be registered at the
bedside by a registrar or by a family member/conservator/designee in the
registration office.

8) Patients experiencing acute symptoms shall be triaged in the Emergency
Department (ED) prior to being escorted by clinical staff to the respective
nursing units.

9) If an inpatient bed is unavailable, the patient may be:
a) Admitted to the ED for evaluation and treatment.
b) Requested to remain in physician's office until bed available.
c) Requested to remain home until bed available.

Admissions to Acute Rehabilitation:

1) When a physician orders an inpatient be evaluated for admission to Acute
Rehab, the Rehab Coordinator will determine if the patient meets the
admission criteria.

2) Once approval is obtained, the patient must be discharged from the
inpatient unit and admitted as a direct admit to Rehab with a new financial
account number (FIN#) when a bed is available.

a) The inpatient unit secretary will request a Rehab bed in Aionex

53



Patient Care Services
Admission Criteria
Page 3of 5

vi.

vii,

viii.

b) The RN will complete the Depart process including all required

documentation.
c) A Cerner communication notice will be sent to Registration upon
transfer.
i) Registration will create the new financial identification
number (FIN#).
Emergency Admission:
1) ED admission to an inpatient unit:

a) After a physician determines that an Emergency Department
patient will be admitted, the ED unit secretary will enter the bed
request into Aionex, AS/ANMNursing Leader or designee will

Transfer Admission:

1) The AS shall arrange patient transfers from another in-house patient care
unit or outside facility.

Surgical Admission:

1) Surgery patients are pre-scheduled through Surgery Scheduling.

2) Surgery Scheduling schedules the appointment for Pre-Operative
Education.

3) Surgery Scheduling generates a computerized list of pre-scheduled
surgical admissions and forwards the list to the AS.

4) The AS assigns the bed and notifies the nursing unit.

Outpatient Admissions:

1) Registration processes all outpatient admissions.

Boarders:

1) WNS - Boarders are newborn infants admitted after delivery and not
discharged with their mother. Boarders may be admitted to the newborn
nursery or NICU based on infant status.

2) ED - Boarders are patients with admission orders greater than four (4)
hours after a bed has been requested for inpatient admission or
observation.

The following departments coordinate admissions to their unit(s), see department

specific admission criteria:

2)1)  Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU),
3)2)  Acute Rehabilitation Unit (ARU or Rehab)
43) Womenand Newborn Services

&)4) Progressive Care Unit (PCU)

2. Unit Specific Criteria:
Intensive Care Unit (ICU) (1 East, 1 West):

a.

I

This level is appropriate to use when the patient has an acute cardiac, medical,
surgical, or trauma event, along with any of the following:

1) Invasive hemodynamic monitoring

2) Urgent temporary pacemaker insertion

3) Urgent cardioversion

4) Intra-aortic Balioon pump (IABP)

5) Continuous cardiac monitoring

6) Acute intubation and mechanical ventilation management
7) Sepsis

8) Therapeutic Hypothermia
9) Cardiovascular Surgery
10}  Advanced Hemodynamic monitoring

54



Patient Care Services
Admission Criteria
Page 4 of 5

48311} Organ Donor
The following patients shall not be managed on this unit due to the lack of
available resources:

1) Undergoing organ transplants

2) Requiring specialized burn treatments

3) Under the age of 4418-erless-than-35kg except for post-partum
patients

Telemetry (2 East, 2 West, 4 East, 4 West, 3 EastRavilion):

I

This level is appropriate to use when the patient is hemodynamically stable along
with any of the following. InterQual criteria will be utilized to meet the level of care
required for the available cardiac monitored beds.

1) Continuous cardiac monitoring

2) Continued mechanical ventilation with stable ABG's and extended
ventilator weaning

3) Stable temporary pacemaker insertion or transcutaneous pacing

4) See Telemetry Policy: Admission and Discharge Criteria

Progressive Care Unit (3 North, 3 South)

This is a 41 bed secured unit that provides various services to patients age 18
and above demonstrating aberrant behavior requiring 24 hour supervision
concurrently with their medical condition. Justice involved individuals may be
placed on this unit. This level is appropriate to use when the patient is
hemodynamically stable along with any of the following. InterQual criteria will be
utilized to meet the level of care required for the available bed.

1) Continuous Cardiac Monitoring
2) Chemotherapy Administration
3) Acute rehabilitation

&8)4) Rostpadumcare

6)5) Medical-Surgical

Acute Care Services (1 North, 2 Pavilion, 4 Pavilion and Acute Rehabilitation):

iii.

This level is appropriate to use when the patient is hemodynamically stable along
with any of the following. InterQual criteria will be utilized to meet the level of care
required for the available beds.

1) Post critical care or Telemetry monitoring

2) Procedures requiring inpatient hospitalization

3) IV medications requiring hospitalization for initial therapy

4) Designated inpatient post surgical care.

1 North/Ortho (Ortho and Medical/Surgical Patients)

1) This unit specializes in nursing care for patient's ages 4418 years of age
and older suffering from diseases, injuries or conditions of the human
musculoskeletal system.

2) Orthopedic diagnoses are emphasized including orthopedic surgeries
such as total joint replacement and spinal surgeries.

2 Pavilion (Oncology and Medical/Surgical Patients)

1} This unit provides nursing care for adolescent patients (ages 1418 years
to 21 years) or adult patients (age 22 years and older).

a) Patients receiving chemotherapy must be age 18 or older.

2) Oncological diagnoses are emphasized along with women's surgeries
and general medical surgical diagnosis.

4 Pavilion {Dialysis, Rate Monitoring for Medical/Surgical patients, Designated

Stroke Unit, and Epilepsy Monitoring Unit [EMU))

1) This unit specializes in nursing care for patients ages 4418 years of age
and older;

a) Medical/Surgical patients requiring rate monitoring
b) Hemodynamically stable patients status post CVA
c) Visual monitoring of stable epilepsy patients (EMU)

55



Patient Care Services

Admission Criteria

Page5of5

V. Acute Rehabilitation Unit (ARU)

1) The ARU provides restorative and maintenance programs for the adult
patient (ages +4-18years and older) suffering from cerebral vascular
disease and other diseases or conditions requiring neurological or
functional rehabilitation services.

e. Emergency Services:
i. This unit provides nursing care for patients of all ages that:

1) Require medical care and are in stable, mild, moderate, or acute status.

2) Are-afflicted-wWith conditions involving major trauma, major burns, or
requiring hyperbaric therapy, and pediatric intensive care services that
can be stabilized to the degree medically feasible and subsequently
transferred to facilities providing these specialty services in compliance
with Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act (EMTALA)
regulations.

f. Women and Newbom Services:
i. This unit specializes in nursing care for:

1) Perinatal patients who have conditions associated with antepartum,
intrapartum and/or postpartum management needs to include surgical
requirements related to perinatal care.

2) Neonates that may need resuscitation, stabilization and/or ongoing
evaluation.

PatientCre Servies Policy: Tranfrfing of Patints and Recovrin Patients from Qutside
TCMC

Patient Care Services Policy: Transfer of Patients, Intra Facility

Surgery Policy: Scheduling Surgical Procedures

Telemetry Policy: Admission and Discharge Criteria

Women Newborn and Services NICU Policy: Admission and Discharge Criteria for NICU

56



@ Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 10/10 SUBJECT: Antimicrobial Stewardship
REVISION DATE: 07/13, 05/17 PO U R R0 0]
Patient Care Service Content ExpertDepartment-Approval: 42M1603/20
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 044703/20
Nurse Executive Council Approval: 02{4704/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: nfa
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee: 03/4703/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/4704/20
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 061+ nla
Board of Directors Approval: 05117
A PURPOSE:
1. To provide a process in order to promote judicious use of antimicrobials
2. The goals of the Antimicrobial Stewardship Program (ASP) include, but are not limited to:
a. Minimize adverse effects and events secondary to the use of antimicrobial agents.
b. Reduce, minimize, and/or prevent the emergence of resistant microorganisms.
B. POLICY:
1. A physician supervised multidisciplinary antimicrobial stewardship workgroup shall evaluate the

judicious use of antimicrobials in accordance with guidelines estabiished by the federal
government and professional organizations.

2. Antimicrobial stewardship activities, outcomes, and all quality indicators shall be
reported quarterly by the Infectious Disease physician or pharmacist to the Pharmacy
Therapeutics Committee, Infection Control and bi-annually to the Quality Assurance /
Performance Improvement (QAPI) Committee.Antimicrobial-stewardship-astivities~outcomes.

7 7
= - ahdm H H - e Wals H- .:

PROCEDURE:

1. Antimicrobial Stewardship Workgroup:
a. Clinicians:
i. A single physician leader, knowledgeable in the area of infectious diseases,
responsible for program outcomes.
ii. A pharmacist leader, knowledgeable in the area of infectious diseases, will co-
lead the program,
b. Infection Control:
i. Infection control activities
ii. Quality indicators (C. difficile, MDRO, device related infections, procedure reiated
infections, etc)
C. Information Systems:
i. Computerized alerts and warnings
i. Data generation and reporting
d. Microbiology:
i. Culture and sensitivity reporting/alerting
ii. Annual antibiogram
e. Administration:
i. Financial support of program



Patient Care Services
Antibiotic Stewardship, IV.WW
Page 2 0f 2
2. Antimicrobial Stewardship Activities:
a. Prospective audit and feedback conducted by pharmacist leader in conjunction with
physician ieader.
i. This process involves prospectively reviewing the use of antimicrobial agents and
contacting the prescriber with recommendations for optimizing current
antimicrobial therapy on an individual patient.

b. Development and implementation of a restricted antibiotic policy (Refer to Pharmacy
policy “Restricted Antimicrobials”).

c. Surveillance and trending of antimicrobial use patterns and quality indicators.

d. Education to clinicians and staff:

i. Development of evidence based, institution-specific guidelines for the treatment
of common infections.
e. Other activities:
i. IV to Oral route conversion program.
i. Renal dose adjustment of antimicrobials.
ii. Preparation of retrospective reviews (i.e. Medication Use Evaluation).

D. REFERENCES:
1. Barlam TF, Cosgrove SE, Abbo LM, et al. implementing an Antibiotic Stewardship Program:
Guidelines by the Infectious Diseases Society of America and the Society for Healthcare
Epidemiology of America. Clin Infect Dis 2016; 62:e51.
2. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Core Elements of Hospital Antibiotic Stewardship
Programs. http://www.cdc.gov/getsmart/healthcare/implementation/core-elements.html
{(Accessed on December 12, 2016).



)
(Q) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: CARDIAC REHAB CENTER (ON CAMPUS) EMERGENCY TREATMENT

L POLICY:

A

Function: Safe and standardized management of unexpected cardiovascular events or exercise
related changes in cardiovascular status including, but not limited to, acute angina or change in
anginal pattern, stable angina, chest wall/incisional/musculoskeletal pain, cardiac dysrhythmias,
hypotensive/syncopal episodes, and acute dyspnea.

B. Circumstances:

1. Setting: Cardiac Rehabilitation service area {on campus), Tri-City Medical Center

2. Supervision: RN; upon arrival of a physician, nursing staff shall follow physician orders
instead of standardized procedure.

3. Patient contraindications ~ Patients with written orders to the contrary of the
Standardized Procedure. Patients with Special Considerations:

i. No Code - A no-code is synonymous with “no resuscitation” or “do not
resuscitate”.
C. Definitions:

1. Acute angina: Pain, pressure, heaviness, bumning sensation, indigestion. May be felt in
center of chest, arms, neck, jaw, and shoulders. Other symptoms may include
weakness, shoriness of breath, diaphoresis, nausea vomiting (1 or more symptoms may
be present.)

2. Change in Anginal pattern: Change in frequency, duration, and pattern of angina.

3. Stable Angina: Angina symptoms are relieved with rest or nitroglycerin,

4. Chest wall/incisional/musculoskeletal pain: Atypical pain associated with movement,
stretching, straining, coughing, and palpable tenderness.

5. Cardiac BysrythmiasDysrhythmias: Any rhythm other than sinus rhythm that requires
immediate intervention due to life threatening potential or that result in the patient
becoming symptomatic (compromised).

6. Hypotensive/syncopal episodes: Any decrease in blood pressure of 30 - 40 mmHg or
more from pre-exercise levels or less than 80 mmHg systolic associated with symptoms.

D. Data Base:

1 Subjective: Patient complaints including, but not limited to, pain, pressure heaviness,
burning sensation, indigestion felt in center of chest, arms, neck, jaw, shoulders. Other
symptoms may include weakness, shortness of breath, nausea, dizziness, light-
headedness, and confusion.

2. Objective: Cardiac rate and rhythm disturbances, decreased level of responsiveness,
hypotension, labored respiration, oxygen saturation less than 92%, diaphoresis,
vomiting.

3. Assessment: Unexpected cardiovascular events/exercise related changes in
cardiovascular status.

4, Plan:

i. Initiate standardized procedure as appropriate and notify cardiologist or primary
physician (if no cardiologist) as soon as possible.

Pastlen: Care N Ino

grvices Clinical urse Pharmacy & e Medical Professional

Content Executive | Division of . disciplinary A Admini Board of

Export | procadures | (Covneh | Cardiology | TUMRLISE | practice | SRS | svation | cARE | pirctors

Review

Ly Al ;gig 1016, | ow1, 083, | 811 %ﬂ; gg:{gg: 05108
32”&1121?125 08/?%{1:(5[19 i Ll UALGRIL 01/??{1031'120 Lo 0530 | 3Tnia | gy a3

59



Patient Care Services

—Cardiac Rehab Center (On Campus) Emergency Treatment Standardized Procedure

Page 2 of 4

i. Call CODE BLUE by dialing 66 to respond to Cardiac Rehab Center as
appropriate.

iii. Assist with transportation of patient to Emergency Department (ED) via
wheelchair or gurney as appropriate. Provide protection of umbrella to protect
patient from rain or inclement weather during transportation.

Il. PROCEDURE:
A Acute Angina or Change In Anginal Pattern:

1. Stop exercise

2. Assess patient's blood pressure, SpO,, heart rate and rhythm, lung sounds, respirations,
color and mentation. Assess chest pain (location, severity, character).

3. Administer oxygen to maintain SpO; greater than 95%.

4. Administer nitroglycerin (NTG) 0.4mg/actuation spray or tablets 0.4 mg sublingual at 5-
minute intervals, not to exceed three sprays for symptoms of angina unrelieved by rest.
i. If chest pain is unrelieved after 3 NTG sprays, transport to ED for further

evaluation.
B. Stable Angina:

1. Administer nitroglycerin (NTG) spray or tablets 0.4 mg sublingual at 5-minute
intervals, not to exceed three sprays or tablets for symptoms of angina unrelieved
by rest.

i If chest pain is unrelieved after 3 NTG sprays or tablets, transport to £D for
further evaluation.

2. Assess and document patient's response to nitroglycerin and exercise.

3. Assess patient’s blood pressure, heart rate and rhythm, respirations, color and
mentation.

4. Stop activity if angina is unrelieved and proceed as for acute angina.

C. Chest Wall/Incisional/Musculoskeletal Pain:

1. Evaluate cause of pain.

2 Assess blood pressure, heart rate and rhythm, respirations, color, and mentation.

3. Discontinue modalities that aggravate symptoms, or decrease workloads.

4, Notify physician if symptoms persist.

5 Document assessment and treatment on patient's chart.

6. Re-evaluate at next exercise session.

D. Treatment for Dysrhythmias That May Result in Cardiopulmonary Arrest:

1. Assessment

i. Establish baseline if time allows and patient is stable (Historical Data)
a) Review baseline ECG
b) Review medications

c) Inquire regarding the use of stimulants (i.e. caffeine, smoking, cold
remedies)
i Evaluation of new arrhythmias
a) Evaluate hemodynamic status, i.e., blood pressure, heart rate, skin color

and temperature, lightheadedness, dizziness, shortness of breath.
2. Treatment
i Ventricular fibrillation and pulseless ventricular tachycardia, asystole, PEA
a) Initiate CPR per American Heart Association guidelines (AHA) at-a

rate-of-100-120/minuteratio-30:2.and Call Code Blue

b) Place on a cardiac monitor
c) For Ventricular fibrillation or pulseless ventricular tachycardia,

Defibrilate with-200-joulesper AHA guidelines.
d) Resume CPR immediately after shock for 5 cycles or 2 minutes

gje) Establish IV access with NS

60



Patient Care Services

| Standardized-Rrecedure~Cardiac Rehab Center (On Campus) Emergency Treatment Standardized Procedure

Page 3of4

ii. Symptomatic Cardiac Rhythm: Complete heart block, symptomatic
bradyarrhythmia or tachyarrhythmia
a) Administer oxygen to maintain SPQ, greater than 95%
b) Place on a cardiac monitor
c) Alert Lift Team/Rapid Response Team (RRT) to assist with immediate
transport to ED
iii. New changes in cardiac rhythm: stable bradyarrhythmia or tachyarrhythmia, new
onset atrial fibrillation, increase in premature ventricular contractions (PVC), or
runs of stable ventricular tachycardia
a) Stop exercise
b) Assess patient's blood pressure, respiratory rate, SPO; percentage, skin
color, temperature, mentation, and other symptoms
c) Administer oxygen to maintain SPO; greater than 95%
d) Contact physician for further orders
e) Transport to ED with assistance of Lift Team if necessary

E. Hypotensive Episodes:

N=2obw M-

o

5.

Assist patient to supine position.

Assess blood pressure, heart rate, rhythm, respiration, oxygen saturation, skin color,
temperature, mentation, and presence of other symptoms.

Administer oxygen to maintain SPO, saturation greater than 95%

Notify physician

if no improvement, transport to the ED

cute Dyspnea:

Stop exercise.

Assess oxygen saturation by pulse oximetry

i. If oxygen saturation is less than 92%, place patient on oxygen and titrate to
oxygen saturations greater than 95%.

Assess breath sounds

Assess patfent for use of rescue drug inhalers and encourage patient to use inhaler if

available.

Notify physician if symptoms do not improve and transport to the Emergency

Department (ED) via wheelchair or gurney.

G. Left Ventricular Assist Device (LVAD):

1.

U

Check to see if pump is still working:

i. Look to see if all lights are green

ii. Listen for quiet whirling sound with stethoscope or feel by placing hand over
abdomen

Check that all connections to power source and fix if loose or disconnected.

Replace current batteries with a new, fully charged pair.

Contact LVAD coordinator

If patient unstable, call RRT to assist with immediate transport to ED

i. No compressions

ii. Keep all connections together if defibrillation is necessary,
a) DO NOT stop pump prior to delivering shock.

H. Documentation:

1.

2.
3.
4

Document event, intervention, and response in the medical record and notify the
physician.

Record subjective data

Record rhythm strip, blood pressure, heart rate, oxygen saturation

Send information to primary physician/cardiologist

. REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS PROVIDING INTERVENTIONS:

| A, Current unencumbered California RN license.

61



Patient Care Services

~Cardiac Rehab Center (On Campus) Emergency Treatment Standardized Procedure

Page 4 of 4
B. Education: Successful completion of ACLS course (with current course completion card);
C. Experience: initial job requirement.s.
D. Initial Evaluation: During Orientation period.
E. Ongoing Evaluation: Annually with skills validation,
\TR DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. Method: This standardized procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
B. Review: Every two (2) years.

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TQO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A All ACLS-certified Registered Nurses who have successfully completed requirements as
outlined above are authorized to direct and perform Cardiac Rehab Center (On Campus)
Emergency Treatment Standardized Procedure.

62



Distribution: Patient Care Services

2
(G) Tri-City Medical Center
PROCEDURE: CATHETER CLEARANCE WITH ALTEPLASE (CATHFLO® ACTIVASE®)

DELETE - follow manufacturer's
instruction for use, link created on

5 tvoData: Mﬁbﬁé%e@ﬂ-)—mqem&pﬂ Intranet under Clinical Products
Equipment 2-mg-vialof alteplase-{Cathflo™-Activase™) from pharmasy

weth—a-lteglase—(—@athﬂo“—ﬁ.eﬂvaseo i --= adultg

| Cllnlcal Nursing Medical Staff | Pharmaceutical Madical Professional
Deg:;}:n:nt Policles & Executive Department | & Therapeutics Exacutive :::;"t':' Affairs gi‘::;cllo‘:;
Procedures Council or Division Committae Committes Committee
7103, 3/04,
°2f,"1°13'75,’1‘13' 031,714, | 0311, 714, s 9/14, 0916, o oso0 | 0511, 11714, | 306, aic,
08/16, 11119 08/16, 12119 08/186, 02{20 03/20 09/16, 04/20 10/16, nfa 05!‘:1”11%”4.




Patlent Care Servicas Procedure Manual
Catheler Clearance with alteplase (Cathfio® Activase®)
I Page 2 of 3

64



Patient Care Services Procedurs Manual
Catheter Clearance with alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®)
Page 3of 3

65



@‘J) Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution:
Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: CHEMOTHERAPY EXPOSURE, SPILLS, AND HANDLING OF LINENS CONTAMINATED
WITH CHEMOTHERAPEUTIC AGENTS AND BODY FLUIDS, ACCIDENTAL EXPOSURE TO
RADIOACTIVE BODY FLUIDS

Purpose: To outline staff responsibility and management of chemotherapy spills, radioactive body

fluid exposures, and handling of contaminated linens.

Supportive Data;

To prevent staff exposure to chemotherapy and radiopharmaceuticals

| A,

Equipment: Chemotherapy Spill Kit
POLICY:
1. Many drugs used in the treatment of cancer are considered to be hazardous to health care

workers.

a. The term hazardous refers to drugs/chemicals requiring special handling because of
potential health risks.

Staff working with chemotherapy drugs and the body fluids of patients that have received

chemotherapy shall adhere to this procedure and reference Patient Care Services Disposal of

Chemotherapy Waste procedure.

a, Body fluid includeings but not limited to sweat, saliva, emesis, urine, feces, semen,
vaginal fluid, or blood.

Do not use chemical inactivators due to the potential for dangerous by-products.

a. Exception: Sodium thiosulfate is used to inactivate nitrogen mustard.

B. PROCEDURE FOR SPILL MANAGEMENT:

1. For chemotherapy spills greater than 400 mL in any department:
a. Open spill kit and immediately post a sign that warns others of the presence of cytoxic
spill (included in kit).
b. Remove personnel and patients from the immediate area.
i Immediate area is approximately 20-foot perimeter.
cC. If spill occurs in a patient's room, evacuate patient(s) from the room and close door.
d. Nursing to contact Environmental Services (EVS) supervisor at 760-644-6973.
i. EVS to contact EOC Safety Officer regarding the chemotherapy spill at 760-590-
0352.
2. For chemotherapy spills less than 400 mL:
a. Non-Oncology Nursing Units Responsibilities for spills on hard surfaces estimated at
less than 400 mL
i. Open spill kit and immediately post a sign that warns others of the presence of
cytoxic spill (included in chemo spill kit).
i. Contact EVS Supervisor of the chemotherapy spill 760-644-6973.
b. EVS Responsibilities for spills on hard surfaces estimated at 400 mL or less:
i. Open spill kit and immediately post a sign that warns others of the presence of
cytoxic spill (included in chemo spill kit).
i Don personal protective equipment in the following order:
1) N-95 mask (For additional mask(s) please use the N-85 masks located on
the unit.)
2) First pair of chemotherapy gloves
3) Chemotherapy gown with the cuffs over the first pair of gloves
4) Second pair of chemotherapy gloves over the cuffs of the gown
5) Splash goggles or face shield
6) Protective Shoecovers
ii. Place spill pillows from spill kit in a “V" position on outer perimeter of spill to
prevent spreading of fluid.
iv. Place one towel from the spill kit over spill to absorb fluid.
Clinical Nursing Medical Professionat
en cutiv Divist in oa
e | ot | SCoonel’ | Gudoeey | promecrs | S | S0t | Sonce
3700, 10706,
e | SENR | YaTe | ohidm | e | SO | ow | dma0s | onme

66



Patient Care Services

Chemotherapy Exposure, Spills, and Handling of Linens Contaminated with Chemotherapeutic Agents and Body Fluids, Accidental Exposure to

Radioactive Body Fluids
Page 20f 5

vi.
vii,

viii.

Xi.

Xii.
xii.

Xiv.

Pick up saturated towel and spill pillows and place in small chemotherapy waste
bag.

Use brush to sweep any glass or fragments into scoop and place in small
chemotherapy waste bag with discarded towels and spill pillows.

Use the DIMENSION 3 procedure of the EVS guidelines to complete the
cleaning.

After DIMENSION 3 cleaning, use remaining towels to wipe up the rinse and fully
dry area. Piace towels in small chemotherapy waste bag and seal.

Place sealed bag in Spill Kit box and seal the box with bright orange
chemotherapy waste label.

Remove personal protective equipment in the following order.

1) Quter pair of gloves

2) Chemotherapy gown

3) N95 mask

4) Splash goggles or face shield

5) Protective Shoecovers

6) Final pair of gloves

Place personal protective equipment in large chemotherapy waste bag along with
spill kit box and seal the bag.

Place sealed bag in the designated chemotherapy waste area on the unit.
Complete the Hazardous Drug Exposure Report and give to the supervisor of the
EVS department.

The EVS supervisor shall submit copies of the Hazardous Drug Exposure Report
to Employee Health Services and to the EOC Officer.

Oncology Unit/Outpatient Infusion Center/Pharmacy responsibilities for spills on hard
surfaces estimated between 200 mL and 400 mL:

Open spill kit and immediately post a sign that warns others of the presence of
cytoxic spill (included in chemo spili kit).

Delegate to a co-worker to contact EVS Supervisor of the chemotherapy spill
and/or EOC Safety Officer regarding the chemotherapy spill. EVS is responsible
for spills on the oncology and pharmacy units that are between 200 mL and 400
mL.

1) 760-644-6972 (Day Shift) or pager 760-926-0841

2) 760-644-6973 (Evening Shift) or pager 760-926-0832

3) 760-644-8974 (Night Shift) or pager 760-926-0834

4) 760-590-0352 (EOC Officer)

Oncology Unit/Outpatient Infusion Center/Pharmacy responsibilities for spills on hard
surfaces estimated at less than 200 mL:

Open spill kit and immediately post a sign that warns others of the presence of

cytoxic spill (included in chemo spill kit).

Contact or delegate a co-worker to contact Environmental Services (EVS)

Supervisor of the chemotherapy spill.

1) 760-644-6972 (Day Shift) or pager 760-926-0841

2) 760-644-6973 (Evening Shift) or pager 760-926-0832

3) 760-644-6974 (Night Shift) or pager 760-926-0834

Don personal protective equipment in the following order:

1) N-85 mask (For additional mask(s) please use the N-95 masks located on
the unit.)

2) First pair of chemotherapy gloves

3) Chemotherapy gown with the cuffs over the first pair of gloves

4) Second pair of chemotherapy gloves over the cuffs of the gown

5) Splash goggles or face shield

67



Patient Care Services
Chemotherapy Exposure, Spills, and Handling of Linens Contaminated with Chemotherapeutic Agents and Body Fluids, Accidental Exposure to
Radioactive Body Fluids

Page 3of 5
6) Protective Shoecovers
iv. To clean up a spill from a hard surface gstimated as less than 200 mL:

1) Place spill pillows in a “V" position on outer perimeter of spill to prevent
spreading of fluid.

2) Place one towel from the spill kit over spill to absorb fluid.

3) Pick up saturated towel and spill pillows and place in small chemotherapy
waste bag.

4) Use brush to sweep any glass or fragments into scoop and place in small

chemotherapy waste bag with discarded towels and spill pillows.

5) EVS must use the DIMENSION 3 procedure of their EVS guidelines to
complete the cleaning.

6) After EVS has completed the DIMENSION 3 cleaning, use remaining
towels to wipe up the rinse and fully dry area. Place towels in small
chemotherapy waste bag and seal.

7) Place sealed bag in Spill Kit box and seal the box with bright orange
chemotherapy waste label.

8) Remove personal protective equipment in the following order:

a) Outer pair of gloves

b} Chemotherapy gown

c) N95 mask

d) Splash goggles or face shield

e) Protective Shoecovers
f) Final pair of gloves
9) Place personal protective equipment in large chemotherapy waste bag

along with spill kit box and seal the bag.

10)  Place sealed bag in the designated chemotherapy waste area on the unit.

11)  Complete the Hazardous Drug Exposure Report and give to the clinical
manager on the nursing unit.

12)  The clinical manager shali submit copies of the Hazardous Drug
Exposure Report to Employee Health Services and to the Environment of
Care (EOC) Safety Officer.

C. PROCEDURE -- EXPOSURE AND PREVENTION RELATED TO CHEMOTHERAPY AGENTS AND
BODY FLUIDS:

1. In the event of skin exposure to chemotherapeutic agent; remove any contaminated garment
and immediately wash contaminated skin with soap and water.

2. In case of eye exposure, immediately flush the eye with saline solution or water for at least five
minutes.

3. All linen exposed to a chematherapy agent or body fluid of a patient that is currently receiving or

has received chemotherapy in the past 48 hours, must be placed (using chemotherapy gloves
and gown) in a Yellow chemotherapy waste bag and tagged by the EVS with a “Special
Handling Ticket" before adding it to the general hospital linen.

4, Contact EVS when chemo waste linen bag is 2/3 full. EVS will place the chemo waste linen bag
in a regular hospital blue linen bag and will place a special handling ticket on the outside of the
biue linen bag before it can be placed in the general hospital linen,

5. Place any disposable cytoxic contaminated materials into a sealed, leak proof chemo waste

plastic bag. Use puncture proof chemotherapy waste containers for sharps, breakable items

and/or items that are saturated with body fiuids. See Patient Care Services: Disposal of

Chemotherapy Waste Procedure.

All containers will be clearly labeled citing the hazardous nature of the contents-Chemotherapy.

Report any cytotoxic exposures or spills to your supervisor.

Report any empioyee exposure to employee health services and/or emergency department.

N

68



Patient Care Services
Chemotherapy Exposure, Spills, and Handling of Linens Contaminated with Chemotherapeutic Agents and Body Fluids, Accidental Exposure to
Radioactive Body Fluids

Page 4 of 5

9.

a. Fill out lliness/Injury Investigation Report
Report any patient exposure to the patient's healthcare provider and per institution policy.

D. PROCEDURE - PRECAUTIONS WHEN HANDLING BODY FLUIDS OF A PATIENT RECEIVING

T bt LS A AR N Lm )

CHEMOTHERAPY(Precautions need to be taken during and 48 hours after |ast Chemotherapy
Dose):

ose):
1.

Wear appropriate personal protective equipment (PPE) which may include the following:
N-95 mask

Double chemotherapy gloves

Chemotherapy gown

Splash goggles or face shield

Protective shoecovers

isposing of body fluid

geaeoo

a. Dispose of body fluids in the toilet.

b. DO NOT USE THE TOILET SPRAYER. Rinse containers with a cup of water to prevent
splashing

c. Before flushing toilet, cover open toilet with chux. (New chux to be used with each flush).

d. Flush toilet twice

e. Place personal protective equipment and chux in chemotherapy waste bag.

f. Non-Oncology contact EVS to dispose of chemo waste bag when they become % of the
way full,

g. Oncology unit will place sealed chemo waste bag in the designated chemotherapy waste

area on the unit.
All linen exposed to a chemotherapy agent or body fluid of a patient that is currently receiving or
has received chemotherapy in the past 48 hours, must be placed (using chemotherapy gloves
and gown) in a Yellow chemotherapy waste bag and tagged by the EVS with a “Special
Handling Ticket" before adding it to the general hospital linen.
Skin care of incontinent adult receiving chemotherapy
a. Clean patients skin well after voiding or having a bowel movement
b. Apply protective barrier ointment or cream before diapering
All disposable equipment (i.e. foley catheter, bedpan, graduated cylinder, and diapers) used in
caring for chemotherapy patients must be disposed of in a chemotherapy waste container and
placed in the designated chemotherapy waste area on the unit.

E. PROCEDURE - RADIOACTIVE BODY FLUIDS, EXPOSURE RELATED TO:

1.

Nogk~wh

8.

In the event of exposure from the body fluid, immediately remove any contaminated garment or
shoes being careful to avoid contact with substance.

Place contaminated articles in red radioactive marked containers in room.

Place as much distance from contaminated articles and self as possible.

Immediately wash contaminated skin with soap and water.

Alert Radiation Safety Officer and manager via in room phone or call light, of radiation exposure.

Do not leave room unless cleared by Radiation Safety Officer.

Report any employee exposure to employee health department or emergency department.
a. Fill out appropriate injury form

Report any patient exposure to the patient's healthcare provider and per institution policy.

F. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1.

1.

PCS Disposal of Chemotherapy Waste Procedure

REFERENCES

ONS Chemotherapy and Biotherapy Guidelines and Recommendations for Practice, 2014,
Fourth Edition

69



Patient Care Services
Chemotherapy Expasure, Spills, and Handling of Linens Contaminated with Chemotherapsutic Agents and Body Fluids, Accidental Exposure to

Radioactive Body Fluids
Page 5of 5
2. Center for Disease Control and Prevention. Occupational Exposure to Antineoplastic Agents
and Other Hazardous Drugs. http://www.cdc.gov/niosh/topics/antineoplastic/December 12, 2014
38 Medical Waste Management Act January 2015 California Health and Safety Code Sections
117600 - 118360
4, “Preventing Occupational Exposure to Antineoplastic and Other Hazardous Drugs in Health
Care Settings.” National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH),
2014. htto://www//cdc/gov/niosh/docs/2004-165/#c. “Kendall Chemobloc Procedure.” Tyco
Healthcare. 2006 www.lycohealthcare.com
5. Oncology Nursing Society. Manual for Radiation Oncology Nursing Practice and Education, 4"

Edition, 2012. Print

70



)
(@ Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

CHEMOTHERAPY EXTRAVASATION

Purpose:

To outline the responsibility of the registered nurses in the event of chemotherapy
extravasation

Supportive Data:

The Oncology Nursing Society Chemotherapy Biotherapy and Guidelines sets the
standard for best practice in the care of oncology patients.

Equipment:

Extravasation Kit

A, DEFINITIONS:

1.

Extravasation: Passage or escape into tissue of antineoplastic drugs. Tissue slough and

necrosis may occur.

a. Extravasation is a medical emergency. Immediate intervention must occur if
extravasation is suspected.

Flare Reaction: A local allergic reaction to an agent, manifested by streaking or red blotches

along the vein, but without pain.

B. POSSIBLE SIGNS AND SYMPTOMS OF EXTRAVASATION:

1. Swelling (most common)
2. Stinging, burning, or pain at the injection site (not always present)
3. Intravenous (V) flow rates that slow or stop
4, Lack of biood return {extravasation can occur with the presence of a blood return)
o} Erythema, inflammation, or blanching at the injection site (not always immediately evident)
6. Induration
7. Vesicle formation
8. Uiceration
9, Necrosis - Tissue damage may progress for six months after the incident
10.  Sloughing
11.  Damage to tendons, nerves and joints
C. CHEMOTHERAPEUTIC VESICANTS AND IRRITANTS THAT CAN CAUSE TISSUE DAMAGE
1. Vesicants
a. Alkylating Agents
i, Mechlorethamine Hydrochloride
b. Antitumor Antibictic
I. DOXOrubicin
. DAUNOrubicin
i, Mitomycin
iv. Dactinomycin
V. Epirubicin
vi. Idarubicin
C. Vinca Alkaloid or Micro-tubular Inhibiting Agent
i. vinCRIStine
ii. vinBLAStine
i Vindesine (non-formulary)
iv. Vinorelbine
d. Topoisomerage Il Inhibitor
i. Mitoxantrone
e. Miscellaneous
i Amsacrine
f. Taxane
i. PACLItaxel (irritant with vesicant-like properties)
Clinical Nursiqg Divi Phamacy & Medical Ad Profassional
e | fon | Gpote | Gwby | Teweds | seate | NN | Nem™ | S
. . 4j07.
fﬁg glg: 2/1314?27:'13. 2133'?27,«'1 3, | o7e,03120 | o6rts, 111g | AETSIOSAS | gg50 é?a?.';;:%. e
1019 6/16, 10119 7116, 10119 . nia AT

71



Patient Care Services
Chemotherapy Extravasation

Page 2of 9

2.

Irritants
a. Alkylating Agents
i CARBOplatin
i=fi. ClSplatin (vesicant at concentrations 20.5 mg/mi)

ji-iii.  Dacarbazine
fiiv., lfosfamide
v,  Melphalan
wvi. OXALlplatin

b. Nitrosourea
i. Carmustine
Eii. Streptozocin
c. Antitumor Antibiotic
i DAUNOTrubicin liposomal
ii. Bleomycin
d. Epipodophyliotoxin
i. Etoposide
ii. Teniposide (non-formulary)
e. Taxane
i Docetaxel
f. Proteasome Inhibitor
i. Bortezomib
g. Antimetabolite
i, Gemcitabine

D. PROCEDURE:

1,

Initial management

a. Stop administration and [V fluids immediately.

b. Don two (2) pairs of chemotherapy gloves.

c. Disconnect the |V tubing from the IV device (central or peripheral IV site). DO NOT
REMOVE the peripheral IV or noncoring port needle.

d. Attempt to aspirate the residual drug from the IV device or port needle by using a 1-3 mi

syringe.

Remove the peripheral IV device or port needle

Assess the site of the suspected extravasation and photograph site.

Assess symptoms experienced by patient.

Notify the physician and report the patient's symptoms, amount of extravasation and the

extent of the extravasation. Review Vesicant Extravasation Management Guidelines with

physician and obtain orders for treatment.

i. For central lines, collaborate with physician regarding the need to discontinue the
central line, need for a radiographic flow study to determine the cause of the
extravasation and future plans for IV access.

i Administer antidote if ordered by physician per the manufacturers recommendations.

Apply a hot or cold compress per Vesicant Extravasation Management Guidelines.

Document the following information in the medical record:

i. Description of the events that occurred

fi. Drug

iii. Ditution

iv. Amount of Drug Infiltrated

V. Method of Drug Administration

vi. Type of IV device

vil. Description of Site
1) Size
2) Color
3) Texture

To e

=



Patient Care Services
Chemotherapy Extravasation
Page 30f 9

L Document Physician Notification

2, Post—Extravasation Care

a. Photograph the initial extravasation site including:
i Measuring guide for size or length / width / depth
i Date of photograph
ii. Patients initials
iv. Medical record number
V. Location

b. Photograph every Monday, Wednesday and Friday.

C. Instruct the patient to rest and elevate the site for 48 hours and then may resume normal
activity.

d. Give patient written instructions regarding what symptoms they should report

immediately, local care of the site, pain management and the plan for follow up.
Document all patient education in the Cerner Education All Topics Powerform.
e. Educate patient to ensure that no medications are given distally to an extravasation

injury.

E. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. PCS Procedure: Chemotherapy Administration
2. Vesicant Extravasation Management Guidelines

F. REFERENCES:
1. Chu E, DeVita VT, Jr., Copur MS et al. Physicians’ Cancer Chemotherapy Drug Manual 2008.
Sudbury: Jones and Barlett, 2008
2. Clamon GH. The Chemotherapy Source Book. 4™ ed. Philadelphia. Lippincott Williams &
Wilkins, 2008: 148-51

.................

4:3. Goolsby TV and Lombardo FA. Extravasation of Chemotherapeutic Agents: Prevention and
Treatment. Seminars in Oncology. 2006; 33(1): 139-43

64.  Infusion Nursing Society (January/February 2011). Infusion Nursing Standards of Practice.
Journal of Infusion Nursing, Vol. 34, Number 18S.

5. Jackson-Rose, J. et al. (2017). Chemotherapy extravasation: Establishing a national
benchmark for incidence among cancer centers. Clinical Journal of Oncology Nursing,
21(4). doi: 10.1188/17.CJON.438-445,

6. The Oncology Nursing Society (20194). ONS Chemotherapy and ImmunotherapyBietherapy
{4th-eds), p. 255-257458—160.



Patient Cara Services
Chemotherapy Extravasation
Page 4 of 9

Vesicant Extravasation Management Guidelines
Oncology Nursing Society (20194) Chemotherapy and
ImmunotherapyBistherapy Guidelines and Recommendations for Practice

4" Edition) pp 255158-257160

Table 13-3. Vesicanl Extravasation Management Guidelines

Antidate or Treatment

Administration, Monitoring, and
Fallow:Up

immediate Topical
Classification/Drug Therapy
Alkylating agenis Apply cold pack lor 6-12
+ Meachlorethaming hours following sodium
hydrochloride {nitrogen  thiosulfate antidote injec-

mustard, Mustargent) tion (Lendbeck LLC,
2012).
» Tmbectedin (Yondells®)  Apply cold pack far

15 -20 minutes ot least 4
times a day for the Hrst
24 hours.

Antidote: Sodlum thiosuliatas

Machanism of action: Neutral-
izes mechiorethamine 1o form
nentoxie thioesters that are
excreted In ths urine

Preparatlan: Prepara 1/6 molar
solution (4. 14 g of sodium
thlosulfate per 100 m! of ster-
ile water for injection or 2.64
g ol anhydrous sodium thio-
sulfale per 100 mi, or diiuio 4
ml aof sodlum thiosullals Injec-
tion [10%) with 6 m' of sterlla
waler lor Injection) {Lundbeck
LLC, 2012).

Storage. Storw al room temper-
alure betwean 15°C-30°C
{59°F-86°F),

No known anlidotas or treat-
mants ealst.

inject 2 mi of the sodium Miosulfata solu-
tlon for, each milligram of mechioretha-
mine suspected fo have extravasaled.
Inject the solullon subcutanecusly into
the extravasation slie using a 25-gauge
or smalier needle {change neadia wih
each injection). Dosa may be divided
Inlo 3—4 syringes to inject around the site
of extravasation, The needle should be
changed with each now Injection.

Assoss the extravasation area lor pain,
blister formation, and skin sloughing peri-
odically as needad or in accordance with
institutional pallcy.

Instruct patlents to monltor the extravasa-
tion site and to report tever, chllis, bilster-
Ing, skin sloughlng, and wersening pain.

Instruct patlents with periphzral exiravasa-
{ions 1o repori arm ar hand swelling and
stifiness.

Assess the extravasalion araa ior pain,
blister formation, and ekin sioughing perl-
odically as needed or In accordance with
Instinutional policy {Janssen Pharmaceu-
tical Companles, 2015).

In coltaboration with the provider, refer
patients for speciallzed care when indl-
cated ar needed (e.g., piastic orhand
surgery consull, physical therapy, pain
managemant, rehablitation sarvices),

{Continued on next page}

74



Patient Care Services
Chemotherapy Extravasation
Page 5 of 9

Table 13-3. Vesican! Exiravasation Management Guidelines (Continued)

Immudiste Topical Adminisiration, Monltering, and
Clasalflemion/Drig Therapy Antidota or Treatment folluw%li:

Anthracanedione

+ Mitoxamirona {Novan-

trone®)

Antilumot anllb?otlw

{anthracyclines)

- Daunorublcln {Carubl-

dine®)
~ Daxontbicin
{Adriamycin®)

. Epwl_rut'llcln {Ellenco®}
+ Idatitsieln (idamycin®)

Antitumor antiblatics

{miscellangous)

= Dactinomycin {actino~
mycin D, Cosmagen®)
« Dadhonblcin and Cyta

rabira (Vyxaos™)

» Dozorubicin hydrochio-
rkie liposoma (Dox/1”}
* MHomycin {Mutamy-

dn®)

Apply cold pack for
15-20 minutes at 16ast 4
times'n day for the first
24 hours.

Apply cokl pack but
ramove al laast 15 min-
utes pror {o dexrazorans
{reatment.

Apply cold pack for
15-20 minules ai least 4
times B day for the first
24 hourn

Nao known antidotes or ireat-
ments exist.

Treatment Daxrazoxans lor
Irfection {Langer, 2007,
Schulmedster, 2007}

Mechanriam of actlon: Linknown

Dose: The recommanded doso
of dexturoxans Is based on
the pallent's body surlace
area:

« Day 1: 1,000 mgim?

» Day 2: 1,000 mgimé

« Day 3: 500 mgim?

The maximum recommendod
dote |s 2,000 myg on days
t and 2 and 1,000 m{ on
dey 3. Tha dose should be
reduced 50% In patienta With
crodlinine clenrance vaelues <
40 mimin,

Praparation: Each 500 mg
vlal of dexrazoxang must be
mixed ¥Ath 50 mi diuent, The
pationi's do30 is then added
to & 1,000 ml narmal safina
Infuslon bag for edminisira
tion

Sioraga: Stor al room temper-
ature batween 15°C-30°C
(59"F-86"F).

No known antidcfes of troat
mants axis{

Extravasation typlcally causes blus discol-
oration ot the Infusion site area and may
requine dabridement and shin grafting
{Fresenlus Kabl USA, 2013).

Assass the axtravasation area for paln,
bltster farmation, and skin sloughing pori
odically as needed of In pccordanca. with
instinutional palicy.

In collaborstion with the providar, rofer
patianis for specialized cara when ingl
cated ar neadad {8.9., plastic or kand
sutgery consult, physical therapy, paln
mansgement, rehabliitation seivicos).

Intlate the first doxrazoxane infusicn as
soon a3 possble and within 8 hours.of
the anthracyc!ine exiravasation.

Intuse derrazoxane ovar 1-2 hours in
a large veln in an ares othor than the
oxtravaaation area {2.g., oppeaity arm).
The same arm shotiid he usad oniy
whery tha patient's clinical status (e.g.,
lymphadema, ioss of lmb) precludes use
of the unatiected arm, and a large vein
abovo Lho gxtravasation site shoukd be
used lor dexrazoxane administraton.

Dimeihyl sulfcoide should not be appiied to
the extravasation area.

Assess the exiravasation area for pain,
bitstar farmation, and skin stoughing pas:
odically s neadad or In sccordance with
Institutional policy.

Instruct pationis o monitar the exiravasa-
tion atle and to report fover, chills, biister-
Ing, skin sloughing, Bnd worsaning pain

Inslsuct pattents wilh peripheral extravasa
tions fo report arm or frand sweiling and
stitiness.

instruct pakiams about traatmant skie
offects (0.9., nausna, voriling, diarrhoa,
siomatitis, bono marrow suppression,
elevated liver anzyme levels, tntuslon sie
burring).

Monillor pationts’ complete bisod count
and liver anzyme levels

Asszess the extravasation area lor pain,
blister formation, and skin sloughing per
odicaliy as needed or In accordanco with
Institutional poky.

In collaboralion with tha provider, refer
pationis Jor speclalized care when ing-
calnd or needed {e.g., plastic or hand
surgery consult, physical therapy, paln
managemen, rehabiitation sorvicas)

{Conthnuad or pext page)

75



Patient Care Services
Chemotherapy Extravasation
Page 6 of 9

Table 13-3. Vesicant Extravasalion Management Guidelines {Continued)

immediate Topical Adminlstration, Monitoring, and
Classification/Drug Therapy Antidate or Trestmant Fallow-Up
Plant alkalolds and Apply warm pack for Anlidote: Hyaluronidase (Krel-  Administer 150 unils of the hyaluronidase

microtubule Inhibitors
+ Vinblastine {Velban®)
« Vinerigline (Oncovin®)

Taxanes

- Cabazltaxal {Jeviana®)

» Docstaxe! (Taxotera*}

+ Paclltaxel (Taxoi*)

= Paciitaxel protein-
bound particlas for
Injectable suspanslon
{Abraxane®)

15-20 minutes &t least

4 times & day for the

first 2448 hours. Ele-
vate exiremity (peripheral
extravasations).

Apply cold pack lor
15-20 minutes at least 4
times a day for thae first
24 hours.

dieh et ai., 20186)

Mechanlsm of actlon:
Degrades hyaluronic acld
and promates drug disper-
sion and absomption

Preparation: Prepare por pack
age [nsert. Do not dilute. Use
solution as provided.

Stora In refrigerator at 2°C-8:C
{I6°F—46°F).

No known antidales or ireat-
manls ex|sl.

sclution as 5 separate Injections, each
containing 0.2 m! of hysluranidase, sub-
cutaneously Inlo the axtravasation she
using a 25-gauge ar smaller needle
{change naadle with each injection).

Assess lhe extravasation area for paln,
biistar formation, and skin stoughing petl-
odically as needed or in accordance with
institutional pollcy.

Instruct patients to manitor the extravasa-
tlon site and to report faver, chills, blistar-
ing, skin sloughlng, and worsening pain.

Instruct patients with peripheral exiravasa-
tions to raporl arm or hand swelling and
stifinass.

Assess the extravasation area for pain,
blister formation, and skin sioughing perl-
odically as needed or In accordance with
Ingtitutional policy.

Instruct patients to monHor the extravasa-
tion site and to report faver, chiils, bilster-
ing, skin sloughing, and worsening pain.

Instruct patiants with peripheral extravasa-
flons to repart arm or hand swelling and
stitfness.

76



Patient Care Services

Chemoctherapy Extravasation

Page 7 of 9

Classification/Drug

Immediate
Topleal Therapy

Table 14, Veslcént Extravasation Management-Guli:llelln_es

Anlidote or Treatment

Anllidote or Treatment Administration,
Patlent Monttoring, and Follow-Up

Alkylating agent

¢+ Mechlorethamine
hydrochloride
(nitroger: mustard,
Muslargen®)

Anthracenedione
* Mitoxantrone
(Novantrona®)

Apply ice for
6~12 hours fol-
lowing sodiumn

Antidote: Sodium thiosulfate
Mechanism of aclion: Nautralizes mechlor-
ethamine 1o form nonloxic thioeslers that

Inject 2 ml of the sodium thiosulfate so-
lution tar each milligram of mechloreth-
amine suspected to have extravasat-

thiosulfate
tidote injec:t':]
(Lundbeck,
2012).

Apply ice pack|
for 15-20 mi{
utes at least
four fimes a
day for the fig
24 hours.

DELETE

d. Inject the solution SC into the exirav-
salion site using a 25-gauge or small-

r needle (change needle with each in-
ection).

sess the exiravasation area for pain,
lister formation, and skin sloughing peri-
dically as needed or in accordance with
nstitutional policy.

truct the patient to monitor the extrava-
alion site and report fever, chills, blisier-
ng, skin sloughing, and worsening pain.
truct the patient with peripheral extrav-
sations to report arm or hand swetling
nd stiffness.

travasation typically causes blue discol-
alicn of the infusion sile area and may
equira debridement and skin grafting
EMD Serono, Inc., 2008).

sess the exiravasation area for pain,
ister formation, and skin sloughing peri-
ically as needed or in accordance with

institutional pelicy.

In collaboration with the physician or ad-
vanced praclice nurse, refer the palient
for specialized care when indicated or
needed (e.qg., plastic or hand surgery
consult, physical therapy, pain manage-
ment, rehabilifation services).

{Continusd on next page)

Er



Patient Care Services
Chemotherapy Extravasation
Page 8of 9

extravasation treatment, thair elineal of -

ficacy In raaling anlhrmcyceling axtmva
sations has been documentad in the hit-
erature (Arroyo € al., 2010, Conde-

Tabie 14. Yesican! Exiravasation Management Guldelines (Continued)

Immediate Antidole or Treatment Administration,
Classification/Drug  Toplcal Therapy Antidala or Treatment Patlent Monltering, and Follow-Up
Anthracyclines Aaply eza pack Treatmen!: Dexrazaxane for injection {To- The lirst dexrazoxane injusion shoukd ba
» Daunorubicin {owl remove at tect® Kit, Biocodax, tnc, 2011) initiated as soon as possible and wilhin 6
{Cerubidina®) least 15 min- Note: Tetect is the U.5 Food and Drug Ad- hours of the anthzacycline miravasation
* Doxorubicin utos prior to ministration (FDA) approved iroatmosnt Dexraronang thould bo infused ovor 1-2
{Adramycin) dexrazoanng for anthracycline aniravasation, andg its howrs in & large veln in an orea other
« Fpirubicn treatmeant) rmanutacturer mainlaing a pateni for use than the extravasaticn arca (8.9.. Op-
{Bllance™) on tha product, Alihough Zinecard® and posite arm) The same nrm shoulkd ba
» ldarubicin gengtic dexraroxang are neithes indical- ustd only when 1ha patent’s chnical sta-
{tdamycin®) od now FDA-approved for anthracyding s (g.g., lymphaedema, loss of imb}) pre-

tludes uso ol tha unalfectod arm. and a
targa voin distal 1o the extvasalion sitn
should be used lor dexraronane admin-
istration.

Estdvez ot al,, 2010; Langor, 2007, 2008;  Dimothyl cutioxide should not bo appliod ta
fiaee arps.

Exltavasation area for pain,
tation. and ekin sloughing perie
readad orin accordanca with
| policy.

hatient lo morulor tho extrava
and repor fever, chids, bister-
aughing. and worsening pain,
pnls with peripheral extravasa-
hott arm ot hand sweliing and

[ratient aboul keaiment side
.. nauseavomding, diasthea,
DELETE bong manow supprassion, ol

r anzymd lavels, infusion-sita
hatent's complele biooet count
hryma evols

Anitumor ambiotics  Applyfeap xiravasation area lor pan,

» Mioryecin for 15-20 \atien, and sken sloughing pen-
[Mulaityc™) 1es Al l naaded of in Acoordance with
= Dactnomycin lour tmes ¥ policy.
{actnomycn 0, ity for I lon witt: the physician ar ad-
Cozmoegon®) 24 hous hctico nursa, refar tha pationt

at 2'C-8°C (36'F-46°F)

roroeennized core when indicated ¢f
needed (e.4.. plastic or hand surgery
coniult, physical therapy, pain manage
menl, 1sbabiitation pervices}

Flant akaloids and Apply warm Anteita Hyalrpnidase Admenistar 150 unils of the hyaluroni-
migratubiule rtb- packfor 15 Moachanism of action: DEgraoes hyaluren- dase solulion as five separala injections,
Lo 20 mntdes al it aod and promotes drug disparsion and ezch conlaining 0.2 mi of hyaturoniiase
» Vinblastine laast 4 times absomtion SCinto the eximvasalion site using o
(veltian®) por day o Praparation Avalable hyaluronidasa prepa 25-gaJge or smalles nestla (ehange
» Vincristine Itar first 2325 rations ar nneds wilh aach [njeciion)
(Oneevin®) howurt = Amphadise'™ {hirvne, Dysiurgnidase in- Astese thae entravatation asa for pan,
= Vingielbinn Elewnle extrem jection) (Amghastar Pharmaceuticats, blistar formaticn, and sl sloughing pori-
(Havelhne®” ity (penpher- R005) Vial contains 150 urets per 1 mt odically as needed of in eccordance with
al exirvasa- usa 1 ml of solution. Do not dilute. Usa mstitutional policy.
Lons). solution as provided Slors nrelgeralzt  Instrucl tha patienst o monilor the ealiava

stionr sito (and repul liver. chils, bhiser-
Ny, Gk Kougring. And wersering pain.

fContruned oxt neal pape)

78



Patient Care Servicas

Chemotherapy Extravasation

Page 90of 9

Classilication/Drug

immediate
Topleal Therapy

Table 14. Vesicant Extravasation Management Guldelines (Canllnuéd-_)

Antidote or Treatment

Antldote or Treatment Administration,
Palient Monitering, and Follow-Up

Plant alkaloids and
microlubule inhibi-
tors (cort.)

Taxanes

¢ Docelaxsl
(Taxolere®)

= Paclitaxel
(Taxol)

* Paclitaxel protein-
bound particles
for injeclable
suspension
(Abraxane®)

Apply ice pack
for 15—20 min-
utes al least
4 limes a day
for the first 24
hours.

+_Hylenex® {recombinant, hyaluronidase

Instruct patients with peripheral extravasa-

DELETE

s to report arm or hand swelling and
ness.

laxel extravasalion may cause hyper-
entation, redness, and tendermass
nofi-aventis U.S. LLC, 2007).
axal is a mild vesicant; extravasa-
may cause induralion, blistaring,
rarely tissue necrosis (Bristol-Myers
iibb Co., 2011; Stanford & Hardwicke,
3).
Ln-bound paclitaxel exiravasation
been idenlified during post-approv-
1se and reporled to the manufactur-
t is advisable to monilor 1he infu-
h site clossly for possibla infiliration
I:g administration (Celgene Corp.,
2

).

the extravasation area for pain,

blister formation, and skin sloughing peri-
odically as needed or in accordance with
institutional policy.

Insiruct the patient to monitor the extrav-
asation site and to report tever, chills,
blistering, skin sloughing, and worsen-
ing pain.

Instruct patients with peripheral extravasa-
tions to report arm or hand swetling and
sliffness.

78



&
(cv) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES-ROLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 12/02 SUBJECT: Code Blue Response Plan

| REVISION DATE(S): 11/02, 03/03, 05/05, 05/06, 11/07, ROLICY-NUMBER: N.T

01/08, 01/09, 02/10, 05/11, 03/16

Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 08M17144705/18
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  $2/4444/4708/18
Nursing-Nurse Executive Couneil-Committee Approval:42/4412/1709/18

Department of Emergency Medicine Approval: 01/11602/1810/1842/1802/1904/1907/4911/19
Division of Pulmonary Approval: 03/20

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 0214604/20

Administration Approval: 05/20

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 03446 nl/a

Board of Directors Approval: 03/16

A PURPOSE;

1. To provide a systematic method for responding to a cardiopulmonary emergency on adults or
children age fourteen (14) or older within the hospital and outside of the facility on hospital
property.

B.

DEFINITION(S):

21. Justice Involved Individual: Any il:udividual who is under Iawful. physical arrest/ in the
custody of a Law Enforcement Officer and brought to Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD}
to receive medical care, evaluation, treatment, or admission.

POLICY:

1. A Code Blue shall be called on any apneic and/or pulseless adult or child age fourteen (14) or
older.

2, Any person may initiate a Code Blue by dialing ‘66’ on the telephone. The Operator shall
announce "Code Blue" and the location over the public address (PA) system three (3) times,
twice.
2a. Fora Code Blue in a non-patient care area where crash carts are not readily

available (for example, the Business Administration Building, Human Resources,
Security Buildings and parking areas), staff shall also dial 911 on the telephone to
initiate local Emergency Medical Response (EMR) team.

RESPONSE PLAN ON MAIN CAMPUS-WITHIN-PATIENT-CARE AREAS:

1. Remove the patient from any wet areas or metallic objects to prevent burns and
inappropriate transmission of current.




Patient Care Service b
Code Blue Response Plan Policy

Page 2 of 4

2.

23.

a. Justice Involved Individual: ensure the patient’s metal shackles are removed prior
to defibrillation or emergent cardioversion.

Initial response in non-cardiac monitored areas:

a. Staff shall initiate Basic Life Support (BLS) measures until Code Blue Response Team

arrives.

Initial response in cardiac monitored areas:

a. Staff shall initiate BLS and Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS) measures and
initiatee the Code Blue and Emergency Care Standardized Procedure until the Code
Blue Response Team arrives.

Code Blue response team:

a. The following staff shall respond to the Code Blue (see Attachment-A-~“Shared Mental
Model” for suggested positions around the patient):

iv.

Hkv.

Two (2) Intensive Care Unit (ICU) Code Blue Registered Nurses (RN):

1) Brings Code Blue Cart (contains defibrillator/pacemaker; and ambu
resuscitation bag/mask), and-emergency intubation medications, and
intraosseous insertion kit-} to the scene.

a) If the code blue occurs in the Cardiac Wellness Center, the
responding Code Blue Team members are responsible for
bringing the emergency intubation drugs and intraosseous
insertion Kit only.

2) Initiates and implements the Standardized Procedure for Code Blue and
Emergency Care until the physician arrives.

3) Remain with patient until released by physician or patient is transferred to
receiving unit.

a) Inpatients shall be transferred to the ICU {ntersive-Care-Ynit-or
appropriate level of care based on physician order.

ajb)  Non-inpatients shali be transferred to the Emergency

Department (ED)

4) Ensures-Complete the Emergency Event form in the patient’s electronic
health {EHR}-record (EHR)-is-cempleted.

Emergency Department (ED) Physician:

1) Responds when available and shall be responsible for leading
resuscitative efforts.

Hospitalist:

1) Responds when available and shall be responsible for coordinating
post-resuscitative care

Intensivist:

1) Responds when available and shall be responsible for post-

resuscitative care

4H2) If patient is already in ICU, Intensivist shall respond when present
and shall be responsible for leading resuscitative efforts and
assuming post-resuscitative care

Primary RNNurse-:

1) Remains in room to assure responders have current patient information.

2) Accesses patient's record and assures responders have information
requested (i.e., labs, x-rays, reports).

3) Documents in the EHR:
a) Pre-code assessment findings
b) Interventions implemented prior to Code Blue team arrival

4) Delegate notificationietifies of the family member/significant other and
physicianer-ensures-the-physician-or-roceiving-Registered-Nurse{RN)
retifes-family-member/significant-otherof regarding change in patient

condition.

81



Patient Care Service b

Code Blue Response Plan Policy

Page 3of 4

4)5)  Provide communication to receiving nurse if family
member/significant other and physician have been notified
i-vi. Two (2) Respiratory Care Practitioners;
1) Ventilates patient
2) Obtains arterial blood gases-and “Gede-Blue-lab-panel: as ordered
3) Documents interventions performed on the Emergency Event record
wvii. Electrocardiogram (ECG) Technician:
1) Brings ECG machine
viviii. Lift Team-:
1) Brings gurney and backboard to area
2) Assists with cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR})
3) Transports patient to receiving unit
vikix. Assistant Nurse Manager(ANM)/ Relief Charge Nurse or DesigneeRelief
Sharge-Mursa:

1) Assigrs-recerderrole-i-ret-already-dene-Completes Cardiopulmonary

3)2) Ensures, post code the “medication tray” inside of the crash cart is re-
locked with a secure tie (located in the crash cart) for containment at end
of code

3) Ensures, post Code, the “opened- crash cart is locked with the plastic key
lock externally, is placed in a secured area, and the Sterile Processing
Department (SPD) is notified to pick up the used cart

X. Administrative Supervisor:

1) Ensures only required personnel are positioned around patient and
nonessential personnel are released to their regular duties.

4)2)  Facilitates communication to patient’s family during the code

viikxi. Unit Secretary:

1) Assures patient’s chart is inreem-available as appropriate; phene-is
available-in-reemr-and places call to primary physician as directed

4)2) Other duties as directed by Code Blue Team

bexii. Security Personnel:

1) Maintains scene safety and keeps area clear of congestion

*=xiii. Sterile Processing Department:
1) Sends an adult crash Cart and two infusion pumps to the area invoived
2) Retrieves used crash cart and intubation tray post code

For a Code Blue in non-patient care areas where crash carts are not readily
available:
i. In additions to the above responders, the following will respond:
1) ED Emergency Medical Technicians (EMTs)
a) Brings defibrillator, airway bag, resuscitation bag/mask,
gurney and backboard to the scene
it. TCHD staff will update the EMR team upon their arrival

82



Patient Care Services-Reliey-hanual
Code Blue Response Plan Policy

Page 4 of 4

EE.

RESPONSE PLAN AT AFFILIATED CENTERS:
1.

Examples including but not limited to:

b-a.
&b,
e-c.
e-d.

fe.
g-f.

hg.

th.
.
j.
k.

Home Care

Hospice

Outpatient Behavioral Health Services
Outpatient Rehabilitation Service Center
Outpatient Nuclear Medicine

Outpatient Imaging

Open MRI

Vista Palomar Park Clinic

Wound Care Center

Tri-City Wellness Center: Cardiac Rehab & Qutpatient Rehab
Outpatient Infusion Center

The staff of the above mentioned areas are to initiate BLS measures and call 911 to facilitate
management and transport of the patient to the ED.
The staff in Home Care, Partial Hospitalization, and Qutpatient Rehabilitation Services must

clearly indicate the facilities are located in Vista to ensure the appropriate authorities respond.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.
2.
3.

Patient Care Services Policy: Justice Involved Patients
Patient Care Services Standardized Procedure: Code Blue and Emergency Care
Shared Mental Model: Positions Around The Patient

REFERENCE(S):

1

2.
3.

American Heart Association (20402015). BLS for healthcare providers: Professional Student
Manual.

American Heart Association (AHA) (28482015). Highlights of 2010 AHA guidelines for CPR
American Heart Association (AHA) (20482015). Handbook of emergency cardiovascular care
for healthcare providers.

Pediatric advanced life support (20482015). American Heart Association (AHA).

83



P
@ Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

2/94 SUBJECT: Enteral Feeding and Nourishment
Preparation, Storage, Distribution,
and Administration

REVISION DATE: 04/00; 10/02, 06/03, 07/05, 08/07, POLICY NUMBER—IV-AAZ

05/10, 05/13, 03/17

Patient Care Services Content Expertbepartment Approval: 044703/20
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 02{1704/20
Nursinge LeadershipExecutive-Commitiee Approval: 02/1705/20

Medical Staff Department/Division Approval Date(s): n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 034+ nfa
Board of Directors Approval: 0317

A

PURPOSE:

1.

To assure proper preparation, storage, distribution, and administration of enteral feedings.

POLICY:

1. F

wmm

oA

Food & Nutrition Services is responsible for enteral feedings and nourlshment proparakien;

storage and delivery to nursing units. i

+a. For NICU see Women and Newborn Services NICU: Formula, Preparation and
Storage of

Nursing shall administer enteral feedings and deliver nourishments to patients.

Mest-eEnterai formulas utilized shall be prepared and packaged by various medical nutritional

companies and shall be availabie in cans/cartons -or closed system liter bottles.

Homemade, blenderized formulas shall not be processed at Tri-City Medical Center.

Canned/bottied or closed -er-bettled enteral formulas shall be stored in the nursing pantry

areas upon delivery to the unit.

a. Unused, Qopened cans or liters of formula shall be stored in a refrigerator and
labeled with the a 24 hour expiration date and time. and-time-efexpiration, and

b. Unopened cans of formula shall be stored and discar'ded on manufacturer's expiration
date

Ser\nce workers shall process and gather product for dellvery to nur5|r;g station via food carts
after receiving a tube feeding or nourlshment order via the electronic healthmedl-sal

record-system.

BrRERiSaE.

Closed feeding system hang times shall be according to the labeled manufacturer's

recommendation. Nursing must Bdocument the date and time the container is opened on the

container. Attach Nnew tubing is with-required with each new container.

a. Label feeding system tubing with change day sticker indicating date tubing is to be
changed using numerical day and month.

Formula used in an open system should be changed every eight hours for adult patient and




Patient Care Service i
Enteral Feeding and Nourishment Preparation, Storage, Distribution, and Administration
Page 2 of 2

every four hours for neonates, the tubing and the bag shall be flushed thoroughly with tap water,;
any existing formula shall be discarded and new formula should be added.
| a. Nursing instructions for Qopen system bags- open system bags and tubing should
be changed every 24 hours. Label the open system bag with date and time formula is
first placed in the bag. Label feeding system tubing with change day sticker indicating
date tubing is to be changed using numerical day and month,

o RELATED DOCUMENT(S}:

1. Women and Newborn Services NICU: Formula, Preparation and Storage of

c.D. REFERENCES:
1. ASPEN Guidelines (2012)

I p Iv :F | l _gggsn oy

85



2 - .
(Ci? Tri-City Medical Center DELETE - incorporated into

Oceanside, California

Patient Care Services Policy:
Food Storage on Nursing Units

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 5/78

| REVISION DATE: 4/00, 6/03, 7/05, 4/08, 03/11

Department Approval:

Medical Executive Committee Approval:
Administration Approval:

Professional Affairs Committee Approval:
Board of Directors Approval:

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:
Nursing LeadershipExecutive-Council Approval:
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval:

SUBJECT: Food Brought in from Outside the
Hospital

024702/20
024704/20
0214705/20
n/a
n/a
05/20
0347 nla
03117

86



2
(c‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES ROLIGY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 8/02 SUBJECT: Food Storage on Nursing
UnitsExpiration-Dates

REVISION DATE: 6/03, 7/05, 03/11, 03117 ROLICY-NUMBER:—XI.D

Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 02/20

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  044410/4502/4704/20

Nursing LeadershipExecutive-Counci Approval: 044440/4502/4705/20

Medical Staff Department/Division Approval Date(s): n/a

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 8244 n/a

Administration Approval: 05120

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 034103M7Z nia

Board of Directors Approval: 03140317

A. POLICY:

4+—Food-Sterage-onthe-Nursing Units:
a1, Only patient food should be stored in patlent refrlgerators Food-shal-ret-bastoredina

b-2. Food items shall not be removed from the patlent trays and placed in the patient nutrition
refrigerators.
€3.  Refrigerators designated for food are used for food and food products only.
i-a. All foods without manufacturer's expiration dates shall be dated with an expiration date 3
days from date placed in refrigerator.
#b.  Upon opening any item, it shall be re-dated for 24 hours from opening and discarded on
new expiration date.
iic.  All foods shall be covered or protected during transit.
4. Food brought in from the outside for the patient:
a. Food shall not be contraindicated on the patients diet.
b. Food is to be eaten immediately and not stored.
i. Food prepared outside of the hospital shall not be stored in the patient food
refrigerators.
jil. Any such occurrence will be documented in the patient’s medical record.

87



)
(C”) Tri-City Medical Center

Distibution:
Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

LUMBAR DRAINS, CARE OF

Purpose:

To assist staff in caring for the patient with a lumbar drain. The lumbar drain is a drain
inserted into the subarachnoid space of the spinal column within the levels of T-12 to L-5.
The lumbar drain is placed in order to drain cerebrospinal fluid (CSF) from the spinal
column.

Supportive Data:

The lumbar drain is a specific procedure, which differs from any other type of
neurological drain used within the care system currently and requires specific knowledge.

Equipment: Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)
A.

POLICY:

1. See Online Skill Lumbar Catheter Insertion, Care and Removal with the following exceptions:
4:a.  Only the physician may access the closed system drainage system including obtaining
specimens.
Zh. Removal of Brairs-drains is {performed by the Physician/Interventional Radiologist}
ai.  Cover drain exit site per Physician/Interventional Radiologist order
1) If no orders, place sterile dressing over drain exit site and secure with tape
bii.  Verify with Physician/Interventional Radiologist that the drain is intact. If the drain is
not intact collect drain, tubing and any othér product associated with the drain and
contact Risk Management for instruction on where to send the product for further
evaluation
&iii.  Document removal in medical record
Raison | polckty | hscutt | o | et | et | sameraton | T | owoo
Procedures Counci! or Division Committas Committee Committee
10 0711013:’;3:15. 08’10141;3“5' . ofa 10/1 01‘.]; ;ms. o 11/11&’21115. 12111, 0116

88



Patient Care Servicaes
Lumbar Drains, Care of
Page 2 of 2

G-B. REFERENCES:
1. Elsevier. (2020, 03 26). Lumbar Catheter Insertion, Care and Removal. Retrieved 03 26, 2020,

from Elsevier Skills; https://point-of-
care.elsevierperformancemanager.com/skills/101/extended-text ?skillld=CC_091#scrollToTop

12,

89



)
@ Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

06/13 SUBJECT: Neutropenic Precautions

REVISION DATE: 06/13, 01/17

Patient Care Services Content Approval: 11119
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 07/1812/19
Nurse Executive Council Approval: 07/1602/20
Infection Control Committee Approval: 10/14603/20
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 10/1604/20
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 8147 nia
Board of Directors Approval: 0117
A POLICY:
1. To outline steps for preventing infections in patients with neutropenia.
2. Patients who are identified as neutropenic have the greatest risk for infection
38 Neutropenia is defined as an absolute neutrophil count [ANC] of <500 cells/mL
4. The primary nurse must educate the patient and family on neutropenic precautions.
B. PROCEDURE:
1. If patient has been identified as having an ANC of <500 cells/mL move patient to a private room.
2. Do not place patient in a negative pressure room unless patient requires respiratory isclation for
Airborne Precautions per the Tricity Medical Center's infection control manual.
3. Place sign outside of the patient's room that states “please check in with the nurses’ station
before entering the room”. Never place a sign that states “neutropenia”. This is a Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) violation.
4. Do not allow staff or visitors who have symptoms of respiratory infection to visit or care for patient
5. All visitors:
a. Must be screened for respiratory infections
b. Must perform hand hygiene before entering the patient’s room.
6. Children must be accompanied by a responsible adult (other than the patient) at all imes when
visiting.
a. Only one child may visit at a time.
b. All children must wear a mask if visiting patient.
7. Healthcare team, patient, family and visitors must adhere to neutropenic precautions.
8. Neutropenic Precautions:

a. Hygiene
i All healthcare team members must use standard precautions and do hand hygiene
frequently when caring for neutropenic patients
i Patient must wash hands frequently and ensure they are dried properly
ii. Patient should keep their skin clean and dry at all times (bathe daily)

iv. Patient must protect skin from cuts and burns

V. Patient must perform daily frequent oral care-{atleast-3—4-times-a-day)

vi. Only use an electric shaver to remove hair (no razors).

vii, Patient’s perineal area should be cleansed after voiding and bowel movement
viii. Menstruating women should avoid tampons

ix. Rectal thermometers, enemas, suppositories and rectal examinations are

contraindicated

90



Patient Care Services
Neutropenic Precautions
Page 2 of 2

b. Visitors
i. No visitors with respiratory infections
i. Patient should avoid people with colds or contagious illness such a chicken pox,
herpes zoster or influenza
C. Environment
i No fresh or dried plants and flowers in patient room
i Change the water of any water containers or pitchers and denture cups daily
d. Food/Food Preparation
i. Patient should not eat any foods that have not either been cooked or washed

properly.

#i.  Food items for the patient from the cafeteria must be covered when transported to
the unit for the patient
i, Fruits and vegetables should be well washed before eating
wiv.  Avoid Ne uncooked meats, seafood, and eggs
vi-v, Patient should not share food utensils
e. Vaccinations
i. Influenza and pneumonia vaccinations are recommended
i. Patient should not receive live vaccines such as oral polio, varicella, small pox, or
nasal flu vaccine.
ii. Patient should avoid contact with people who have been vaccinated with a live
virus within the past 30 days
f. Miscellaneous
i. Refrain from providing direct care for pets or farm animals.
i. Avoid contact with animal feces, saliva, litter box contents or barns.
iii. Do not enter or travel through, construction/renovation or where construction
material/debris has been placed or where fields have recently been plowed.

C. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Infection Control Policy: Standard and Transmission Based Precautions

D. REFERENCES:
1. Oncology Nursing Society (2014).Chemotherapy Biotherapy Guidelines and Recommendations
for Practice Third Edition.
2. Oncology Nursing Society (2016) PEP-Preventions of Infection.
3. Infectious Diseases Society of America (IDSA) to guide clinicians in the care of patients with
chemotherapy and induced neutropenia and in the management of febrile neutropenia.
http://cid.oxfordjournals.org/content/52/4/e56 .full.



Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services
PROCEDURE:.  PATIENT CLASSIFICATION (ACUITY)
Purpose: To provide an assessment of the care needs intensity of each patient per shift to assist in

determining the appropriate staffing based on acuity and ratios

Supportive Data; In accordance with the rules and regulations of Title 22 and Joint Commission

A RESPONSIBILITIES:
| 1. Nursing Leadership+he-Managers-Assistant-Nurse-Manager{ANM) or designees isare
responsible to ensure that licensed staff complete Patient Classifications (Acuity) for their patients
each shift.
a. Each patient's classification shouid reflect the patient’s actual care intensity and Activities
of Daily Living (ADL}) needs for the current shift.
2. Nursing is responsible for Patient Classification utilizing the Cerner Acuity Powerform; this
includes Acute Rehab, 1 North, 2 Pavilion, 4 Pavilion, Behavioral Health Unit (BHU), Intensive
Care Unit (ICU), Mother Baby, Neonatal Intensive Care (NICU), Telemetry and Inpatient
Progressive Care Unit (PCU).
3. The Emergency Department and Labor & Delivery will utilize a census based tracking form.
3-4. NICU see: Women and Newborn Services NICU: Patient Assignment NICU
B. PROCEDURE FOR THOSE UTILIZING THE CERNER POWERFORM FOR ACUITY:
1. A task will be triggered each shift a+-1200-and-midright-eash-day-to the nurse assigned to the
patient on their unit.
2. The primary Registered Nurse (RN) is required to complete the acuity on the patient each shift
by-1300-and-8400-or the task will be noted as overdue.
a. There are care intensity and ADL indicators.

i The care Intensity indicator is defined by minimal, moderate, high, 1:1 and 2:1
levels.

ii. The ADL indicator is defined by minimal, moderate and high.

ii. Each care intensity and ADL indicator is unit specific based on the patient
population and has a weight associated to it that assists in determining the acuity
of the patient.

| 3; The Nursing LeadershipANM or designee is responsible to verify that all acuities are completed
each shift.
C. PROCEDURE FOR THOSE UTILIZING CENSUS BASED TRACKING (EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT
| AND LABOR & DELIVERY): -
1. The coder will document on the Acuity Daily Report the Emergency Department census at 0700
and 1900. A daily Emergency Department (ED) Activity Log is generated at 0700 for the previous
24 hours which reflects the total patients seen, Patients Left Without Treatment, ICU admissions
and hospital admissions in the last 24 hours. Emergency Severity Index (ESI) acuity levels are
documented in Firstnet when patients arrive in Triage.
2. The Labor and Delivery Nursing LeadershipANM or designee will document on the Daily
Staffing Sheet the Labor & Delivery census at 0700 and 1900. Fhe-Nursing LeadershipAhM or
designee will fax this 24 hour retrospective report to staffing by 0900 for filing.
| D. INTER-RATER RELIABILITY PROCESS:
1. The purpose of this process is to ensure the consistency among the registered nurses in the
interpretation and use of the Patient Classification (Acuity) powerform.
| Clinical Nursing | Medical Staff | Pharmacy& | Medical 4 Professional
PR | frolclest, | Gracuive | Otpecivent | Thormpeules | Eucuv | Sy || A bicios
| 11/10% gzne. 121102:‘." _%ns. 1211&2;116, . . 42, va D820 04]136128116. 0413, 08116

92



Patient Care Services
Patient Classification {Acuity)

Page 2 of 2
2.
3.
E.

Each shift the Charge Nurse ANM-or designee will complete an Acuity Validation on patients
within their department.

Gara-Ynit-
This information will be monitored on a monthly basis and reported as appropriate.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

31,

Women and Newborn Services NICU: Patient Assignment NICU

93



@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 02101 SUBJECT: Safe Surrender

REVISION DATE(S): 05/02, 05/03, 04/04, 12/05, 09/06,

11/09, 02/13, 04/14, 03/18

Patient Care Services Content ExpertDepastment Approval: 144+02/20
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  42/4703/20

Nursing Executive Committee: 044804/20

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 02/1804/20
Administration Approval: a5/20

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 03/48 nla

Board of Directors Approval: 03/18

A PURPOSE:

1. To provide guidance for Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD)} employees accepting custody of
newborns up to 72 hours old who are voluntarily surrendered by a parent or other person with
legal custody.

2. To implement the requirements of the Safely Surrendered Baby Law.
POLICY:
1. In compliance with Senate Bill 1368, TCHD has designated the Emergency Department (ED) as

the safe surrender site within the facility and the employees on duty in the ED to receive
abandoned newborns.

2. Any officer, employee or medical staff member on duty at the hospital must accept physical
custody of an abandoned newborn up to 72 hours old.
3. No person or entity that accepts a surrendered newborn will be subject to civil, criminal, or

administrative liability for accepting and caring for the child in the good faith belief that action is
reguired or authorized by this law. This includes situations where the child may actually be older
than 72 hours, or where the surrendering person did not have lawful physical custody of the
infant.

84. The consent of the parent or other relative surrendering the newborn is not required for the

Medical Screening Exam (MSE).

6:5. Newborns abandoned in accordance with law are eligible for MediCal coverage.
6. When a newborn is surrendered, the registered nurse (RN) will:

a. Follow ED Standard for triage of patients using Baby Doe-A MSE and any necessary
medical care must be provided. (See Administrative Policy: EMTALA: Emergency
Medical Screening 5086)

a:b. Document number of coded newborn bracelet and matching coded ID arm
bracelet of the person surrendering the newborn, as well as any information the
surrendering individual provided regarding newborn. (i.e. age, health history, or
other pertinent information.)

b-c.  Access an abandoned newborn packet (Stered-inthe-Located at ED Triage, Charge
Desk, and Radio Room.)

i. Contents of the packet must include a coded, confidential identification (ID) ankle
bracelet; a matching coded arm ID bracelet; a coded, confidentially identified
family medical history questionnaire (English and Spanish versions); campaign

94



Patient Care Services

Safe Surrender
Page 2 of 2

&-7.

H-10.

brochure and law fast facts sheet (English and Spanish) and a stamped envelope
addressed to TCHD.
Place the coded ID bracelet on the newborn.
Make a good faith effort to give the matching coded ID arm bracelet to the person
surrendering the newborn. This will facilitate reclaiming the infant later.
ef.  Make a good faith effort to give the person surrendering the newborn a coded,
confidential family medical history questionnaire, campaign brochure, law fast facts
sheet, and a stamped addressed envelope.
tg.  Notify Child Protective Services (CPS) of the surrender as soon as possible and in no
event later than 48 hours. CPS must assume temporary custody of the newborn
immediately on receipt of notification, and must mvestlgate
gh. Notify Social Services Department. Send-a e
keeping-statisties.
If a person surrendering a newborn request that TCHD returns the newborn to her/him, the
hospital must do so if TCHDit still has custody and if the dependency petition has not been filed.
Contact Administration or Legal Services prior to returning newborn.
If a health practitioner at TCHD reasonably suspects that the child has been the victim of abuse
or neglect, he/she must notify CPS rather than returning the child. Voluntary surrender of a
newborn in accordance with law is not in and of itself a basis for reporting abuse or neglect. The
statute does not provide immunity from personal injury or wrongful death, including malpractice
claims. Legal counsel should be consulted immediately with questions.
If a dependency petition has already been filed through CPS, the person surrendering the
newborn may reclaim the child within fourteen (14) days of the surrender. If TCHD still has
physical custody of the newborn, a copy of the court order should be obtained, reviewed, and
referred to legal counsel before releasing the child.
Any identifying information that pertains to a parent or individual who surrenders a newborn
pursuant to the Safely Surrendered Baby Law that is obtained as a result of the questionnaire or
in any other matter, must not be disclosed by any personnel of a Safe Surrender site that
accepts custody of an infant.

58

C. EXTERNAL LINK(S):

1.

2.

3.
4.

Safely Surrendered Baby Medical Questionnaire -

English: http://mwww.cdss.ca.gov/cdssweb/entres/forms/English/SOC861.pdf

Safely Surrendered Baby Medical Questionnaire —

Spanish http://www.cdss.ca.govicdssweb/entres/forms/Spanish/SOC861SP.pdf

Safely Surrendered Baby Campaign Brochure http://www.cdss.ca.qov/Portals/9/FMUForms/M-
P/PUB400.pdf?ver=2017-10-26-110106-193

Safely Surrendered Baby Law Fast Facts —

English htip://www.cdss.ca.gov/Portals/9/OCAP/PDFs/Fact%20Sheets/2 ENG SSBFactSheet.
pdf?ver=2017-09-05-161625-780

Safely Surrendered Baby Law Fast Facts —

Spanish http://www.cdss.ca.gov/Portals/9/OCAP/PDFs/Fact%20Sheets/Fast%20Facts%20SP.p
df?ver=2017-09-05-161628-437

D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.

Administrative Policy: EMTALA: Emergency Medical Screening 506

E. REFERENCE(S):

1.

2.
3.

California Hospital Association (20194%). California Hospital Consent Manual. Sacramento, CA:
Callifornia Hospital Association.

Safely Surrendered Baby Law; Senate Bill No. 1368, Chapter 824

Cal. Health and Safety Code (HSC} § 1255.7 (1973).

95



Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services
PROCEDURE: TRANSPORTING VENTLATOR-PATIENTS ON A VENTILATOR

Purpose:

Supportive Data:

Establlsh a standard of care for transpomng sentrnueus—ventllator patuents.

Equipment:

Manual resuscitator bag with reservoir

mask and PEEP attachment (if needed)

pulse oximeter

ETCO2 monitoring and cardiac monitor depending on patient's condition
Full oxygen cylinder

gas source in the area to which patient is being transported

Suction source in the area to which patient is being transported
Transport vent, if applicable.

e e o e

A PROCEDURE:

1. Registered Nurses (RNs) and Respiratory Care Practitioners (RCPs) competent to care for
the-ventilated patients are authorized to perform this procedure.
2. Two people are required to transport a ventilater-patient on a ventilator;-; one being a
qualified RN and RGRthe other must be a RCP/anesthesiologist.
3. The responsibilities of the RCP shall include:
a. Ensure a resuscitator bag and mask is available.
b. Ensure adequate oxygen in cylinder for transport.
c. Attach a PEEP valve to the resuscitator bag or the transport vent if greater than 5 cmH20
PEEP is required-is.
d. Attach resuscitation bag or transport ventilator to the patient, ventilating patient at
previously noted rate and minute volume.
d-e. Maintain airway security and patency during transport.
f. Csonnect ventilator to oxygen and air gases (as applicable) and plug into
electrical Power source Atat destination and upon returning to unit,. All vents
should be plugged into red emergency power outlets unless none available.;
e-qg. Ensure ventilator is functioning properly and patient is being adequately ventilated.
gh. Provide the RN with RCP pager—number—er- cell phone number.
ki, Document in-the-medicalrecerd both the transport and the ventilator check in
the electromc health record (EHR)
4. The responsibilities of the RN shall include:
a. Oversee the transport.
b. Ensure cardiac monitoring, pulse oximetry monitoring and ETCO2 monitoring
(as applicable) during the transport to ensure patient safety.
DatesPatient Sinice) Nursing-Nurse Pharmacy & Medical Professional
Care Servicas P':g::::::rg‘s Executive g::;'ms'::;; Therapeutics | Executive | Administration Affairs I?Ior:;tdo:;
%:r:::t Committees GounsiiCommittee Committee Committee Committee
7188,7/97,7/03,
s | o | S| e [, [ e | T |
214903119

96



Patient Care Services
Transporting Ventilator Patients Procedure
Page 2of 2

Stay with the patient throughout the procedure unless a qualified RN is present
(i.e.: Interventional Radiology, Cardiac Cath Lab).

b-d. Monitor patient safety at all times.

&-e Document inthe-medisalreserd-the transport and all applicable vital signs in
the EHR.

5

B. REFERENCE(S):
1. AARC Clinical Practice Guideline {RespirCare 2002), Intra-hospital transport of

Critically Ili ventilated patients; 2005 Nov
2. Critical Care Medicine, Guidelines for the inter- and intra-hospital transport of

critically ill patients; 2004 Jan

RIS e L

4, Egan's Fundamentals of Respiratory Care, 2017, 11" edition, pgs 1013-1014.

Z.5. Respiratory Care, Blakeman, TC; Inter-and Intra- Hospital transport of the Critically
N, June 2013 pgs. 1008-1023..

97



2
@ Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

ULTRASOUND GUIDED PERIPHERAL INTRAVENOUS (IV) ACCESS

Purpose:

To outline the process of insertion of peripheral IV catheters with ultrasound guidance by
appropriately trained and competent Registered Nurses

Supportive Data:

See References

Equipment:

1. IV supplies per standard peripheral IV protocol. Note: A longer length of catheter
may be needed.

Portable Ultrasound machine

Probe cover

Sterile water based gel

Local anesthetic (optional)

LA LN

Issue Date:

-NEW-OZHG

A. POLICY

1.

Ultrasound is an aid to placement of a peripheral intravascular venous (IV) access.

a. Appropriate patient and site selection using ultrasound remains the same as the traditional
landmark approach.

To be used for those patients with difficult access (more than two unsuccessful attempts), or

those with anticipated difficult access (patients with obesity, edema, hypovolemia, or history of

repeated venipuncture).

B. PROCEDURE:

1.

Insertion

a. Place tourniquet

b. Perform preliminary ultrasound scan to find preferred site and adjust machine settings

c. Release tourniquet

d. Prepare the probe with application of a small amount of gel then apply probe cover.

e. Scrub area of insertion (about 3 inches in diameter from selected site) with chlorhexidine.
f; Reapply tourniquet

g. Apply sterile gel distal to the site of insertion

h. Apply the probe onto the gel and slide proximally while identifying the vein. Attempt to

maintain sterility of the catheter and prepared site. The insertion site should be dry and

free of gel.

Inject 1% lidocaine without epinephrine (local anesthetic) under skin at point of catheter

puncture srte as needed |f ordered by physrman er—per—Pahent—Gare—Semees
peertions—(optional step)

j. lnsert catheter per OnllneMesbys-Nefaeg Skllls Intravenous Therapy Initiation.

k. Apply dressing per standard peripheral IV protocol.

Documentation

a. Document insertion of peripheral IV in the IVIEW Peripheral [V section.

b. Document use of ultrasound for IV placement, catheter size, length, location

And site condition.

C. RELATED DOCUMENTS

1.

OnlineMesby's-Nursing-Skills Intravenous Therapy: Initiation

D. REFERENCE(S):

1.

Constantino, T et al. Ultrasonography-Guided Peripheral Intravenous Access Versus Traditional
Approaches in Patients With Difficult Intravenous Access. Annals of Emergency Medicine 2005,

46(5):456-461.
Desartmert | popicel, Nurse | Medical Staff | Pharmacy & Medical Admini | Professional | o .
Igevi P Procaduree Executive Departmant | Therapeutics Exacutive stration Affairs Directors
Committee or Division Commitiee Committee Committee
Committee
06/15, 11119 09/15, 1219 | 09/15, 02120 n/a 11/15, 03/20 01/16, 04/20 05/20 02116, nfa 02/18

98



Patient Care Sarvicas
Ultrasound Guided Periphera! Intravenous Access

Page 2 of 2

2.

Doniger, S et al. Randomized Controlled Trial of Ultrasound-Guided Peripheral Intravenous
Catheter Placement Versus Traditional Technigues in Difficult Access Pediatric Patients.
Pediatric Emergency Care 2009, 25(3)154-159.

Miles, G et al. Implementation of a Successful Registered Nurse Peripheral Ultrasound-Guided
Intravenous Catheter Program in an Emergency Department. Journal of Emergency Nursing
2012; 38(4):353-356.

White, A et al, Developing and Sustaining an Ultrasound-Guided Peripheral Intravenous Access
Program for Emergency Nurses. Advanced Emergency Nursing Journal 2010, 32(2):172-188.

99



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

3/02

SUBJECT: Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns

REVISION DATE: 6/03; 8/05; 5/06; 8/08; 6/09; 7/12 POLICY NUMBER: VIILA

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  08/1604/20
Nursing LeadershipExecutive-Gommittee Approval:  08/1605/20

‘ Patient Care Services Content ExpertDepartment Approval: 08/1602/20

Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: nfa
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
I Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 1016 nia
Board of Directors Approval: 11/16
| A. POLICY:
1. Staffing patterns shall follow mandatory state regulations. In addition, patient acuity shall be
assessed to ensure appropriate staffing levels.
| 2. The Nursing LeadershipBiresteriManager has accountability for staffing and work schedules.
3. Nursing staff to assist the Registered Nurse (RN) in the provision of patient care may be utilized

as follows:

Admlnlstratlve Supervisor (AS):

a.

iv.

Assumes responsibility for supervision of staff as a representative of
Administration.

Assumes administrative authority for the level of patient care and standards of
care.

Acts as liaison between all hospital staff, patients, families, physicians, directors,
and administration for routine administrative decisions for their shift.

Manages internal and external supplemental staff in the absence of the Director,
Education, Clinical Informatics, and Staffing.

Charge NurseAssistant-Nurse-Manager{ANMY/designee:

Works under the dlrectlon of the Nursing LeadershipClinical-Nurse/Operations

Oversees direct and indirect patient care assignments.
Ensures patient care assignments are in writing and based on the following:

1) Patient - Level of care (intensity of care needs, treatments, and
medications, as determined by the Patient Classification System).
2) Environment: unit geography, location of assigned patients in relation to

each other, and safety,

3) Technology: hemodynamic equipment, respiratory support equipment,
and frequency of required monitoring activities.

4) Supervision: staff competence, skills/abilities, staff mix, and workload
ability.

5) Competency of delegating RN to carry out clinical and managerial
responsibilities.

6) Availability of delegating RN for appropriate supervision of assigned staff
in relation to activity of unit and patient assignment of charge personnel.

7 Regular staff members are responsible for overseeing students, per diem,
registry staff, and orientees.

100



Patient Care Services Rolicy-Manual
Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns —HA:

Page 2 of 3

iv. Document patient assignments each shift and include the following:

1) Name of Charge NurseAssistani-Nurse-Manager/designee.

2) Name of RN responsible to supervise and/or orient any RN or non-RN
personnel performing patient care, students, registry or traveler staff, or
private duty nurses.

3) Name of each caregiver by licensure category and specific assignments
listed by individual patient.

4) Assigned break coverage for each licensed staff member to ensure
minimum staffing ratios are maintained at all times.

a) Documentation of break coverage shall include specific time of
break relief.
b) The same licensure or higher is required for break relief coverage.
V. Cerner staff assignment information will be electronically maintained in the
“Staffing Acuity” shared drive folder.
c. Registered Nurse (RN):

i. Works under the direct supervision of the Charge Nurse, Nursing
LeadershquMmaLMwse—Manager—Aserstant—Nmse—Manag&sldesngnee
ii. Plans, supervises, and evaluates the care of all patients by using the nursing
process.
d. Procedural Nurse:
i. RN whose primary responsibility is to assist with invasive procedures.
1) Additional duties may be assigned by the Clinical Manager/designee
based on the hospital needs.
ii. If census and activity is low throughout the day, staff may be flexed.
e. Unit Secretary (US):
i. A clerical worker who enters information into the computer system and assists
with reception duties.
ii. The US works under the direction of the RN and is supervised by a charge nurse
or clinical manager on duty.
f. Monitor Technician:
i. A trained personnel who has demonstrated competency in recognition of cardiac
arrhythmias.
i Works under the direction of the RN and is supervised by an ANM or designee
on duty.
g. CNAJACT/Nursing AssistantiMental-Health-Werker{MEWY:
i. A trained personnel who has been taught to perform tasks involving direct care
services for patients.
i Works under the direction of the RN and is supervised by a Charge Nurse A
ANM or designee on duty.
h. Technicians:
i. A trained personnel who demonstrates competency in caring for patients in
designated area of specialty.
ii. Works under the direction of the RN and is supervised by the ANM or designee
on duty.
i. Psychiatric Ligison:

i A trained personnel (for example licensed MFT/LCSW) who is primarily
responsible to complete ERS-patient assessments and provides eemplete-crisis
intervention, including admission/transfer to an appropriate level of care-Grisis

Heuse«and—eanat-lent—BehaweﬁaLHeak-h-Um{—#as necessary

Volunteers, student nurses, patient-acquired private duty st.aff. externs, and patient safety
technicians may be utilized per policies.
Shift-To-Shift Staffing (if applicable)

101



Patient Care Services Reli

Relisy-anual
Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns LA

Page 3of 3
a.

Acuity Measurement - A Patient Classification assessment is conducted once per shift

for patients in all nursing units.

i Labor & Delivery & Emergency Department are excluded and utilize census only
numbers.

The Charge Nurse Assistant-Nurse-Manager/designee ensures all Patient Classification

are completed for their units by 1400 and 0200.

The Assistapt-Charge Nurse Nurse-Manager/designee then completes the staffing

needed for the next shift based on the acuity of the patients, minimum staffing ratios and

the expected patient volume.

This information is communicated to the Staffing Office.

Staffing Office Representatives shall place calls as requested by the Administrative

Supervisor or designee.

After all TCMC available resources have been effectively utilized, the Charge

NurseAssistant-Nurse-Manager/designee shall evaluate staffing the units using the

TCMC tool.

i Staffing needs or staffing reductions due to periods of decreased census and
patient requirements shall be coordinated by the Staffing Office, Managers,
Directors, and/or Administrative Supervisors. This includes ensuring rotations are
fair and equitable and specialized unit needs are covered.

| B. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1. Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Allied Health Students in the Patient Care Areas
2. PCS Policy: Nursing Students in Patient Care Areas
3. PCS Palicy: Volunteers, Patient Care Services Departments

102



(C%)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

| ISSUE DATE:

06/0805/92 SUBJECT: Visiting Guidelines

| REVISION DATE: 05/92, 09/94, 10/96, 01/99, 05/02, POEA B EER—fs0—201

05/03, 12/03, 12/05, 07/07, 02/09,
03/11, 07/14

Clinical Policy & Procedures Committee Approval: 844704/20

‘ Patient Care Services Content ExpertDepartment Approval:  42/1602/20

Nursinge LeadershipExecutive-Gouneil Approval: 02H1705/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a

l Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: @347 nla
Board of Directors Approval: 03117

| A PURPOSE:

1.

To promote patient and family focused care in a healing environment while maintaining patient
and staff safety, privacy and infection control measures.

B. POLICY:
1. Visiting is determined by the healthcare needs of the patient.

a. Family members/significant others are encouraged to participate in care planning
through regular interaction with the patient and the health care team.

b. Limitations may need to be made due to the clinical condition of the patient or at the
patient's request.

2. Recognizing the positive contribution made by patients’ family/significant others: the Medical

Center is open for visiting 24 hours a day.

3 Special Considerations: Visiting hours may be restricted for medical or emergency situations. Al
exceptions or restrictions are at the discretion of the Chief Nurse Executive or designee.

a. Aduit supervision is required for children in all areas of the facility. Visitors under the age
of 14 must be accompanied at all times by an adult other than the patient when visiting a
patient unit,

b. To provide privacy and confidentiality, visitors may be requested to wait in designated
waiting areas during physician examinations, nursing care, and the performance of tests
or procedures,

C. In order to allow opportunity for medical care to be provided and to ensure adequate rest
and privacy for patients.

i. In rooms with adjoining beds (semi-private), 2 visitors per patient at a time are
allowed.

d. To ensure patient safety and infection control, family members/significant others and
visitors are not aliowed in the bed with a patient; nor allowed in an unoccupied patient
care bed.

4, The following areas have special visiting policies. Visitors must check in at the nursing station in

the following departments:

a. Intensive Care Unite

b. Womens and& Children's-Newbornls Services
(o Neonatal Intensive Care Unit

d. Emergency Department

103



Patient Care Services
Vislling Guidslines, 8610-301
| Page 2 of 2

fe.  Surgical Services
(o} Visitor responsibilities include but are not limited to:

a. Observing the visiting hours for the area that they are visiting and leaving the patient
room or care area when asked by hospital staff.

b. Refraining from behavior that may cause annoyance, inconvenience and/or lack of
consideration and assisting with the control of noise and the number of visitors.

C. Consideration of the rights of patients and hospital staff by treating them with courtesy
and respect.

d. Maintenance of patient confidentiality and privacy.

e. Refrain from damaging or removing any article or property belonging to TCMC.

f. Refrain from bringing any food, alcohol or medications to the patient without prior
approval from the physician.

g. Reporting any concerns or complaints to the -Charge Nurse, Aesistzathlopse Mesagar
Nursing LeadershipManager or designee.

h. Use hand sanitizer or soap and water to wash hands.

6. Violent or aggressive behavior by visitors:

a. The hospital will not tolerate violence or aggression by visitors towards staff, patients or
other visitors.

b. The following items and behaviors are prohibited at TCMC:
i. Alcohalic beverages
ii. Disruptive or violent behavior
iii. Smoking/electronic smoking devices
iv. Street drugs
v, Weapons (see Administrative Policy: Weapons on Medical Center Campus #

284)
(% For the safety of our patients, visitors and staff - visitors who do not comply with safe

conduct regulations may be asked to leave or will be escorted off hospital grounds.

C. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Administrative Policy:: Weapons on Medical Center Campus 284

104



@)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE RPOLICY-MANUAL
DISTRICT OPERATIONS

ISSUE DATE:

06/94 SUBJECT: Control of Locks and Keys

REVISION DATE: 05/03; 02/06; 01/09; 02/11; 06/14 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-243

03/17

Administrative Content ExpertBepartment Approval: 82/1703/20
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 02/4704/20
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approvat: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 0347 n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 03117

A.

PURPOSE:

1.

To set forth a uniform and systematic control for locks and keys at Tri-City Healthcare District
(TCHD).

POLICY:

1.

2.

All locks and keys at Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) are the responsibility of the Director of

Facilities or designee.

Locks:

a. All door locks in TCMC shall be keyed to the same master keyed system and shall comply
with all applicable codes and standards.

b. Door locks are to be keyed or re-keyed only by approval of the Department Director,
Director of Facilities or designee, or area Executive.

c. Ofisite door locks are managed through the Engineering Department.

d. Any lock that is removed from the Master Key MUST be approved by the Chief Executive
Officer or Area Vice President.

Keypad combination locks are to be used only where absolutely necessary such as the number of

keys to be issued would be impractical. All applicable codes and standards shall be adhered to

for installation of keypad combination locks.

a. Keypad combinations for door locks will be coordinated whenever possible provided
hospital security is not compromised.

b. Department Directors or Managers shall be responsible to ensure the integrity of the door
code, and to change/update the code whenever there is a potential security risk.

a. Keys will be issued to employees on an as needed basis upon approval of the Key
Request form by Department Director or Manager, Director of Facilities or designee, Area
Vice President or CEQ.

b. Keypad combinations and keys for medical staff will be distributed through the Medical
Staff Office.

c. All keys and keypad combinations issued to physicians and employees are to remain
protected/confidential with the physician/employee and are not to be shared with anyone
else.

d. Any employee who terminates employment or transfers to another Department shall turn-
in the keys with exiting Department Director or Manager who will notify Engineering
Department,

Electronic access control systems: The proximity card readers can only be installed with the

approval of the CEO or COO.

105



@’) Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE ROLICY-MANUAL
DISTRICT OPERATIONS

ISSUE DATE:

01/87 SUBJECT: Equipment/Medical Device
Reporting/Sequestering

REVISION DATE: 12/91, 08/94, 05/96, 01/99, 05/02, POLICY NUMBER: 8610-201

02/03, 04/06, 02/11, 08/14

Department Approval: 04/17
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 04/17
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: nfa
Administration Approval; 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 06147 nfa
Board of Directors Approval: 06/17

A PURPOSE:

1.

To assure that safe medical device reporting/sequestering is implemented. To assure that
medical devices on the market are safe and effective through user facility reporting,
identification, tracking and corrective actions. For purposes of this policy, the Risk Manager is
designated as the hospitals official contact for the Food and Drug Administration (FDA).

B. DEFINITIONS:

1.

Patient - A "patient" of a facility is (1) an individual being diagnosed, or treated, or receiving
medical care under the auspices of the facility, from medical personnel working in, for or who
are otherwise affiliated with a device user facility; or (2) an employee of the facility who suffers
death, serious iliness, or serious injury from a device used at or by the facility, and, as a
consequence, becomes a patient.

Affiliated — Affiliated is defined to include medical personnel who are associated with a device
user facility and is interpreted to include physicians with admitting privileges.

Medical Device — An instrument, apparatus, implement, machine, contrivance, implant, in vitro
reagent, or other similar or related article, including any component, part or accessory which is:
a. Not a drug or biologic.

b. Recognized in the official national formulary, or the USP, or any supplement to them.

c. Intended for use in the diagnosis of disease or other conditions, or in the cure,
mitigation, treatment or prevention of disease, in man or other animals, or;

d. Intended to affect the structure of any function of the body, or other animals, and which

does not achieve its primary intended purposes through chemical action within, or on,
the body of man or other animals; and which is not dependent upon being metabolized
for the achievement of its primary intended purposes.
i, (Per Safe Medical Devices Act (SMDA} 1990 and Medical Device Amendments,
1992)
Examples of Devices — Anesthesia machines, defibrillators, pacemakers, hemodialysis
machines, heart valves, catheters, thermometers, patient restraints, contact lenses, hearing
aids, blood glucose monitors, x-ray machines, tampons, ventilators, wheelchairs, bedside
commodes, infusion pumps, laser, electrosurgery, etc.
Serious liiness and Serious Injury — An iliness or injury that a) is life threatening, b) results in
permanent impairment of a body function or permanent damage to a body structure, ¢)
necessitates immediate medical or surgical intervention to preclude permanent impairment of a
body function or permanent damage to a body structure.

106



Administrative Policy- District Operations
Equipment/Medical Device Reperling/Sequestering 8610-201

Page 20of 4
C. POLICY:
1. In compliance with Safe Medical Devices Act, all incidents that reasonably suggest that there is

a probability that a medical device or user error caused or contributed to a death, serious illness
or serious injury of a patient or employee of the facility, will be reported to the appropriate
persons and/or organization.

D. STAFF RESPONSIBILITY:
1. In the event of a patient death, serious injury or iliness, whether it is due to equipment/product
failure or user error the staff member responsible for the patient shall follow these procedures.

a. Immediately notify the Department Director or Supervisor of the occurrence who will then
notify Administration and Risk Management.

b. Immediately sequester the equipment/product.

c. Preserve evidence.

d. Maintain control settings as existed at the time of injury (if applicable), i.e., power
settings, gas flow
i. Device is not to be cleaned or processed.

ii. Universal precautions to be used in handling all accessory components, or
related equipment.
iii. Device will be kept intact for impoundment.
2. Sequestering the Equipment/Device (to preserve evidence):

a. Notify Biomedical Engineering of equipment failure. Notify Risk Management of all
sequestering, whether a product or equipment.

b. Maintain the equipment/device in a secure place under the care of an individual who will
be able to testify that the device has been preserved in its original condition until
arrangements are made with Risk Management for further safekeeping through off-site
or on-site storage as needed.

c. When the decision to sequester is made, the equipment/supplies shall be disconnected
from the patient and power supply without changing any control settings or turning the
equipment off (if possible). No cleaning or processing of the equipment/supplies shall
occur until the Risk Manager has identified if these processes will hinder subsequent
investigation. All equipment and associated supplies shall be preserved as found. The
equipment/supplies will be sequestered by the user department, biomedical engineer, or
Risk Manager as appropriate.

d. Whenever any piece of equipment is to remain sequestered, the Department Director
will provide for replacement of the equipment and notify physicians who use this
equipment.

i. Preserve original packaging of the device if possible.
e. Complete Quality Review Report, which includes:
i. Name of patient
i Date and time of patient injury
iii. Description of event in detail and patient outcome
iv. Description of malfunction and condition of device upon removal
v. Biomed Data Control number if possible and manufacturer, model name, serial or
lot number
vi. Verification of notification to supervisor
vii. Notations of settings as existed at the time of injury

f. Risk Management and Biomedical Engineering (if equipment) will determine if the
product/equipment is to be returned to the manufacturer (if patient injury).

g. Equipment, instruments or supplies potentially involved in a patient's adverse

occurrence are not to be returned to the manufacturer, or discarded until authorization is
given by the Risk Manager.

E. RISK MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT REPORTING RESPONSIBILITY:

107



Administrative Policy- District Operations
Equipment/Medical Device Reporting/Saquestering 8610-201

Page 3 of 4
1.
2.
F.

Risk Management will report patient deaths, serious illness and injury or user error resulting
from a medical device to the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) within 10 work days,
California Department of Public Health (CDPH) within 5 days, and to the manufacturer, if known.
The Risk Management Director will also notify the professional liability carrier and
Administration.

REPORTING SCHEDULE:

1.

1

A facility will be treated as first becoming aware of information when medical personnel, who are
employed by or otherwise formally, affiliated with the facility, become aware of information with
respect to a device in the course of their duties.

The Risk Manager shall determine if the event is reportable under the SMDA. Reports will be
sent to:

a. The manufacturer of the device for incidents involving serious iliness, serious injury, or
death.
b. The FDA if the event resulted in death or for any serious outcome where the

manufacturer is unknown,
If determined to be reportable, the Medwatch Form 3500A will be completed by the Risk
Manager according to SMDA regulations, starting from when the hospital first became aware
that the device may have caused or contributed to the event.
Each device user facility is required to submit to FDA, on a semiannual basis (January 1 and
July 1), a summary of the reports that it has submitted to the FDA and to manufacturers. If no
reports have been submitted, no summary need be sent.
Reporting Format: The Risk Management Director will, at a minimum, include information such
as the identity of the reporting facility, product name, model, serial number, name of
manufacturer, if known, and a description of the event.
The Risk Manager shall be responsible for maintaining a separate “File of Device Reportable
Incidents.” See Attachment A

U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) CONTACT WITH THE HOSPITAL:

If an FDA inspector visits the hospital for any purpose related to medical devices, he/she will be
directed to the Risk Manager. The Risk Manager will ask for, review, and record the inspector's
credentials prior to providing requested information.

Wiritten or telephone inquiries from FDA representatives will be directed to the Risk Manager for
response.

RELATED DOCUMENTATFACHMENT(S):

1.

Tri City Medical Device Incident Flow Chart

REFERENCE:

AP

Administrative Policy #501, Adverse Events, Mandatory Reporting of

Medical Device Amendments, 1992

Patient Care Services Patient Owned/Supplied Equipment Brought into the Facility

The Safe Medical Device Act 1990 (SMDA), Medical Device Reporting for User Facilities.
Retrieved from: hitps://www.fda.gov/downloads/MedicalDevices/.../UCM095266.pdf

108



Administrative Policy- District Operations
Equipment/Medical Davice Reporting/Sequestering 8610-201
Page 4 of 4

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL DEVICE INCIDENT FLOW CHART

Incident with patient
involving medical

device

b A

Stabilize patient

Did incident cause
serious illness, injury
or death to
the patient?

___’(Submit Quality Review
L Report

Yes X
\ 4
Call Department Director/ Is device equi nt
Risk Management ora em?;:,!::;a with
immediately P I packaging
{
- "'
EQUIPMENT -~ 3 iz, EQUIFMENT ]
/" Is device equipment
Call Biomed 4——H ~ ora product? J ¥ Submit Quality
S~ ;- EQUIPMENT REPORT Lo
S~ Risk Management
L]
| PRODUCT EQUIPMENT
4
Y
Secure equipment S Quality Review
call Biomed Ul IR
) Risk Management
¥ o= X
. ;
Conduct Secure Product &
investigation with 4—————— Notify Supply Chain
key departments J Management
v
Y Y e ¥
Report filed with * Processed by Processed
manufacturer by Equipment repaired Surgery / Supply by
Risk Management or sent to Chain Management Risk
manufacturer department Management

vy

109



@) Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY MANUAL
DISTRICT OPERATIONS

ISSUE DATE: 01/81 SUBJECT: Helicopters on District Property
REVISION DATE:  05/89; 08/93; 10/97; 10/99; 05/03; POLICY NUMBER: 8610-207
01/09; 09/10; 06/14
Administrative Content ExpertBepartment Approval: 021703720
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 02/4704/20
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval; nia
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 0347 nla
Board of Directors Approval: 03117
A PURPOSE
1. To maintain a safe environment for all personnel on the helipad.
B. POLICY
1. The patient's physician shall request helicopter transport.
2. Departments requesting helicopter transport shall notify the Emergency Department (ED) as to
the estimated time of arrival.
3. The Emergency Department (ED) Mobile Intensive Care Nurse (MICN) shall make appropriate in-
house arrangements for landing and take off.
4, The ED MICN shall be notified by the Aeromedical Dispatcher of helicopter landing.

a. The ED MICN shall notify Security via the radio in radio room of estimated time of arrival
of helicopter.

b. The Security Department will respond to the elevator alcove (and must turn off air
handlers temporarily by pushing red button) to standby in case the fire suppression
system needs to be activated. The elevator shall be kept in the locked position, available
to the flight crew.

i. If the patient is incoming, an ED technician shall meet the helicopter with a gurney,
oxygen tank and L.V. pole and, when directed, assist the flight crew in the transfer
of the patient and equipment.

o8 The following safety rules shall be followed at all times.

a.
b.

c.

No running on the helipad.

Doors to the helipad shall remain closed at all times (except during patient transfers to or
from the helicopter).

Visitors are not allowed on the helipad unless accompanied by the flight crew or TCMC
Security personnel.

Gurneys with mattresses, linens, or IV poles are not permitted within 50 feet of the aircraft
when the blades are turning. Make sure all loose objects (i.e., MAST suits; debris) are
secured on the helipad.

Oxygen cylinders must be properly secured at all times (designated cylinder cart or
underneath the gurney in the cylinder slot). At no time may cylinders be left unsecured.
Wait for the pilot's approval before approaching or exiting the aircraft. Approach or exit the
aircraft from the front in view of the pilot.

Do not approach the helipad until the aircraft has landed on or lifted off the pad.

Do not approach or exit the aircraft when the blades are turning. Do not allow ancillary
personnel to approach the aircraft until the rotors have stopped turning.

Tri City Medical Center heliport weight restriction for all medical air transportation is 10k

110



Administrative Policy - District Operations
Helicopters on District Property
Page 2 of 2

pounds maximum with a blade diameter of no more than 36 feet.

m



@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE-ROLICY-MANUAL
DISTRICT OPERATIONS

ISSUE DATE: 07/86 SUBJECT: Signage

REVISION DATE:  §/88; 6/94; 5/03, 8/06, 5/09, 8/12 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-215

Administrative Content ExpertBepartment-Approval: 071604/20
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  074604/20
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 88H86 nla
Board of Directors Approval: 08/16
A PURPOSE:
1. To act in accordance with applicable statutory or regulatory requirements, Tri-City Healthcare

B.

C.

District (TCHD) will post or display signs and informational notices within the facility. To provide
consistent signage, while ensuring a safe and aesthetically pleasing environment for our
patients, guests and employees.

DEFINITIONS:

1. Permanent signage/signs: Signs that are mounted with the intention of being a permanent or
long term fixture. Examples: Directional way-finding signs, wall pictures, no smoking signs,
regulatory signage.

2. Temporary signage/signs: Signs or postings that are put up with the intention of being in place
for a limited amount of time. Examples: Educational class notices, Foundation or Auxiliary
fundraising events, temporary detour directional signs, seasonal flu advisory notices.

POLICY:

1. TCHD will post and maintain signage as required by the California Department of Public Health,
Title 22 California Code of Regulations, other California law, and The Joint Commission and
Medicare Conditions of Participation requirements.

2. All requests for permanent signage/signs must be approved by the Chief Operating Officer
(COO)designee,
3. Prior to any signs being posted in the facility, whether permanent or temporary they will need to

be approved by the Environment of Care/Safety Officer to ensure they meet approved
specifications and regulatory requirements. (Exceptions listed below: 4.a-c)

4, All advertising and marketing materials designed for an internal or external audience, that
contain the Tri-City Healthcare District or Tri-City Medical Center name and logo must be
created and/or approved by the Chief Marketing Officer/designee. This includes all brochures,
calendars, fliers, handouts, pamphlets, stationary, website and broadcast production, etc.

a. Education related flyers used to promote educational opportunities, classes, Hot Topics,
etc. only require the approval of the Director of Education-Glinicallrformatics-and

b. Union Materials: No material shall be posted until approved and initialed by the Ghief
Human Resources Leadership@fficer{CHRO)/designee. Approved postings are to be
displayed on designated bulletin boards. Postings outside of designated areas are
prohibited.

C. Temporary signs/flyers posted within departiment break rooms, lounges, and educational
boards only require the approval of the Department Leadership-direster-manager or

deparmental designee.
112



| Administrative District Operations-Rekiey-hanual
Signage

Page20f 2
5. The Facilities department is responsible for the installation and maintenance of all permanent
signage/signs.
6. Paper signage may not be posted in fire corridors unless it is laminated, framed, or printed on
fully synthetic paper. Contact the Environment of Care/Safety Officer for guidance and
clarification.

D. REFERENCES:
1. California Department of Public Health, Title 22 California Code of Regulations
2. The Joint Commission and Medicare Conditions of Participation

113



(@) Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE ROHIGY-MANUAL
INFORMATIONAL TECHNOLOGY

ISSUE DATE:

12/00 SUBJECT: Access to Restricted, Financial,

Employee, or Other Non-Patient
Electronic Information by TCHD
Authorized Business Partners

REVISION DATE: 05/03, 06/06, 05/09, 07/12 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-608

Information Technology Department Approval: 10M5674704/20
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 06/4218/1504/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval: nfa
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 0742 n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 07/12

A.

| B.

C.

PURPOSE:

1. To provide access to Restricted Electronic Information by Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD)
Authorized Business Partners. Restricted Electronic Information is provided to those Authorized
Business Partners who receive approval from a member of the TCHD Executive Council.

DEFINITION(S):

1. Restricted Electronic Information includes all electronic information that is not known by or
generally available to, the public at large and which concerns the business or affairs of TCHD.
This includes patient specific information; information contained in existing TCHD systems;
intellectual property of TCHD,; actual or proposed terms of any contract between TCHD and
vendors; and any other proprietary information reasonably identified by TCHD as restricted.

Authorized TCHD Business Partners include authorized physicians, vendors and other persons

engaged in legitimate business at TCHD.

b.

C.

POLICY:

This Policy addresses Financial, Employee or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information.
a.

TCHD is defined as “Covered Entity”, according to the terms of the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1986, Public Law 104-191 (“HIPAA") and regulations
promulgated there under by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (the
“HIPAA Regulations”).

If the TCHD Authorized Business Partner is to receive access to HIPAA — defined
“Protected Health Information (PHI) from TCHD, and is defined as a “Business
Associate” under HIPAA, the TCHD Authorized Business Partner must submit to all the
terms of Administrative Policy:# 511 “4iRAA-Business Associate Agreementz,
InformationTechnolegyAdministrative Policy: 8610-622 Business Associate
Agreement, Clinical Information System (Cerner) Access, Physicians and
Physician Office Employees: Onsite and Remote and must sign a Business
Associate Agreement with TCHD.

Access to Restricted Electronic Information is provided via:
a.

Sharing of TCHD restricted electronic information to a vendor that requires that
information to complete engagements with TCHD

Exchange of TCHD restricted electronic information with a business partner for the
purposes of financial analysis

Or other sharing of TCHD restricted electronic information as identified in an agreement
between TCHD and the Business Partner

114



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology
Access to Restricted, Financial, Employee, or Other Non-Patient Elactronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partnars

Page 2 of 18

1.

The Authorized TCHD Business Partner:

a. Will Hold The Restricted Electronic Information In Confidence, Exercising At Least The
Same Care With Respect Thereto As It Exercises With Respect To Its Own Confidential
Information Of Like Kind, And Will Not Without TCHD's Written Consent Disclose Any
Portion Thereof To Any Third Party, Except Pursuant To A Validly Issued Subpoena Or
Court Order;

b. Will Restrict Dissemination Of The Restricted Electronic Information Within Authorized
TCHD Business Partner's Organization To Those Persons Who Have A Need To Know
Such Information, And;

c. Will Not Use The Restricted Electronic Information For Any Purpose Other Than The
Assistance Of TCHD

ed.  Will Notify TCHD when contract is terminated and access is no longer required.

a. May Monitor Access To Restricted Electronic Information By Authorized TCHD Business
Partners

b, Reserves The Right, Without Notice, To Limit And/Or Restrict Any Access To Restricted
Electronic Information By Authorized TCHD Business Partners, And To Inspect, Copy,
Remove Or Delete Any Unauthorized Use

c. Reserves The Right To Use And Disclose Any Information Regarding Access To
Restricted Electronic Information By Authorized TCHD Business Partners, Including To
Law Enforcement Officials

d. Will Disable Access Upon Notification Of Termination Of Contract.

e-e.  Will Automatically disable access if not active for a period of 90 days.

All TCHD policies and practices apply to Access to Restricted Electronic Information by

Authorized TCHD Business Partners, including those policies regarding intellectual property

protection, privacy, misuse of TCHD resources, sexual harassment or other unlawful

harassment, information and data security, and confidentiality.

Each Authorized TCHD Business Partner granted Access to Restricted Electronic Information is

provided with a written copy of this policy. The Authorized TCHD Business Partner must

complete a Data Use Agreement.

While Access to Restricted Electronic information may offer significant benefits, it can also

expose the TCHD computer systems fo risks and compromise if appropriate security measures

are not strictly followed. Each Authorized TCHD Business Partner is accountable for any action

that resuits in a breach of TCHD security or confidentiality. (See Administrative Policy: 8610-

630Security Measures Required to Comply with HIPAAmanagement-Policy-8618-630)

Access to Restricted Electronic Information by an Authorized TCHD Business Partner must not

be used knowingly to violate the laws and regulations of the United States or any other nation.

Use of any TCHD resources for itlegal activity is grounds for corrective action or immediate

dismissal, and we will cooperate with any legitimate law enforcement activity.

D. PROCEDURE:

1.

An Authorized TCHD Business Partner who has a legitimate need for Access to Restricted
Electronic Information should request it in the following manner:

a. Obtain a Data Use Agreement (Instructions, Agreement, and Application attached to this
Policy).

b. Obtain necessary signatures from the appropriate department director and TCHD Vice
President

C. Submit the System Access rRequest Form to Information Technology.

d. An Information Technology representative will determine the technical and electronic

information requirements for the request.

E. MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION:

1.

The TCHD Information Technology Department is responsible for assuring security of the TCHD
network. The Information Technology Department provides all network access, and must
approve all requests to provide access to TCHD Restricted Electronic information by TCHD

115



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology
Accass to Restricted, Financial, Employee, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners

Page 3 of 18

G-H.

Authorized Business Partners.

2. To prevent unauthorized access to Restricted Electronic Information, TCHD'’s Information
Technology Department may require encryption, authentication, or other protections, particularly
if Access to Restricted Electronic Information is via the File Transfer Protocol (FTP), Internet
access, or other similar method.

3. Official Records
a. All messages, audit reports, and records of Access to TCHD Restricted Electronic

Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners are official records and are the

property of TCHD. TCHD reserves the right to access and disclose, at any time, all

documentation of Access to TCHD Restricted Electronic Information by TCHD

Authorized Business Partners.

4, Copyrighted Materials
a. Computer programs are copyrighted material, and may not be copied without adhering

to the requirements listed on the purchased product’s software licensing agreement.

5. User IDs and Passwords
a. User IDs and passwords help maintain individual accountability for Internet usage.

i. The Information Technology Department will assign a single password to a
person to be used for Network Services, Email and Internet access. Any
employee of an Authorized Business Partner who obtains a password or ID must
keep that password confidential. Company policy prohibits the sharing of
passwords.

6. Security
a. TCHD has installed a variety of firewalls, proxies, Internet address screening programs,

and other security systems to assure the safety and security of the networks.

i. Any TCHD Authorized Business Partner that attempts to disable, defeat or
circumvent any security facility will be subject to appropriate corrective action.

kb.  Any sensitive information being sent via external email must be encrypted prior to
sending. (See Email Security Encryption InstructionsAttachment-A)

7. Violations
a. Adherence to this policy is neither voluntary nor optional. Violation of this policy is

grounds for disciplinary action up to, and including, termination of employment or

contractor status. If necessary, TCHD also reserves the right to advise appropriate legal
officials of any illegal violations.

8. Legal Notice

a. California Penal Code 502 states that unauthorized use of a computer in the state of
California is a felony.
9. Notification of Improper Use
a. Each employee or Authorized Business Partner is expected to report unauthorized use
or violation of this policy to the privacy office or security officer.
RELATED DOCUMENTATTFACHMENT(S):
a1.  Email Security Encryption InstructionsAttachment-A- How-to-Send-Ensrypted-Email
FORM(S):
1. Business Associate Agreement — HIPAA Business Associate — Data Use Application
2. Business Associate Agreement — Instructions Data Use Application
3. Business Associate Agreement — HIPAA Business Associate Addendum
34. System Access Request Form (SAR) Employee-etal- Non-Provider
REFERENCE(S):
1. Administrative Policy: 511 Business Associate Agreement
2. Administrative Policy: 8610-622 Business Associate Agreement, Clinical Information
System (Cerner) Access, Physicians and Physician Office Employees: Onsite and
Remote

3. Administrative Policy: 8610-630Security Measures Required to Comply with HIPAA

116



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology

Accass to Restricted, Financial, Employee, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners
Page 4 of 18

4, California Penal Code 502
5. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191, HIPAA

17



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology

Access to Restricted, Financial, Employes, or Other Non-Patient Elactronic Information by TCHD Autherized Business Partners

Page Sof 18

Attachment A: How to Send Encrypted Email

Email Security Encryption

MS OQOutlook or MS Outlook Web Access

Compose New Email

iNew = |

= T -

j _-1

i
=" New Mall Message

Type in the Subject field: ENCRYPT Add subject after the ENCRYPT

(L2 To...
L} Ce...
Subject:

e.g ENCRYPT Let go get some food

ENCRYPT

Click Ocﬂtions in the tool bar
[

Eile  Et View

=dgend ) ~
L3 ro...

Insertt Format Jools Table Window Help

e =t 8§ v = optons.. -

Options |

Click Sensitivity drop down menu
Click Confidential

Click Close

Message settings

3 Importance: Normal hd

Sensitivity:  Confidential | v

. ) _|Normal
Voting and Tracking optidpersonal

s y
@ E] Use thlng_CUnﬁdentléi

Type an external email account: example @yahoo.com or @gmail.com

Click Send

Private

Your email notice will look like this:

i miked@TCMC.com
Held For secure retrieval:

A message sent by you has heen held by the MailCoptic] message scanning seivice for secure retjeval,
The recipient(s) will require the following passwerd to 1enieve the message, YOU MUST COMMUNICATE
THIS PASSWORD TO THE RECIPIENT.

Message Details

Password

Provide the Password lo your recipient to view the email,

118



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology
Access to Restrictad, Financial, Employae, or Other Non-Patiant Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners

Page 6 of 18

Your recipient of your email will see this:

Awaiting retrieval

mikedatcme.com
A message had been held for you to retrieve from the MailContiol message scanning
service,

You will need a password to retiieve the message. THE PASSWORD CAN ONLY BE
PROVIDED BY THE SENDER.

Message Details

Link : Lhick hete The recipient Click Here to enter the Password you sent.

- ¥

& v

TRITON" Hosted Security

Parked message

Please enter the password supplied to you by the sender of this message
Password:

View

| Type in the Password you send them and click View will be able to view the content of the email body.

119



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology
Access to Restricted, Financial, Employee, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners

Page 7 of 18

HIPAA Busi . iate—Data Use Applicat
Principal Recipient-of Protested-Healthdnf G
Gompany-Name-and-Coentast
Rhonra

' ditional
soneiis §-Heaalth
leforrms
+—] Link to current documents in MCN i-Heakh
Informd —
2
3—
4—— Befeguardethetorsventbunassreveduse-ordicslasurs:

120



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology
Access to Restricted, Financial, Employse, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Businass Partners

Page 8 of 18

o G
additienatHterms:]

121



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology

Access to Restricted, Financial, Employes, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners

Page 9 of 18

Link to current documents in MCN

122



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology

Access to Restricted, Financial, Employee, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partnars
Page 10 of 18

Link to current documents in MCN

123



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology
Access to Restricted, Financial, Employee, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners
Page 11 of 18

124



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology
Access to Restricted, Financial, Employee, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners
Page 12 of 18

125



Adminlistrative Policy: Informational Technology

Access to Restrictad, Financial, Employee, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners
Page 13 of 18

126



Administrative Policy: informational Technology
Access to Restricted, Financial, Employee, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners
Page 14 of 18

127



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology
Access to Restricted, Financial, Employee, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners

Page 15 0of 18

128



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology
Access to Restricted, Financial, Employee, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners
Page 16 of 18

EOMNTFRACTOR

Janl—1d
e

129



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology

Accass to Restricted, Financial, Employee, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners

Page 17 of 18

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

ey

TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
System Access Request Form (SAR}

Ok

[0 Ne
Req

MNote |
to the

E-MAI
0 1Asds

0O 1Adm
Aeeeim Link to current documents in MCN

Last Nd
First Nz
Departn
Job Titl

A

Abstract)
Cerner
E-Mall (¢

Finance

Finance

Home H

Human {
Internet

yee

arged

ther

Managed T aTe (Amance] TTATSCT RO 31905

Materials Management {Proclick / Reptrax) WFAN

Other:

within the organization and any other access is strictly forbidden.

Page 1of 2

Rev 817

| arm aware of and agree to abide by the privacy and security policies of Tri-City Healthcare District and its
affiliates as it applies to the protected health information as well as organizational informatian. | understand
that | must only access that information which is the minimum necessary for me to carry out my duties

130



Administrative Policy: Informational Technology
Access to Restricted, Financial, Employes, or Other Non-Patient Electronic Information by TCHD Authorized Business Partners
Page 18 of 18

- Never share mv password or access information that is not reavired for mv assianed duties.

- Always loq in and off appropriately when using a workstation.

- Never access or disclose organizational or protected health information except within the scope of my position.
- Only copy information from the orqanizational data bases as authorized.

- Always take reasonable precautions when originating, receiving or transferring database information {virus),
- Never remove organizational or protected health information from the organization {paper or electronic )

unless guthorized.

i e i o . ‘ -

v = rin. P, o an—— b e b -

I understand that violations of Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) privacy and security policies are grounds for
disciplinary action to include, byt not limited to loss of grivileges, termination, or possible criminal prosecution.

Account User Signature Date

B R R

| authorize the above named individua! to have access to the information. Additionally | have reviewed with
this individual organizational nrivacy and security policies and the consequences of failure to comply.

Signature Date

Print Name

PLEASE EMAIL THE COMPLETED FORM TO: SARIT@TCMC com

PR INFORMATION SYSTEMS REVIEW & IMPLEMENTATION OF REQUEST

Implemented by: (IT representative) Date:

Staff Member Notified/Educated as to Log In Process/Password Selection

IT USE ONLY:
Initial User Login Name and Password Entered by: Date:

Page 2 of 2

131



©1ri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE ROLIGY-MANUAL

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
ISSUE DATE: 3104 SUBJECT: Remote or Portable Computing
REVISION DATE: 02/05; 05/12; 607/12 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-623
Administrative Content Expert: 02/20
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 06/1203/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/20
Administration Approval: 05120
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 07442 n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 0712
A. PURPOSE:

1.

To provide Remote or Portable Computing, while meeting audit and regulatory requirements for
confidentiality and security of information, to each Authorized Remote or Portable Computing
User ("User”) associated with Tri-City Healthcare District (“TCHD"), including employees and
other persons engaged in legitimate business at TCHD.

2. Wireless Computers On Wheels (WOWSs) used throughout TCHD are permanently located within
a TCHD department, and are therefore not considered Remote or Portable Computers for the
purposes of this policy. WOWSs are addressed in Administrative Information Technology
Policy: 624—Wireless Network Communication 624.

a3. Included in the definition of Remote or Portable Computers are Aany etherremote or portable

POLICY:

1. Remote or Portable Computing is provided to authorized employees and other persons who need
remote or poriable access to the TCHD Network.

2. Remote or Portable Computing is intended for TCHD business related purposes only. Each User
has a responsibility to use Remote or Portable Computing in a productive and legal manner.

3 All TCHD policies and practices apply to Remote or Portable Computing, including those policies

regarding Network Access, Email Access, Internet Access, intellectual property protection,
privacy, misuse of TCHD resources, sexual harassment or other unlawful harassment,
information and data security, and confidentiality.

r M Eatali¥lila aldalalf=T= H=I] OlE-0) - alfa -

A User must not use Remote or Portable Computing knowingly to viclate the laws and regulations
of the United States or any other nation. Use of any TCHD resources for illegal activity is
grounds for corrective action, up to and including immediate dismissal. TCHD will cooperate with
any legitimate law enforcement activity.

132



| Administrative-Relisy — Information Technology
Remote or Portable Computing

Page 2 of 4
C. PROCEDURE:
1. An employee who has a legitimate need for Remote or Portabie Computing should request it in
the following manner:

a. Obtain a Remote or Portable Computing Agreement form from Information Technology or
the TCHD intranet. Fill out the form, obtain approval from the Department Director, and
submit the Agreement to the Information Technology Department.

b. If a System Access Request form (Policy 602 — Network Access & Policy 607 — Access to
Applications) has not been submitted to the Information Technology Department prior to
requesting remote access, complete and submit the form at the same time that the
Remote or Portable Computing Agreement form is submitted.

C. If equipment is needed, an Information Technology representative will review
specifications and assist the department with purchasing the equipment.

d. To reinforce this and other confidentiality policies, each employee must sign the TCHD
Confidentiality Agreement annually on his/her review date.

D. MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION:

1.

The Information Technology Department is responsible for assuring security of the TCHD

network. The Information Technology Department must approve all Remote or Portable
Computing Requests.

a,

Portable Computer (Laptop, PDA, Tablet)

i. A User must meet all of the requirements of the Remote or Portable Computing
Agreement before receiving a Portable Computer from TCHD.

i. A User will receive instructions from the Information Technology Department
regarding the security controls for the Portable Computer (these include physical
security with lockdown devices or cables, password security for the laptop, and
other security measures determined by the Information Technology Department to
be appropriate). The User must secure the Portable Computer according to
directions provided by the Information Technology Department

ii. A User will not leave the Portable Computer unattended unless it is in a secured
location.

iv. A User will receive instructions from the Information Technology Department
regarding the method to connect to the TCHD Network from the Portable
Computer. The User is entrusted with access to the TCHD Network, and this is
the sole method to be used to connect to the TCHD Network.

V. The Portable Computer is to be used for TCHD business purposes. Most
business computing using the Portable Computer will require access to the TCHD
Network, where the Information Technology Department assumes responsibility for
maintaining and backing up computer programs and data. Any programs or data,
either business or personal, stored on the Portable Computer by the User, are the
sole responsibility of the User. TCHD strongly recommends that the User either
not store data or programs on the Portable Computer, or initiates steps to backup
that data in the event of the loss or destruction of the Personal Computer.

vi. To access the TCHD Network, the User will necessarily have to access the
Internet. While the TCHD Information Technology Department provides security
controls for TCHD Network access, there are many potential dangers inherent in
Internet access. A User will receive instructions from the Information Technology
Department regarding the use and regular updating of anti-virus and firewall
software to protect the Portable Computer. These instructions must be followed in
order to protect both the Portable Computer and the TCHD Network.

vii. At the User's request, the Information Technology Department will order and install
all business software and hardware for the Portable Computer. Any hardware or
software installed by the User is the sole responsibility of the User.

viii.  Effective April 14, 2003, the Privacy Regulations of the Health Insurance Portability

133



| Administrative-Relicy — Information Technology
Remote or Portable Computing

Page Jof 4

ix.
X.

and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) are in effect. As of this date, no patient
Protected Health Information (PHI) may be transmitted outside of TCHD's Local
Area Network without the approval of the Information Technology Department.
Therefore, no PHI should be stored on the Portable Computer. In addition, any
TCHD Confidential information shouid not be stored on the Portable Computer
because of the risk if the Portable Computer is lost or stolen.

The User is the only individual authorized to use the Portable Computer.

The portable computer must have encryption enabled on the device

Remote Computing (PC remote access to the TCHD Network)

i.

vi.

vii.

A User must meet all of the requirements of the Remote or Portable Computing
Agreement before receiving approval for Remote Computing.

A User will receive instructions from the Information Technology Department
regarding security controls for Remote Computing. The User must secure the
Remote Computing PC according to directions provided by the Information
Technology Department

A User will receive instructions from the Information Technology Department
regarding the Remote Computing method to connect to the TCHD Network. The
User is entrusted with access to the TCHD Network, and this is the sole method to
be used to connect to the TCHD Network.

Business computing using the Remote Computing PC will require access to the
TCHD Network, where the Information Technology assumes responsibility for
maintaining and backing up computer programs and data. Any programs or data,
either business or personal, stored on the Remote Computing PC by the User, are
the sole responsibility of the User. TCHD strongly recommends that the User
initiate steps to backup that data in the event of the loss or destruction of the
Remote Computing PC.

To access the TCHD Network, the User will necessarily have to access the
Internet. While the TCHD Information Technology Department provides security
controls for TCHD Network access, there are many potential dangers inherent in
Internet access. A User will receive instructions from the Information Technology
Department regarding the use and regular updating of anti-virus and firewall
software to protect the Remote Computing PC. These instructions must be
followed in order to protect both the PC and the TCHD Network.

Effective April 14, 2003, the Privacy Regulations of the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) are in effect. As of this date, no patient
Protected Health Information {PHI) may be transmitted outside of TCHD's Local
Area Network without the approval of the Information Technology Department.
Therefore, no PHI should be stored on the Remote Computing PC. In addition,
any TCHD Confidential information should not be stored on the Remote
Computing PC because of the risk if the PC is lost or stolen.

The User is the only individual authorized to use the Remote Computing PC.

Secunty

The TCHD Information Technology Department may periodically perform a
security audit of Remote and Portable Computing.

Authorized Users should not assume transmission of network files is totally secure.
If network files are being sent to an external entity via File Transfer Protocol (FTP)
or other method, the Authorized Network User must obtain assistance from the
TCHD Information Technology Department to assure that data transmission is
secure.

Effective April 14, 2003, the Privacy Regulations of the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) are in effect. As of this date, no patient
Protected Health Information (PHI} may be transmitted outside of TCHD's Local
Area Network without the approval of the Information Technology Department.
TCHD has installed a variety of firewalls, proxies, Internet address screening

134



| Administrative-Reliey — Information Technology
Remote or Portable Computing
Page 4 of 4

programs, and other security systems to assure the safety and security of the
networks. An Authorized Remote Access User who attempts to disable, defeat, or
circumvent any security facility will be subject to appropriate corrective action as
defined by policies.
d. Violations
i. Adherence to this Policy is neither voluntary nor optional. Violation of this policy
may constitute grounds for formal counseling, up to and including termination, as
described in Administrative Policy 424, section 2.3.2. If necessary, TCHD also
reserves the right to advise appropriate legal officials of any illegal violations.
e. Legal Notice
i California Penal Code 502 states that unauthorized use of a computer in the state
of California is a felony.
f. Notification of Improper Use
i. Each Authorized Remote Access User is expected to report unauthorized use or
violation of this policy to a District manager, to a District Vice President, or to the
Information Technology Department.
E. FORMS:

i~ Aciranrmmer

1. System Access Request (SAR) Form Employe
2. System Access Request (SAR) Form Physician Provider Office

F. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Administrative Information Technology Policy: Wireless Network

135



o DELETE — no longer required
() Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE POLIGY-MANUAL
MANAGEMENT-OF-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

ISSUE DATE: 12/00 SUBJECT: Telephone Authorization Code
REVISION DATE: 5/03; 2/05 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-600
Administrative Content Expert Approval: 04/20
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 34/0804/20
I i L2 LU0E
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 0108 n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 01/09

136



Administrative Policy Manual
Telephone Authorization Code — 8610-631
Page20of 3

137



Agjeniniztzatlvg Policy Manual
Te & \uthorization Code - 8610-631
Pa

{

138



@) . i DELETE, follow Patient Care
Tri-City Medical Center | Service Policy: Glucose

Oceanside, California Monitoring During Therapy for

CARDIAC REHABILITATION SERVICES. > 2petic Patients

ISSUE DATE: 10/93 SUBJECT: Glucose Monitoring and Exercise
Therapy for Diabetic Patients

REVISION DATE: 6/97, 2/03, 04/06, 01/08, 12/12

Cardiac Rehabilitation Approval: 02/20
Division of Cardiology Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approvai: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a

Board of Directors Approval:

139



140



(@) Tri-City Medical Center

Emergency Department

PROCEDURE:

WANDERING SYSTEM (ELOPEMENT PREVENTION) 7010-017

Purpose:

Detailed information on use of Accutech Wandering System.

Supportive Data:

Accutech Quick Reference Guide.

Equipment:

Accutech Wandering System, arm bands, LT22/LT23 tags.

Issue Date:

04/06— —Revision-Dato{ey—D4/06:02/4:-02/20

A. DEFINITIONS:

1.

The Accutech Wandering System is a patient monitoring system to help the Emergency
Department staif ensure the safety and well-being of patients at risk for elopement in the
Emergency Department. The sysiem is designed to monitor patients with a small plastic tag
attached to a bracelet that the patient wears while being treated in the Emergency Depariment.
The tag is programmed into the wandering system and if the patient gets too close to an exit the
Emergency Department staff is notified with a loud beeping noise (doors automatically lock for
10-15 seconds) or alarm sound if the doors are open. There are two (2) monitoring screens and
one (1) monitoring computer located throughout the Emergency Department for the staff to view
which exit the patient is trying to elope through.

B. POLICY:

1.

All Patients at risk for wandering outside of the Emergency Department treatment area will have
an Accutech wrist band attached. At risk patients include but not limited to 5150, minor children
without parental supervision, confused patients and/or patients with dementia -ardfor
Alzheimer's.

C. PROCEUDRE:

1.

Activating/Deactivating Tags:

a. With no tag in the TAD unit, slide the power switch to the “ON" position. The TAD power
LED illuminates. If it doesn't, check the TAD's 9-volt battery. Note: If atagis in the
receptacle and the power to the TAD is cycled, the tag may be turned on or off
unintentionally.

b. Place the tag into the tag receptacle on the back of the TAD unit in proper orientation for
the tag (meaning the tag with the name “Accutech” is facing the receptacle and the name
is face up).

o5 The signal strength LEDs on the TAD indicates the current state (on or off) of the tag.

d. Ta turn on or off the tag, press and release the TAD button. The WAIT LED will
illuminate for about a second (do not remove the tag while the WAIT LED is on) and the
signal strength LEDs will change accordingly.

e. Once activated, if the “low battery” LED on the TAD blinks, this indicates the tag should
not be used and should be replaced.

f. After turning on or off the tag, make sure to turn off the TAD unit to save the battery. It is
essential that the tags be turned off in between patients to save the internal
batteries.

2. How to Attach LT22/32 Tags:

a. With the bracelet snaps facing in the same direction as the Accutech logo, slide the plastic
bracelet through the slots on the tag.

b. Adjust the band length to the nearest accommaodating hole for a comfortable fit around the
patient's extremity. Note: Once the bracelet is secured it cannot be adjusted.

C. Put the male part of the snap through the selected hole, fold over the female part of the
snap and secure to the male part by squeezing until it snaps together.

d. wUsing scissors, carefully trim off any excess bracelet material.

Department of Medical Professional
Roviow | Emergency | TECCOUS | Executve | adminswaton | Afais | SoS
04/20 nia nfa nfa 05/20 n/a 04/06, 02/11

141



Emergency
Wandering Band Procedure
Page 2 of 2

142



2
® Tri-City Medical Center leueclC
PROCEDURE: UNNA BOOT APPLICATION
Purpose: For patients with chronic eczema and dermatitis requiring moderate compression for the
treatment of venous insufficiency and/or venous leg ulcers.
Equipment: Unna Boot wrap
Gauze wrap
Clean gloves
Normal saline or wound cleaner
Cast padding if needed
Dressing supplies if needed
Issue Date: 2004

A. DEFINITIONS:
1. Unna Boot-an inelastic compression wrap impregnated with zinc oxide covered by gauze.
Provides low compression therapy when ambulating.

B. POLICY

1. A physician order is required for an Unna boot application.

2. Patient must be assessed by the physician to rule out arterial disease prior to application
of the Unna Boot.

3. Protect very thin legs/bony prominences from pressure by adding additional padding.

4, Promptly remove the wrap and notify the physician if the patient develops pain or pale,
cool or numb tows and foot, or signs and symptoms of heart failure.

5. Discontinue if redness, itching or deterioration of the wound occurs and notify the
physician.

6. Do not use for patients:
a. With known sensitivity or allergy to zinc or other ingredients in bandage.
b. With known active heart failure.
c. In the presence of untreated lower limb skin or wound infection.

A-C. PROCEDURE:
1. Apply gloves and cGIean the wound leg with normal sahne or wound cleanser.

Position the patlent s Ieg ina sllghtly ﬂexed posntlon wnth toes pulled toward shin.

Start at the base of the toes, using no tension and an overlap of 50%, loosely wrap the

bandage around the foot, heel and ankle all the way up just below the knee using a

spiraling method. Ensure that all areas are covered. Do not spiral back downward

4, If needed, wrap the foot and leg with cast padding in a loose spiral; ensuring that all bony
prominences are protected.

5. Wrap with gauze and secure with tape.

26. |If needed apply a non-compressmn type stockmg for further securement of the boot.

2.
3.

Pharmacy &
Dapartment Review Therapautics Med(l;:a':‘iangﬂve Administration Prof::s:rl:nt:?tlt:affalrs Board of Directors
Committee
11/08, 02/20 nia 04/20 05/20 nia

143



Home Care
Unna Boot Application
, Page2 of 2

7. The Una boot may be changed 1-2 times a week; or per MD order.;
a. If slippage occurs it may be changed sooner.
8. Instruct patient to remove the wrap and notify the agency if the following occur:
a. Shortness of breath.
b. Wrap slippage.
c. Pain, numbness, tingling, discoloration or swelling of toes.

B-D. REFERENCES:
1. British Columbia Provincial Nursing Skin & Wound Committee (2016). Guideline:
Application of Compression Therapy to Manage Venous Insufficiency and Mixed
Venous/Arterial Insufficiency.

144



2
(Q? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California
INFECTION CONTROL

ISSUE DATE:

03/02 SUBJECT: Risk Assessment and Surveillance
Plan

REVISION DATE(S): 07/13, 08/14, 05/16, 03/17, 02/18, 03/19

Infection Control Department Approval: 0442003/20
Infection Control Committee Approval; 04/2003/20
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 0442004/20
Administration Approval: 982/2005/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 02/20

A PURPOSE OF RISK ASSESSMENT:

1.

Sound epidemiological principles must be considered in the formation of the surveillance
program designed to provide maximum information and identify opportunities to reduce disease.
Measures directed toward cost effective care must include best practice and technology to
prevent infection. The economic impact of an efficient and flexible infection control plan is
especially relevant in times of changing reimbursement and payment patterns. Tri-City
Healthcare District's (TCHD) plan outlines how this may be accomplished within the confines of
resources, external regulatory guidelines, and medical staff requirements.

B. PURPOSE OF SURVEILLANCE:

1.

The foundation of and most important purpose of this program is to decrease the risk of
infectious complications for all patients, healthcare workers, visitors and staff. Ongoing
epidemioclogical information assists with identifying at risk populations and opportunities to
interrupt prevent or reduce the occurrence of healthcare associated infections. Surveillance will
be compared to nationally recognized benchmarks such as the National Healthcare Safety
Network (NHSN) rates whenever possible.

C. RESPONSIBILITY:

1.

Successful creation of an organization-wide infection control program requires collaboration with
all relevant components/functions. Individuals within the hospital who have the power to
implement plans and make decisions related to prevention and control of risks related to
infections are included in the design and coordination of processes. In consultation with the
Medical Staff, Directors, Medical Director of Infection Control, Environmental Health and Safety
Committee, Patient Safety Officer and the Infection Control Committee, the Infection
Preventionist (IP) shall identify and have oversight to ensure all hospital practices are
performed in a manner which prevents cross contamination, The infection control risk
assessment and surveillance plan will implement a systematic process for monitoring and
evaluating the quality and effectiveness of the infection control program. Significant deviations
are discussed in Infection Control Committee, Quality Improvement Medical Staff Committees
as needed, Environmental Health and Safety Committee, and-the Ratient Safety Committee and

QAPI Committee roferred-toapproprate-councils-and-committees for further action and follow
up.

Infection Prevention and Control Services is staffed with an Infection Preventionist. There are
computer resources with Internet connection, Microsoft Office software, NHSN National internet
based database, a real-time electronic data mining surveillance tool and access to the hospital's

145



Infection Control

Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan Policy

Page 2 of 9

electronic medical records (Cerner and Affinity). Telephone with voice mail, and fax access is
provided. The office is located within the Surgical Scheduling office.

Infection Control Services works in conjunction with others, as a consultant and resource for
best practices. We support system changes and an interdisciplinary focus to improving care. We
believe that all our employees, medical staff, and volunteers play an important role in preventing
and controlling infections. Ultimately, the leadership team within the district is responsible for
adopting and ensuring compliance with appropriate policies and practices.

D. LINKS WITH INTERNAL SOURCES:

1.

On at least an annual basis, the IP department will meet with the affected departments (i.e.
Medica! Staff and Employee Health) to assess whether the goals and priorities have been
achieved and what steps are required to implement any indicated changes. The goals are
shared with and reviewed by the infection Control Committee. Education on infection control
goals and priorities will be included with quarterly reports and during individual meetings with
the hospital leadership. The IP staff reports to Infection Control Committee quarterly and attends
other medical staff and hospital commitiees as requested, regulatory requirements and
department specific Quality Reports are reviewed.

E. LINKS WITH EXTERNAL SOURCES:

1.

The San Diego County Public Health Department, state health authorities, the Division of
Occupational Safety and Health, and other recognized infection control specialists, for example,
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Association for Professionals in
Infection Control and Epidemiology (APIC), Society for Healthcare Epidemiology of America
(SHEA), and the California Healthcare Association (CHA) are important links between the
district and outside resources. Infection Control department subscribes to automatic notifications
available via email from the CDC, San Diego County Public Health (CAHAN) and California
Department of Health and Human Services. Infection surveillance covers a broad range of
processes and activities with potential for intervention and these organizations assist with the
where, when, and how of targeting.

Healthcare associated infections (HAI) are reported by the IP staff to the external healthcare
organizations when the infection was not known at the time of transfer. TCHD receives reports
from outside organizations when a patient develops an infection that might meet criteria for a
healthcare associated infection. Home Health/Hospice quality review staff report directly to
Infection Control Committee.

The following conditions will be reported to external healthcare organizations with the intent to
satisfy The Joint Commission IC 02.01.01(and recorded in the patient's electronic medical
record (EHR) . The Infection Surveillance Report will document notification to the referring
healthcare organization within 7 days of discovery by the TCHD Infection Prevention and
Control Staff:

a. Positive culture from a surgical site and surgery performed at ancther facility.

b. Influenza rapid test is positive and patient was discharged to another healthcare facility
prior to results being known.

C. Positive C difficile toxin test known after the patient was discharged to another
healthcare facility.

d. Positive MDRO cuiture known after the patient was discharged to another healthcare
facility and the patient had no history of the same MDRO.

. Unusual occurrences based on the opinion of the Infection Prevention staff in
consultation with the Infection Control Medical Director and Director of Regulatory
Compliance.

F. PERTINENT RISK FACTORS:

1

Each facility is unique and we considered the following factors in our plarning.

146



Infection Control

Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan Policy

Page 3 of 9

a. National and international published scientific studies, community standard of care,
professional recommendations and regulatory requirements.

b. A review of hospital specific surveillance data from years past.

c. Medically fragile and at-risk populations such as newborns and those with invasive
devices.

d. The increasing antibiotic resistance in our facility and across the United States and the
nation (as reported by the CDC in NHSN).

e. The vaccination/immunity rates of the community and employees.

G. EPIDEMIOLOGICAL FACTORS: INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL.:

1.

TCHD is impacted by factors such as location, population served, community health, financial
status, population age, clinical focus, and healthcare worker demographics and these were
included in our planning.

The hospital's geographic location is in northern San Diego County. San Diego County is the
second most populous of California's 58 counties, and the fifth largest county in the United
States. San Diego is -home to 3.34 million residents, as of July 1, 2018.

LLocated within the North County geographic region are 3 college campuses along with a Marine
Corp Base (Camp Pendleton).

San Diego County is becoming increasingly bicultural due to its close proximity to Mexico. In
addition, the county is already ethnically diverse, and will be increasingly so. The largest San
Diego County racial/ethnic groups are White (64.7%) followed by Hispanics (33.5%) & Asian
(16.79%). Approximately 21.5% of the county's populations are immigrants, including refugees,
who come from other countries, speak many different languages, and have a variety of needs
as they assimilate into their new environment. 38.8% of people in San Diego County speak a
non-English language. The senior and disabled populations are growing disproportionately
compared to the rest of the population. Since 2015, San Diego County has become the 4™
largest population of homeless individuals in the US.

Demographic information (as of 2017} on the three cities most often served by TCHD is listed
below.

Asian &
Median Pacific African
City income Total # residents | White | Hispanic | Islander American |
QOceanside | $ 71,609 176,193 46.8% | 36.2% 7.8% 4.9%
Vista $ 68,130 101,568 40% 52.4% 3.4% 2.7%
Carlsbad | $ 101,6461 115,330 72.2% | 14.3% 7.8% 0.9%
a. http://www.city-data.com/city/Oceanside-California.html
b. http://www.city-data.com/city/Vista-California. htmi
C. http://www.city-data.com/city/Carlsbad-California.htmi

Enteric iliness represents a significant burden of disease in the US and because of this the San
Diego County Health and Human Services Agency conducts outbreak investigation and
education to reduce the medical and cost-related impact of these diseases in the community.
Food borne ilinesses largely result from the ingestion of food or water contaminated by fecal
matter or ingestion of infected animal products. Hospitals play an important role in early
intervention by the identification and reporting of significant bacteria. The most common
mandated reported enteric illnesses in SD County are Campylobacter, Hepatitis A, Salmonella
and Shigella.

tn San Diego, overall rates for Chlamydia and Gonorrhea have increased since 2018, while
cases of early Syphilis have decreased slightly. National trends were reflective at the local level,
including high rates of STD's among young women and MSM (men who have sex with men).
San Diego County has the third largest number of HIV & AIDS cases in California.

147



Infection Control

Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan Pelicy

Page 4of @

8.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14,

In 2018, San Diego County reported 226 new active TB (tuberculosis) cases, compared with
237 in 2017. In 2018, San Diego County's annual TB incidence was 6.8 cases per 100,000
persons, which is higher than the California state rate of 5.3, and more than twice the national
rate of 2.8.

An estimated 80% of active TB cases are due to the progression of LTBI (latent tuberculosis
infection) to active TB.

TB drug susceptibility information was available for 197 cases (99%) of 198 culture proven
cases for 2018 in San Diego. Resistance to at least one of the 4 major first line drugs was found
among 41 (21%) of these specimens. A multidrug-resistant (MDR TB) strain was found in 3
(1.5%) of the cases. Vigilance in diagnosing MDR TB and close monitoring of treatment is of
extreme importance because of the complexity of treating such patients and the risk of spread
within the community.

At TCHD, most AFB positive smears and cultures grow organisms that are not communicable
person to person. In 2018, there were 3 patients with pulmonary TB and 1 with extrapulmonary
TB. An additional 14 cases were reported as rule out TB in 2018. In 2019, 12 patients were
confirmed with TB, 2 of those cases were MDR TB. An additional 20 cases were reported as
rule out TB. The number of active TB patients seen annually at TCHD varies from 5 —12.

Tri City Medical Center Financial Characteristics for Fiscal Year 2019

a. The top six insurance coverage are as follows:
MEDICARE 25%
MEDI-CAL HMO 21%
MEDI-CAL 21%
Medicare SR HMO 11%
Other Governmental 6%
HMO 4%
b. Patient Census:
Average. Daily Average.
Census Length of Stay* | Total Pt. Days
Acute Care (exciudes all below) 117.5 4.02 42,894
Icu* 15.6 2.76 5,691
BHU 2.7 8.51 979
NICU 10.2 8.92 3.736
Rehab Serv. 6.5 14.63 2,356

i. *ICU ALOS includes discharges, transfers out, and expirations. All other areas
are based only on discharges.

c. In acute care FY 19, the three largest age groups are 66-75 year olds (16%), 26-35 year
olds (15.4%), and 56-65 year olds (15.3%).

d. Twelve percent (6,849/56,437) of Emergency Department patients are admitted to the
hospital.

The total number of employees working at TCHD FY 2019 is approximately 2,701 with about

1,729 (64%); staff providing direct patient care. This number includes 482 employees which

were terminated at some point during FY2018.

TCHD's primary focus is on basic community services. The top ten major diagnostic categories

(DRGs) are the following:

Obstetrics

Musculoskeletal & Connective Tissue

Infectious & Parasitic Diseases

Circulatory System

Newborns & Neonates

Nervous System

Respiratory

Digestive System

Tamoooow

148



Infection Control
Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan Policy

Page 50f9

1
1

1

H. T

1

3.
6.

7.

i. Kidney & Urinary Tract

i Hepatobiliary System & Pancreas

Top five Inpatient Surgical Procedures (Fiscal Year 2019): Cesarean section (CSEC), spinal
fusion (FUSN), hip prosthesis (HPRO), cholecystectomy (CHOL), and knee prosthesis (KPRO).
Home Care Services provides skilled, intermittent care to individuals in a home setting. The
restorative, rehabilitative services are provided by Registered Nurses, Licensed Vocational
Nurses, Masters of Social Work, Licensed Clinical Social Workers, Certified Home Health Aides,
Physical Therapists, Occupational Therapists, Speech Therapists andfor Dietitians. For FY 2019
in Home Care:

Average LOS | Top Payers Top Primary DX Categories

3 days Medicare- 54.65% -Factors influencing Status/Sup Class

HMO/PPO 27.36% -Injury/Poisoning

-Circulatory {not HTN, HF or CVD)

-Respiratory ( COPD)

-Musculoskeletal/Connective Tissue

-Respiratory (not COPD)

Circulatory-CVD

Genitourinary

General Process
a. Infection Prevention staff will regularly review, information from internal sources (case
manager, RLs) or external sources (other IC practitioners, home health/hospice, or
nursing homes) and the positive microbiology reports (furnished by the clinical
laboratory). The following are some of the patterns or issues that are evaluated:
i. Clusters of infections by the same organism, in the same ward or service or
infections after undergoing the same procedure.
ii. Infections due to unusual or highly resistant/significant organisms such as
MRSA, VRE, ESBL, CRE, and/ar C.difficile Infection.
i All cases of reportable communicable diseases as mandated by Title 17. These
shall be reported in accordance with the ordinances of the County of San Diego
Department of Health.
b. Unusual or problem situations shall be brought to the Infection Control Committee for
review and discussion. See Epidemiologic Investigation of a Suspected Outbreak policy.
C. in the absence of the Infection Prevention staff, hospital staff can direct questions to
Employee Health Services or the Medical Director of Infection Control and/or Chair of
the Infection Control Committee.

ETED AND FOCUSED SURVEILLANCE FOR FY 2019:

ARG

Infection control surveillance activities are systematic, active, concurrent, and require ongoing
observation while meeting mandated reporting requirements. Our efforts are directed towards
high risk, high volume and device/procedure associated infections. (such as urinary tract
infections, selected surgical site infections, ventilator-associated events , and central line
bacteremia) Goals will include limiting unprotected exposure to pathogens throughout the
organization, Enhancing hand hygiene and limiting the risk of transmission of infections
associated with procedures, medical equipment and supplies and medical devices.

Surgical Site Infections:

a. Due to ever-decreasing lengths of stay, the majority of postoperative infections are not
seen while the patient is in the hospital. Further, the increasing trend toward more
outpatient surgery and shorter postoperative hospital stays limits the ability of infection
control practitioners to detect infections.

b. Surgical Site Infections that occur within 30 to 90 days (based upon the individual NHSN
definitions). Surgical patients are risk stratified using the methods described in the
CDC’s NHSN surgical site component.

149



Infection Control

Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan Policy

Page6of 9

Case finding methods include a review of all microbiology cultures, and ICD coding for
post-operative infection. Potential cases have a chart review performed by Infection
Prevention staff using the most recent NHSN definitions (Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention),
Infection rates are identified using the NHSN definitions and are reported to the
California Department of Public Health through NHSN. In accordance with California
senate bill requirements: facilities are required to report surgical site infections on 29
surgical procedures. Tri City Medical Center performs and reports on 25 of the
procedures, they are listed below:

AAA Abdominal aortic Resection of abdominal aorta with anastomosis

aneurysm repair or replacement

APPY Appendix surgery Operation of appendix {not incidental to
another procedure)

BILI Bile duct, liver or Excision of bile ducts or operative procedures

pancreatic surgery on the biliary tract, liver or pancreas (does not
include operations only on gailbladder)

CARD Cardiac surgery Open chest procedures on the valves or
septum of heart; does not include coronary
artery bypass graft, surgery on vessels, heart
transplantation, or pacemaker implantation

CBGB Coronary artery bypass Chest procedure to perform direct

graft with both chest and | revascularization of the heart; includes
donor site incisions obtaining suitable vein from donor site for
grafting.

CBGC Coronary artery bypass Chest procedure to perform direct

graft with chest incision vascularization of the heart using, for example,
only the internal mammary (thoracic) artery

CHOL Gallbladder surgery Cholecystectomy and cholecystectomy

COLO Colon surgery Incision, resection, or anastomosis of the large
intestine; includes large-to-small and small-to-
large bowel anastomosis; does not include
rectal operations

CSEC Cesarean section Obstetrical delivery by Cesarean section

FUSN Spinal fusion Immobilization of spinal column

FX Open reduction of Open reduction of fracture or dislocation of long

fracture bones that requires internal or external fixation;
does not include placement of joint prosthesis

GAST Gastric surgery Incision or excision of stomach; includes
subtotal or total gastrectomy; does not include
vagotomy and fundoplication

HPRO Hip prosthesis Arthroplasty of hip

HYST Abdominal hysterectomy | Removal of uterus through an abdominal
incision

KPRO Knee prosthesis Arthroplasty of knee

LAM Laminectomy Exploration or decompression of spinal cord
through excision or incision into vertebral
structures

NEPH Kidney surgery Resection or manipulation of the kidney with or
without removal of related structures

OVRY Ovarian surgery Operations on ovary and related structures

PACE Pacemaker surgery Insertion, manipulation or replacement of
pacemaker

150



infection Control

Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan Policy

Page 7 of 9

REC Rectal surgery Operations on rectum

sSB Small bowel surgery Incision or resection of the small intestine; does
not include smail-to-large bowel anastomosis

SPLE Spleen surgery Resection or manipulation of spleen

THOR Thoracic surgery Non cardiac, nonvascular thoracic surgery;

includes pneumonectomy and hiatal hernia
repair or diaphragmatic hernia repair (except
through abdominal approach.)

VHYS Vaginal hysterectomy Removal of the uterus through vaginal or
perineal incision
XLAP Abdominal surgery Abdominal operations not involving the

gastrointestinal iract or biliary system. Includes
diaphragmatic hernia repair through abdominal

approach.
e, GOAL#1: The combined surgical site infection rate will not be statistically significantly
higher than the most recent published NHSN rates, using the standardized infection ratio
(SIR).
f. GOAL#2: Each individual surgical site infection rate (that is able to be calculated) will not

be statistically significantly higher than the most recent published NHSN rates, using the
standardized infection ratio (SIR).

Antibiotic Resistant Bacteria

a. Antibiotic resistance is an ongoing concern. Multiple studies have documented increased
costs and mortality due to infections caused by multidrug resistant organisms. Data will
be collected using positive cultures on patients with community acquired and hospital
acquired methicillin resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA), Vancomycin resistant
enterococci (VRE), Extended spectrum-beta-lactamase (ESBL), and Carbapenem-
resistant Enterobacteriaceae (CRE). MDROQ and C.difficile infection risk assessment is
performed annually to determine need for additional interventions, resources, and
surveillance. In addition, positive blood cultures with MRSA or VRE and positive
C.difficile infections are reported to CDPH through NHSN Multi-Resistant Organism &
Clostridium difficile Infection Module (LablD Event Reporting).

b. GOAL#1: The number of healthcare associated MRSA infections will remain below the
Institute for Healthcare Improvement's (IHI) published rate of 3.95 hospital acquired
infections per 1000 patient days for the calendar year,

# Patients with + MRSA and/or VRE cultures
1000 patient days

c. GOAL#2: The MRSA and VRE Lab ID events (Blood culture specimen) rate will not be
statistically higher than the most recent NHSN published rates (using the SIR).

Clostridium difficile (C. difficile) surveillance is performed utilizing the Multi-Resistant Organism

and Clostridium difficile Infection Module (LablD Event Reporting).

a. All positive C. difficile results are entered into NHSN. Increases in hospital onset (HO)
cases will be reviewed and action taken if they are epidemiologically associated.

b. GOAL #1: The C. difficile hospital onset (HO) rate will not be more than expected based
upon NHSN SIR Rates.

Ventilator Associated Event — Adult Critical Care Unit

a. VAE is conducted on persons in the ICU who had a device to assist or control respiration
continuously through a tracheostomy or by endotracheal tube within the 48 hour period
before the onset of infection (inclusive of the weaning period). Current CDC/INHSN VAE
definitions are followed. The definition has three tiers: ventilator associated condition
(VAC), infection related ventilator associated condition (IVAC), and possible ventilator

151



Infection Control

Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan Policy

Page 8 of 9

10.

associated pneumonia (PVAP). All PVAP cases will be reviewad & reported to Critical

Care Committee and the Infection Control Committee.

i. GOAL #1: There will be less PVAP cases than the prior year. The number of
PVAP cases will trend lower than the prior year.

i. GOAL #2: The NHSN standardized utilization ratio (SUR) will be less than 1.0
(PVAP- Tier 3).

Central Line Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) -

a.

b.

C.

Patients with a central iine (defined by NHSN as a vascular access device that
terminates at or close to the heart or one of the great vessels) and a primary
bloodstream shall be counted. If a bloodstream infection occurs while a central line is in
place or if a central line was inserted > than two calendar days before the onset of
infection a chart review will be performed. Current CDC/NHSN definitions are used to
determine CLABSI events.

GOAL #1: Using NHSN definitions for CLABSI, the CLABSI rate for ICU patients will not
be statistically higher than the NHSN standardized infection ratio (SIR).

GOAL #2: Using NHSN definitions for CLABSI, the CLABSI rate for non-ICU patients will
not be statistically higher than the NHSN standardized infection ratio (SIR).

Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infection (CAUTI)

a.

c.

Symptomatic urinary tract infection — Patients with positive urine cultures and indwelling
foley catheters are reviewed. Current CDC/NHSN definitions are used to determine
CAUTI events.

GOAL #1: Using NHSN definitions for catheter associated urinary tract infection
(CAUTI), the CAUT! SIR for ICU patients will not be statistically higher than the NHSN
standardized infection ratio (SIR).

GOAL #2: Using the NHSN definitions for CAUTI, the CAUT! SIR for non {CU patients
will not be more than expected based upon the NHSN standardized infection ratio (SIR).

Hand Hygiene

a.

b.

Hand hygiene compliance rates are collected by manual observation performed by unit
staff on a monthly basis. The Hand Hygiene compliance rates are reported to the
Managers, Directors, Regulatory Compliance Committee, and the Infection Control
Committee. Tri City Medical Center follows the World Health Organization's 5 Moments
model for hand hygiene.

GOAL #1: Overall hand hygiene compliance rate will be at least 90% per quarter.

Environmental and Patient Care Rounds

a.

Multidisciplinary eEnvironment of c€are rounds are performed monthly and overseen
by the Safety Officer and reported out to the Environmental Health & Safety (EHSC)
Committee and Infection Control Committee. From these rounds, Infection Control
will assess & prioritize potential risks for infection, contamination and exposures
to help eliminate and mitigate such risks. These rounds will identify risks associated
with, but not limited to, medical equipment and supplies. In addition, tracers are
performed monthly on a schedule throughout the patient care areas.

GOAL #1: Infection Control assessments will be represented 100% of the time during
scheduled environmental rounds.

GOAL #2 Infection Control assessments will be represented 100% of the time during
scheduled tracers.

GOAL #3: Engineering staff in collaboration with Infection Control will complete an
Infection Control Construction Permit 100% of the time for projects that require a Class
it or higher containment.

Reportable Diseases

a.

Assisted by the Microbiology Laboratory and Emergency Department, required reporting
to Public Health is performed by phone, fax or mail using the California Confidential
Morbidity Report or other special form as directed by the County of San Diego

152



Infection Control
Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan Policy
Pags 9of 9

Department of Health. Case finding is done through review of microbiology reports and
calls from hospital staff (including physicians).
b. GOAL: Required reportable disease will be sent to the local health department within the
required time frame 100% of the time.
11. Employee Health collects and reports the following:

a. GOAL#1: There will be 10% less needle stick injuries from the previous calendar year
i. Number of needle sticks injuries and details of department involved, device, and
cause.
b. GOAL#2: 100% of employees will complete the annual tuberculosis screen

i. # Staff completing annual TB screening (PPD, blood test or survey)/ # employees
in whom compliance is required.
c. GOAL #3: Greater than 90% of Tri City Medical Center staff (per NHSN definition) will
receive influenza vaccine.
i. # Employees and who received influenza vaccinef# employees who worked at
least one day during the flu season.
d. GOAL #4: Greater than 90% of Tri City Medical Center inpatient Acute Rehab unit staff
(per NHSN definition) will receive influenza vaccine.,
12. Home Care, collects and reports the following:
a. GOAL #1: CAUTI and CLABSI rates will be monitored and reported to the Infection
Control Committee quarterly.
b. GOAL #2: There will be less than two CAUTI infections in the calendar year.
i. # UTI cases with foley catheter/Total # device days.
c. GOAL #3: There will be no infections related to central lines in the calendar year.
i. # BSI cases with Central Line/Total # device days.

. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Infection Control Policy: Philosophy
2. Infection Control Policy: Epidemiologic Investigation of a Suspected Outbreak
3. Infection Control Risk Assessment 2020

J. REFERENCE(S):

1. County of San Diego Public Health & Human Services Agency, Public Health Services.
Retrieved from http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/hhsa/programs/phs/
2. Centers for Disease Control and Preventions, National Healthcare Safety Network {NHSN)

Tracking Infection in Acute Care Hospitals/Facilities. (2017) http://www.cdc.gov/nhsn/acute-
care-hospitalfindex.html

3. County of San Diego Tuberculosis Control and Refugee Health Program. ) TB Statistics-Fact
Sheet 2016 (March 2017). Retrieved from
http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/hhsa/programs/phs/tuberculosis_control_program/

4, Friedman, C. (2014). Infection Prevention and Control Programs in P. Grota (Ed.), APIC Text of
Infection Control and Epidemiology (4™ ed). Washington DC; 2014

(=} The City of San Diego (2017), Economic development: Population
https://www.sandiego.gov/ieconomic-development/sandiegoffacts

6. https://datausa.iolprofile/geo/san-diego-county-ca/

153



121!

Infection Contro! Risk Assessment: 2020

Potential RisksiProblems

Probability

Risk/impact (Health, Financial, Legal, Regulatory)

|current Systems/Preparedness

Score

_Expeﬂed

Likety

Maybe

ﬁare

Never

Calasirophic
Loss
{iife/limb/
function/

Serous
Loss
(Function/
Financial/

Frolonged
Length of
Stay

Modarate
Clinical/
Financial

Minimal
Clinicatf
Financial

None Poor Fair

Good

Solid

> 10 Hi 7-9
Med <6 Lo

Multi-Drug Resistant
nisms {(MDRO})

-

ESBLU/other Gram Negalive
bacieria

Lack of Adherence {o
Slandard Frecaulions

Detayed ideniification of
airborne fransmissible
iseases

Policy and Procedure

\l‘

Failure to follow established

Emergency preparedness

Ebola Preparedness

Influx of Infectious E‘aﬁents

1

Pandemic InRuenza




GGl

Potential Risks/Prohlems Probability Risk/impact (Health, Financial, Legal, Regulatory) Current Systems/Preparedness Score
Expected Likely Maybe Rare Never {Catastrophic| Serious | Prolonged | Moderate | Minimal None Poor Fair Good Solid
Loss Loss Lengthof | Ciinical/ Clinical!
{lifeftimb/ | (Function/ Stay Financial | Financial >10H 79
function/ | Financialt |Med =6 Lo
financial) Legah)
4 3 2 1 7] 5 4 3 2 1 5 4 3 2 1 =T
Healthcare Assoclated | ; ] ran
Infections (HAI) : ' o &
Central Line Associated Blood x X X
Stream Infections 7
Caiheter Asscciated Urinary X X X
Tract Infections 5
Surgical Site Infections X X 7
‘Ventilator Associated Event X % 3
(PVAP) in ICU 7
Lice and Scabies X X X 3
|Norovirus X X X 5
[inftuenza X X X 5
|Bloodbome Pathogens X X X 5
Environment i | Lk [P i RS |+_
ILegiunelIa Disease X X X 7
|Air Handing X X X 6
ICIeaningl Disinfection X X X 5
Monitaring Megalive Air X X X
Pressure Rooms 5
Lack of Negalive Pressure X X X
Rooms 5
Infeclion Related lo X X X
Construction/ Renovation 7
Employee Health i
Lack of Staff Influenza X X X
Immunization &
Lack of Stafl Immunization, X X X
olher 6
rNew hire health screen X X X 3
Exposure o Bloodbome X X X
Pathogens a
Exposure 1o infeclipus disease X X X
6
|Annual TB screening of siafl X X X
5
Pertussis X X X 5
Lack of LIP Screening X X X 5
Othar r — —
Risk of Community Oulbreak X X X
5




961

The Infection Control (IC) Risk assessment grid is a visual 1ol to develop IC program priorities and siratify infection risks based on our geography,
location in the community, our palient population and the review of cur previous IC data analysis. The annual IC Planis developed based on
these risks.

The IC Risk assessment is an ongoing, continual process. A more focused review is done on an annual basis after reviewing the quariery
and annual reports with the Infection Conirol commitiee.

Risk Assessment Completed on: Jan, 2020
1D MD, ICC Chair P EH RN MD Quality Lab
Pharmacy EOC OR Housekeeping Engingening PSO

Administration



)
(@) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF POLICY

ISSUE DATE: 05/08 SUBJECT: Influenza Vaccination of Physicians
and Allied Health Professionals
(AHP)

REVISION DATE: 05/08, 08/12, 06/17 POLICY NUMBER: 8710 - 547

Medical Staff Department Approval: 07/12, 03117, 02/20

Infection Control Committee Approval: 0712, 04/17, 03/20

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/12, 05/17, 04/20

Administration Approval: 05/20

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 06/47 n/a

Board of Directors Approval: 05/08, 08/12, 06/17

A, PURPOSE:

1. To increase influenza vaccination rates of healthcare workers to provide a healthier work

D.

environment and reduce adverse patient outcomes The Centers for Disease Control
recommends that all health care workers receive an annual influenza vaccination to prevent
transmission to patients. Influenza immunization rates among health care workers remain low,
with only 36%-40% of health care workers reporting influenza vaccination each year. Influenza
vaccination is an important patient safety issue because unvaccinated staff can spread
influenza to patients, coworkers, and family members, leading to influenza-related illness and
death. When health care workers become ill with influenza, absenteeism and disruption of care
may result. When health care workers transmit influenza to patients, some of them may
experience serious, even life-threatening complications or secondary pneumonias. California
SB739 states the following: “Each general acute care hospital shall require its employees to be
vaccinated, or if the employee elects not to be vaccinated, to declare in writing that he or she
has declined the vaccination.” This requirement applies to all health care workers, including
physicians.

POLICY:
1. All active physicians and Allied Heaith Professionals (AHP) at Tri-City Healthcare District
(TCHD) will participate in the Annual Influenza Vaccination or Declination program.

PROCEDURE:

1. The program requires physicians and AHP to either sign the Influenza Vaccine Declination
Statement or be vaccinated by November 30 each year, unless the vaccine is unavailable.

2. Physicians and AHP who begin work at TCHD after November 30 and before April 1 will have
14 days after they begin to sign the Influenza Vaccine Declination Statement or be vaccinated.

3. If the physicians and AHP fails to be vaccinated at TCHD, or submit a signed declination
pursuant to 4.6-5, the practitioner’s reappointment application will be considered incomplete and
the practitioner shall be deemed to have resigned membership in the medical staff within 30
days past the due date.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S}:

1. Employee Health & Wellness: Immunization Policy
2. Infection Control: Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan IC 11

157



@) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF POLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE:

REVISION DATE(S): 09/07, 04/17

02/01

SUBJECT: Standards for Endovascular Repair
of Aortic Aneurysms

POLICY NUMBER: 8710 - 503

Department Approval-Date: 03/17, 02/20
Division of GVS Approval-Date: 03/17, 03/20
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval-Date: 03/17, 04/20
Administration Approval-Date: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval-Date: 0417 nia
Board of Directors Approval-Date: 04/17

A. STANDARDS:
1. All cases involving endovascular repair of aortic aneurysms must meet the following minimum
criteria for adequate facilities and physician skills.

a. The minimum criterion for the facility is:

i Digital subtraction angiography with roadmap capabilities.

ii. A large Field of View image intensifier (15 or 16 inches) * with a 1024 matrix.

il Power injector for contrast administration.

iv. Appropriate supply of balloons, guidewires, stents, coils and other embolic
materials.

V. Appropriate level of sterility.

vi. Adequate space and facilities for anesthesia

vii, Interventional Physician and Surgical Registered Nurses.

viii.  Interventional technologist.

“When combined intraoperative access and endoluminal graft is performed in the

operating room, a smaller image intensifier may be acceptable when agreed upon by the

involved physicians.
b. The criterion for physician skills is:

i. Interventional Physician must have current independent (has been released from
proctoring) Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) privileges for catheter-based
peripheral vascular interventional procedures.

ii. Interventional Physician must have met the minimum criteria for device- specific
training/certification as defined by the manufactures of the device.

iii., Vascular Surgeons must have current independent (has been released from
proctoring) TCHD privileges for open repair of abdominal and/or thoracic aortic
aneurysm repair.

2. During all cases, at least one physician credentialed in Interventional Radiology and one
physician credentialed in Vascular Surgery must be present.

3. Proctoring Criteria;
a. Five cases performed during the first six months after granting of the privilege will be

a.

b.

proctored. The proctor must be privileged for the procedure that he/she is proctoring.

4. Reappointment Criteria:

Maintenance of Endovascular Repair of Aortic Aneurysm requires ongoing experience in
performing these procedures with acceptable success and complication rates.

In order to qualify for reappointment, the minimum number of cases (5) to be performed
in a two-year period.

158



2
(c‘» Tri-City Medical Center

Women and Newborn Services
Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU)

1.

PROCEDURE: FORMULA, PREPARATION AND STORAGE OF

Purpose: Powered specialty formula and fortification of formula will be prepared in the NICU in
an aseptic manner fo assure sterility.

Equipment: 1.  GraduatedSterile Container
2. Food Grade Disinfecting Wipes for Cleaning
3. Non-Sterile Gloves
6—4 Single-Use Scoop

A. POLICY:

Breast milk is recognized as the feeding of choice for most infants, however, when breast milk is
not available for use, or its use is contraindicated due to infant and/or maternal condition, or
mother chooses to use formula, formula (artificial milk) will be available per physician/allied
health professional (AHP) order for supplementary use for infant feedings.

2. Formula preparation and fortification are the responsibility of the Registered Nurse in the NICU.
Caloric density and type of formula must be verified with the physician/AHP order prior to
preparation.

3. The preparation of formula will be carried out in a designated area away from the bedside to
decrease the risk of contamination.

3-4. Formula fortification shall be done using standardized recipes provided by the NICU
registered dietician.

B. PROCEDURE:

1. Storage
a. Formula will be stored in a designated formula storage area and kept in sealed

containers until use,

B-2. ortlﬁmg ready to feed formula

Verify physictan/AHP’s order for formula.

-1-b. Sterilize milk preparation work surface with hospital approved food grade
disinfecting wipes.

2c. Perform hand hygiene, don non sterile gloves and gather necessary equipment
and supplles in de3|gnated mllkfer-mula preparatlon area.

4e, Measure fon'nula into graduated stenle contalner to desnred volume.

&, Using aseptic technique and single use scoop, Aadd powdered/liquid specialty
formula into container with formula to achieve desired caloric density as per
physician/AHP’s orders:

e———Mix thoroughly and label container with patient label, date and time of fortification
and content descnptlon Gap—and—shake—v@epeusly-te-mm-

6.g. Fortified/mixed formula should be prepared fresh for each feed.

#h.  Refer to manufacturer guidelines for storage of unused formula.

i. Clean area after completion, wiping surface down with food grade
disinfectingantiseptic wipes.

3. Preparing Powdered Formula

NICU Perinatal Pharmacy & Medical Professional Board of
Ooparivert | Ootaborave | eamauiopy | Therbeules | Breoulve | Mdmiisiaton | e | Giecs
0o oa AL Aia nia nfa 08/14,0717 | 08/14, 07117

1329



| Womens and NewbornGhildron's Services NICU-Manual
Formula, Preparation And Storage Of

Page 2 of 2
} a. Powdered formula should only be used when a ready-made liquid product is not
available
b. Follow preparation technique described above using sterile water to reconstitute
the powdered formula per manufacturer’s or registered dietician’s standardized
recipe.

&c. Store unused reconstituted powdered formula per manufacturer’s guidelines.

C. REFERENCE(S}:

1. American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) and American College of OB and GYN (ACOG). (2012).

Guidelines for Perinatal Care, 7th ed.

2. California Code of Regulation, Title 22: Social Security, Volume 28, Revised, November 29,
1996. Barclays Law Publishers, South San Francisco, CA.

2:3. Steele, C., & Collins, E. A. (2019). Infant and pediatric feedings: guidelines for preparation of
human milk and formula in health care facilities (3rd ed.). Chicago, IL: Academy of Nutrition
and Dietetics.

160



~ Distribution.
@ Tri-City Medical Center DELETE RCP's no longer
RROCEDURE: INTUBATION intubate (including in the
Purpose: 0-outhn trained NICULRGR inpororming 4 NICU).

Perinatal
Coillaborative Pharmacy & Medical
Issuad: Reviewed: D;‘;:?s:‘:?t Practice g:::::t’::f Therapeutic Executive A B:::: d: Adml:;stratl
* Division of ™ | s Committee | Committea PP -
Neonatology
12/08, 9/09,
6/06 12/08 6/11, 4/15, 03/20 nfa nfa 03/20 oo
03/20

161



162



163



(C"'?J Tri-City Medical Center Women's and Children’s Services Manual - NICU
PROCEDURE: NICU DISASTER PROCEDURE
Purpose: Disasters in the NICU will be handled in a safe, orderly process.
Equipment: a. Color-coded Triage bands
b. Evacuation Vest
¢. Evacuation Back packs
A. POLICY:
1.  Refer to hospi i it i iz sed-
Hospital Wide Policy (#4071) and Emergency Operatlons Procedure Manual for additional
information.

ncu:lent commander wrll issue the order for evacuatlon if necessary
4:3. If an area of the NICU is in immediate danger the NICU Lieadership tTeam or designee/hliCY
eharge—nmse may initiate and dlrect evacuation in coordlnatlon with the neonatologlst

4. Infants WI|| be triaged for evacuatlon utilizing the “Tnage by Resource Allocation for IN-
patients [TRAIN]” process. Infants should be assessed and assigned a color triage band
daily, as indicated by colored magnet on assignment board. Triage bands for each infant
will be |dent|F ed daily by the charge nurse.

B. PROCEDURE:
1. The NICU {Leadership team—/sharge-nurse (or designee} shall:
a. Send a desrg-nated—st-a#—memberrepresentatwe to the mmdent command center

-Review patlents wrth neonatologist, determlnmg |f any

babies can be discharged to home.
&-d. Determine evacuation order in conjunction with neonatologist per TRAIN algorithm

and evacuate to desrgnated area.

Researee#taeahe&feﬁN—paﬂents—FFRAlN}-Evacuatlon order

i1}  Blue bands - evacuate te-designated-area-and discharge patients-home as
appropriate. Hrfant-must-be-transpoededinfant may be transported in a
car/car-seat.

#2) Green bands - evacuate te-designated-area-and transport to another facility

via ambulance (BLS)as-appropriate—via-wheelchairorstretcher:
h——Yellow bands - evacuate te-designated-area-and transfer to another facility
via-wheelchairor-stratcher via ambulance (ALS)

aerinata!

Medical Profaessional
Department Collaborative Pharmacy and Board of
Executive Administration Affalrs
Review Practicebivisien Therapeutics Committee Committ Directors
12/14, 2120 03720 nfa nia 05/20 4/15, nia 4ans

164



| Women's and NewbornGhildren's Services Maaual— NICU

NICU Disaster
\ Paga 20of5

¥:3) Orange bands - evacuate te-desigrated-area-and transfer to another facility
via critical care transport with RN +/- RT +/- MDvia-transport-rig

¥4) Red bands - lastto-be-evasuated-to-designated-areaevacuate and
transport andirstte-be-transforredto-anotherfasilit-via transport

figambulance or mihtary wnth speclallzed transport team and
equipment. F: i

5) Ieddy—Bear—Wh;tePurple bands-ﬁnal—evaeuahen—ﬁrem—the—NJGU- Evaeuatee\
Transported to the designated morgue area.

6) Infants with red and orange bands should be evacuated last but
transferred to another facility first when possible.
7) Iinjured staff is to be evacuated with the first evacuated infants.

Utilize the evacuation routes designated in the hospital disaster plan to

evacuate the NICU. Evacuation may be:

1) Horizontal ~infants may be transported on their warming tables,
isolettes, and cribs.

viiz2) Vertical ~-Employ the evacuation vests and backpacks to evacuate
infants; least sick infants may be placed in aprons

De5|gnate roles:

iv.

Ancillary Staff:
1) Take emergency supplies to evacuatlon site. Deeageate—aneﬂlaw—eta#—te

2) Maintain clear aisles for mobxllzatlon of equupment and supplies
during evacuation
Nursing Coordinator:

1) Accompany first infant to designated evacuation site
2) Provide oversight at evacuation site
3) Reevaluate infants as they arrive to evacuation site
4) Reband infants with appropriate color if condition has changed
Neonatologist:
)] Assist with evacuation of sicker infants.
2) If second neonatologist is available, he or she should be stationed at

the evacuation site to receive and evaluate infants upon arrival.
Unit Secretary or other staff designee:

1) Assist with communication and telephone calls under the direction of
NICU Leadership/designee.
2) Prepare and send all patient medical charts (preferably accompanying

each infant) to evacuation site,
b:3) Bring patient census/assignment sheet to evacuation site when
personally evacuated.

165



| Woments and NewbornChildrer's Services Manual- NICU
NICU Disaster
| Page 3 of 5

)

{-a) jonteroguiring-exvaen-ormechanics entilation-m
switched-lo-E-cylinderoxygen—Refer to Disaster Plan Pulmonary
Department for specifics

2. Do not use elevators for evacuation unless authorized by on-the-scene Fire Department
personnel.

3. Remain at designated evacuation site and do not return to the evacuated area unless ordered to
do so by the incident commander.

4, Assess and stabilize infants as soon as evacuation site has been reached.

B Make arrangements to transport to other NICUs as soon as possible.

= aVatalda = ALE) = ol aXal

andremove-them-to-a-5afe-area-
6. Reassure all patients and visitors that the emergency plan is in operation and not to be alarmed.
8&7. —Keep calm and follow directions.

166



| Women's and NewbornChildrarts Services Manaual— NICU

NICU Disaster

Page 4 of 5
3 6:8.  In the event of a power failure or medical gas failure:Care-of the- NICU-(powerfailura-or
I medisal-gasfailure)
a. Notify Bio Engineering, Respiratory Care Departrent, and the neonatologist at the first
indication of problems with electrical power or medical gases.
b. thtmg—Use ﬂashllghts Iocated in the unrt whenever—pewems-eut-and:f VISIblllty is
impaired.
c. Ventilation:
RN/RCP to linitiate hand ventilation by-the-RN-er-RGR-for all infants requiring mechanical
ventllatlon in the event of power failure.
i, F d : Soenans
d. Suction:
i. Use battery operated suction devices for ETT suctioning (if available) ofintubated
patients-or use Del.ee suction traps if wall suction is not operational.
if. Maintain-chest-tube-systerm-te-Heimlish-valvePlace chest tube to water seal.
e. Thermoregulation:
ki, —=aCover infant with blankets. If unable to maintain temperature, place infant on
covered chemical mattress or cover infant with thermal blanket and plastic wrap.
ef. Malntalmng infusion:
i. rr - -
battew—Replace lnfusmn pumps Iow on battery W|th a new pump.
i. Give slow IV pushes of appropriate IV fluids to maintain [V patency not to exceed
the hourly IV rate if no battery-powered pumps are available.
iii. Advance-continuous-feedings-manually-Manually administer feedings as
appropriate.
f£g9.  Monitoring vital signs:
) i. Use battery powered monitors and pulse oximeters (if available) for infants who
require continuous rnonitoring
i, -
eelerObtam wtal sugns manually as mdlcated
g-h.  Once power and/or gases are restored — ensure that patients are safely attached to
support devices and that all equipment is functional.
9. Mass Evacuation/Disasters:
#-a. In-the-ovonrteofa-mass-evacuation—as-with-disasters;Refer to online resource Southern
California Perinatal Transport System (SCPTS) should-be-contasted-for assistance in
determmmg bed avallablhty at surroundmg hospitals *
C. DOCUMENTATION:
1.

Patient documentatlon per downtlme protocol

167



| Women's and NewbomnGhildran's Services Manual— NICY
NICU Disaster
Page 5of 5

D.

RELATED DOCUMENTS:
+:1. Triage by Resource Allocation for IN-patient (TRAIN)

REFERENCES:

1. FEMGC-Disaster-ManualTCMC Emergency Operations Procedure Manual

4:2.  California Neonatal and Pediatric Coalition & Loma Linda Children’s Hospital (2013).
Pediatric/neonatal disaster reference guide [PDF). Pediatric-Neonatal Disaster & Surge
Network. Retrieved from
https://docs.google.com/viewer?a=v&pid=sites&srcid=ZGVmYXVsdGRvbWFpbnxwZWRpb
mVvbmV0d29ya3xneDo2ZTJhNzRhZDk1NmM3OTE3

3. Lin, A., Taylor, K., & Cohen, R. S. (2018). Triage by resource allocation for INpatients: A
novel disaster triage tool for hospitalized pediatric patients. Disaster Medicine and Public
Health Preparedness, 12(6), 692-696.

doi:http://dx.doi.org.lopes.idm.oclc.org/10.1017/dmp.2017.139).

= netaies B 2 Ard~arm Q0 al A

Triage by Resource Allocation for IN-patients [TRAIN™]

Stable + = Low flow oxypen

Neonatal/Pediatrics
Transpon Yallow/ALS omnge/CCT _
Life Suppon Statie Stabio « AN [l RN Maxemal
Mobitity carCarseat Whaelchair or SUstcnat | wWhddxnair o¢ stretchar Transpaort fig ncudbato! of Immobile
Nutrition Al PO mtormtont gntoral | CRLmUtS BN O | 1o, popandert
Pharmacy PO MeOs v intaemut maas IV Fluigs v Dnpxs v Dnp 22

Minimal = Oxypen hood, chest tube, atc
A CPAP/BIPAP{HI-Flow, Conventional Ventilator, Peiitoneal Dialysis, Externally paced,
oderate = .
Life Support continuous nebulizer treatments, etc
R Higlhly specialized equipt., e.g., Neonatal Ventilator, HFQV, ECMO, IND, CYVH, Berlin
aximal =
Heart, wt s 1.5 kg, specialized medical personnel, etc
Car/Carseat = | Able 10 ride in automobile with age-appropriate restraints
Mobility Incubator = Transport incubator with equipment for connecting to ambulance
Immobhile = Unsale to move vwithout special equipment e.g., neurosurgical /bariatiic
14

168



‘c% Women and Newborn Services Manual - NICU
Tri-City Medical Center DELETE - no longer needed
PROCEDURE: PRIMARY NURSE ASSIGNMENT

Purpose: 1. To promote continuity and efficiency of care T Oroer o opuMiZe OWCOMes Tor e

patient and their family.

2. To promote developmentally age appropriate, individualized, family-centered care for
the NICU infant and family.

3. To promote and increase family satisfaction and enhance morale of the NICU
Registered Nurse.

Departmant CoFI'IearI::::Ilve Pharmacy and ET: :t':t:ia\:a Administration Prc:?f:shi.:nal Board of
Raview PracticeDivisior Therapautics Committee Committes Directors
1215, 0220 Aa02/20, 03/20 nia nia 05/20 04/16, nfa 6/11; 812, 04/16

169



Women and Newbom Services Manual- MICU
Primary MNursa Assignmeani
Page 2 of 2

170



2
(C"} Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Outpatient Behavioral Health Services

SUBJECT: Admissieon-to-lnpatient Behavioral-Health-UnitPsychiatric Evaluation for Higher Level of

Care
ISSUE DATE:; 08/96
REVISION DATE(S): 05/98, 08/00, 10/01, 02/02, 02/03, 01/05, 06/07, 06/10, 04/13, 09/17
Department Approval: 1211603119
Division of Psychiatry Approval: 06/4703/20
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 071704/20
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: Q8% nia
Board of Directors Approval: 09/17

A. PURPOSE:

1. To define appropriate methods for admitting a patient to an inpatient psychiatric unit.

B. POLICY:

1. When a patient is in need of inpatient treatment, the program staif and attending physician will
arrange the admission.

C. PROCEDURE:
1. Who may perform/responsible: Clinical and Nursing Staff

a.

The treatment team, to include the Clinical Coordinator, Operations Manager and
Registered Nurse (RN) whenever possible, meets to triage the patient and determine the
need for inpatient admission.

The clinical staff contacts the attending psychiatrist to inform him/her of the current
situation and the staff's assessment of the patient and recommendations for admission.
If the attendlng psychlatnst concurs that admnssnon is necessary, sfthe-makes-the

Feeemmeneed the cllnlcal staff contacts the psychletrlc llalson te-mfenn—them—rege@ng
th&pete%at—admeesento conduct handoff commumcatlon Oﬂee-t-he-pattent—le

If the patlent refuses hospltahzatlon psychlatrlc evaluatlon in the Emergency
Department (ED}, the attending program psychiatrist makes a determination as to
whether a-held-is-nesessary—the Sheriff/PERT should be contacted to evaluate for
involuntary hold.

The staff will be responsible for arranging for transport of the patient and obtaining
consents from the patlent/conservator as needed Dependlng on level of l'ISk a patient

arrbulense:he transported by Tr| Ctty Medlcal Center van or accompamed by Staff
on the van if they are voluntarily agreeing to be evaluated for hospitalization.
Patients who are high risk, danger to self or others should be transported via
ambulance or the Sheriff. The staff will contact the local Sheriff/PERT to assist
with involuntary hold 5150 evaluation. OPBHS Staff may not place patients on
involuntary hold and must utilize local law enforcement for involuntary detention
evaluation.

171



Behavioral Health Outpatient

| Psychiatric Evaluation for Higher Level of CareAdmission-to-lnpatient-Behavioral-Health-Unit

Page 2 of 2

Staff will use the Situation, Background, Assessment, Recommendation (SBAR) process
to conduct hand off communication with the intake coordinator, psychiatric liaison, shift
Supervisor, MD, police department, or ambulance.

The program staff will notify the patient’s family or significant others of the transfer, in
accordance with the patient's wishes. If appropriate, the patient’s insurance reviewer is
contacted and informed regarding the inpatient admission.

Patient informationfrecords will be sent at the time of transfer. These records will include
diagnosis, pertinent financial/administrative information, current medical findings, current
medications and a brief summary of the course of treatment. Program nurse and clinical
staff will ensure accuracy of medication reconciliation and hand off communication.

172



(c") Tri-City Medical Center
' Oceanside, California | DELETE: No Longer LPS Facility

Outpatient Behavioral Health Services

| SUBJECT:— Involuntary-Patient Detention

ISSUE DATE:  08/96
| REVISION DATE(S): 05/98, 08/00, 10/01, 02/02, 02/03, 01/05, 06/07, 06/10, 04/13, 08/17

Department Approval: 12/4606/19
Division of Psychiatry Approval: 06H4-703/20
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 0FH4704/20
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: @84+ nla
Board of Directors Approval: 08/17

173



2
@ Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

OUTPATIENT BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICESUNIT

SUBJECT: Physician Progress Note

ISSUE DATE: 08/96

REVISION DATE(S): 05/98, 08/00, 10/01, 02/02, 02/03, 01/05, 06/07, 06/10, 04/13, 03/16
Department Approval-Bate{s): 1HH4811/19

Division of Psychiatry Approval-Date{s): 04+4603/20

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval-Date{s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval-Bate(s): 02/1604/20

Administration Approval: 05/20

Professional Affairs Committee Approval-Date(s): 83446 nfa

Board of Directors Approval Date{s}: 0316

A PURPOSE:

1. To define expectations for Physician and Allied Health Professional's (AHP's) Progress Notes.

B. POLICY:

1. All patients are evaluated on a regular basis by the attending psychiatrist or AHP.

C. PROCEDURES:
1. Who May Perform / Responsible: Program psychiatrist

a.

b.

C.
d.

Physicians and AHP’s are expected to evaluate patients and complete a progress note
at least monthly for all Outpatient Behavioral Health Service (OPBHS) patients.
Physicians must see the patient periodically to oversee the care and ensure quality of
services delivered in OPBHS.

Physicians must review AHP's notes to ensure quality care provision.

Open problems on the treatment plan should be addressed in the progress notes.

The progress note is to include a mental status exam, treatment plan, and justification
for continued treatment, interval history, medication changes and any changes in
diagnosis.

All progress notes are signed, dated and filed in the medical record.

174



)
@ Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

OUTPATIENT BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES

SUBJECT:

Psychiatric Emergencies

ISSUE DATE: 08/96
REVISION DATE(S): 05/98, 08/00, 10/01, 02/02, 02/03, 01/05, 06/07, 06/10, 04/13, 08/17

Department Approval: 12460319
Division of Psychiatry Approval: 06H703/20
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 044704/20
Administration Approvai: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 0817 n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/17
A. PURPOSE:
1. To define the appropriate methods of handling emergency psychiatric situations.
B. POLICY:

1. Psychiatric emergencies should be handled by the most qualified person(s) available. Patient

and staff safety are of prime concern.
C. PROCEDURE:

1. Who may perform/responsible: Clinical and Nursing Staff.

2, For minor psychiatric problems (i.e., agitation, oppositional behavior and verbal abuse of
others), attempts should be made to isolate the patient from others in the milieu, reduce
stimulation (i.e., noise, traffic), and prevent any further escalation of the behavior. Depending on
how receptive the patient is to staff intervention, he/she may be-permitted-te-rejoin the group, be
nstrusted-to-take a "time out" or be excused from the Outpatient Behavioral Health Services
(OPBHS) for the remainder of the day. The Registered Nurse (RN) may contact the
physician/Allied Health Professional (AHP) to evaluate the need for a-RRN-medication
adjustment.-

3 There's a psychiatric emergency box that contains emergency medications, such as Cogentin,
ard-Haldsl Benadryl, and Naloxone that can be utilized with physician order.

4, For major psychiatric emergencies (e.g., suicide attempt or violence), the safety and welfare of
the patient and the group are the primary concerns. Proceed by dialing 911, request the type(s)
of assistance needed (e.g., ambulance, police), and remove all other patients from the area. In
all cases, the patient's primary and attending psychiatrist (if not the same) are notified and
consulted in a timely manner.

5} Physical restraint is not used as a clinica! intervention. If a patient becomes violent, 911 must be
called immediately.

6. For both major and minor psychiatric emergencies,; the Clinical Coordinator, program RN, or

designated clinical staff member must assess the need for inpatient hospitalization. This

assessment must be made in consultation with the patient's attending psychiatrist. If the

attending psychiatrist cannot be reached, the Program Medical Director should be notified and
consulted. If the decision is made to admit-evaluate the patient for inpatient hospitalization, the
following procedures are followed:

a. The Clinical Coordinator, RN or Therapist discusses the need for inpatient
hespitalizationEmergency Department evaluation/inpatient hospitalization with the
patient. The patient's family, residential care provider, case manager, and/or primary
physician are also notified. If the patient agrees to voluntary admission, the staff makes

175



Outpalient Behavioral Health Services
Psychiatric Emergencies

Page 2 of 2
transportation arrangements and the patient is transported to the-inpatient-unit
Emergency Department. Relevant information from the chart (psychiatric evaluation,
assessments, treatment plan, medication list, etc.) will be sent to the inpatient
fasilityEmergency Department to ensure coordination of treatment.
&:b.
d-c.
agree to go to the Emergency Department for an evaluation, the local
police/Sheriff will be contacted.
7. Psychiatric emergencies that occur after program hours will be directed to call the 911, Fri-City
istri i i itor a psychiatric Crisis hotline.
8. If the psychiatric emergency results in the patients independently leaving the program during

normal treatment hours, the clinical staff notifies the primary and/or attending physician,
patient's family, residential care provider, case manager and anyone else actively involved in
the patient's care. Police should be notified, if appropriate, and in all cases when the patient
may be a danger to self or others, or gravely disabled.

9. All interventions and the results of the interventions must be documented in the patient's
medical record by the RN or clinician who managed the psychiatric emergency.

D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Behavioral Health Services Policy: Involuntary Hold Patients
E. REFERENCE(S):
1. Involuntary Treatment, Cal. S. 5150 — 5349.5, Chapter 2 (Cal. Stat. 1967).

176



@ Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

OUTPATIENT BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES

SUBJECT: Solicitation of Patients / Referrals to Self
ISSUE DATE: NEW

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval: 03/19
Division of Psychiatry Approval: 03/20
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/20
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a

Board of Directors Approval;

A PURPOSE

1.

To specify parameters with respect to the solicitation of patients or referrals to self.

B. POLICY

1.
2.

3.

Who may perform/responsible: OPBHS Clinical Staff

Tri-City Medical Center employees and-contrasted-empleyess-will not refer patients, directly or
indirectly, to their private practices.

Tri-City Medical Center employees and-cantracted-employess-will not, directly or indirectly,
approach, solicit or suggest to any patient (or patient's representative) that the patient should or
must see such employee on any basis outside the program(s} for additional care or therapy,
with the exception of those patients who were seen in the therapist's private practice prior to the
patient being admitted to the program. In such a case, referrals back to the therapist's private
practice is acceptable, if deemed clinically appropriate.

If additional treatment is needed, as determined by the treatment team a list of at least two to
three qualified therapists-therapists will be given to the patient for the patient’s selection.

An exception to the above is when a patient expresses an interest in centinuingte-seeing the
program psychiatrist afterdischarge-from-program. In that case, it would be acceptable for the
patient to eertiruete-be treated by the program psychiatrist in their private practice. This would
improve continuity of treatment and allow the patient more treatment options.

177



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE: 3/08 SUBJECT: Block Time

REVISION DATE(S): 6/09, 11/09, 4/15, 11/15, 02/17

Department Approval: 10/4603/20
Operating Room Committee Approval: 10/4603/20
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 041704/20
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 0217 nla
Board of Directors Approval: 02/17

A PURPOSE:

1.

To outline the granting, review, use and revocation of block time. Block time scheduling will be

provided in the operating room to regulate and ensure continuity of scheduling and to optimize
the utilization of the operating room.

B. DEFINITIONS:

hON=

Block Time: Surgical time consistently reserved for a surgeon, surgeon group or specialty.
Full Block: Eight (8) hours of time.

Half Block: Four (4) hours of time.

Release Time: Specified lead time prior to the day of the block which is a cutoff date or time.

a. If the block is not booked by this time, the time will become available for open booking.

b. If the surgeon voluntarily releases the block prior to the specified release date, the time
will not be included when the adjusted utilization is calcuiated.

c. If the block is not released prior to the specified lead time, the unused time is included in

the adjusted utilization.
Utilization: The amount of time used for surgical cases.
Utilization calculation: The amount of time used for surgical cases divided by the amount of
time allocated to the block.
Adjusted Utilization: Utilization calculated with released time subtracted from the allocated
time.

C. POLICY:
1. Requested/Approval of Block Time:
a. Surgeon, service or group may request time,
b. Hospital administration may request time on behalf of a new surgeon or service.
c. Block time will be granted based on actual/anticipated case volume.

d. Requests will be approved by the OR Committee.
Release Time: Release time may vary among individual block and percentage released,
depending upon utilization and type of service.

a. For utilization of 85% or greater for a three-month period: 24 hour release (except in
cases where 25% of the block time is released).
b. For utilization of 70-84%: 72 hour release.

178



Surgical Services

| Block Time
Page
20f2
3.

g &2 ?99

ki,

For utilization at or below 69%: 7 day release.

Robotic block times are released two (2) weeks in advance.

Released block time cannot be reclaimed once released and-if other cases are
scheduled during the time.

Released block time can be reclaimed if no cases are scheduled in the time.

If the block time is voluntarily released before the assigned release time, the released
time does not count in the adjusted utilization calculation.

If the block time is not voluntarily released before the automatic release time, then
unused time will be included in the adjusted utilization.

Adjustments to release times will be made quarterly (January, April, July, October)
based on the prior quarter’s utilization.

Maintenance of Block Time:

a.
b.
c.

d.
e.

-

Monthly block time utilization reports will be distributed to individual surgeons.
Monthly block time utilization reports will be reviewed at OR Committee.
Quarterly (January, April, July, and October) block utilization will be reviewed and the

block time may be increased, reduced or revoked based on the prior six-month average.

Block utilization must be at 60% adjusted or 50% unadjusted to retain block time.

If utilization for the previous quarter falls below requirements, the surgeon/surgeon
group/service will be notified of the deficiency.

Periadic reviews of block time and surgeon on time arrival by the OR Committee may
result in further adjustments to or reinstatement of block time.

Generally, action is taken based on a rolling six-month average, NOT by per month
average.

179



(@9 Tri-City Medical Center

Surgical Services

PROCEDURE:

CELL SAVER SET-UP, USE AND MONITORING

Purpose:

To outline the steps for cell saver set-up, use, and monitoring in surgery for recovery
and reinfusion of the patient's own blood.

Supportive Data:

The cell saver device is an autotransfusion system for intraoperative processing of blood
lost through surgery or trauma. Blood from the surgical field is anticoagulated, coliected
in a sterile collection reservoir, and processed in a continuous washing process to obtain
washed packed red cells for reinfusion to the patient. During this process all plasmatic
and non-erythrocytic cellular components of the collected blood, and thus activated
coagulation factors, products of fibrinolysis, cell trauma, and anticoagulant, are
removed.

| | Equipment: * Haemonetics Cell Saver 5* Machine » Heparin 30,000 Units
e Cell Saver Collection Reservoir e 5mL Syringe
¢ Bowl and Harness Disposable Set + Medication Added Label

| (125mL)  0.9% NaCl 3000mL Bag (Wash)
e Anticoagulant Suction Line ¢ 3mL Syringe with Needie
¢ Yankauer Suction Tip e 18 gauge Needie
» Transfer Packs with Viaflex Bags ¢ TUR Tubing Set
e Alcohol Swabs x3 e Fenwell Adapter

| » _0.9% NaCl 1000mL Bag (Imigation)

INSTALLATION OF THE MACHINE DISPOSABLES:

1. Power ON the Cell Saver 5% by pressing the white ON/OFF button focated on the right side of
the lower cabinet. The machine will perform a self-test. Do NOT use the machine unless it
passes the self-test.

2. Open reservoir, load reservoir into bracket and close step-down clamp.

Lh Attach regulated vacuum source (wall suction) to yellow-capped port on reservoir. Keep suction
in the green-range of £150 to -200mmHg).

4, Open the bowl and harness disposable set and place the bowl firmly into the centrifuge well with
higher inlet port facing left.

5. Hang the waste bag on the three support pins located on the front of the machine.

a. Ensure the drain port on the bottom of the waste bag is closed.

6. Lock support arm around bowl header.

a. A click will be felt or heard.
b. Ensure the bowl is level and spins freely.

7. Insert effluent tubing into line sensor.

8. Insert the {ubing from the inlet port into the air detector.

9, Open the pump piaten.
a. Thread the pump tubing around the pump and place tubing manifold into its slots.
b. Close the pump platen, manifold/valve door and latch.

10.  Close the centrifuge and fluid deck covers.

11.  Hang the reinfusion bag on the IV pole and close small clamps on pigtails.
a. Ensure blue line tubing clamps are open and twist-lock connection is secure.

12. Connect the red line tubing to the bottom of the collection reservoir and open step-down clamp.

13. Hang wash solution (3808-mi3L 0.9% NaCl bag) on the IV pole.

14. Close both yellow line tubing clamps and spike salire-0.9% NaCl bag(s).

15. Open yellow line clamp(s) on salire-0.9% NaCl bag(s) to be used.

16.  Once the disposable set is loaded properly, press START and the system will dispiay
CURRENT SETTINGS.

Operating Pharmacy & Madical Profassional
[ opeamentRevies | gty | oRoom,, | Theewics | eouhs | gl | M| oo
SR,
0012, %%12 %: 8. nia g:;% 05/17,03/20 | 06/17, 04120 05/20 07117, nfa 07/17

180



Surgical Services
Cell Saver Set-Up, Use and Monitoring
Page 2 of 4

a. While in CURRENT SETTINGS, the operator may press YES to restore default settings.
b. The display prompts the operator to press START to begin a procedure.

| B. COLLECTION SET-UP:
1. Prepare the anticoagulant solution.
I a. Add 30,000 Units of Heparin into 1000mL bag of 0.9% Sedium-ChiorideNaCl.
b. Complete the Medication Added label and attach to the heparinized saline bag.

c. Hang the heparinized saline bag on the |V pole located on the right of the machine.
2. Open the sterile suction line and pass it to the sterile field using aseptic technique.
3. Connect the suction tubing to the yellow port of the reservoir and to the regulated wall suction,

and turn ON suction. Do NOT use Neptune as suction source for Cell Saver machine.

a. Regulate suction to keep between -150 and -200mmHg.

b. Vacuum levels greater than -200mmHg may cause hemolysis.

Receive suction line from the sterile field and attach to blue-capped port on collection reservoir.
Spike the heparinized salire-0.9% NaCl bag.

Prime the collection reservoir with 200mL of heparinized saline0.9% NaCl.

a. Regulate the anticoagulant drip rate to approximately one drop per second.

a0

| C. COLLECT FIRST OPTION:

1. Use the collect first method if it is not clear that sufficient volume will be collected during a
procedure to process for reinfusion.
2. Set up the machine for collect first;
a. Load collection reservoir into bracket and close step-down clamp.
b. Attach regulated vacuum source to yellow-capped port on reservaoir.
c. Receive sterile suction line(s) from the field and attach to blue-capped pori(s) on
reservoir.

d. Prepare, hang and spike heparinized salinre-0.9% NaCl solution (as described in B.1)
e. Prime reservoir with 200mL heparinized salire-0.9% NaCl solution, then adjust drip rate
of heparinized salire-0.9% NaCl to 1 drop/second.
<p Load Cell Saver 5* processing set if sufficient blood volume is collected.

| D. PROCESSING IN AUTOMATIC MODE:
1. The FiLL mode automatically begins when the preset reservoir level is reached.
a. To begin processing prior to reaching this preset fluid level, press START.
| b. The Cell Saver 5* automatically advances through the FILL, WASH, and EMPTY modes
if enough salvaged blood and wash solution are available.

2. The machine automatically advances to the WASH mode when the RBC's reach the optics trip
point, ¥4 inch over the shoulder of the Latham bowl.
3. If there is an insufficient volume of blood collected for the RBC's to reach the trip point, the air
detector senses air from the red line and the system enters the STANDBY mode.
a. The machine automatically resumes the FILL mode when the “Resume At" Level has
been reached.
4, In the WASH mode, the programmed minimum volume of wash solution is pumped into the bowl

to dilute the supernatant contaminants with the RBC's.
o8 The EMPTY mode stops the spinning of the centrifuge.

a. The contents of the bowl are pumped through the blue line to the reinfusion bag.

6. The CONC mode is commonly used at the end of a procedure when no more blood loss is
expected and there are not enough red bloed cells to fill the bowl.
a. In this mode, red cells in the reinfusion bag are pumped to the bowl.

7. The RETURN mode pumps the bowl contents to the reservoir.

181



Surgical Services

Cell Saver Set-Up, Use and Monitoring

Page 30f 4
| E.

| F.

QUALITY CONTROL:
Test Hematocrit on first bow! of processed blood prior to administration for Quality Control
monitoring.

1.

EMERGENCY MODE:

The EMERGENCY mode may be used when the reservoir is filling too fast due to rapid blood
loss and it is necessary to process blood urgently for immediate transfusion.

The EMERGENCY mode will process blood solution continuously through the FILL, WASH, and
EMPTY modes until no more RBC's remain in the reservoir.

1.
2.

5.

a.

b.

When the reservoir is empty, the Cell Saver 5" will automatically return to Automatic
mode.

The operator may also choose to Concentrate or RETURN cells to reservoir while in the

EMERGENCY mode.

Red cells may spill into the waste bag as a result of choosing the EMERGENCY option, due to
the increased pump rate.
To enter EMERGENCY option:

a.
b.
c.

Press the MODE key twice within two seconds.

Press the YES key within 5 seconds to confirm.

If the YES key is not pressed within 5§ seconds, or the NO key is pressed, the Cell Saver
5+ will revert back to the Automatic mode.

To exit EMERGENCY mode and return to Automatic mode, press the MODE key once.

PARTIAL BOWL OPTION:

1.
2.

Use partial bowl option to process a partial bowl of blood at the end of a procedure or whenever
it is necessary to process blood before a full bowl has been collected.
To process a partial bowl:

a.
b.

C.

Press WASH to begin partial bowt wash.

Double the programmed wash volume by pressing the YES key to automatically double
the programmed wash volume for that wash cycle only.

Blood processed in a partial bowl! cycle may have a lower hematocrit than blood
processed in a normal full bowl cycle.

To concentrate RBC's:

a.
b.

if RBC's in reinfusion bag, press CONC to fill bowi.
Wash with minimum wash volume.

EMPTY THE BLUE LINE:

At the completion of the procedure, approximately 40mL of RBC's remain in the blue line that
should be emptied to the reinfusion bag.

Do not empty the blue line during the procedure or the bowl displacement air will be lost
adversely affecting subsequent EMPTY modes.

To empty 40mL remaining in the blue tubing into the reinfusion bag:

1.
2.
3.

a.
b.

C.

DONE AT END OF CASE ONLY for last bowl processed!

Press START, then press EMPTY, and repeat (Press START then EMPTY) until the
blue striped line is empty,

Alternatively, when the EMPTY mode is complete and prior to entering STANDBY a
message will flash for 10 seconds “Is Case Completed? Y/N". If the NO key is pressed
or no action is taken within 10 seconds, the machine will enter STANDBY. If the YES
key is pressed within 10 seconds, the following message will flash: “Empty Blue Line?
Y/N". If the YES key is pressed, the machine will empty the line at 100mL/min and then
enter STANDBY. If the NO key is pressed, the machine will enter STANDBY without
emptying the line.

182



Surgical Services
Cell Saver Set-Up, Use and Monitoring
Page 4 of 4

[ .

EMPTY AND CHANGE THE WASTE BAG:
1. When emptying/changing the waste bag, do not lose the displacement air from the system. If
this occurs, the bowl may not empty properly.
2. Empty the waste bag by draining waste fluid into an empty container for discard or use an extra
suction line to suction out the waste bag.
a. DO NOT completely empty the waste bag. Unless the bowl is completely empty, keep
fluid level in the waste bag ABOVE the drain port, to prevent loss of displaced air.
3. Change the waste bag at the end of the EMPTY mode, only when the machine is at rest to
prevent the loss of displacement air.
a. Prior to removing the full waste bag, press STOP to ensure that processing does not
begin.
b. When the new bag is installed press START to resume.

DOCUMENTATION:

1. Document the following information in the
Recordpatient’s electronic health record (EHRY):

Cell Saver operator's name

Cell Saver machine identification number

Type and amount of anticoagulant used

Volume collected in reservoir

Volume returned to patient

Wash volume

Hematocrit of first processed unit (QC)

Name of person reinfusing blood

Comment section to document any complications and/or adverse reactions during the

procedure

~T@~ppooow

BREAKDOWN AND CLEANING:

1. Power the machine OFF.

2. Close all clamps on the disposable tubing.

38 Cap all open ports on the collection reservoir.

a. Tubing stubs and caps included with the reservoir and processing kit may be used for
closing open ports.

Remove the waste bag from support pins (may be emptied before removing).

Remove the bowl from the centrifuge well.

Remove the remaining tubing harness.

Remove the collection reservoir; keep tubing harness connected to reservoir outlet to avoid fiuid

spill.

Place the machine disposables in a biohazardous waste bag.

disinfectantClean machine per manufacturer’s instructions for use (IFU).
a. To prevent damage to the machine, Bdo not spray or pour disinfectant solution

directly on machine.
&10. Prepare machine for next use by replacing all disposables.

NoOOAs

©o
]
D
]
P
)
s
)
L)
1)
3
D

M-L. REFERENCE(S):

1. Haemonetics Cell Saver 5* System Operator's Manual

183



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

RERLAMNEETHES - MURSINCSERMLES

ISSUE DATE:

04/94

SUBJECT: CPR IN Surgerysurgical Services

REVISION DATE(S): 02/05; 07/09; 4442; 01/13

Department Approval: 02/20
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/20
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: nfa
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/20
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa
Board of Directors Approval: 0113

A DEFINITION(S):

Surgical SuiteServices: Includes Pre-eOperative Hold (POH)area, Progressive Care Unit
(PCU) POH, -Operating-SuitsSurgery, Endoscopy, and Post Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU).

1.

B. POLICY:
1.

2.

Code Blue resuscitation efforts will be implemented on any patient suffering cardiac and/or
respiratory arrest in the surgical suite, as appropriate to patient’s code status.

A ~Gede/Crash Cari” will-be-maintained-and-ready-foruse-atalHimesis available for use at all
times in Surgery, POH, PCU-POH, and PACU. Crash Carts in Surgical Services are

maintained per Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Emergency Carts.
Emergency cardiopulmonary resuscitation

Q\BeFatng-ReemsSurgery

a.

I+-|

il

iw=ii.

wiv,

vV,

wikvi,

The anesthesiologist will indicate when a patlent is in a state of cardiac and/or
respiratory arrest and will direct resuscitative efforts.

The surgeon, assistant or other personnel trained in BLS will initiate chest
compressions per the anesthesiologist’s direction.

The circulating nurse or designee will call for additional help as needed (call the
Supervisor/designee to recruit additional help STAT, or overhead page the
need for additional help, as applicable), star-the-time-elapsad-clock-andior
nethenote the time of the code begins, and assist the anesthesiologist as
necessary.

Rerson-{s)Personnel responding to the code will bring the crash cart (including
defibrillator) and-defibrifator-to the room.

The circulating nurse or another member of the nursing staff will be designated to

record the events on the “Code Blue Records" and eemplet-e—t-he—eleetreme

details of the event in the patlent’s Electronlc Health Record (EHR).
Fhe-sScrubbed personneltechnisian-rurse will maintain the sterile field and
supplles as the S|tuat|on warrants.

pevil.

Addmonal avallable GR-staff members shall remain outsrde the room (but still
within close proximity) to rur-additionaltasksperform duties as assigned.

184



Surgical Services

| PolicyFile-CPR in Surgical Services

~ Page20f2

*ii?viil A hospﬂal-wude "Code Blue page may be mrtlated
when necessary, at the discretion of the anesthesiologist and circulating RN.

POH:

i Initiate a hospital-wide “Code Blue” page.
PCU-POH:

i. Initiate a hospital-wide “Code Blue” page.
PACU:

i Initiate a hospital-wide “Code Blue” page.

A A hospitabwide.“Code.Bla? ilbe initiatod.

Endoscopy (OR 12):

i A-hespital-wide—Cede-Bluepage-will-be-initiatedinitiate a hospital-wide “Code
Blue” page.

185



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY
ISSUE DATE: 1011 SUBJECT: Hysteroscopy
REVISION DATE(S): 444201/13
Department Approval: 02/20
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/20
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: nfa
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/20
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa
Board of Directors Approval; 0113
A, PURPOSE:
1. To outline fluid selection, fluid management parameters, and patlent safety con5|derat|ons in
hysteroscopac procedures <hsg z g 3
B. DEFINITION(S):

1. -Diagnostic hysteroscopy: Endoscopic visualization of the uterine cavity and tubal orifices to aid in
the diagnosis of intra-uterine disease.

2. Operative hysteroscopy: Endoscopic visualization of the uterine cavity and tubal orifices and
treatment of intrauterine disease.

3. -Fluid deficit: The amount of fluid retained through extravasation during a hysteroscopic
procedure. The fluid deficit is the amount of distending fluid infused during the procedure minus
the amount of fluid recovered either by manual measurement or by measurement by the
hysteroscopy fluid management system.

C. POLICY:
1. Antibiotic prophylaxis is not recommended for routine hysteroscopic procedures.

+2. The-hysteroscopy-Ruid-pump-with-balansing-A fluid management system shall enly-be used for

all hysteroscopies.-fer-the-purpese-ef-introdusing-fluid-into-the-uterine-savity-

23.  Fluid selectlon

b-a. Nennal—SalmeO 9% Sodlum Chlorlde willbe-used-for-uterine-distention-when-bipelar
instrumentation-will-be-usedis the fluid media of choice for diagnostic hysteroscopy
and in operative cases where mechanical, laser, or bipolar energy is used.
Monopolar electrosurgery is contraindicated with 0.9% Sodium Chloride.

186



Surgical Services
Hystaroscopy
Page 2 of 2

i At fluid deficit of 1500mL, consider completing the procedure.
iiii.  Atfluid deficit of 2500mL, conclude the procedure immediately.
34. Patients undergoing hysteroscopy procedure will be monitored for fluid deficit to prevent fluid

overload.

a. Monitor the amount of fluid dispensed and collected during the procedure.

ab.  The hysteroscopy-pfluid management pump displays fluid inflow volume (the total
volume that goes into the patient) and the fluid deficit (the volume that is missing from the
scale).

b-c.  The hysteroscopy pump automatically tracks fiuid deficit throughout the case, measuring

and updating the fluid deficit display every 30 seconds.

e-d.  The “Deficit alert icon” on the pump alarms when the fiuid deficit increases dramatically in
a short time (greater than or equal to 300mL/minute).
de. The hysteroscopy pump is programmed with a deficit threshold of 500mL. When this fluid

deficit is reached, the pump will sound an alarm and the deficit value will blink
continuously.

ef.  After each additional 100mL over the selected threshold, three warning tones will sound
and the deficit display will blink.

£g.  The circulating nurse shall monitor the fluid inflow volume and fluid deficit throughout the
case and notify the surgeon and Anesthesiologist when the fluid deficit reaches 500mL,
and every 100mL thereafter.

4:5.  An air embolism can result from air contained in the tube set or connected instrument reaching

the patient. To prevent air embolism:;

a. Properly prime the tubing and instrument before use, per manufacturer's
instructions for use {IFU).

a&b. Enﬁk%—ﬁ%&Fe—rs—aMeys—ﬂmd—m—ﬂae—mgaﬂen—bags—dDo not aIIow lrngatlon bags to run dry.

5-6.

manufacturer s IFU for hysteroscopy pump set-up and operatlon
6-7.  Monitor the patient for physiologic changes, including core temperature, Iaboratory test

results (e.g., electrolytes, coagulatlon studles) and potentlal ﬂu:d retentlon in the
abdomen face, and neck er=ta

D. DOCUMENTATIONS:
1. Document the following in the Perioperative Record:
a. Type of irrigation fluid used
ab. Fluid deficit {(in mL).

E. REFERENCE(S):

1. The Use of Hysteroscopy for the Diagnosis and Treatment of Intrauterine Pathology.
ACOG Committee Opinion No. 800. American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists.
Obstet Gynecol 2020;135:e138-48.

2. AORN Inc (2020) Gmdehnes for Penoperattve Practfce Denver

187



o
(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE: 04/94 SUBJECT: Intraoperative Deaths
| REVISION DATE(S): 02/05; 06/09; 14/4201/13

Department Approval: 02/20
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/20
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: nfa

| Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/20
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a

| Board of Directors Approval: 01/13

A PURPOSE:
1. To outline nursing and physician responsibilities in the event of an intraoperative death.

| B. POLICY:
1. NURSING RESPONSIBILITIES
: a. Notify a member of the Surgical Services leadership team (i.e., Director, Assistant
Director, or Supervisor) and Nursing Administration (i.e., Admlnlstratwe Supervisor)
of intraoperative-patient deaths in the Operating Room (OR)
b. Document the death as-a-surgical-complication-in-the-lntraoperativein the patient’s
Electronlc Health Record (EHRY), lncluding details of events preceding the death

C. Obtain a post-mortem kit from-the-ea j erile-Processin
Beparrment{SRD};and -follow manufacturer s mstructlons for use (IFU) Ereparusages

d. Complete a Quality Review Report (QRR) via the RL systemFill-sut-an-insident-report.

e. Notify the Coroner of all deaths occurring in the OR.

f. If the Coroner accepts the case, leave all invasive devices erand lines intact, including,
but not limited to, intravenous/vascular catheters, bladder catheters, drains, and
endotracheal tube.

g. If necessary and under the approved direction of the Coroner, the body may be moved to

an mere-appropriate location for holding or viewing.{-e—anether Operating-Reem-or
PAGLY-

h. If the Coroner declines the case, the Surgeon determines the disposition of the body (i.e.
autopsy, mortuary). Contact a Perioperative Aide er¥ransperterto trasnspertransport
the bedy to the morgue.

i. The Coroner or Mortuary must sign for body's release, when occurring directly from the
OR.

k. After the Surgeon and Anesthesrologlst have completed thelr documentatlon send the
paper chart to Medical-Recordsthe Administrative Supervisor.

188



Surgical Sarvices
Intraoperative Deaths
Page 2 of 2

l

Refer to Patient Care Services Ratient ExpirationRelease of Deceased Policy for
additional details on patient expiration.

2. MEBRICALPHYSICIAN RESPONSIBILITIES

a.
b.

:ES"

Attending-pThe physician pronounces the deceaseddeath.

Physician may need to inform the Coroner of circumstances surrounding the death; if the
Coroner refusesdeclines/releases the case, the physician determines the disposition of
the body (i.e. autopsy, mortuary).

Physician informs the family/significant other(s) of patient's outcome.

The physician shall communicate the patient’s expiration to the admitting physician
or other providers as appropriate,

189



(w) Tri-City Medical Center Surgical Services DELETE
PROCEDURE:  ORGAN TISSUE PROCUREMENT Add content to PCS Organ
Purpose: To outline the steps for organ procurement Donation, Including Tissue and
Supportive Data: Eyes

Equipment:

Operating Pharmacy & Madical Professional

D?%Tv?s':zm Room z;‘z:;:;‘ o Therapeutics Exacutiva Administration Affairs 3 I::;:Io:;
Committee ogy Committee Committea Commiittee

02!0&/?2/09: 03/20 nia nfa 04/20 0113

190



Surgical Services
Organ Tissue Procurement
Page 2 of 2

191



‘..1
& Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

| ISSUE DATE:

06/00 SUBJECT: Perioperative Documentation

REVISION DATE(S): 02/02; 02/06; 11/12; 08/15

Department Approval: 03/20
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/20
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/20
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/15
A PURPOSE:

21,

POLICY:

1.

As part of the patient’s legal health record, the perioperative patient healthcare record
should reflect the plan of care, including patient assessment findings, nursing
interventions performed, and patient outcomes.

The electronic health record (EHR) should reflect continuous reassessment and evaluation
of the perioperative nursing care and the patient’s response to implemented nursing
interventions.

The components of clinical documentation shall include, but not be limited to the
following elements, as applicable to each case:

Assessments

Clinical problems

Communications with other health care professionals regarding the patient
Communication with and education of the patient, patient’s family members, and
the patient's designated support person (as applicable)

Medication records

Order acknowledgement, implementation and management

Patient care interventions

Patient clinical parameters

Patient responses and outcomes, including changes in the patient’s status
Plans of care that reflect the social and cultural framework of the patient
Pertoperattve nursing documentation should correspond with established guidelines and
practices for perioperative nursing care, health care accreditation organization
requirements, Tri-City Medical policies and procedures, and local, state, and federal
regulatory requirements.

The names, roles, and credentials of all individuals participating in the patient's care, as
well as observers in the procedure, must be recorded in the patient health care record.

eoom

Sa ™o

h- ——

192



Surgical Services

Perioperative Documentation

. Page20of19

C.

6. Applicable segments of the perioperative record shall be completed in the EHR for each
procedure, including, but not limited to:

a. Pre-Operative Checklist (including documentation of the Pre-Procedure Verification
process)

b. Case times

c. Case attendees

d. Skin assessment

e. Patient positioning

f. Procedural verification for all procedures performed in the case (i.e., Time Out)

g. Fire risk assessment

h. General case data, including location of the procedure, patient ASA score, wound
classification, and pre-operative and post-operative diagnosis

i. Surgical procedure(s) and anesthesia type(s)

i Skin preparation and hair removal

k. Counts, including outcomes of counts and follow-up actions for incorrect counts

I Patient care devices

m. Laser information and laser safety measures

n. Cautery used, including settings, lot number and expiration date of return
electrode, and skin assessment before and after return electrode placement

0. Tourniquet, including settings and skin assessment before and after tourniquet use

p. Catheters, drains and tubes

q. Medications administered on the sterile field

r. Irrigation fluids

s, Cell Saver (i.e., blood salvage system) information, including machine identification
number, anticoagulant used, volume collected in the reservoir and volume returned
to the patient, wash volume, hematocrit (QC) of the first processed bowl, and name
of personnel reinfusing blood

t. All surgical specimens and cultures sent

u. Implants and prosthetics, including all identifiers as applicable

v. Dressings

w. OR departure information

X. Charges for supplies used during the procedure (i.e., Pick List)

7. Tissue lmp!ants shall be documented in the Carefusion Tssue and Implant Module (TIM)
system, using the Carefusion TIM application icon located on each computer desktop in
Surgery. Refer to Carefusion Pyxis Tissue and Implant Module User Guide for complete
guidelines.

REFERENCES:

B-1. AORN, Inc. (2020). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver.

193



Surgical Servicas
Perioperative Documentation
Page 3 of 19

[ ErTe———"

B [ e
* Caw
[
Lune turww RS T L S T ianee
¢ Pue
. oNTY
LTI Yy
3 Cl R LT YL STy TRy P
[oF HEN )] Bewlumr Froww |1 i w0 Moi Modatua 1 &, Mesiiei Faren
3 UL EAE  Mewhar fdww | ovey ol bpae Buguize (08 Seacis P
(23 MG RIETT e P Fpaaar | vt o0 b Fitlotcs 30 8, odzing Poryrt
L Capwrt o Loparstorn 1 4 b P s] el
TS A T ot
LR st LAl HX Hrdsbtadal U eresd
[ BT D1t " bl lmiad Wt oremad
N ITRINDE By aamey dndva ¥
Y ma Comaman bratin
BLlE mx Copamer v ¥
kD ax WAN AT Fagie everd Tainl i fa0] Comami drwea
T x UL IS Lperem (b eatam § Ol S0 Qi M b Tarw kipm 3
) X it [ Opwmra Dwargepee N & For dogm 3
] nx WAL L O LR T MNA few anl
. nx AR TN L Do 1 g Py
5 P WLLFIE e lunr Togwo T o er U Fomron Ml
o MAI TS Ruw Foma, Ptorne |3 wwey wit by ns Pt B4 8y
L) WL L B Potomw § S wrm o0 Ly Bapmry 14 4
on BAIEIIE ] Bt R Poiote B3 wvert i bt gy 51 1
n BRI Coerwr Lo enmey s 2 M orma 2 L
B-p iy Foim parmem

)

194



Surgical Services
Perioperative Documentation

Page 4 0f 19
HHN 11720465
Name: Tratn, SNjki
Age B1Y¥nns
Gyl Surmnary | Detads | Orden | Guadelras | Netfxwtin | Corverpation, Summares | Linerwies
F @ Ssgery
Dats Tere
ES2ms il 171
Trackewy Locaton
THane -
Corrmerty
Penon Hame  Enc Type
Tron, S Schechded
Reauen bomaton
Madcat Record Fecusnied %]
Statuss of Machey! Record Requat
[ ox [r—

195



Surgical Servicas
Perioperative Documentation
Page 5 of 19

-;n- BT Yew Mo [t (e Deaes] Adlet rap
e Come dobecaor i Pk Lt Thchecan I QueliyReresmamres | (ires | e ot I Boen Brom e Jraona Frenee e YWeen
Trom, LMY = ===
Traln, SNkl J ABergies: Aberiges it = Wlitar St

tohasl T IOOTRIS A ade STt
2 vy TR D

BEwe e P Bato vt ] BRL <Ry Canee

Pllmaren £y g

B BT LA dowmrtieier -

o5 Aderghes Bot
i -

t dmiemn St

v p Fres vt

Prbers Poviionng L

3] ! Prooedursl Vertliostion Checidial
| Gereral Case Dots I ot
5 - XL
Sion Prap IT
Conrts Vnlitalion:
= Sy S A F S eder Sugcal Sevvce
Capary -
Catheters. Crana. Tubes '
Machomticn (g sk
T Medication Labeled . i
Impation kiaks Add Cioar Py Hastso
Sowtisate/Cdhrm
ot ey By BERY LR wnwhienier - 0 - MDD
R v [SiweeTe I
= Y~
3 Q) Fo Cov Aoy
.

196



Surgical Services
Perioperative Documentation
Page 6 of 19

Case Attendes ftole Perf Other Attandes Recorded by: Tume I
Q'mmmrﬂs , Toreey D Asustant
'EICoopefmm , Andrew M,  Pritasry Surgeon

L} [ 3
= Eage Altendes: = Aghe Peformad

stoith, Mukiple Maiche (! -

Bilher Atiendee 2

I~ Recorded by
= Tne irc ; r~ Time Out:
L i - =:| I e -
= Flocedae
™ Replacement Toral Hip [Leit)
Add [ Clon | it Prev -Houl:-!- ]

B U BEEE § B Moosohsanssenf - 10 - $447 W

ﬁi'ﬂuﬂm 1 .
Q) Pre Care Acivey =
) Poz Care Actvty -

¢ 0] 1 5

197



Surgical Services

Perioperative Documentation

Page 7 of 19

fed Bt e Folnt Dutt LR (Barwmt Al tep

T, ke

e Lewern g Pawertimt Ticvan UL QuastyKenseenrn e o | R ewon T

st Horewr P saowd Prur T cocumts | Brewor binoe e

= Lal = |l -

e —

7y FEA LR vomheeier - ou - BT

O ie - 2
C o Corw ity

Q Fost Law Actury =

. ' -

TPer Hat:

A Y@ moonfiSemsens - 0w - W

| 12

198



Surgical Services
Perioperative Documantation
Page 8 of 19

@ CareFusion

Pyxis® Tissue and Implant module
VMRS ;

Swnlact Tmak 10 Start

199



Surgical Services
Perioperative Documentation
Page 9 of 19

Pyxra® Tissue anef Fmplact module

iR O
EI Fadlami

sur“ .

Temnorary Patent
FulwrilD hgms L
Fasert e Llwgn
\ ! ! T ol 2etn
-
= = e
Lrgezn Teaan e By
Cume o ugt

Sean ot Enter fmplant ID

SnartBeep

Finluks

Pafient Confirmation

Patient Information

Patlent 1D 123xxx21

Patient Name BLOODCARE, TEST 10
Patlent Account Number 123xxx21
Brete—eiBirth 194811078

Sex Female

Provider Not Avallable

Admlitting Status

in Patient

Is this the correct patient?|

200



Surgical Services
Perioperative Documentation
Page 10 0f 19

Implant ID Far:llty Hem andor/ [nonor 1n/Lot rSen_a_l 'Exp:ratmn T(‘.atalog

| T -'namt' r e MANUTACET T [ UMDeEr - = TMLIMDEr =] Uate = 'l'Illl'l'IU(!l' 1
. i 1

Bvendor 2

Fitem One

[ DEar oo
Number St._:rial Number

iMPz2 Namel 465 26458 12/ 20.- Catt

201



Surgical Services
Perioperative Documentation
Page 11 0f 18

SmartPrap

| Donow 1D/Ein |

| ]
Implant D 1 Faciity llem Name | 00 7 | Seria Niamtber } Expiration Date | Catalog Numbes

HA L) Hamel LEG <5155 132020t Ca1l .l

Preparation

Frepaiation Required Itern prepared aceording to manufactirer’s

) Ha instruction?

v iy
imptantatien €. QOves Ohio

Solution and Antibiotic

Jo!

Rehydration
Time/Antiblotic Expiration Date
Dosayn

Fimsh

Final Dhsposition Date Final Dispositinn Time

16 42 O

1141312014

i

Facility

Name

Implant
e

| Catalog | Preparation

L Rreparation
NimMbar | Require) -

TRsthiClibhs

[1P43 Named Catd Yes

Yes ]

Final Disposition

Select v

Tissue Usage Info Card

Implant ID | ¥acility Item Name !Vendorllrlnnulndurcr Lmail Address

202



Surgica! Services
Perioperative Documantation
Page 12 of 19

@ CareFusion

Tissue Usage Information Card

Implant id; IMP211

Purchase Order Number: 3]

Name of Faclitty:

Address 1:

Address 2:

Clty State Zip:

Facility ltem Name; FANY

Lot Number: 1

Serial Number: 1

Marnuf, Cataleg Number: 0981

Tissue Status: Implanted

Vendor Name: vendor iname

Vendor Malling Address: vandorinddiess
City vendoricaty
State GA
Zip Code 12345

Vendor Fax Numbes

P stienidr 42338

Date of Surgery: 11272014

Patient Name; TEST 11 BLOCDCARE

Implasnt Surgeon: 12

Date of Birth: HA1195T

Implantation Site: 12

Procedure Typa: 12

The reason ifimplant discarded:  N/A
Signature:

Date:

Name:

Title:

Page 1ol 1

203



Surgical Services
Perioperative Documentation
Page 13 of 19

OR Huring Record -

| Documentation Prek Lt

—y BR Nursing Recosd Group

! Case Times

| ! Cate Altendess
b Antibiotic Prophylax: Admin
! Patient Astetsmant
Delays
@Delauk 1 ¢Bicep lendon repars
Palient Posiioning

! Proced kil oy
T Genesal Case Data
! Sugcal Piocedures
Skin Prop
Counlt Verlication
Equipment
Cautarp
Medicalion Intake
! Medication Lobeled
litigation Intake
Specimons/Cullwes

TIME Tssue laplants

Diessing:

=]

&
K
B

x
o
N
B
x

(MmO CIM e BT LT ok e Y
1 haCon Selcaan i pemmpnt Ticwcie J§ Qudirtire e
Tram, SMAQ
Train, SNk! Av 44 pate = Al ryhn” Aleriyhi ot D0 nkiidn

00 35 OF b dn Citediand F P LOOIEZISTF Cofe Srana

Carcee Tumaka Fet b GO30822502 Ad.antp Do T His, po Da'm Srarmed Sa 1 HE

i, 1 Gree 0 i

| 20 5 CA Trm G ofnip 1 2y £ g
Poamenin | fk ik || B B) SN -Case Tmnga v 2 Hottang documartadts
O SN STm Selr S Tew 1Bty Renursds
! Case | W Sk Lln Sath Sew Tre <Ety Fegueeds .
! Com dewress ¥ SHCm - Pare | Raom Trm 1Eroy: Reaureds f———— —
At i Progivytasts Adwin <@ SN Cim Praare Out Reow T ofrty Redureds
# Varco «Repiacemans Tos g 20 SH - Clm - Srsatvess St Trw <Ertry Reguared:
! Pubiord Assasmmard S £ Gl b oy T Ere Risepdn

204



Surgical Services
Perioperative Documentation
Page 14 of 19

Coonsal] Logiiarn| Lopymard Aduwemt |

!m.wmm«ﬁ.wwlw

Caleuisis tail Based e e folimeing guasily |ComneHatdly -!

Datet ot ey
S b Dy |1 Sret Pa beostior ki ol S are |
tupudtnia [ svenredourmnstots dthg ma

il + Ropaduillty |
‘ Wl + Endidy i

205



Surgical Servicas
Perioperative Documentation
Page 15 of 19

TETIA Freens Bl Yom ey
XN AR R

i

2ET] _ae |
2 :,:tazll_lﬂ];am,[ap'ﬂm._mn-___.lfw :
W DA v | =1
Wl U BT anad  oge 1 o It e Gamey
F—'ﬁw——ﬂ F SeUSE WL (TSI & DA 7 [} t a 3 Corrudg
; AT N 1S Y o= 1 (] ¢ g & [
| RAOLENSILIA SN CE F "] s T Saine
e mr{:’:' :’.?1:' 1 [ £ e 3 taorwr
) Fal & 1 1 [} 18 r
S EAC1EDY At [ N R N | At
{ Lt Btz
| 18] Cat [ [ t ¢
| Cadeoy + B 1 ¢
2l R t 1 T
i Decry 4 a4 1 &
{2 Casprt g b .
L e ] (] L] L}
+ Osew f ] [ n
Al e g o a &8
P re— L . s B
] sy [ ] L] ¢ 1
Sorrm & t 0 . 1
|G e = ¢ % .t =
[Beci v T me mr=o 1 H < a [
DT ;,l 010 LATIA LD WACR R TR, G 1 [ £ H 11 Sodiony.
Tl fag B troctisasies 3ol Bae ) [ % ot e
2] ShnOl LA T I Ut Chie H z t ot Sparpm
il EEYTR Ry A ] 3 H E 1 Vamn
=3 VIOIBEITL 0 WPURTLS ey 1 " 1 [ E [
|3 WL Nl na L o ' 4 ] e r fadoas %
1N AP TR ] T F. [} h F e =
jsrpim e i0B vuia  ~ o TRy
=
1

Gerrd | tiem Tyoe| Advances|

SoechOn.  [Despen =] Conord

Swachfo__ [eamm <] o |

M ooson [ = !
" s |

206



Surgical Servicas
Peroperative Documentation
Page 16 of 18

207



Surgical Services
Perioperative Documentation
Page 17 of 19

KOB bim Dbmrbe |

R

Lomery S Dnvan 14R028 L] 1 Ll L]
Lot bypburn Frmva M e ) [0 ] O B2 TD . 1 ] [ ]
2P Loy Submn Fownd en 1900y G E2 ’ L] LI
{0 FEE (I g Mate 20 oo RgUT
2 ; L 5
2

Byl g Chornlame pi=h s Rz

— TEawrn”

[
Y
ot ]
foaewrmin F | CETUVEL A LT 100 A Kasgery Hike —-— o
=% smcil l’. reanat DAL 1D A Hagan, Mba i W
b.lp'ﬁ| PHICETO AL 0 A L MO B | g, Miks pr i 2
5] e | - v
o e L]
13} Cou b v
3] br = [
) - Sk o
g O e ] -]
T b= | )
e L
frig=s F Ed
Y g e »
% % ® 9
0 ta ey, M
4 ol wl
= v
- 0
i OF
) -
= a
bm [
fr o,
- P
e
[ Rty fwisa MR |avesed b | 2
| SN | =g g | =
LS T [F =Y PR )

208



Surgical Services
Perioperative Decumentation
Page 18 of 19

CET 00

A
R

EEEEREERERR
_ECECYIRRRRY

|
§

AT
LISt it U | il
TEPAE Y Sm HEDT S 40 LB 61
FRANE PUsYA LT
RCIPRFLALE T w T TI N i s
GLDNE MATT ELRS B0 B TV R

L st Py

L) 2ufr NARMLAN U LA

Lwmdg v TRl (4
vondafT s [O0F BB Bd 147
[

PEHOL NI Sl Y 0, CAUTT Y
PRIP ERAY RSO,

RITRACTIN WLITLWER TMEDLM
WFORGT SU 3TEARE E3mAT LD
SHUIDY LWNADIDNT saE 4 S
WONBE MEaart v r3en
SIARER Gy

SAUTURT MG ORT, 40 T4 P e

O~ Drmtea oo [ et | Db DT 1007 .

1
1
1
1
1
1
)
1

P

- k= n ol

B e T L LT LS

Jla 1 o

[l
¥
D i
[ 7oy — 1 o
Ay, U o
Vo nm o
——ty o
v
N s e S S b
o
! B
I T T3 o
L e =3
1 - v
I - &
[ 5 o - )
had [
- L1
e [
e Te o
- o
- 3
o o
]
ol I 55y e .‘f”
i |10 ko soemed et i By 02
il REl STaRIATOM 1 ] 1 uut wegmnoy e
Sl ARIME GUTUTE seORIOR YR 1 ' 1w AL U Me =
sl L [y
Rty [wisa N oy nn |
S | P Errr T | 5
=% ™ DR Wt SIRUEY
3 SurgiNet-Corected/-ate-Entries:
T >t 0

209



Surgical Services
Perioperative Documentation
Page 190f 19

_,Inlllh—-u_vu_’-l_s-t
L A ey L T

i,
o Prgrinien drn K bury Fste Lt
M et st | [
B kb, wd by Chase wipad
o bl i Dy twmand .
Tttt | [W I BT RB[ AR B Strvr =« BU D
j

oty Pf baih Ligm

210



)
(c‘i') Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE:

04/94 SUBJECT: Positioning the Surgical Patient

REVISION DATE(S): 01/96; 01/97; 04/97; 02/00; 03/03;

01/06; 09/07; 06/09; 44/4201/13

Department Approval: 02/20
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/30
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: nfa
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/20
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 01113

A PURPOSE:

1. To provide guidelines for positioning the patient during-undergoing operative or other
procedures in the perloperatlve area. SHngGaHHtewelmeﬂ-and—te—pmnete-&ha-safety-and-weu-
2, The goals of patient positioning include:
a Providing exposure of the surgical site
b. Maintaining the patient’s comfort and privacy
c Providing access to intravenous (IV) lines and monitoring equipment
d Allowing for optimal ventilation by maintaining a patent airway and avoiding
constriction or pressure on the chest or abdomen
e. Maintaining circulation and protecting muscles, nerves, bony prominences, joints,
skin, and vital organs from injury
f. Observing and protecting fingers, toes and genitals
+g. Stabilizing the patient to prevent unintended shifting or movement
B. POLICY:
1. Provide care that respects the dignity and privacy of each patient during patient
positioning.
2. Implement measures to provide privacy during patient positioning.
a. Keep windows covered (as applicable) and doors closed in patient care areas
b. Limit traffic in the procedure room
c. Expose only the areas of the patient’s body necessary to provide care or access
3. Conduct a preoperative patient assessment to identify patients at risk for positioning
injury, develop a plan of care, and implement interventions to prevent injury.
4. Perform a preoperative assessment of factors related to the procedure that includes:

Type of procedure

Estimated length of the procedure

Ability of the patient to tolerate the anticipated position
Amount of surgical exposure required

eoow

211



Surgical Services

Positioning the Surgical Patient

. Page 2 of 5

10.

11.
12.

13.

14.

e. Ability of the anesthesia professional to access the patient

f. Desired procedural position, potential change of position, and positioning devices
required

g. Critical devices (e.g., catheters, drains)

h. Jewelry or body piercings
i Braided hair, hair accessories, or hair extensions

j- Superficial implants (e.g., dermal) or implanted critical devices (e.g., pacemaker)

k. Prosthesis (e.g., prosthetic limb) or corrective devices

Perform a preoperative assessment of the patient’s risk for pressure injury. The patient is

considered high risk for pressure injury development in surgery if any of the following

criteria are met:

Surgical procedure duration greater than three (3) hours

70 years of age or greater

Smoker

Diabetes

Vascular disease

Vascular surgery

Malnourished

Morbidly obese

Implement protective measures to bony prominences if the patient meets one or more of

the high risk criteria for pressure injury development in surgery.

a. Offload pressure points (e.g., float heels of the bed by placing pillows beneath the
legs).

b. Place prophylactic dressings to bony prominences or other areas subjected to
pressure, friction and shear (specific to each position).

Remove patient’s jewelry, body piercings, hair accessories, or other items that may pose a

risk for positioning injury before the patient is transferred to or positioned on the

operating room bed.

Do not position the patient directly on critical or superficial implanted devices, to the

extent possible.

Use OR beds, bed attachments, positioning equipment, positioning devices, and support

surfaces according to manufacturer's instructions for use (IFU).

T@mpoopw

a. Verify cleanliness, surface integrity, and correct function of positioning equipment,
devices, and support surfaces before use.

b. Remove soiled, damaged, or defective surfaces, devices, and equipment from
service and have them cleaned, repaired, or replaced.

c. Ensure all beds/gurneys and operative tables are locked before transferring the

patient from one surface to another.
Ensure adequate number of personne, devices, and equipment are available during
patient positioning activities to promote patient and personnel safety.
At least one surgical team member should attend to the patient on the OR bed at all times.
Coordinate positioning of the patient with team members by verifying all team members
are ready for positioning to occur and implementing a countdown to begin positioning.
When the patient has critical devices (i.e., catheters, drains, tubes) communicate about the
presence of the critical device and take measures to secure the devices during and after
positioning.
Position patients on surfaces that reduce the potential for pressure injury and ensure
surfaces are smooth and wrinkle-free.
a. Avoid positioning patients on muitiple layers of blankets, sheets, or other materials.
b. Av0|d posmonmg patlents on warmmg blankets

212



Surgical Services

Positioning the Surgical Patient

\ Page 3 of 5

15.

f——Langth-and-iype-of procedure

lmplement safe posmonmg practices, including, but not limited to:

a. Assess and maintain the patient's physiologic bedy
alignment, including head and neck in a neutral position without extreme lateral
rotation, -and-tissue-integrity-during all phases of the procedure.

b. The anesthesiologist shall protect the patient’s eyes when the patient is under
general anesthesia.

c. Do not allow the patient's neck to be hyperextended for long periods of time.

d. Prevent the patient’s body from contacting metal portions of the OR bed and other
hard surfaces.

e. Prevent the patient’s extremities from unintentionally dropping or hanging below
the level of the OR bed.

f. Monitor the location of the patient’s hands, fingers, feet, toes, and genitals during
positioning activities, including changes in configuration of the OR bed.

g. Apply safety restraints and monitoring devices (e.g., blood pressure cuffs, pulse
oximetry sensors) in a manner that safely secures the patient and allows the
accessory device to function effectively without nerve, tissue or circulatory
compromise.

i. Verify placement, tightness, and security of safety restraints after
positioning or repositioning activities.

h. Monitor the patient’s position after positioning activities and during the procedure,

and take corrective actions as indicated.
i. Scrubbed personnel shall not lean against the patient.
Repositioning interventions may be implemented during the procedure as

necessary.

213



Surgical Services
Positioning the Surgical Patient
Page 4 of 5

C. PROCEDURE:
1. For specific instructions on positioning the surgical patient and use of specialty frames, tables

and positioning equipment, see-Mosby'srefer to Elsevier Online Skills-Onlire-Nursing-Skills:
Peﬂepesaave-s-kms on the Tri- Clty Medical Center mtranet —as-well-as-mawfams-équppment

214



Surgical Services
Positioning the Surgical Patient
Page 5of 5

D. DOCUMENTATION:

1. Document the followmg mformatron 5
a. Pre-operative skin assessment and reassessment(s) as necessary for changes in
skin integrity
b. Patient’s position, including position of the patient’s arms and legs and any

repositioning activities

c Personnel participating in positioning the patient

d Type and location of positioning equipment or devices

e Type and location of safety restraints

f Type and [ocation of any additional padding provided

4-g. Actions taken to prevent patient injury, especially any actions taken in response to
findings from pre-operative assessment and location(s) of dressing(s) applied for
pressure |n]ury preventlon

E. REFERENCES:
1. AORN, Inc (2020) Gwdehnes forPenoperat:ve Practrce Denver.

215



o)
@ Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE:

04/94 SUBJECT: Scheduling Surgical Procedures

REVISION DATE(S): 09/99, 04/01, 01/02, 06/03, 02/05,

02/08, 06/09, 11/10, 10/12, 12/12,
01/13, 03/14, 02/17, 08/19

Surgical Services Department Approval: 02/11902/20
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: nfa
Operating Room Committee Approval: 0444803/20
Pharmacy &Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 06/4804/20
Administration Approval: 07{4805/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/19

A PURPOSE:

1.

To provide scheduling guidelines for surgery, endoscopy, elective cesarean sections (in OB-
OR) and procedures requiring an anesthesia provider.

B. DEFINITIONS:

1.

2.

3.

Add-On Cases: Additions to the surgery schedule after the “final schedule” has been published.

The “final schedule” is published by 4:00pm-RM for the next day.

Elective Case: Surgery can be scheduled at the time best suited for the surgeon and the
patient.

Urgent Case: Surgical intervention is needed within 4-6 hours of presentation. Urgent
procedures are placed in an available time on the OR schedule.

Emergent Case: Surgical intervention is needed within one hour of presentation and may
require that another scheduled or add-on case is bumped.

Emergency: Surgical intervention is needed immediately upon presentation to preserve life or
limb. Emergency procedures are performed in the first available operating room and may
require that another scheduled or add-on case is bumped.

SCHEDULING ELECTIVE CASES:

1.

2.

All elective surgical and endoscopic procedures and elective cesarean sections in OB-OR will
be scheduled through the Surgery scheduling office.

There are 12 rooms in the Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) OR suite which are utilized as
follows:

a. Ten (10) operating rooms (OR 1-10) can accommodate any type of case.

b. OR 6 is reserved for cardiac cases.

C. OR 11 is the Cystoscopy Room and is considered a wound class Il room. Only certain
procedures may be performed in this room due to the open drain:
i. Circumcision

i Endourology procedures

ii. Percutaneous Suprapubic Cystotomy
iv. Vasectomy

v Orchiectomy

d. dR 12 is the Gl Endoscopy Room

216



Surgical Services Surgery
Scheduling Surgical Procedures Policy

Page 2 of 4

3.

Expected available surgery rooms Monday-Thursday (may fluctuate based on staffing, surgical

volume and surgical acuity):

a. 0715-17008430~4500 hours: -8 rooms

b. 17004506-1800 hours: 45 rooms

c. 1900-2100 hours: -3 rooms

d. 2100-2300 hours: -2 rooms

Expected available surgery rooms on Friday (may fluctuate based on staffing, surgical volume

and surgical acuity):

a. 0715-17000738-1500 hours: -7 rooms

b. 17004568-1900 hours: -4 rooms

c. 1900-2100 hours: 3 rooms

d. 2100-2300 hours: 2 rooms

Elective cases shall be scheduled by the surgery scheduling office between the hours of 0800

and 1630, Monday through Friday, at 760-840-7382. After 14304408, cases scheduled for the

following day are scheduled by staff at the Surgery desk (760-940-5400).

a. Elective cases are performed Monday through Friday from 0715 (0815 on Thursday) to
2300 hours. Elective cases should not extend beyond 2300.

Start Times:

a. The Start time of a procedure (time on the OR schedule) is the time the patient is
expected to be in the OR. Start time of first cases are tracked and report to the OR
committee monthly.

b. The start time of elective or add-on case requested for 1600 or later cannot be
guaranteed. In those instances, the surgeon’s preferred start time will be noted, and the
surgeon will be given one hour's notice of expected start time. If the surgeon cannot
start at the expected time, the next surgeon to start wiil be offered the time.

Celays:

a. Surgeons who notify the OR they will be late for their scheduled start time must provide
an expected time of arrival. Delays of more than 30 minutes, or delays that will impact
another surgeon’s schedule will cause the first surgeon to be bumped back to the next
available start time.

b. Surgeons who are not in heuse-the hospital 30 minutes past the scheduled time of
surgery and are unable to be contacted will be bumped back to the next available start
time once they either arrive at the hospital or contact the OR.

Cases are scheduled on a consecutive, first-come first-served basis, or in a surgeon’s block

time.

Procedures may be scheduled by the surgeon or the surgeon’s office staff only.

The process for scheduling an elective case is as follows:

a. The surgeon’s office calls the TCMC Surgery Scheduling department to reserve a case
time.
b. The surgeon's office completes a written “TCMC Surgery Scheduling Patient

Information” booking form and faxes to the TCMC Surgery department fax server (Fax #

760-940-7138) within 48 hours of the telephone reservation.

i. Upon receiving the written booking form, the TCMC Surgery Scheduler will
schedule the case, obtain a financial account number (FIN#) and book a Pre-
Operative Education appointment.

ii. The TCMC Surgery Scheduler will write the FIN# and the date and time of the
Pre-Operative Education appointment on the “TCMC Surgery Scheduling Patient
Information” booking form, and wifl fax the form back to the surgeon’s office as
confirmation.

c. The surgeon’s office enters electronic orders or faxes written orders to the TCMC
Surgery Scheduling department fax server at least one week prior to surgery date.
Electronic orders will also be accepted.

i. If the case is scheduled less than one week prior to the date of surgery, written or
electronic orders are required by the next business day.

217



Surgical Services Surgery
Scheduling Surgical Procedures Policy

Page 30f4
11.
12.
D.

F.

AgeMeight/ASAPatient Requirements:

a. Surgery patients must be at least 4418 years of age at the time of surgery, except in the
case of emergency.
F———Atleast-80-pounds

&b.  Any requested Adolessent-er-Adult-patient who is under 18 years of agedoes-rot-meet
eriteria must be reviewed/approved prior to scheduling by the Chief of Anesthesia or

designee.
The surgeon must have the appropriate privileges granted to be allowed to schedule a
procedure.
a. Current privilege lists are maintained through the E-PRIV system, accessible through
TCMC Intranet.
b. If the physician’s privilege status is still not clear, the Medical Staff Office is contacted for

clarification. The Administrative Supervisor may be contacted for assistance outside of
Medical Staff Office hours.

(o It is the responsibility of the surgeon to acquire an assistant or proctor as necessary for
designated procedures.

PRE-OPERATIVE EDUCATION APPOINTMENT SCHEDULING GUIDELINES:

1.
2.

Patients may be scheduled for a telephone vs. in-person Pre-Operative Education appointment.
Those patients who qualify for a telephone Pre-Operative Education appointment include:
a. Debilitated patients

b. Nursing home patients

c. Requests from physician’s office if HMO is doing blood work and the patient has a
transportation problem

d. Patients who are rescheduled for surgery and have already attended a Pre-Operative

Education appointment

SCHEDULING ADD-ON URGENT, EMERGENT, OR EMERGENCY PROCEDURES:

1.

Urgent, Emergent, and Emergency cases may be performed at any time.

2. Urgent, Emergent, and Emergency cases shall be scheduled through the Main OR desk in
person or via telephone (760-940-5400).
3. Required information when scheduling an add-on case includes:
a. Patient name, date of birth, age, and medical record number
b. Patient phone number, Social Security number, and insurance information (excludes in-
house patients)
c Patient current location in the hospital
d NPO status
e. Pre-Op diagnosis and Procedure to be performed
f. Physical needs/mobility limitations
g Surgeon and assistant (if applicable)
h Instrumentation/Equipment/X-ray needed
i. Relevant cardiac/medical history
J- Time of surgeon availability

For Saturday and Sunday 0730-1500, 2 rooms are available for Add-on cases and 1 room
is available for emergency cases or a heart. For 1500-0730, 1 room is available for Add-
on cases and 1 room is available for emergency cases or a heart.

218



Surgical Services Surgery
Scheduling Surgical Procedures Policy
Page 4 of 4

2. Memorial Day, Labor Day, July 4", Thanksgiving, Christmas, and New Year's Day have
one urgent and one emergent room only. No elective surgeries are scheduled on these
holidays.

3. President’s Day will be treated like a regular weekend day.

ar ~ allata BHES =17 dTa alm - N

34. Weekendfand
surgery.

4:5. Add-on cases are started in order of scheduling, providing the surgeon is available and the
patient is ready for surgery.

§:6. If the first scheduled add-on case cannot be performed in the first available time, the next case's
surgeon will be contacted and offered to start at the available time. Upon availability of the next
time to start an add-on case, the surgeon for the first case will again be contact and offered the
time.

a. The first available time is 0730. If a physician requests a specific time, e.g., 0900 to start
a case, then another physician is available to start at 0730, the physician requesting the
0900 start time will be contacted to move up to 0730, or will start after the preceding
case is finished.

7. For 0730 cases, the patient must be ready for transfer to the Operating SuiteRoom by 0645,
otherwise, the next scheduled case may replace the delayed case.

8. When the first Saturday/Sunday room is booked for three hours or more, the second room is
opened. The surgeon following the 0730 slot in the first room will be offered the 0730 slot in the

9. Robotic Geases {MazorordaVinsi}-are not to be scheduled on holidays. However, Rrobotic
cases may be scheduled on weekends if the appropriately trained staff members are
scheduled and the necessary vendor representatives are available.

+10. Requests may be approved on an individual basis by the OR Nursing Director/Assistant
Director/designee and Operating Room Medical Director.

G. ENDOSCOPY:

1. Endoscopy services are available 24/7.

2. Endoscopy procedures are scheduled in the same manner as surgical procedures.

3. Endoscopy procedures requiring an anesthesia provider are scheduled in an open time on the
OR schedule.

219



2
@“) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY
ISSUE DATE: 11/09 SUBJECT: Surgical Patients with Aied
Implantimplanted Electronic Devices
REVISION DATE(S): 444201/13
Department Approval: 02/20
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/20
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: nia
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/20
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approvai: 0113

A PURPOSE:

1.

To outline the necessary steps in caring for a surgical patient with an AICD-implantimplanted
electronic device (IED).

B. POLICY:

1.

Take precautions when the patient has any IED {e.qg., gastric or cardiac pacemaker,
implantable cardioverter defibrillator, cochlear implant, deep brain, vagal nerve, sacral
nerve, phrenic nerve, spinal cord or bone stimulator).

a. Electromagnetic interference (EMI) caused by energy-generating devices used
during surgery can cause complications for the IED.
b. Ensure surgeon and anesthesiologist are aware of patient’s IED prior to surgery.

The team managing the implanted device should be consuited before surgery and as
needed (e.g., implanting surgeon and/or device manufacturer).

Determine interventions to be performed for a patient with an existing IED based on the
following information that may be obtained from patient assessment, patient caregivers,
the device identification card carried by the patient, and the medical record:

a. Type of implanted device
b. Patient’s level of dependence
c. Location of the device and leads (e.g., within or outside the path between the active

and dispersive electrodes)

Device manufacturer and model

Clinical indication for the device

Battery life

Device settings

Lead placement

or cardiac devices, the following information is also needed:
Date of last device interrogation or monitoring

Lead polarity (i.e., unipolar or bipolar)

Need for device programming

Response of the device to a magnet

Presence of an alert status on the generator or on the lead
f. The last pacing threshold

Perform the following interventions for a patient with an existing cardiac implanted
electronic device {CIED):

PoooHTTQe

220



Surgical Services

Surgical Patients with Implanted Electronic Devices

| Page20of3

1.

12,

a. Reprogram the device by magnet or having equipment reprogrammed by a qualified
person, if so advised by the team managing the CIED.,
b. Place the dispersive electrode as close as possible to the surgical site, verifying the

IED is not in the current pathway between the active and dispersive electrode.

Use electrocautery, bipolar forceps, or other alternative technology (e.g., ultrasonic
technology).

Place the active electrode cord away from the pulse generator.

Use a five-lead ECG system,

Use a beat-to-beat indicator (e.g., arterial line, pulse oximeter).

Have temporary pacing equipment and an external defibrillator readily available.
Keep a magnet immediately available if the pacemaker will respond to a magnet and
one is not used for reprogramming.

i. Use continuous cardiac monitoring whenever the pacemaker is deactivated.
Perform the following interventions for a patient with an existing non-cardiac |IED:

a. Use alternative technology (e.g., electrocautery, bipolar forceps, ultrasonic
technology) instead of monopolar electrosurgery when possible.

Activate the electrosurgical unit for the shortest amount of time possible.

Place the grounding pad as far as possible from the device’s generator and leads.
Verify the implanted device and leads are not between the active electrode and the
dispersive electrode.

e. Turn off the IED if it is safe to do so.

Take precautions for a patient with an existing cochlear implant:

P

Sempp

aoo

a. Do not use electrosurgical devices within 2-3cm of the implant package and
electrodes.
b. Remove all external components,

Take precautions for patients who have deep brain stimulators, sacral nerve stimulators,
spinal cord stimulators, vagal nerve stimulators, or gastric pacemakers, including turning
off the device if so advised by the implant management team and if it is safe to do so.
Tri-City Medical Center employees may not deactivate or reactivate a patient’s IED.
Document IED in the patient’s electronic health record (EHR), including afl assessments,
consultations, interventions and outcomes regarding the IED pre-, intra-, and post-
operatively.

Provide education to patients and their caregivers on the effects of electrosurgery on
IED’s.

Notlfy post-operatlve RN of IED status durmg hand-off report

221



Surgical Services
Surgical Patients with Implanted Electronic Devices
| Page 30f3

C. REFERENCES:

1. AORN, Inc. (2020). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver.
—

222



2
(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY
ISSUE DATE: 06/15 SUBJECT: Surgical Supply Stocking, Rotation
and Outdate
REVISION DATE(S): 09/18
Surgical Services Department Approval: 9+4802/20
Operating Room Committee Approval: 0#1803/20
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
| Administration Approval: 00/1805/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 09/18

A PURPOSE:

1.
2.

To ensure rotation of sterile supplies so items with the earliest expiration date are used first.
To remove items from stock before the expiration date is reached.

B. POLICY:

1.

R

All supplies located in the Surgery department shall be checked monthly for package integrity

and expiration date.

a. Materials Management is responsible for checking outdates on all supplies located in
Pyxis machines, including Tissue Pyxis.

b. Operating Room {OR) staff is responsible for checking outdates on items stored in the
Surgery department outside Pyxis machines.

C. OR staff is responsible for checking outdates on all medications stored outside of
Medication Pyxis machines.

Sterile packages are to be arranged to allow stock rotation on a first in, first out system.

a. New ltems shall be placed in the back, left hand side of the shelf.

b. Rotate supplies such that items to expire first will be located in the front, right hand side
of the shelf.

All outdates are to be completed by the last day of each month.

Remove items that will expire in the current or following month.

Expired items are to be returned to Materials Management department.

Document completion of outdates in the Surgery Outdate Log.

ltems are to be checked for package integrity and expiration date before being used.

a. If there is no day listed in the expiration date, the item expires the last day of the month
(eg, expiration date 7-2015, the item expires 7-31-2015).

Expired items will be reviewed for usage and necessity before reordering. Items which are no

longer used or necessary will be removed from inventory.

C. FORM(S):

1.

Operating Room Outdate Log

223



£
@9 Tri-City Medical Center DELETE
Oceanside, California Policy is no longer
necessary.
SURGICAL SERVICES POLICY & PROCEDURE M
ISSUE DATE: 03/13 SUBJECT: TCMC EMPLOYEES AND

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval: 03/20
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/20
Department of Anesthesiclogy Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/20

Administration Approval:
Professional Affairs Committee Approval:
Board of Directors Approval: ' 0313

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR WORK

224



&
(co) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE:

04/94 SUBJECT: Visitors in the Operating Room (OR)

REVISION DATE(S): 02/05, 06/09, 10/12, 04/15, 09/1607/117

Department Approval: 03H4702/20
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Operating Room Committee Approval: 0314703/20
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 06/1704/20
Administration Approval; 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: OHAZ nla
Board of Directors Approval: o717

A PURPOSE:

1.

To assure thatihe patient; and healthcare team-Health-Care-Team—and-Peroperative-Services

are notified and/or given permission for a medical or non-medical persen-te-ebserveobserver
in a surgical procedure.

DEFINITION(S):

1.

Non-Medical observer: those who have no clinical or scientific affiliation with Tri-City
Medical Center (TCMC), the surgical procedure, or the medical and scientific equipment
being used.

Medical observer: those who have no clinical or scientific affiliation with TCMC, the
surgical procedure, or the medical and scientific equipment being used, however, do
have a current valid license in a patient care field, such as a Medical Doctor (MD),
Registered Nurse (RN), andor Physical Therapist (PT).

Exemptions from this policy: Medical and Nursing personnel and students and related
health care workers who are affiliated with TCMC.

POLICY:

1.
2.
3.

The request for an observer must be communicated to the Rerieperative-Director of Surgical
Services/designee prior to the day of surgery by the sponsoring physician.

Medical and Non-Medical observers have a maximum of five (5) observation opportunities
during a 30 calendar day period.

Non-Medical observers:

a. Must be at least 18 years of age.

b. The surgeon, anesthesiologist, Charge Nurse, and the patient must consent that the
named person be allowed to observe the procedure(s).

c. The Operating Room must be notified prior to surgery that the named person has
permission to observe a specific procedure(s).

d. A Consent for Observer in Surgical Procedures form shall be completed and in the
patient’s chart prior to the patient coming to the Operating Room.

e. Family members and/or significant others of the patient may not observe surgical
procedures.

f. Limit of one observer per room will be allowed to provide for patient confidentiality, to

maintain the sterile field, and to control traffic in the Operating Room. Special exceptions
will be evaluated on an individual basis.

225



Surgical Services

Visilors in the OR
Page 2 of 2
g. Observers are not allowed to enter the operating room before the patient is fully
positioned, prepped and draped for surgery. Special exceptions will be evaluated on an
individual basis.
h. Observers are not allowed to touch the patient, “scrub in” or participate in the care of the
patient.
4, Medical Personnel:
a. Medical personnel who wish to observe must have approval of the surgeon,

anesthesiologist, and the Director of
Nurse)Surgical Services/designee.

D. PROCEDURE:

1. Observers shall report to the Operating Room desk at specified time and state their name, title,
and purpose. A name tag will be provided to identify the observer and must be worn at all times.
2. Observers shall don surgical attire in the appropriate Surgery locker room, in accordance with

Patient Care Service Policy: Surgical Attire.
3. All valuables shall be plased-secured in the assigned locker.-and-othervaluables-may-botaken
tothe-ORDeslkforsafekeaging:

4, A staff member shall escort the observer to the appropriate room and instruct them in the
appropriate use of the mask.

5 A staff member shall introduce the observer to the room personnel and explain appropriate
conversation etiquette.

6. The observer shali stand/sit out of the traffic pattern until the circulator can assist in moving
him/her to the point of observation.

7 Observers shall ask questions as needed during an appropriate time.

8. Observers shall ask the circulator for assistance if the need arises to move about the room.

9, While moving around the room, proper aseptic technique must be maintained by keeping at
least a minimum of 12" distance between non-sterile personnel and any sterile item or person.

| 10.  Observers shall report directly to the Main-OR Desk when leaving the assigned room.
11. Observers shall not enter or exit any operating room without an escort.

| E.  RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Administrative Policy: 203 Business Visitor Visitation Requirements

22t



£
(C‘} Tri-City Medical Center

Women and Newborn Services (WNS)

PROCEDURE:

INSTRUMENT CLEANING PROCESS AND TRANSPORT TO STERILE
PROCESSING DEPARTMENT (SPD) -

Purpose:

To outline the procedure and individuals responsible for the initial instrument cleaning
process and transport to SPD. Instrument decontamination, final cleaning and
sterilization occur in SPD and not at the unit level. Once sterilized, instrument packs
and instrument trays are picked up in SPD for unit use.

Equipment:

1. An identified enclosed case cart to transport dirty instruments to SPD

2. An identified case cart to transport sterilized instrument packs and trays from SPD to
the unit.

3. Appropriate sized containers and/or basins, with lids to transport dirty instruments to
SPD.

4. Appropriate enzymatic cleaning product (Pre-Klenz Enzymatic Gel)

5. Protective personal eguipment

1.

32,

4-3.

5-4.

6-5.

6.

1.
2.

PROCEDURE:

All instruments from the Women and Newborn Services (WNS) unit will be initially cleaned on the
unit but then transported to SPD for further decontamination, packaging, and sterilization per
Sterile Processing Procedure: Decontamination.;

Za. WNS staff shall adhere to standard universal precautions, to include eye protection as
indicated.

WNS staff is responsible for the initial instrument cieaning process which includes transferring the

instruments to the biohazard room for initial cleaning, as soon as possible after use, and coating

the instruments generously with an approved enzymatic gel or spray while in a basin or container
that can be securely covered,

a. For grossly contaminated instruments, the staff shall remove tissue, clots, and/or gross
blood, with gauze or rinse lightly with water before applying the enzymatic product.

The containers with the dirty instruments will be placed into a case cart, located in the biohazard

room in the Labor and Delivery (L&D) Operating Room spaces and transported to SPD in an

enclosed case cart, with a biohazard label on the outside, for eventual processing at least once a

shift, at a minimum.

a. If dirty instrument sets become more than four in number, efforts shall be made by the
L&D staff to transport the case cart to SPD immediately, so the instrument kits/ trays are
cleaned, processed, sterilized, and returned in a timely manner.

The L&D Techs/ staff will pick up clean/sterilized, packaged instruments and trays from SPD at

least once a shift, or more often if needed, and transport the sterile gear back to the unit in a

“clean” case cart

The sterilized trays and instrument packs will be stored in a clean supply room until utilized for

patient care.

The SPD manager shall be notified offer any probiems encountered related to the instrument

cleaning, packaging, and/or sterilization process by calling 760-908-3367.

REFERENCES:

AORN (204520). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice, 204520 Edition, Denver, CO.
ACOG & AAP (20127). Guidelines for Perinatal Care, 78" Edition, Washington DC.

Department
Review

Pharmacy

Department
of OB/IGYN

Department
of Pediatrics

and-8&
Therapeutics
Committee

Infection
Control
Committee

Medical
Exsecutive
Committes

Administrati
on

Professional
Affairs
Committee

Board of
Directors

01/16; 02/20

nfa

nia

nfa

03/16, 04/20

nfa

05120

04/16, nfa

04/16

22



@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Medical Equipment Maintenance

REVISION DATE(S): 12110

Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12/10

A. PURPOSE
1. Due to the potential for injury that medical equipment poses, an effective preventive
maintenance and equipment management program must be in place and strictly observed. All
patient care equipment used by the clinic will be maintained in good working order and
inspected and repaired according to hospital policy.

B. POLICY
1. The Biomedical Department will conduct routine inspection and preventive maintenance (PM)
on the Center's medical equipment on a regularly scheduled basis, according to hospital policy.
2. Staff will be trained in the proper and safe use of all medical equipment.8=7
3 Incidents involving medical equipment will be reported according to hospital policy.
4 The clinic manager is responsible for the implementation of the program and the continued
observance and monitoring of safe use of equipment.

C. PROCEDURE

1. Prior to use, all electrical devices will be inspected and approved by the Biomed Department.

2. Staff members will be trained in the proper use of electrical (or mechanical) devices prior to use.

3. Staff members are required to pull malfunctioning equipment out of use and to notify the
appropriate person (biomedical engineer, clinic manager, etc.) for repair.

4, The manufacturer's operating instructions will be followed when operating medical equipment.

5 Annually, or more frequently as indicated, equipment will be inspected per PM schedule.

22,



@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Patient Advocacy
REVISION DATE(S): 12/10
Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approvali: nia
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 1210

A. PURPOSE

1.

Consistent with the hospital policies related to vital patient advocacy issues, wound/ ostomy

care and hyperbaric medicine recognizes that every patient has rights related to personal

information and healthcare. Although not all-inclusive, patients seeking medical attention at the

clinic can expect the following:

a. Know and understand their rights as they relate to receiving care/services at the Center
{Patient Rights policy).

b. The right to know about and understand their disease condition and be informed of

specific treatment options that are available to them (Informed Consent policy).

The right to be included in their healthcare decision (Advance Directive policy)

The right to be treated with respect and dignity (Patient Rights)

The right to expect resolution to complaints/problems (Patient Complaint policy)

The right to be protected from neglect or abuse (Mandatory Reporting of Victims of

Assault, Domestic Battery & Suspected Abuse policy)

The right to a safe environment when seeking healthcare at the Center, an environment

where measures have been instituted to minimize or eliminate the risk for injury (Falls

Prevention policy)

h. The right to privacy and confidentiality whenever their medical information is being
discussed or managed and maintained (Release of Records, Medical Records,
Photography HIPAA)

~® oo

©

B. POLICY

1.

Informed Consent: Coincident with the hospital's mission and values and state statutory
regulation, the Center performs certain diagnostic or therapeutic procedures only after informed
consent has been given by the patient or his/her representative (Consent for Treatment form). it
is the responsibility of the clinic physician to fully inform the patient of the risks and benefits of
the recommended treatment as well as any other options available to them and to obtain the
patient's consent. This may be supplemented with printed material or video information. In
addition, clinical staff will advocate for the patient and assist with the process by ensuring that
this step has been taken and researching and/or providing additional information at the patient's
request. In addition to the clinic consent for treatment, other forms will be used per hospital
policy, e.g. Consent for HIV Testing, Authorization for Release of Records, etc.

Patient Rights: All patients will be informed of his/her rights and responsibilities upon initial
presentation to the Center. These rights are posted in the patient care areas and are written in

22!



Wound Care Center
Patient Advocacy
Page 2 of 2

English & Spanish. All clinic staff will be informed of these rights during the hospital orientation
program.,

Advance Directive: The Center recognizes that every patient has the right to participate in his or
her own healthcare decisions. They have the right of self-determination regarding health-
related issues, including the right to refuse medical treatment. It is the policy of the hospital to
honor a patient's wishes as it relates to healthcare decisions, including the designation of
another person to direct the course of medical treatment upon his/her incapacitation. Patients
(or their surrogate) presenting to the clinic for the first time will be asked if they have an
Advance Directive. If the patient is not aware of Advance Directives, a copy of the Advance
Directive Fact Sheet will be provided to the patient or surrogate.

Patient Complaints: Every patient can expect a good-faith effort to resolve problems and an
opportunity to express concerns and unmet needs. Attempts will be made to address
concerns/complaints at the clinic level first. If not resolved to the satisfaction of the
patient/family, the issues will be forwarded per haospital policy to the designated Administrative
representative within 72 hours of receipt.

Reporting Suspected Neglect or Abuse: Every patient presenting to the Center for medical
evaluation/treatment will be assessed for signs of abuse/neglect. All clinical staff is trained to
identify signs of neglect/abuse. Any patient whom the staff suspects abuse or neglect will be
reported, per hospital policy. Social Services Department will be notified for assistance and
guidance with the proper reporting process.

Falls Prevention: All patients are assessed for risk of falls during the initial assessment process
when admitted to the clinic program. Prevention measures are instituted immediately to prevent
injury and may include:

Assisting patient on and off treatment chair/table

Never leaving a confused or incompetent patient unattended in an exam room

Guiding the patient while ambulating

Keeping the bed in lowest position until the exam/treatment time

Bedrails in UP position at all times except during treatment

Placing personal items such as purses, bags, etc. close to patient

When identified, the risk for falls will be noted on the front cover sheet of the chart in the
section labeled PRECAUTIONS.

Medical Record/Release of Information: To protect the confidentiality of the patient's medical
information and safeguard it against loss, destruction, tampering, and unauthorized access, use
or release, the clinic will follow all the requirements of the health information management
system established by the hospital. All medical records will be maintained in a locked area of
the clinic until the time of patient discharge. Within 30 days of discharge, the patient medical
record will be given to Medical Records of off-site storage for storage and safekeeping. On a
daily basis, the records of active patients will be readily accessible to authorized personnel for
use in patient care and secured at the end of each business day. The patient's written
permission or that of his/her legally qualified representative (Release of Records form) must be
obtained prior to releasing medical records information of any kind to any person, institution,
agency not directly related to the care of the patient. However, medical records may be
removed from the clinic's/hospital's jurisdiction in accordance with court order, subpoena or
statute,

©mpooow

23(



(@‘)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENER
HYPERBARIC CLINICA

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Patient Charges

REVISION DATE(S): 12/10

Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: nfa
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval; nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12/10
A PURPOSE

1. Patient charges and payment processes must be delineated to:

a. Provide guidelines for the clinic staff entering patient charges
b. Clarify the appropriate charges for services rendered in the outpatient setting.
(o3 Avoid overcharging the patient and/or the third-party payer
d. Provide consistency in billing practices
e. Prevent inadvertent fraudulent billing
f. Outline the appropriate billing processes for the Center
B. P Y

1. The patient’s insurance will be verified just prior to or at the time of the first appointment.

2. Insurance authorizations will be obtained prior to all appointments, where applicable.

3. All charges for services will be accurately recorded and processed, per the hospital Business
Office.

4, All appropriate staff will be trained in the charging procedure.

5. A “superbill” format containing standard clinic procedures and charge/payment codes will be
utilized for accurate billing purposes.

6. Managed-care patients will be billed according to the prevailing contact/agreement following
managed-care charging/payment protocols.

7. Cash-paying patients will be billed according to hospital-approved fee schedule.

C. PROCEDURE

1. Clinical personnel will be trained in accurate charging for services rendered.

2. The physicians will check the appropriate charges on the “superbili” at the end of each patient
visit.

3. Notification of cash-paying patients will be made to the Business Office to avoid duplication of
billing and/or collection notice.

4 “Superbill” forms will be complete by the end of each business day and forwarded to the Office
Coordinator for processing.

5. The Office Coordinator will validate the daily “superbills” generated each day for accuracy
against the list of patients treated a the Center and submit copies to the appropriate
departments.

6. The Office Coordinator reviews the posted revenue for accuracy the foliowing business day.

7. For the managed-care patients:

a. Charges are entered per clinic procedure

23"



Wound Care Center
Patient Chargas
Page 2 of 2

b. The Business Office is made aware of the managed-care patient and bills the Third-
Party Administrator (TPA) for patient visit/procedure
The TPA bills the managed-care group

Upon receipt of payment, the TPA disburses funds to the hospital for facility expense.

oo

23.



(@’) Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Patient Photography
REVISION DATE(S): 12/10
Department Approvai: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: nfa
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nia
Board of Directors Approval: 12110

A. PURPOSE
1.

Photography is an important aspect of care in the Center's setting. The photography program is
tailored to:

Document the presence of wounds or other pertinent medical conditions

Show the progress of the healing process or response to care

Use for educational and marketing purposes

Assess the quality of service provided at the Center

op oo

3.

4.
5.
1

2.
3.
4

Patients will consent to photography before any pictures will be taken.

All patients presenting to the clinic with open wounds or other pertinent medical conditions will
have photographs taken on initial visit and periodically to demonstrate progress (or non-
progress) and/or with any significant changes.

Photography of other events/conditions will occur with patient's permission as ordered by
physician or at the discretion of the clinical staff.

Photographs will be maintained as with all confidential medical information.

Photographs will be released only with patient's consent.

PROCEDURE

During the initial visit, the patient will be asked to sign the Consent for Photography form.

A member of the clinical staff will witness the patient signature.

If an interpreter is used, the interpreter will sign as well.

Refusal to give consent for photography will be honored by the clinic staff, and no photographs
will be taken. The clinical staff will note this on the consent form and on the front of the chart in
section "OTHER".

Pictures will be taken using various forms of photography such as digital, Polaroid or 35mm.
Picture will be labeled with date, patient initials, medical record number and wound number
and/or site of wound/condition.

Whenever a photograph is taken it will be noted in the Progress Notes in the section called
Wound Assessment.

Staff members will be trained in the proper use of the cameras and in technique for good quality
pictures.

23.



(@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Patient Reception

REVISION DATE(S): 12110

Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: nia
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12110

A, PURPOSE
1. Itis essential that the image we project is one that is consistent with the philosophy and mission of
the hospital. First impressions set the tone for subsequent visits. Factors that may adversely
affect a patient's perception are:

a. Lack of respect when dealing with patients

b. Long waiting periods prior to being seen by physician

c. Not providing adequate or providing inaccurate instructions/information.

d. Not including patient’s support team (e.g., family, friend, caregiver) in the plan of care.
2. A negative impression may dissuade the patient from returning to the clinic or discourage

compliance/cooperation with the plan of care. This document delineates the guidelines necessary
to meet the clinic’'s customer service goals.

B. POLICY
1. All patients seen at the Center can expect:
a. To be treated with respect and dignity according to the values of the hospital
b. A supportive, compassionate staff
c. A therapeutic environment
2. All patients will be greeted professionally and with compassion.
C. PROCEDURE

1. During the patient’s first visit, the patient will be instructed about the initial process and oriented
to the reception area (TV, reading materials, restroom, writing surfaces, etc.)

2. Patients will be asked to complete information forms and sign consent forms (except consent for
treatment) prior to the first evaluation/exam.

3. Patients will be given assistance as needed with registration, e.g., Spanish interpretation.

4, Every effort will be made to make the patient comfortable in the waiting area. If indicated, the
clinical staff will be asked to assist with comfort measures.

5. Priority will be given to the day's clinic patients to minimize waiting periods. Interruptions for
telephone calls by the clinical staff will be reserved for urgent needs only in order to facilitate the
clinical flow.

6. Patients will be addressed respectfully and according to their expressed wishes.

7. The patient will be informed about:

a. The purpose of the program
b. The plan of care

(3 The communication procedures



Wound Care Canler
Patient Reception
Page 2 of 2

8.
9.
10.

1.

The clinic physician will clearly define his/her recommendations for the treatment plan and
include members of the patient’s support team

Staff members will introduce themselves to the patient and explain all procedures prior to
implementing them.

After-care instructions will always be provided in written form (“Patient Instruction” form) after
each visit.

All patient complaints will be addressed per hospital policy.

23



@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Patient Survey Process

REVISION DATE(S): 12/10

Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: nfa
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: nfa
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12110

A. PURPOSE

1.

The quality or effectiveness of any program is reflected in the satisfaction experienced by the
client receiving service in and out of a program setting. The Center's survey process is
designed to recapitulate the patient experience at the Center. Results of the survey are
reviewed by qualified person(s), and opportunities to improve services are identified and
corrective actions implemented.

B. POLICY

1.

Gk w

All patients receiving care at the Center will be asked to complete a satisfaction survey after
discharge.

Survey results will be reviewed and tabulated by qualified person{s}, per hospital procedure,
and reported to pertinent hospital committee(s) and the medical staff of the Center.
Opportunities for improvement will be identified.

Corrective action will be implemented, evaluated, and reported as appropriate.

Patients may also express concerns anytime during their treatment period and expect resolution
whenever possible.

C. PROCEDURE

1.

NoOobk G

@

After discharge, each patient will be handed or sent a survey and asked to complete and return
before they leave or in a self-addressed envelope to the hospital.

The surveys will be tabulated using an approved method.

The results will be reviewed by the Center manager, the office coordinator, and the physician
quality advocate, as well as the Center staff.

Opportunities for improvement will be identified by the tam.

Corrective actions will be implemented.

Ongoing monitoring will be conducted to measure the effectiveness of actions.

The findings will be reported to pertinent hospital committee(s) {i.e., Performance Improvement)
and persons.

The Center staff will participate in the improvement process. The results of the surveys will be
discussed at the monthly meetings.

23¢



@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC
ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Patient Visual Auditory Privacy
REVISION DATE(S): 12/10
Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12110
A PURPOSE
1. This policy defines the measures taken by the Center to preserve and maintain the patient's
right to privacy.
B. POLICY
1. Every effort will be made to maintain the patient’s visual and auditory privacy while being treated
at the Center.
2. Immediate action, to the extent possible, will be taken when a breach of privacy is identified.
3. Employees found violating the privacy policy will be counseled and an appropriate inservice
provided, if appropriate.
C. PROCEDURE
1. Interview/counsel patients out of hearing and visual range of other patients and visitors. A
private room or exam room is appropriate.
2. Do not speak above the patient's hearing level.
3 Seek patient's permission to allow students, manufacturer's representatives, or any other
appropriate observers to be present in the exam room.
4. Do not call out patient information, including name, orders or treatment plan, etc. across
distances within the clinic to communicate with other members of the healthcare team.
58 Provide privacy when any part of the patient’s body is exposed; or if patient is disrobing by
closing privacy curtain and using a sheet to cover the patient if appropriate.
6. Keep exam room door closed at all times while the patient occupies the room, unless
contraindicated or at the patient’s request.
7. Be sure that windows are covered appropriately to provide adequate privacy.
8. Maintain patient confidentiality with the medicai record as well as all verbal and written

communications.

237



@)Tri-City Heailth Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CLINIC

HYPERBARIC CLINIC
ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Program Description
REVISION DATE(S): 12/10
Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 1210

A. PURPOSE
1. The clinic is a comprehensive advanced therapy/treatment program that addresses
specific medical needs of the community. The purpose of this document is to:
a. Describe the program
b. Establish the mission of the program
C. Delineate the scope of services
d. Define the roles, responsibilities and qualifications of the medical and
clinical staff
2. Mission Statement: Consistent with the mission of Tri-City Medical Center, the wound
care clinic will serve the needs of this community as it relates to the treatment of chronic
wounds, ostomy care and hyperbaric medicine.

B. POLICY

1. The primary goal of the clinic is to provide vital services to the population at risk, which
includes patients of multiple and differing socioeconomic and cultural backgrounds.
These are patients with diabetes, renal failure, peripheral vascular disease,
hypertension, and many other chronic illnesses and their sequelae.

2. Access to care for all patients including those with limited funding and transportation will
be served by multiple specialists while still allowing the patients to maintain their primary
care physician/patient relationship.

3. These services shall be marketed to our immediate community, insurance plans,
workers’ compensation programs and the State (Medi-Cal).
4, Consideration of other sources of income, i.e. clinical research programs, grants and

partnering with other institutions will be further evaluated and utilized when beneficial to
Tri-City Medical Center for its community.

C. ACCOUNTABILITY/REPORTING STRUCTURE
1. The program is a hospital-based service, licensed as an outpatient program. The
program is accountable to hospital administration through a reporting relationship to the
Senior Director of Patient Care Services and Chief Operating Officer/Chief Nurse
Executive.

D. SCOPE OF SERVICES
1. The service model chosen by the hospital relates directly to medical information
obtained from various sources, including:

23t



Wound Care Center
Program Dascription

Page 2 of 4
a. CDC statistics
b. ADA
c. Hospital DRGs
d. DHS
2. The goals of the clinic are accomplished through the services it provides, including:
a. Management/healing of chronic wounds, including:
a) Vascular assessment
b) Nutritional assessment
c) Infection control
d) Edema control
e) Offloading methods and devices
f) Surgical intervention, as indicated
b. Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy as adjunctive therapy for the treatment of
difficult-to-treat wounds
C. Diabetic self-management and education program collaborating with the
patient’s primary care physician to include:
a) Diabetic education
b) Nutritional instruction
c) Disease self-management
d) Referral to sub-specialists for prevention of complication
d. d. Ostomy care:
3. Pre-operative education and site marking
4, Post-operative education, appliance needs, and lifestyle adaptation
E. QUALITY MANAGEMENT/PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

1. The quality management program, consistent with that of the hospital, is designed to
measure outcomes and related processes of care and to seek ways to improve the
quality of services provided at the clinic. The key elements of the program are:

a. Collect meaningful data

b. Select measurable indicators

c. Use a valid method of data collection, management and storage
d. Analysis of the data by a qualified person

e. Reporting to pertinent hospital committees

f. Corrective actions designed to improve the quality of services

2. Data sources: The primary source of information is the clinic database. The patient
medical record, laboratory, radiology reports and the hospital computer information
systems are utilized, where appropriate, following HIPAA guidelines. Data is collected
by the program director/clinical manager and/or the clinic staff, as appropriate. Data
may be concurrent or retrospective dependent on availability of data.

3. Benchmarking: The clinic results are compared to national and/or system-wide
benchmarks, when available, or the clinic's own historical data. Unmet goals are
perceived as opportunities for improvement. Corrective actions are relevant to
improving the services rendered.

4. Reporting: The data results are reported to the pertinent hospital committees/ teams as

mandated by the hospital's governing bodies and may include:

a. The hospital Safety/Environment of Care Committee
b. The hospital Quality Committee

c. The Medical Executive Committee

d. The Hospital Board of Directors

F. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS, EDUCATION, AND TRAINING

1.

Medical Staff



Wound Care Center
Program Description
Page 3 of 4

Medical Director: The program is directed by a qualified medical staff
member who is a clinician who may be trained in 1 or more of the
following disciplines, has the responsibility to educate and train the
medical staff, and works closely with the program director/clinical
manager to recommend and to order the educational activities of the
clinic staff. Moreover, the Medical Director provides direction and
oversight for the overall medical services.

a) Plastic and reconstructive surgery

b) Vascular surgery

c) Orthopedic surgery

d) Internal medicine

e) Infectious disease

f) Nephrology

g) Endocrinoiogy

h) Dermatology

i) Podiatry
)] Interventional radiclogy
k) Emergency medicine

Medical Staff Members: Relevant continuing education is required to

maintain their status as medical practitioners in this specialized program

(see “Credentialing Criteria for Qutpatient Wound Care"). A qualified

practitioner is selected based on:

a) Proven skills in a relevant discipline

b) Medical or specialty experience

c) Established reputation in the medical community

d) Hospital staff privileges

e) Ability to perform the requirements of the service to be rendered

f) Interest in an interdisciplinary approach and collaboration in the
care of chronic diseases

For physicians involved with hyperbaric oxygen therapy, see “Credentialing Criteria for
Hyperbaric Medicine”.

Clinic Staff Members
a) Clinical Manager: The clinic is staffed with a full-time qualified
Clinical Manger whose qualifications include:

(a) Education and training (RN)

(b) Previous managerial experience OR the
ability to demonstrate the necessary skills to
perform the managerial duties

(c) Proven skills in collaborating with the
medical staff, Administration, and outside
agencies that govern the standards of
medical care

(d) Ability to communicate effectively with the
medical and clinic staff, Administration,
other departments of the hospital, and
patients and their families

(e) Ability to develop and/or coordinate
educational programs for clinic staff and
patients

(f) Knowledge and skills in developing and
implementing policies, procedures and new
programs

24(



Wound Care Cenler
Program Description

Page 4 of 4
b. Clinic Staff: The type and number of staff members are selected based
on qualifications, experience and clinic needs. Clinic needs are
determined by the number of active patients in the program, the type and
the acuity of patients, the type of service required by the patients, and the
overall requirements of the clinic. Members of the staff may include:
a) Office Coordinator
b) Registered Nurses, WOCNSs, Physical Therapists
c) Licensed Vocational Nurses
d) Medical Assistants
e) Receptionist
f) Clerical support staff
a) Certified Diabetes Educators
h) HBOT Safety Manager
i) HBO Technologists
C. Each position is defined in the Job Description Manual. Overall
competency of clinic staff is based on:
a) Education, training, licensing and certification, as required
b) Years of experience
c) Ability to demonstrate the necessary skills to perform the defined
duties as defined and assessed on performance appraisal
d) Ability to communicate effectively with the medical staff and
patients and their families
G. STAFF DEVELOPMENT
1. In collaboration with the Medical Director, the staff education and training schedule is
developed on a monthly and as-needed basis. It is comprised of all the elements
necessary to affect a quality program. The topics include, but are not limited to:
a. Department orientation for new staff members
b. Diabetes
C. Negative pressure wound therapy
d. Use of chemotherapy as an adjunct to wound healing
e. Vascular assessment
f. Soft tissue infections/osteomyelitis
g. Plastic and reconstructive surgery
h. Off-loading wounds
i. Wound healing strategies
i Hyperbaric oxygen therapy
k. Edema control
I Science of wound healing
m. Ostomy care
2. Educational programs are also defined by the clinical staff through need assessment
discussed at the monthly staff meetings.
H. PRODUCT SELECTION

i) As much as possible, the products used in the clinic are
selected in conjunction with the hospital's product selection
process. The clinical staff actively participates in the
selection process and bases its decisions on effectiveness
of the products. Attention is given to cost, but benefit to
the patient is the primary consideration.

241



@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: SUBJECT:Registration

REVISION DATE(S): 12110

Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: nla
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12110
A. PURPOSE
1. Hospital or clinic registration can be a daunting and tedious task for someone whose health may

be less than optimal. Every effort will be made to simplify and expedite this process. This
document outlines the registration process at the Center.

POLICY

1. The registration procedure will be simplified to the extent possible to minimize the stress related
to initial visit procedures.

2. Every patient will be assisted, as appropriate, in completing the registration information.

Ll The clerical staff will follow the hospital's procedures for data collection and electronic data
entry.

PROCEDURE

1. At the conclusion of the patient's first inquiry and when an appointment has been scheduled, the

patient or representative will be asked to bring with them the following information:
Current medication list
Physician referral letter, if applicable
Primary physician information
Insurance card(s)/information
Copy of relevant diagnostic tests
A resident or qualified representative of long-term or extended-care facilities will be
required to complete and return pertinent information 24 hours prior to the first visit. The
facility is responsible for ensuring that the appropriate consents are signed by authorized
person(s) and returned with the patient at the time of the appointment. If the
patient/resident cannot speak or act for himself, he/she must be accompanied by a
representative (preferably a family member) who is knowledgeable about the medical
history.
i The Center reserves the right to cancel the appointment, if all required
documentation is not available at the time of the first visit.
ii. A family member or facility representative must always accompany
patients/residents who are not oriented to person, time, or place.
2. All patients will be admitted to the Center according to hospital policy. The following forms must
be signed preceding any exam/treatment:
a. Hospital's “"Conditions of Agreement”
b. Insurance and billing information

0 oo oo



Wound Care Center

Registration
Page 2 of 2
C. Consent for Treatment (after the clinic physician has informed the patient about the plan
of care).
3. The office coordinator or designee will:
a. Ensure that verification of the insurance information/coverage is complete prior to the
first visit.
b. Obtain any necessary prior authorizations from the third-party payer.
i. Only services authorized may be provided
c. Copy insurance card(s) for distribution as follows:
i. The medical record
i. Admitting Department
ifi. Financial folders
iv. Physician
d. Notify the patient and primary care physician if verification indicates that the patient has
no coverage or poor coverage, and discuss payment options.
e. In the event that an individual payment plan must be consiructed, the hospital's business

office will advise and develop a payment plan with the patient or representative
responsible for the payment.

24



@)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Scheduling

REVISION DATE(S): 12/10

Department Approval: 62/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12110

A. PURPOSE
1. Establishing scheduling procedures is important for several reasons:
a Provides for orderly, efficient approach to patient visits
b. Minimizes patient waiting periods
c. Allows for adequate time for evaluation/treatment
d Defines a uniform approach to scheduling for staff members
e Assigns responsibilities to avoid duplication of effort

B. POLICY

1. Patients will be scheduled appropriately, allowing adequate time between visits to prevent
prolonged waiting time for all patients.

2. Patients will receive written follow-up visit appointments at the end of each visit along with their
home instructions.

3 As time permits, patients will be called 1-2 days prior to the scheduled visit to confirm the
appointment,

4, Patients missing scheduled appointments will be called as time permits on the same or following
day to ascertain the cause of the missed appointment and reschedule the patient whenever
possible.

C. PROCEDURE
1. Schedule Order

a. Patients will be instructed to check in with the receptionist upon their arrival.
b. Patients will be seen in the order of their appointment time and not by their arrival time.
C. The receptionist or front office support is responsible for maintaining the scheduling

order for the clinic session. Working with and through the receptionist, the clinical staff
may overrule the order of the schedule if deemed medically prudent.

d. If the clinic session is running behind, the clinic staff will notify the reception/office
personnel who, in turn, will inform the waiting patients and provide them with the option
to reschedule their appointment.

2. Scheduling the New Patient

a. The new patient will be scheduled with the appropriate clinic physician.
b. The new patient will be schedule in an open time slot that allows adequate time for
comprehensive medical evaluation and workup.
3. Follow-up Appointments
a. The attending nurse (case manager)/PT will write the timeframe of the next visit ordered

by the physician on the home instruction sheet and forward to the receptionist.



Wound Care Center
Scheduling
Papge 2 of 2

b. The patient will be given a copy of the written home care instructions by the receptionist,
which will include the follow-up appointment date and time.
4, Missed Appointments
a. When a patient has not arrived for his/her scheduled appointment, the clinic staff will
attempt to contact the patient by telephone the same or following day (as time permits).
i. A new appointment will be scheduled, as appropriate

b. If the patient is able to arrive the same day before the clinic physician leaves, the patient
may be scheduled in at the end of the clinic session.

c. If the patient cannot or does not want to return, the receptionist will relay the information
to the nurse case manager/PT for follow-up, as appropriate.

d. For non-compliant patients, the clinician will record any information related to the
scheduled appointment(s) in the medical record, documenting the attempts to contact
the patient.

e. The missed appointment will be recorded in the patient record on the physician order
sheet and will include the reason, if ascertained.

5. Unscheduled Appointments
a. Patients referred to the Center for a same-day visit may be accepted as time permits

and if the clinic physician in session accepts the patient.

i. The patient and the referring physician will be informed that the patient wili be
added to the schedule at the end of the session, or as time permits.

ii. The clinic physician, nurse case manager/PT, or the clinic manager may overrule
this policy if deemed medically prudent to see the patient sooner than at the end
of the session.

6. Canceled Appointments
a. The clinic physician will review the missed appointment list and may give instructions in
addition to rescheduling the patient.
b. The support staff will attempt to reschedule the appointment at the time of cancellation, if
appropriate.
7. Patient Discontinues the Program
a. Tracking will be done weekly by the data coordinator, who will generate a report from the
database that identifies patients who have not returned for follow-up care within the last
4 to 6 weeks.
b. The report will be given to the clinic manager for distribution and follow-up.
cC. The Center staff will make a good-faith attempt to reschedule the patients listed.
d. Communication efforts will be documented in the medical record by the clinical staff.
e. After a good-faith effort has been made to contact and reschedule the patient, a letter

will be sent to the patient referring them back to their primary care physician for follow-up
care.

24t



@)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Staff Development
REVISION DATE(S): 12/10
Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: nfa
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12110

A. PURPOSE

1.

Learning is essential to personal growth and development. The hospital recognizes that staff
education enhances the quality of patient care and improves staff motivation. Other benefits
include:

Improved competency

Increased compliance with hospital policies, state, local and federal regulations/statutes
Reduction of risks associated with patient/visitor and staff safety

Understanding, better awareness, and compliance with standards of practice

coow

B. POLICY

1.

hwn

o

The clinic manager, in collaboration with the medical and clinic staff, will develop education
calendars.

An educational needs assessment will be conducted at the monthly staff meetings.

Staff meetings will be held monthly and may include staff development topics.

The clinic manager is responsible for developing, implementing, and revising the staff
development program.

All staff members will be given a thorough hospital and unit-specific orientation during the
placement period.

Ongoing inservice education will be conducted on a monthly basis and more frequentiy as
needed.

Attendance at hospital and outside educational program is encouraged.

The staff is encouraged to independently pursue educational opportunities to enhance their
professional growth.

Monthly staff meetings/staff development activities may include, but are not limited to, the
following:

Job-related training

Safety-related issues

Infection control

Introduction to new policies, procedures, techniques, and products

Medical topics such as diabetes, vascular disease, infectious disease, wound healing,
hyperbaric medicine

Operational changes

Pain assessment

Patient advocacy issues

Continuum of care

Required annual training

®oooow

o ~

[ —

24¢



Waund Care Center
Staff Development
Page 2 of 2

10.

11.
12.

Minutes of the staff meetings will be recorded and will include personnel in attendance, issues
discussed, and action plans for identified problems. Associates not in attendance are required
to read the minutes.

As much as possible, the programs/meetings will be held when most or all staff is scheduled.
Other miscellaneous information not included in the staff meetings, such as general hospital
memos, will be included in the department communication book that is maintained by the

support staff.

247



@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 06/07

SUBJECT: Staffing Plan

REVISION DATE(S): 12/10

Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 1210

A PURPOSE
1.

Appropriate and adequate staffing is vital to the success of the multi-service outpatient clinic. A
well-planned approach must be taken to accomplish this goal, and several factors for a good
staffing plan must be considered. They are:

~oQoop

B. POLICY
Acuity Classification: The Acuity Classification policy has been developed to provide for and
validate adequate/appropriate resources for the plan of care for each patient who presents to
the Center for treatment and to support the requirements for the continuum of care activities.
Staffing: In general, the type and number of staff members are selected based on
qualifications, experience and clinic needs. Clinic needs are determined daily and weekly by
the number of scheduled patients, the type and acuity of patients, and the type of service
required by the patients. Members of the staff may include:

1.

Acuity of the patients treated

Level of expertise/competency of the staff

Time allotted for each visit

Available resources (human, financial, and otherwise)

Continuous planning and assessment (daily, weekly, monthly and yearly)

Frequent review and evaluation to seek opportunities to enhance the system to benefit
patient car and for good stewardship of financial resources that impact clinic operations.

a.

RN Clinical Manager is empowered to run the day-to-day operations of the clinic. The
manager also participates in the decision-making processes related to the selection of
the clinic model and the services provided. Hefshe is accountable for ensuring that the
clinic is adequately staffed and makes certain that patient visits are appropriate and
timely.

Office Coordinator has the overall responsibility for coordinating the activities of the
clerical area and performs the administrative functions of the front office operations.
Registered Nurse/PT develops the plan of care for each patient using the nursing
process. The RN/PT leads and accepts responsibility for the multifaceted team to direct
and evaluate the plan of care and takes the initiative to make necessary adjustments to
enhance the quality of care provided and improve outcomes. The RN/PT takes the lead
in the coordination in the continuum of care.

Licensed Vocational Nurse, under the supervision of the clinical manager and the
direction of the RN/PT, performs duties using the nursing process to provide and
maintain individualized quality patient care and participates in the coordination in the
continuum of care.

24¢



Wound Care Center

Staffing Plan

Page 2 of 2

e. Medical Assistant (MA), under the supervision of the clinical manager and the direction
of the RN/LVN/PT, performs tasks as assigned. The MA assists other members of the
healthcare team while providing direct patient care. As a patient advocate, the MA
reports observations and patient responses to care to the RN/PT/MD and assists with
maintaining patient privacy/ confidentiality and reports patient complaints of pain to the
RN/PT/MD.

f. Receptionist requires the coordination of the clinical, clerical and general
secretarial/office duties, as well as realistic patient scheduling. As the first person the
patient encounters by phone and with each visit, the receptionist must demonstrate
excellent interpersonal skills.

a. Other staff members may include a nurse practitioner/physician assistant, CWOCN,
enterostomal nurse, and additional clerical support staff. Competency of clinic staff is
based upon:

i. Education and training

ii. Years of experience

iii. Ability to demonstrate the necessary skills to perform the defined duties

iv. Ability to communicate effectively with the medical staff and patients and their
families.

Financial Resource Allotment for Staffing: Budget preparation for staffing the clinic is performed

annually by the clinical manager with the assistance and approval of the administrative team.

Budget requirement is determined by utilizing previous years' financial history and financial

performance, as well as anticipated staffing needs for planned additional services, as justified

by the clinical manager. Periodic adjustments to accommodate changes may be made at the
discretion of the clinic manager and with the direction/approval of the administrative team.

Patient Scheduling: Allowing adequate time for each patient visit is necessary for patient

satisfaction, convenience, and care needs and is an essential component of an efficient and

smooth-running clinic. To determine the time required for/between each visit, the following
general rules apply:

a. Increased time is allowed for a new patient visit or for complex cases

b. Less time is required for follow-up and/or less-complex cases

cC. For more specific information on patient classification, refer to the Acuity Classification
policy.

Assignments: Assignments are planned by the clinical manager on a weekly basis and are

based upon the number of patients scheduled, assessment of clinical needs of the patient, the

complexity of the patient's condition, and the clinical care requirements. Staffing levels may be
adjusted to correspond with the anticipated care requirements. In addition, the clinic manager
reviews the changes in the daily clinic schedule and makes necessary adjustments to staffing
levels.

Evaluation of Staffing Plan: The staffing plan is periodically reviewed and evaluated by the

clinic manager. Opportunities for improvement/enhancement are identified, and changes are

made consistent with the needs of the patients and the staff members,

24¢



@Tri-Clty Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Telephone Management

REVISION DATE(S): 12/10

Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: nfa
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa
Board of Directors Approval: 12/10
A. PURPOSE
1. Effective management of telephone operations is key to the success of the program. The
important aspects of telephone management include:
a. Etiquette
b. Intake/information management skills
c. Adequate coverage
d. Telephone triage
B. POLICY
1. To promote excellence and competence in managing telephone communications:
a. The telephone communications methods will be defined and systematic.
b. All personnel will be trained in proper telephone etiquette and telephone information
management.
C. A designated person(s) will have full responsibility to coordinate and maintain the
telephone communication program.
d. The clinic manager will be responsible for oversight and implementation of the program.
e, As a key customer relations/service tool, the telephone will reflect the mission and
philosophy of the program:
i All patients will be treated with respect and dignity when communicating by
phone.
ii. All telephone messages will receive timely responses.
il Telephone calls will be routed appropriately.
f. Adequate telephone coverage will be provided during normal business hours.
g. Provisions will be made for after-hour communication.
C. PROCEDURE
1. During business hours, the phone will be answered in a timely manner.
2. For after-business hours, a telephone recording system will be utilized to answer calls, and

messages will be picked up promptly the following business day. The greeting/recording will
contain instructions for emergency situations and provide the medical director's phone number
for professional consultation.

Messages will be answered promptly.

Those responding to telephone calls will speak clearly and distinctly.

The general rules are:

a. Answer the phone in a timely manner (3 rings or less is preferable)

orw

25(



Wound Care Center
Telephone Management

Page 2 of 2
b. Answer the phone in a pleasant and professional manner.
c. Identify yourself and the name of the clinic.
d. Route the call to the appropriate person, i.e., physician, nurse/PT, efc. if medically
related
e. Take a message when the recipient is unavailable at the time of call and will include:
i. The name of the caller
i The purpose of the call
ii. The telephone number where they can be reached
iv. The best time to return the call
V. If appropriate, ask if you can assist them
6. To decrease the interruptions to the clinic session:
a. Determine the priority or urgency of the call
b. Explain the reason the intended recipient may not be able to answer at this time, i.e.,
“The doctor is with a patient at this time.”
c. Take a message, as indicated in “e.” above
7. To minimize the caller's waiting time, route the calis as soon as feasible and ensure they are
received.
8. For inquires about the services of the clinic:
a. Succinctly explain the services of the clinic
b. Determine the purpose of the inquiry
c. Schedule an appointment, if appropriate, with the proper physician/service (clinical staff
to assist with triage).
d. Request demographic data per Intake form;
i. Provide directions to the clinic
i. Instruct patient to bring medication list, insurance information/card, as well as
other pertinent medical information/diagnostic tests, referral documents, etc.
. Instruct patient to arrive 30 minutes early for first visit to complete necessary
information forms.
9. As time permits, call all scheduled patients 1-2 days prior to their appointment to confirm date

and time.

10. When a patient misses their appointment, attempt to reach the patient by phone to ascertain the
cause, and reschedule the appointment.

11. Significant patient-related calls will be documented in the patient record by the clinical staff.



@)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC
ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Transportation
REVISION DATE(S): 12/10
Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: nfa
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12110
A, PURPOSE
1. The treatment plan may be adversely affected because of unreliable or lack of consistent
transportation. This policy identifies the various resources available to meet the transportation
needs of the patient.
B. POLICY
1. Any patient seeking medical attention at the Center will be assessed for adequacy of
transportation.
2. Patients with transportation requirements will be identified during the admission process and
anytime while in the treatment program.
3. Reasonable effort will be made to assist patients with transportation requirements.
C. PROCEDURE
1. During the patient telephone inquiry prior to admission, patients will be queried about their mode
of transportation.
2. On admission day, patients will be asked how they will be transported for each visit.
3. While in the treatment program, patients who do not present for their scheduled visit will be
queried about transportation.
4, The Center will assist patients identified with transportation needs by the following means:
a. Use of the hospital van service, if patient lives within the service area
b. Access transportation through the city or county programs
C. Access transportation trough the patient's managed care group, HMO, etc., if
appropriate.
d. Investigate the possibility of having family member/friend/church member committing to
transport the patient
e Contact the Social Services Department for assistance
D. After exhausting the above recommendations, hospital Administration will be contacted, and the patient

will be evaluated; approval/disapproval for financia! assistance for transportation will be obtained.



(@) Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Wound Measurement

REVISION DATE(S): 12/10

Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approvali: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12110

A. PURPOSE

1.

Appropriate and consistent wound measuring is necessary to accurately assess wound healing.
This document describes the appropriate procedure for obtaining wound measurements at the
Center.

B. POLICY

1.
2.
3.

To the extent possible, clinic staff members will utilize a consistent wound measurement

procedure delineated in this policy.

It is the responsibility of the clinical manager to ensure that clinic staff members are competent

in the approved wound measurement method and follow the prescribed procedures.

Photographs are taken of all new wounds, when measurable wounds are present:

a. A measurable wound is defined as one that measures greater than 0.5cm x 0.5¢m x 1cm
at the time of initial assessment. If clinically significant, smailer wounds are
documented. Stage | (non-blanchable erythema) wounds typically are not considered a
measurable open wound in the wound care program. Stage | wounds may be
documented in the narrative portion of the clinician's notes.

Each wound will receive a number at the initial visit and when a new wound develops (the order

of the numbering is not specified for the initial measurements).

For muitiple wounds at one site, a photograph of the entire area will be taken and numbering will

be done on the photo, as well as the progress notes, for reference at subsequent visits.

Wounds that have been debrided with an associated charge for service and/or receive

dressings or treatment orders must be numbered, measured at all clinic visits, and followed to

outcome.

C. PROCEDURE

1.

2.

Materials:

a. Disposable measuring tape

b. Exam gloves

C. Sterile cotton-tipped applicator

d. Progress notes

Procedure:

a. Apply exam gloves

h. Remove dressing

c. Measure the wounds in centimeters or as instructed by hospital, using disposable

measuring tape and cotton-tipped applicator to probe wounds as indicated. Probing is

252



Wound Care Center

Paolicy Wound Measurement

Page 2 of 2

T rX-—"Iem o

~0o

Wound margin/skin surface:

performed using the cotton-tipped end (using the wooden end can be harmful to the

tissue and may leave wood fragments in the wound).

i. NOTE: Post-debridement measurements may be documented when
debridement significantly alters the wound size.

Measure the longest axis of the wound to document length.

Measure perpendicular to the long axis of the wound to document width.

Using the cotton-tipped applicator, cotton-side down, measure the deepest part of the

wound by placing the first applicator perpendicular to the wound bed and the other

applicator at a 90° angle to the first appiicator at the wound margin/skin surface interface

for the depth. Use tape measure to measure from the tip of applicator to where the

applicators intersect (90° angle).

E.
Applicators at 90° angle

Wound bed

i Note: For data entry purposes, the minimum depth as at least 0.1cm (not zero)
until the wound is healed.

Undermining/tunneling: probe with a cotton-tipped applicator to determine the extent of

the undermining, tunneling, sinus tracts or folds. If there are multiple areas of

undermining, etc., record the longest measurement obtained. If there is no undermining,

etc., record zero for the entry. Document the position of the undermining, etc. using

clock positions, e.g., 3 o'clock (the patient's head being 12 o'clock), as a reference for

subsequent visits.

When the wound is healed, all measurements are zero.

Record all measurements in the designated areas in the Progress Notes.

If a wound converts to 2 or more wounds or 2 or more wounds convert to 1, close out the

wound by using a “C", assign the next available number(s) and take a new photograph.

Using the numbering and location of the wounds from the previous visit, measure all

active wounds at each clinic visit.

Measurements do not have to be taken for clinic visits scheduled for other purposes,

unless ordered by physician or a significant amount of time has lapsed between visits to

warrant a full assessment. The RN/case manager and/or the clinic physician will make

the decision.

254



@)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER
HYPERBARIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 06/07

SUBJECT: Wound Staging

REVISION DATE(S): 12/10

Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: nfa
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12/10
A PURPOSE
1. Baseline staging/grading of wounds is necessary to:
a. Provide a consistent method for classifying wounds
b. Establish the degree of severity of all wounds
c. Define/clarify interventions
d. Assist in developing individualized treatment plans
2 This policy defines the procedure for staging/grading all wounds.
B. POLICY
1. All wounds will have appropriate assessment to include staging or grading, as appropriate.
2. Wounds are evaluated using the Pressure Ulcer Staging System, as described in the Agency for
Health Care Policy and Research (AHCPR) Guidelines.
38 Diabetic foot ulcers will be graded using the Wagner Ulcer Classification System when
hyperbaric oxygen therapy may be a consideration.
C. PROCEDURE
1. Staging
a. Qualified clinical staff will stage the wounds.
b. At the time of initial wound assessment, a stage is determined according to the table
below. Note: The stage remains the same throughout the course of treatment unless:
i. The initial stage is found to be in error - and/or
ii. The level of tissue involvement increases during the course of treatment
C. If the staging is changed, it is recorded in the progress notes in the designated area.
d. The clinic physician will sign concurrence in the designated area of the progress notes.

The clinical staff, as directed by the clinic physician, will make any adjustments to the
wound description.

25¢



Wound Care Center

Wound Staging
Page 2 of 2
Staging System
STAGE DESCRIPTION

Non-blanchable erythema of intact skin; the heralding lesion of skin ulceration.

Partial thickness skin loss involving epidermis and/or dermis. The ulcer is superficial
and presents clinically as an abrasion, blister or shallow crater.

Full thickness skin loss involving damage or necrosis of subcutaneous tissue that
may extend down to, but not through, underlying fascia. The ulcer presents clinically
as a deep crater with or without undermining of adjacent tissue.

Full thickness skin loss with extensive destruction, tissue necrosis or damage to
muscle, bone, or supporting structures (for example, tendon or joint capsule).

Note: Undermining and sinus tracts may also be associated with Stage IV pressure
ulcers.

Note: When eschar is present, accurate staging of the ulcer is not possible until eschar
has sloughed or the wound has been debrided.

Source: AHCPR

GRADING

5.  The Wagner Ulcer Classification System will be utilized for diabetic wounds of the lower extremities,
when hyperbaric oxygen therapy (HBOT) is being considered.

Wagner Ulcer Classification System

GRADE DESCRIPTION
1 Superficial diabetic uicer
2 Ulcer extension

* Involves ligament, tendon, joint capsule or fascia
* _No abscess or osteomyelitis

3 Deep ulcer with abscess or osteomyelitis
4 Gangrene to portion of forefoot
5 Extensive gangrene of foot

Reference: Wagner (1987) Orihopedic 10:163-72

25¢



(@)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

WOUND CARE CENTER

HYPERBARIC CLINIC
ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Patient Changing Area
REVISION DATE(S): 12110
Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 05/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nla
Board of Directors Approval: 12110
A PURPOSE
1. To establish guidelines for keeping patients' personal belongings and for providing privacy for
patient changing clothing for HBOT.
B. POLICY
1. Patients undergoing hyperbaric therapy will be required to dress in 100% cotton prior to entering
the hyperbaric chamber (NFPA 99 Hyperbaric Facilities Guidelines).
2. An enclosed private area will be provided for each patient for changing into the required
garments.
3. A locker or locked area will be provided for each patient undergoing HBOT.
C. PROCEDURE
1. When a patient enters the unit, the following steps will be taken to ensure they comply with the

requires for approved clothing in the hyperbaric oxygen chamber and keep their valuables or
personal belongings in a safe area.

a. Patients will be provided with 100% cotton gown/scrubs by the hyperbaric staff

b. Patients will dress/undress in the designated area.

C. Patients shall be given a key for their lockers to ensure that their belongings are kept
safe.

d. The key is not allowed in the hyperbaric chamber, per NFPA 99. Patients may leave
their keys outside the chamber within plain sight while undergoing therapy.

e. After hyperbaric therapy, the patient shall remove their cotton gown/scrubs and place
them in the provided covered soiled linen hamper.

f. Locker keys will be turned in to the hyperbaric staff prior to the patient's departure from
the Center.



A—y
<
COMPREHENSIVE
PHARMACY SERVICES

o MoTontad Pharsipcy Ledsurs Dr. o Tracsformaion

Eravacycline (XERAVA™)

Formulary Considerations:

Most intra-abdominal infections resulting from perforations of the gastrointestinal tract or its
appendages are polymicrobial. Enteric Gram-negative bacilli, Gram-positive cocei, and anaerobic
microorganisms are the predominant pathogens. ' Antimicrobial therapy is generally considered
an adjunct to the use of appropriate source control in the treatment of intra-abdominal infections
[Physical measures to eradicate focus of infection, prevent on-going contamination and ultimately
to restore optimal anatomy and function]. However, in patients in whom source control is
deferred, antimicrobial therapy plays a more definitive role. Please refer to additional
recommendations from the CPS Clinical Team for specific considerations for minimizing the
induction of resistance and maximizing cost-effectiveness in patients with clAl of mild-moderate
as well as those with high severity. (Key Pharmacy Points for the Adult Patient with Complicated
Intra-Abdominal Infection.)

Eravacycline met non-inferiority criteria for complicated intra-abdominal infections and was FDA
approved for this indication. Due to its expanded antimicrobial coverage, including Acinetobacter
and various mechanisms of resistance that cause CREs (ie. Kiebsiella pneumoniae
carbapenemases [KPCs], metallobetalactamases (MBLs), etc), it can be a useful agent in
infections that have no other antimicrobial options or where antimicrobial options can cause more
patient harm than benefit (i.e. colistin, polymyxin B). Therefore, although eravacycline has only
been approved for complicated intra-abdominal infection, its pharmacokinetic properties are
similar to that of other antibiotics in its class and we can be certain it can be useful to treat multi-
drug resistance organism causing infections in other areas.

As part of antimicrabial stewardship conservation efforts, it is recommended that this antibiotic be
restricted for infectious diseases (ID) use only. ID will ensure the judicious and appropriate use of
eravacycline so that it will continue to be effective against future MDROs. Susceptibility testing
will need to be ordered through microlab since the isolate will need to be tested at an outside
reference laboratory.

Cost Impact:

Antimicrobial Standard dose Cost

Eravacycline (Xerava) 1mafkg q12h Assuming 100kg patient:
$49/50mg vial = $196/day

Ceftazidime-avibactam (Avycaz) { 2.5g q8h Assuming normal CrCl:
$333.52/2.5q vial =
$1000.56/day

Recommendations

D Eravacycline should be added to inpatient formulary restricted to ID

Drug Class: Tetracycline®
FDA Approval: August 27, 2018*

Manufacturer: Tetraphase Pharmaceuticals, Inc.?

Eravacycline (TP-434) (Xerava™) New Drug Summary
© 2018-2019 Comprehensive Pharmacy Services. All rights reserved 10of10

25¢



How Supplied: Injectable, 50 mg/10 mL (reconstituted; 63.5 mg eravacycline dihydrochloride)
single dose vial?

Product Information Link; XERAVA Label (PDF) 2

Indications: Complicated intra-abdominal infections in patients 18 years of age and older?, due
to Escherichia coli, Klebsiella pneumoniae, Citrobacter freundii, Enterobacter cloacae, Klebsiella
oxytoca, Enterococcus faecalis, Enterococcus faecium, Staphylococcus aureus, Strepfococcus
anginosus group, Clostridium perfringens, Bacteroides species, and Parabacteroides distasonis.’

Background:

Eravacycline is a fully synthetic fluorocycline, a newer generation tetracycline bacteriostatic
antibacterial agent which is structurally similar to tigecycline.®  Its mechanism of action is
primarily via the disruption of protein synihesis by binding to the bacterial 30S ribosomal subunit;
consequently, preventing the incorporation of amino acids into peptides.’

Tetracyclines were discovered from actinomycetes soil bacteria and were first reported in the
scientific literature in 1948.° Pfizer and Wyeth scientists enabled semisynthetic tetracycline
agents to market.* Tetraphase Pharmaceuticals was founded specifically to commercialize the
tetracycline technology platform.* The C7 and C9 substitutions in the eravacycline molecule are
theorized to impart activity against tetracycline-specific resistance.'

Pharmacokinetics:

Eravacycline pharmacokinetics were evaluated in healthy adult volunteers receiving 1 mg/kg up
to 3 mg/kg, administered over 60 minutes, every 12 hours for 10 days.' Eravacycline is highly
protein bound (79-90%}) and is primarily metabolized via CYP3A4 enzymes and flavin-containing
monooxygenase proteins (FMO) mediated oxidation.' The pharmacokinetics are described in
Table 1.

Table 1. Eravacycline pharmacokinetics'

Parameter Mean value
Cmax (ng/mL) day 1 2125
Cmax (ng/mL) day 10 1825
AUC: 12 {ng x himL) day 1 4305
AUC .12 (ng x h/mL) day 10 6309
t¥% (h) 20
Vss (L) 321

AUC: Area under the curve, Cmax: Maximum concentration: t.:
Hail-life; Vss: Steady-state valume of distribution

Mechanisms of resistance:

Efflux pumps and ribosomal protection proteins are the primary mechanisms responsible for
resistance to tetracyclines and are present in both Gram-positive and Gram-negative bacteria.’
Some species of Gram-negative bacteria also demonstrate innate resistance to tetracyclines due
to specific lipopalysaccharide components in their outer membranes, drug degradation and rRNA
mutations.* Unfortunately, the widespread use of tetracyclines in human and veterinary medicine
led to the development of bacterial resistance leading to decreased utility for indications such as
intestinal, respiratory, and urinary tract infections.®

Eravacycline resistance in some bacteria is associated with upregulated, intrinsic multidrug
resistant (MDR) efflux, and 16s rRNA or certain 30S ribosomal proteins. Additionally, some beta-
lactamase producing isolates may also confer resistance to eravacycline.”

Efficacy and Safety:

Eravacycline (TP-434) {Xerava™) New Drug Summary
© 2018-2019 Comprehensive Pharmacy Services. Al rights reserved 2af10



Tetraphase pursued four non-inferiority studies (IGNITE1, 2, 3, 4) evaluating eravacycline for
complicated urinary tract infections (2 and 3) and intraabdominal infections (1 and 4). Only
IGNITE? has been published. IGNITE 2 and 3 did not meet non-inferiority for their primary
endpoints,

The IGNITE1 study'® evaluated the efficacy and safety of eravacycline compared with ertapenem
in complicated intra-abdominal Infections (clAl), in 541 hospitalized adult subjects. Eravacycline
was administered intravenously at a dose of 1 mg/kg every 12 hours, and it was compared to
ertapenem 1 mg/kg every 24 hours, for a minimum of 4 days and a maximum of 14 days.
Eravacycline and ertapenem treatment were stopped when symptoms clAl resolved, there was
treatment failure, or the maximum allowed number of infusion days was reached.

It is important to note that critically ill patients (e.g., immunocompromised, organ failure, less than
6-8 week prognosis) were excluded. The number of carbapenem-resistant Enterobacteriacese
(CREs), 18 in each group, is too low to positively evaluate a potential therapeutic comparison or
superiority of eravacycline against these microorganisms. Interestingly, the baseline pathogens
for which the incidence of favorable responses was at least 10% higher in the eravacycline
treatment group compared with the ertapenem treatment group included Streptococcus
constellatus, Citrobacter freundii, Klebsiella pneumoniae, and Bacteroides thetaiotaomicron.
Additionally, the favorable response in patients with baseline Acinetobacter baumannii was 100%
in both treatment groups (8/8 for eravacycline and 5/5 for ertapenem). Ten patients receiving
eravacycline had persisting isolates: 6 Escherichia coli and 1 each Bacteroides species,
Clostridia perfringens, Enterococcus durans, Hemophilus parainfluenzae, and Pseudomonas
aeruginosa. In the ertapenem treated patients (N=271), there was 1 E. cofi, 2 Bacteroides
species, and 2 strepfococci.®

Evidence summative statement for the IGNITE1 Study: Eravacycline demonstrated non-
inferiority (not worse) to ertapenem (within 10% non-inferiority margin, 95% CI} in hospitalized
patients with clAl.

The IGNITE4 study’"" though compieted, has not been published. However, its data has been
pooled with IGNITE1 and served as the basis for the new drug application submitted to the US
FDA. This study evaluated the efficacy and safety of eravacycline compared with meropenem in
complicated intra-abdominal Infections (clAl), in 500 hospitalized adult subjects. Eravacycline
was administered intravenously at a dose of 1 mg/kg every 12 hours and it was compared to
meropenem 1 mg/kg every 8 hours, for a minimum of 4 days and a maximum of 14 days.
Eravacycline and meropenem treatment were stopped when symptoms of clAl resolved, there
was treatment failure, or the maximum allowed number of infusion days was reached.

Evidence summative statement for the IGNITE4 Study: Eravacycline demonstrated non-
inferiority (not worse) to meropenem (within 12.5% non-inferiority margin, 95% Cl) in hospitalized
patients with ciAl.

Table 2 outlines additional details for the IGNITE1 and 4 studies in clAl.

Eravacycline (TP-434) (Xarava™) New Drug Summary
©12018-2018 Comprehensive Pharmacy Services. All rights reserved Jof10

260



Table 2. Evidence Review

Phase 3 Randomized,
Multicenter, Double-
Blind, Double
Dummy, Prospeclive,
Parallel, Non-
inferiority trial (within
10% non-inferiority
margin, lower limit of
the 2-sided 95% Cl)

— Complicated intra-
abdominal
infections (clAl)

August 2013- August
2014

Inclusion Criteria:

~ Male or female pariicipant
hospitalized for clAl

—~ Al least 18 years of age {and not
over 65 years of age for
participants in India)

- Evidence of a systemic
inflammatory response

- Abdominal pain or flank pain (with
or without rebound tenderness), or
pain caused by clAl that is referred
to another anatomic area
Able to provide informed consent

— I male: must agree (o use an
effeclive barrier method of
contraception during the study and
for 90 days following the last dose
if sexually active with a female of
childbearing potential

- If female, not pregnant or nursing
or, if of childbearing potential:
either will commit to use at least
two medically accepted, effective
methods of birth control (for
example, condom, oral
contraceplive, indwelling
intrauterine device, hormonal
implant /patch, injections,
approved cervical ring} during
study drug dosing and for 20 days
following last study drug dose or
praclicing sexual abstinence

Exctusion Criteria:

= Unlikely to survive the 6-8 week
study period

- Renal failure

— Presence or possible signs of
hepalic disease

- Immunocompromised condition,
including known human
immunodeficiency virus (HIV)
positivity (requiring anti-retroviral
therapy or with CD4 count <300),

{N=270); los! to
follow up (LTF)
{N=19)

Vs
Ertapenem 1 g IV

q24h (N=271);
LTF (N=21)

For 4 to 14 days

at the test-of-cure
{TOC) visit in the
microbiological
intent-to-treat
(Micro-ITT)
population

Secondary:

Clinical response
at the test-of-cure
{TOC) visit in the
modified intent-to-
treat (MITT)
population

Clinical response
at the test-of-cure
(TOC) visit in the
clinically evaluable
(CE) population

Time Frame: TOC visit:
25-31 days after the
first dose of study drug

Micro-ITT:

Clinical cure

- 191 ({86.8%) vs. 198
(87.6%)

Clinical failure

- 19(8.6%) 11 (4.9%)

Indeterminate/missing

- 10 {4.5%} vs. 17 (7.5%)

Difference:

-0.80% (95%CI, -7.1% o

5.5%)

MITT:
Clinical cure
- 235(87%) vs. 238
{88.8%)
Clinical failure
19 (7%) 15 (5.6%)
Indelerminate/missing
= 16 (5.9%) vs. 15 (5.6%)
Diiference:
1.8% (95%Cl, -7 4% to 3.8%)

CE:

Clinical cure
222 (92.9%) vs. 225
(94.5%)

Clinical failure

- 17 (7 1A%) 13 (5.5%)

Difference:

-1.7% (95%CI, -6.3% to 2.8%)

Study/Design/Time Subjects/Criteria Comparators Outcomes Results Comments
Frame
IGNITE 1 — N=541 adults —  Eravacycline 1 Primary: Eravacycline vs ertapenem; N Primary and secondary
gludy {NCT01844856) mg/kg IV q12h Clinical response (%) endpoints met non-inferiority

margin

Eravacycline is not worse
than erapenem in the
treatment of adults with CIAI

Most infections in this study
were polymicrobial (>90%)

- Gram-negative or aerobic
organisms were isolated in
82% of palients

- ESBLs were encountered in
9% of subjects [90% of
subjecls had beta lactams
preoperatively]

Safety:

- Treatmenl emergent adverse
events were higher in the
eravacycline (113/270) than
the ertapenem treaiment
group (75/268) [Nausea
8.15% vs 0.75%, phiebitis
2.96% vs 0.37% were higher
in eravacycline group]

-~ Serious adverse evenls
reported for 17/270 (6.3%) in
eravacycline vs 16/268
(5.97%) in ertapenem arm

— 9 deaths unrelated to study
therapy: 3 in eravacycline and
6 in ertapenem arm
[pulmonary embolism (N=2),
respiratory failure
{N=3),mullisystem organ
failure {N=1), cardiac rhythm
disturbances (N=2),and
cerebrovascular accident
(N=1)

Eravacycline (TP-434) (Xerava™} New Dnug Summary

£ 2018-2019 Comprehensive Pharmacy Services. All rights reserved

19¢

4 of 10




Study/Design/Time
Frame

Subjects/Criteria

Comparators

Outcomes

Results

Comments

acquired immune deficiency
syndrome (AIDS), organ {bone
marrow) transplant recipients, and
hematological malignancy.
Immunosuppressive therapy,
including use of high-dose
corlicosteroids (for example, >40
mg prednisone or equivalent per
day for greater than 2 weeks)
History of hypersensitivity
reaclions to tetracyclines,
carbapenems, B-laclam anlibiotics
or to excipients contained in the
sludy drug formulations
Participation in any investigational
drug or device sludy within 30
days prior to study entry

Known or suspected current
Central Nervous System disorder
that may predispose to seizures or
lower setzure threshold
Previously received eravacycline
in a clinical trial

Antibiotic-related exclusions:

Receipl of effective anlibacterial
drug therapy for clAl for a
continuous duralion of >24 hours
during the 72-hour preceding
enrollment (however, participants
with documented clAl [that is,
known baseline pathogen] who
have received at ieast 72 hours of
antibiolic therapy and are
considered treatment failures may
be enrolled. Treatment failure is
defined as persistent fever and/or
clinical symptoms; or the
development of a new intra-
abdominal abscess after 272
heurs of antibiotic therapy), or
Receipt of erfapenem or any other
carbapenem, or ligecycline for the
current infection or

Need for concomitant systemic
antimicrobial agents other than
study drug

Eravacycline (TP-434) (Xerava™) New Drug Summary
©2018-2019 Comprehensive Pharmacy Services. All righls reserved

79¢

50f 10




Study/Design/Time Subjects/Criteria Comparators Outcomes Results Comments
Frame
-~ Refusal of mechanical ventilation,
dialysis or hemofiliration,
cardioversion or any other
resuscitative measures and
drugfiluid therapy at time of
consent
— Known or suspected inflammatory
bowel disease or assaociated
visceral abscess
- The anticipaled need for systemic
antibiotics for a duration of more
than 14 days
~ Systemic malignancy that required
chemotherapy, immunotherapy,
radiation therapy or antineoplastic
therapy within the previous 3
months or thal is anticipated to
begin prior to the Test-of-Cure
(TOC) visit
IGNITE 4 study — N=500 adults - Eravacycline 1 Primary: ~  Primary and secondary
(NCT02784704)1%13 mgkg IV q12h Clinical response al the endpoints met non-inferiorily
Inclusion Criteria: (N=250) test-of-cure (TOC) Visit margin
Phase 3 Randomized, Male or female participant in:
Mutticenter, Double- hospitalized for clAl vs - Eravacycline is not worse
Blind, Double ~  Alleast 18 years of age —  Microbiological Micro-ITT: than meropenem in the
Dummy, Prospeclive, Evidence of a systemic - Meropenem 1 g intent-to-treat Clinical cure treatment of adulls with clAl
Non-inferiorily trial inflammatory response IV qBh {N=249); {Micro-ITT) - 177 (90.8%) vs. 187
_(WIlhln .1 2.5% non- —  Abdominal pain or flank pain {with population (91.2%) — Baseline isolates were
inferiority margin, of or withoul rebound tenderness), - Difference: cultured from 400 patients
the 2-sided 95% CI) or pain caused by clAl that is - For4 lo 14 days -0.4% (95% ClI: -6.3%,
_ referred to another analomic area 5.3%) The most common Gram-
- Complicated Able {o provide informed consent | Lost to follow up not negative pathogens in the
intra-abdominal | p ol o o agree to use an provided study included Escherichia
infections (clAl) effective barrier method of Secondary: coli (260), Bacteroides spp

(N=199)

- Complicated
appendicitis
{N=301)

October 2016- July
2017

contraception during the study
and for 14 days following the last
dose if sexually active with a
female of childbearing potential
If female, not pregnant or nursing
or, if of childbearing potential:
either will commit to use at least
two medically accepled, effeclive
methods of birth control (for

Clinical response al the
test-of-cure (TQC) Visit
in:

Modified intent-to-
treat (MITT)
papulation

- Clinically evaluable

MITT:
Clinical cure

231 (92.4%) vs. 228
(91.6%)

Difference:

-0.8% (95% Cl: -4.1%,
5.8%)

{182), Sireplococci (152),
Enterococci (146},
Staphylococcus aureus (110),
Klebsiella pneumania (62),
Pseudomonas (39)

Safety:

There were no treatment-
related serious adverse

=9¢

example, condom, oral {CE) population CE: evenls in the irial
contraceptive, indwelling Clinicat cure
intrauterine device, hormonal - 218 (96.9%) vs. 222 — Trealment-emergent adverse
implant /patch, injections, {(96.1%) event rales were similar in
Eravacycline (TP-434) (Xerava™) New Drug Summary
) 2018-2019 Comprehensive Phamnacy Services. All rights reserved 60of 10




79¢

Study/Design/Time
Frame

Subjects/Criteria

Comparators

Outcomes

Results

Comments

approved cervical ring) during
study drug dosing and for 14 days
following last study drug dose or
practicing sexual abslinence

Exclusion Criteria:

Unlikely to survive the 6-8 week
study period

Creatinine clearance of < 50
milliliter {mL)minute

Presence or possible signs of
significant hepalic disease
Immunocompromised condition,
including known human
immunodeficiency virus (HIV)
posilivity, transplant recipients,
and hemalological malignancy
History of moderate or severe
hypersensitivity reactions to
tetracyclines, carbapenems, -
lactam antibiotics, or to any of the
excipienls contained in the study
drug formulations

Parlicipalion in any investigational
drug or device study within 30
days prior to study entry

Known or suspected current
cenlral nervous system (CNS)
disorder that may predispose to
seizures or lower seizure
threshold (for example, severe
cerebral arteriosclerosis,
epilepsy)

Antibiotic-related exclusions:

Receipt of effective antibacierial
drug therapy for clAl for a
continuous duration of >24-hours
during the 72-hours preceding
randomization [however,
participants with documented clAf
(that is, known baseline
pathogen) who have received at
least 72-hours of antibiotic
therapy and are considered
ireatment failures may be
enrolled. Trealment failure is

[Time Frame: TOC
visil: 25-31 days after
first dose of study drug]

Difference:

~  -0.8% (95% CI: -2.9%,

4.5%)

both treatment groups (37.2%
eravacycline vs 30.9%
meropenam}

The most commonly reported
drug-related adverse evenls
for eravacycline were infusion
sile reactions, nausea and
vomiting, each occurring at a
rate of less than 5%

Eravacycline (TP-434) (Xerava™) New Drug Summary
£ 2018-2019 Comprehensive Pharmacy Services. All rights reserved

7of10




Study/Design/Time Subjects/Criteria Comparators Outcomes Results Comments
Frame

defined as persistent fever and/or
clinica! symptoms; or the
developmenlt of a new intra-
abdominal abscess after 272
hours of antibiotic therapy], or

- Receipt of meropenem or any
olher carbapenem, or tigecycline
for the current infection, or

—  Need for concomitant systemic
antimicrobial agents effective in
clAl other than study drug

~- Refusal of mechanical ventilation,
dialysis or hemofiliration,
cardioversion, or any other
resuscitalive measures and
drug/fluid therapy at time of
consent

- Known or suspecled inflammatory
bowel disease or assaciated
visceral abscess

—  The anticipated need for systemic
antibiotics for a duration of more
than 14 days

- Systemic malignancy that
required chemotherapy,
immunotherapy, radiation
therapy, or antineoplastic therapy
within the previous 3 months or
that is anticipated to begin prior to
the Tesl-of-Cure (TQC) visil

—  Known at study eniry to have clAl
caused by a pathogen(s) resistant
to one of the study drugs

CE: Clinically evaluable; clA): Complicated inlraabdominal infectior;, cUTI- Complicated urinary tract infections; ESBLs: Exlended spectrum bela lactamnases; LTF: Lost (o follow up; Micro-ITT: microbiological
intent-lo-treat; MITT: Modified intent-to-treat; TOC: Test of Cure

Eravacycline (TP-434) (Xerava™) New Drug Summary
i 2018-2019 Comprehensive Pharmacy Services. All rights reserved 8of 10

39¢



Warnings: '
Avoid/do not administer eravacycline in patient populations at risk for the following:
* Hypersensitivity reactions for any known/history of such o any tetracycline.
* Tooth discoloration and enamel hypoplasia during tooth development (e.g., pregnancy,
breastfeeding, infancy, childhood)
Reversible inhibition of bane growth (e.g., pregnancy, infancy, breastieeding, childhood)
Clostridium difficile associated diarrhea (CDAD)
* Males may experience lower sperm count and fertility during treatment

Institute appropriate therapy for overgrowth of non-susceptible organisms, including fungi, with
the use of eravacycline.

Discontinue eravacycline if any of the following adverse reactions are suspected, including
photosensitivity, pseudotumor cerebri, and anti- anabolic action which has led to increased BUN,
azotemia, acidosis, hyperphosphatemia, pancreatitis, and abnormal liver function tests.

Drug Interactions: *

s Concomitant use of strong CYP3A inducers decreases the exposure of eravacycline,
which may reduce its efficacy.

» Anticoagulants: Eravacycline may decrease plasma prothrombin activity in patients who
are on anticoagulant therapy. Patients on concomitant therapy may require downward
adjustment of their anticoagulant dosage.

» Concomitant use of tetracyclines and penicillins may decrease the bactericidal effects of
penicillin leading to drug antagonism. This combination should be avoided. ™

Dl:s;ing:1
In adult patients: 1 mglkg intravenously every 12 hours of eravacycline; infused over
approximately 60 minutes every 12 hours for 4 up to 14 days.

Hepatic, not renal, dose adjustments are necessary when dosing eravacycline.’
¢  Child Pugh A and B severily- no adjustments needed
 Child Pugh C severity - 1 mg/kg every 12 hours on day 1; then mg/kg every 24 hours
« Concomitant use of a strong CYP3A inducer - 1.5 mg/kg every 12 hours
» Concomitant use of a weak or moderate CYP3A inducer — No dosage adjustment needed

Medication Safety Issues:

Look Alike Sound Alike Medications: Evaluation of formulary medication list is important with new
drugs to market for possible safety concerns (i.e., similar drug names that have/may lead to
confusion/errors, restrictions on administration routes or dosing to prevent medication errors,

Competes with: Ceftazidime-avibactam (Avycaz) on current formulary for CRE infections

Developed: 9/18
Updated: 2/20

References:

' Brook |. Microbiology of polymicrobial abscesses and implications for therapy. J Antimicrob
Chemother 2002,;50:805-10.

? Goldstein EJC, Snydman DR. Intra-abdominal infections: review of the bactericlogy,
antimicrobial susceptibility and the role of ertapenem in their therapy. J Antimicrob Chemother
2004,53:ii29-36.

3 XERAVA™ [package insert). Watertown, MA: Tetraphase Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; August 2018,

Eravacycline (TP-434) (Xerava™) New Drug Summary
 2018-2019 Comprehensive Pharmacy Services. Al rights reserved 90f 10

266



4 Drugs@FDA: FDA Approved Drug Products. Eravacycline (XERAVA). Available at URL:
hitps://www.accessdata.fda.gov/drugsatfda_docs/appletter/2018/211 1090rig1s000itr.pdf.
Accessed 09/11/2018.

® Zhanel G. et al. Review of Eravacycline, a Novel Fluorocycline Antibacterial Agent. Drugs. 2016;
76:567-588.

® Bassetti M. et al. Eravacycline for the treatment of intra-abdominal infections. Expert Opin
Investig Drugs. 2014; Nov;23(11):1575-84.

" Nguyen F, Starosta AL, Arenz S, et al. Tetracycline antibiotics and resistance mechanisms. Bio!
Chem. 2014;395(5):559-75.

® Thaker M, Spanogiannopoulos P, Wright GD. The tetracycline resistome. Cell Mol Life Sci.
2010;67(3).419-31,

? Zheng Jin-xin et al. Overexpression of OgxAB and MacAB efflux pumps contributes lo
eravacycline resistance and heteroresistance in clinical isolates of Klebsiella prneumoniae. Emerg
Microbes Infect. 2018; 7: 139.

' Solomkin J et al. Assessing the Efficacy and Safety of Eravacycline vs Ertapenem in
Complicated Intra-abdominal Infections in the Investigating Gram-Negative Infections Treated
with Eravacycline (IGNITE1) Trial. JAMA Surgery. March 2017; Volume 152, Number 3:224-232.
'! Clinical Trial ID NCT 02784704. Efficacy and Safety Study of Eravacycline Compared With
Meropenem in Complicated Intra-abdominal Infections (IGNITE4). Available at URL:
https:ﬂclinicaltriaIs.qow’chlshowlNCT02784704?term=eravacycline&recrs=e&Qhase=23&rank=2.
Accessed September 12, 2018.

? Tetraphase Pharmaceuticals: Press Releases. Available at URL: htips.//ir.tphase.com/news-
releases/news-release-detailsftetraphase-announces-positive-top-line-results-phase-3-i nited#.
Accessed September 12, 2018.

"* Tsai L, Homn P, Solomkin J et al. Results of IGNITE4: A Phase 3 Study to Evaluate the Efficacy
and Safety of Eravacycline versus Meropenem in Complicated Intra-abdominal Infections.
Platform Presentation at 28th ECCMID Madrid, Spain.April 21-24th. Encore Poster Presentation
at the 2018 Annual MAD-ID, Orlando, FL May 2018.

'Y Passarell JA, Meagher AK, Liolios K, et al. Exposure-response analyses of tigecycline efficacy
in patients with complicated intra-abdominal infections. Antimicrob Agents Chemaother.
2008;52(1):204-10.

Eravacycline (TP-434) {Xerava™) New Drug Summary
© 2018-2019 Comprehensive Pharmacy Services. All rights reserved 10 of 10



Community Healthcare &
Alliance Committee
(No meeting held in May, 2020)

26t



Finance, Operations &
Planning Committee
(No meeting held in May, 2020)

26¢



Audit, Compliance &
Ethics Committee
(No meeting held in May, 2020)

27(



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 30, 2020 - 4:00 o'clock p.m.
Meeting Held via Teleconference

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held via
teleconference at 4.00 p.m. on April 30, 2020.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present via
teleconference:

Director Rocky J. Chavez
Director George W. Coulter
Director Leigh Anne Grass
Director Julie Nygaard
Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry W. Schallock
Director Tracy M. Younger

Also present via teleconference were:

Steven Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer
Scott Livingstone, Chief Operations Officer
Barbara Vogelsang, Chief Nurse Executive
Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Medical Officer

Susan Bond, General Counsel

Dr. Mark Yamanaka, Chief of Staff

Jeffrey Scott, Board Counsel

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Richard Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1. The Board Chairperson, Leigh Anne Grass, called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.
via teleconference with attendance as listed above.

2. Approval of Agenda
it was moved by Director Nygaard to approve the agenda as presented.
Director Chavez seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimousiy (7-0)
with a roll call vote.

3. Pledge of Allegiance
Director Grass led the Pledge of Allegiance

4, Public Comments ~ Announcement

Chairperson Grass read the Public Comments section listed on the April 30, 2020
Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda.



Mr. Edmundo Garcia, CNA Labor Representative requested to speak under ltem No.
10, Comments from Members of the Public.

5. March, 2020 Financial Statement Results — Mr. Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Rivas reported on the current month financials as follows (Dollars in Thousands):

> Net Operating Revenue - $25,789
» Operating Expense - $30,768

> EBITDA - ($3,164)

> EROE - (%4,467)

Mr. Rivas reported on current month Key Indicators as follows:

#~ Average Daily Census - 138
» Adjusted Patient Days - 7,695
» Surgery Cases — 424

» ED Visits — 3,966

Mr. Rivas commented on the impact COVID-19 has had on the March financials,
largely due to the elimination of elective surgeries, reduction in ED visits, reduction in
average daily census and purchase of additional supplies in anticipation of a surge.
Mr. Dietlin provided information on the Cares Act and other federal funding which has
not provided significant relief to the District.

6. New Business — None
7. Old Business — None
8. Chief of Staff
a) Consideration of April 2020 Credentialing Actions and Reappointments Involving
the Medical Staff and Allied health Professionals as recommended by the Medical
Executive Committee on April 27, 2020.
Dr. Yamanaka presented the April Credentialing Actions Involving the Medical
Staff and Allied Health Professionals, the Rules and Regulations, Standardized
Procedures and Privilege Forms,
There were no questions or comments by Board members.
It was moved by Director Chavez to approve the April 2020 Credentialing
Actions and Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff and Allied
Health Professionals as recommended by the Medical Executive

Committee. Director Younger seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Schallock and Younger
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: Reno
ABSENT: Directors: None

m
TCHOD Special Board of Directors Meeting - 2- April 30. 2020

272



b) Consideration of Rules & Regulations:

1) Division of Medicine Rules & Regulations — Revised
2) Division of Subspecialty Surgery Rules & Regulations — Revised

It was moved by Director Nygaard to approve the Rules & Regulations as
presented and recommended by the Medical Executive Committee.
Director Chavez seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Schallock and Younger
NOES; Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: Reno
ABSENT: Directors: None

c) Consideration of Standardized Procedures:

1) NP — Interventional Radiology — Revised

2) NP - Neurosurgery — Revised

3) Certified Nurse Midwife ~ Revised

4) RNFA - Standardized Procedure and Scope of Service - Revised

It was moved by Director Nygaard to approve the Standardized
Procedures as presented and recommended by the Medical
Executive Committee. Director Chavez seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Schallock and Younger
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: Reno
ABSENT: Directors: None

d) Consideration of Privilege Forms:
1) Physician Assistant - Revised
2) Orthopedic Surgery - Revised
3) RNFA - Revised
It was moved by Director Chavez to approve the Privilege Forms as
presented and recommended by the Medical Executive Committee.
Director Nygaard seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Schallock and Younger
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: Reno
e .

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting - 3- April 30. 2020

273



ABSENT: Directors: None
9, Consideration of Consent Calendar

It was moved by Director Younger to approve the Consent Agenda.
Director Nygaard seconded the motion.

It was moved by Director Schallock to pull the FY2020 Financial
Statement Audit Proposal. Director Younger seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion minus the pulled item via a roll call vote
was as follows:

AYES: Directors:  Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Schallock and Younger
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: Reno
ABSENT: Directors: None

10. Discussion of items pulled from Consent Calendar

Director Schallock requested that Mr. Rivas provide an overview of the Audit
Engagement Letter and the cost compared to last year. Mr. Rivas reviewed the terms
of the proposal which includes the regular Financial Statement Audit and the Single
Audit which is a regulatory requirement due to our loan with HUD. Mr. Rivas stated
the fees represent an overall increase of approximately 1% or a little less than
$2,000.

10. Comments by Members of the Public

Chairperson Grass recognized Edmundo Garcia, CNA Labor Representative. Mr.
Garcia delivered a message on behalf of the nurses and healthcare workers. He
commented on the COVID-19 unprecedented healthcare crisis and the challenges it
has placed on the front-line caregivers.

11. Comments by Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Steve Dietlin, CEO provided a detailed report on COVID-19's impact on Tri-City
Medical Center from a financial as well as staffing standpoint. He explained that the
hospital is preparing for the highest volumes ever seen yet experiencing the lowest
volumes which creates the need for flexibility including staff flexing and furloughs.

Mr. Dietlin also commented on PPE shortages both county and nationwide and
expressed appreciation for staff who have worked together to manage our usage.

With regard to COVID-19 testing, the hospital does have the capability to do on-site
testing in a 30-45 minute time frame; however the challenge has been to get the
cartridges to do the testing and this has been an issue county-wide.

Mr. Dietlin emphasized that hospitals continue to be a safe place to go.

m
TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting - 4- April 30, 2020

27¢



A daily briefing is distributed to all staff and Board members which contains important
information and data related to the Medical Center's response to the COVID-19
pandemic.

In closing, Mr. Dietlin thanked all of our team members and first responders as well as
organizations that have donated food and supplies.

12. Board Communications

Director Chavez stated he supports the comments made by Mr. Dietiin with regard to
our staff and their safety.

Director Chavez commented on the COVID-19 pandemic noting at the present time
there are 3,042 reported cases in San Diego County with 761 hospitalizations. Of the
3,042 reported cases 151 of those are in Oceanside, Carlsbad and Vista. Currently
there are five positive COVID-18 inpatients at Tri-City Medical Center. He urged
everyone to mask up and practice good hand hygiene and social distancing.

Both Director Coulter and Younger expressed their appreciation for everyone’s hard
work and Administration's efforts in maintaining a safe environment for front line staff.

Direction Reno had no comments.

Director Schallock expressed his appreciation to Mr. Dietlin for his informative update
to the Board. He also expressed his appreciation to the physicians, nurses and all
the staff for their hard work and dedication to our patients. Director Schallock
commented that it is an extremely stressful time with many challenges which will
continue for the foreseeable future.

Director Nygaard thanked the physicians, nurses and staff for the sacrifices they have
made to keep our community healthy. She noted the importance of staying home
and masking up and social distancing when it is necessary to be out in public.

13. Report from Chairperson

Chairperson Grass stated the COVID-19 Pandemic is unprecedented. Healthcare
professionals are on the front line and they continue to provide compassionate
support for our patients with a human touch.

Chairperson Grass also recognized the Environmental Services Staff for their
sanitation efforts as well as the Food and Nutrition staff who continue to serve our
patients with hot nutritious meals. She stated every staff member has a role and one
is no more important than another. She expressed her appreciation from the C-Suite
down.

—“—%
TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting - 5- April 30. 2020

27¢



4 There being no further business Chairperson Grass adjourned the meeting at 4:20
p.m.

Leigh Anne Grass, Chairperson

ATTEST:

Julie Nygaard, Secretary

_—
TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting - 6- April 30. 2020

27¢



112

Spine Surgery Cases

Volume

Performance compared to prior year:

Growth - Page 2 of 6




812

Performance compared to prior year:

Inpatient Behavioral Health - Average Daily Census (ADC)

FY19 10.8 11.3 9.7 . = E

Acute Rehab Unit - Average Daily Census (ADC}
Aug Sep Oct
4.5 [ by SR )| - 7.1
FY19 7.4 9.1 6.5 4.7 5.7 : ; : 6.5 |

Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) - Average Daily Census {ADC)

FY19 114 98 11.6 ' g 9.5 10.4

Hospital - Average Daily Census (ADC)
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

143.4 1436 | 143.2 1440  160.2 |
160.3 155.9 146.4 149.6 143.7 153.2 164.8 166.3 157.7 142.4 1433 146.5

FY19

Deliveries

FY19 186 202 156

Inpatient Cardiac Interventions

Growth - Page 3 of 6



3128

Performance compared to prior year:

-

Outpatient Cardiac Interventions

FY19

TCMC Adjusted Factor (Total Revenue/IP Revenue) C/Mm
FY20 1.85 1.89 191 1.86 186 1.79 1.80 1.80 1.81 1.69 1.83
FY19 1.79 1.83 1.90 1.78 1.78 1.70 1.72 1.73 1.75 1.82 1.80 1.79 1.78

Growth - Page 4 of 6



18¢

@:"? Tri-City Medical Center

Financial Information

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

oYY OU

C/m

Fe, 10 &5 __3ep et - - Nov. . Deci.  ‘Jan_.  'Febll . Mar_ . YIDAvg = Range
FY20 52.8 56.4 59.2 61.2 61.9 62.6 61.5 58.7 $3.1 50.5 57.8
FY19 51.0 485 50.3 49,5 52.3 56.5 58.9 56.7 57.0 50.5 53.1

TCMC Days in Accounts Payable (A/P)
LS Julif AR Aug 2 i Sep Oct Mav S 37 Dec’. -~ " Jan & 558

930 89.9 0. 98.4 :

FY19 849 86.5 90.2 914 92.5 87.8 931 92.2 83.6 B4.1

88.6

TCHD EROE $ in Thousands {Excess Revenue over Expenses)

c/m

Lo o dul T OAR . T Sep Tl T Ot PRI Nov LIBENGY Dec SIS Bilan dar i Feb NI Mar 3 _Apr_ May  Jun | YID _  YTDBudget
FY20 (5476} {$494) {$759) {5311) ($1,036) (51,040 {5860) {5735) {54,467) 51,921 (58,257)
FY19 (5478) {$121) $119 $254 5342 $236 (8527) $99 5206 $885 51,015

TCHD EROE % of Total Operating Revenue

Py | L P Oct = Nov i35l Dec T5T 1N lan 30010 Feb (a8 £ Marjil 1

Y20 -165% -1 -1.08% -391%  -3.75%  -2.85% -17.32%

9.94%

FY15 -1.64% -0.39% 0.41% 0.86% 1.19% 0.79% -1.76% 0.34% 0.67% 2.89%

Page 5of 6

__YTD Budget




182

——

(C'@.)) g ” ADVANCED HEALTH CARE
Tri-City Medical Center

FOR Y@U

Financial Information

Jul

Aug

< 7. Sep ¥

| L : _Jem F Mar__ Apr  May D D Budge
FY20 $686 4681 $412 5683 562 5128 $367 $551 {33,164)  $3,159 53,566 $ 12,455
FY19 $796 $1,168 $1,417 $1,561 $1,618 51,544 5826 $1,468 51,548 $2,219 52,271 {$4,712) $14,165

TCHD EBITDA % of Total Operating Revenue

c/Mm c/Mm
_dul Aug . Sep _. Ot Nov. ] = T Feh§ Mar_ ___YID_ YYD Budget
FY20 2.38% 2.30% 1.47% 2.36% 0.24% 0.46% 1.22% 202%  -12.27%  16.35% 1.31% 4.23%
FY19 2.73% 3.81% 4.90% 5.28% 5.65% 5.20% 2.76% 5.07% 5.00% 7.25% 7.07%  -16.58% 4.77%

TCMC Paid FTE (Full-Time Equivalent) per Adjusted Occupied Bed

FY20  7.04

6.80 6.21

" 6.90 6.58 6.0 671  6.82 7.02 7.27 6.76 6.87
FY19 6.73 6.70 6.75 £.98 7.82 6.50 6.68 6.52 6.71 7.27 1.29 6.79 6.86
TCHD Liquidity $ in Millions {Cash + Available Revolving Line of Credit}
Lo o Jule D FAug BT Sep RN Oct INSORY Nov SRR Dac TR Jan _Feb Mar.  Apr May  Jun_
FY20 $52.4 $44.8 543.7 $45.6 $38.2 $31.9 $35.2 $35.8 $34.8 $51.2
FY1S $50.0 $49.5 549.3 S48.1 $37.5 529.5 $36.3 $329 $20.6 $40.7 557.1 554.5 |
Paga 6 of 6



)

L e

Bullding Operating Leases
Month Ending Aprit 30, 2020

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR \'\{'V©U

Total Rent per
. Lessor current month Services & Locatlon Cost Center
6121 Paseo Del Norta, LLC
6128 Paseo Del Nore, Suite 180 QOSNC - Carlsbad
Carlsbad, CA 92011 6121 Paseo Del Norie, Sulte 200
V#83024 47,418.30 Carishad, CA 92011 7085
TCMC, A Joint Venture
3231 Waring Court, Sult D Dr. Yamanaka MD/ Pulmonary
Oceanside, CA 92056 3231 Waring Court Suit D
V#75482 7.508.00 Oceanside, CA 92056 7088
JDS FINCO LLC
498 N EL Camino Real Oceanside MOB
Encinitas, CA 92024 423 N EL Camino Real
Vi#83604 7.011.00 Encinltas, CA 92024 7082
Cardiff Investments LLC
2729 Ocean St OSNC - Oceanside
Carishad, CA 82008 3805 Waring Road
V83204 27,500 69 Oceanside, CA 92056 7095
Creak View Medical Assoc
1926 Via Centre Dr, Suite A PCP Cllnic Vista
Vista, CA 2081 1926 Via Centre Drive, Ste A
V#1981 21,112.00 Vista, CA 92081 7030
CreekView Orhopaedic Bldg, LLC
1658 Via Centre Drive QSNC - Vista
Vista, Ca 92081 1858 Via Centre Drive
V#83025 16,108 57 Vista, Ca 82081 7085
Melrosa Plaza Complex, LP
cl/o Five K Management, Inc.
P O Box 2522 Outpatlent Behavloral Health
La Jolla, CA 92038 510 West Vista Way
V#43849 10.399.54 Vista, Ca 92083 7320
OPS Enterprises, LLC Chemotherapy/infusion Oncology
3617 Vista Way, Bldg. 5 Center
Oceanside, Ca 92056 3617 Vista Way, Bldg.5
#v81250 27.850.00 /22)|Oceanside, Ca 92056 7086
SCRIPPSVIEW MEDICAL ASSOCIATES
P O Box 234296 Enclnitas Medical Center
Encinitas, CA 234296 351 Santa Fe Drive, Suile 351
V#83588 13.316.37 Encinltas, CA 92023 7085
$ 178,225.47

(a) Total Rent includes Basa Rent plus property taxes, association fees, insurance, CAM expenses, efc.




ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

| @ Tri-City Medical Center - "R YVOU

Education & Travel Expense
Month Ending April 2020

Cost

Centers Description Invoice # Amount  Vendar # Attendees
6185 ONS/ONCC CHEMOTHERAPY RENEWAL 41420 EDY 103.00 77154 DEBBIE KEVINS
6185 ONS/ONCC CHEMOTHERAPY RENEWAL 41420 EQU 103.00 B2087 DIVINA SCHWARZEL
8532 CERNER TRAINING 40920 EDU 247.96 83606 LYNNE LUEDTKE
8740 PEDATRIC LIFE SUPPORT COURSE 41620 EDU 100.00 83708 MARIA DE JESUS BARRERA
8740 ADVANCED CRITICAL CARE COURSE 41620 €DU 160.00 79416 REBECCA SIMMONS
8740 CLINICAL NURSE SPECIALIST CERTIFICATION 41620 EDY 200.00 81826 MELINDA RUIZ
8740 POINT OF CARE SPECIALIST CERTIFICATION 41620 EDU 200.00 B3710 REGIN CLENN ORTIZ
8740 PEDIATRIC ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT 41620 EDU 200.00 83711 JENNIFER WYATT

**This report shows reimbursements to employees and Board members in the Education
& Travel expense category in excess of $100.00,
*"Detailed backup is available from the Finance department upon request.

283



	agenda.packet.May.1
	agenda.packet.May.2.
	agenda.packet.May.3.



